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LEGISLATION RELATING TO REEMPLOYMENT

RIGHTS, EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE, AND
THE U.S. COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS

THURSDAY, MAY 23, 1991

US. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS,

Washington, DC

The Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m., in room
SR-418, Russell Senate Office Building, Hon. Alan Cranston (Chair-

man of the Committee( presiding.
Present: Senators Cranston, Misch le, Specter, and Jeffords.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CIIAIRM AN CRANSTON

Chairman CRANSTON. I welcome you an to today's hearing relat-
ing to veterans' education and employment issues, as well as to the

U.S. Court of Veterans Appeals. Thanks to all the witnesses who
are appearing before the Committee today for sharing your views

with us.
The measures before the C!ommittee are described in detail in my

written statement, copies of which are available on the table in the

hall.
With regard to the Court, there are two bills. S. 1050 would allow

the Court to accept voluntary services and gifts and bequests. The

other bill relating to the Court is H.R. 153, which the House passed

on February 20, 1991. This bill would make certain technical
amendments and modify various provisions relating to the Court's
operations and administration.

With reference to the veterans' employment and education meas-
ures, the recent Persian Gulf' conflict has underscored the impact
that the commitment of our military forces has On the lives of so
many individuals. I want to ask forgiveness for going on at a little
bit of length about one aspect of this that I think bears some care-

ful scrutiny.
Many active duty servicemembers and reservists had to leave

school in order to serve in the Persian Gulf or in support of mili-

tary operations there. S. S6S would restore educational assistance
entitlement to those who were unable to complete their coursework
due to service in connection with the Persian Gulf conflict and
would protect reservists who were called up from losing any time

in which to use their education benefits.
With the mobilization of about 22,000 reservists and National

Guard members since last August, we have become acutely aware
of the price that citizen soldiers, their families, and their employers

$3$



must pay to meet our national security commitments around the
world. Approximately 80 percent, of the enlisted personnel and 90
percent of the officers who were activated were full-time employees
in civilian jobs at the time of their order to duty.

As of last week, 21/2 months after the fighting subsided, 118,000
reservists and Guard members were still on active duty. These indi-
vidualsand their familieswere ready to make and have made
many sacrifices. They performed their supporting roles extremely
well during the buildup and the weeks of actual conflict, which of
course was a very short time.

In exchange, I believe the Armed Forces should make it a priori-
ty to return these individuals to their civilian jobs and educational
pursuits as quickly aS operational needs can allow. They should not
be kept on for the convenience of the military and doing jobs that
could be turned over to active duty personnel or to contractors.

Generally speaking, employers have reacted in a patriotic and
supportive manner. I am concerned, however that employer sup-
portthe main element in the successful workings of veterans' re-
employment rights laws for over 50 yearsmay be severely tested
with the continued deployment of half of the mobilized Reserve
Force, while Regular Forces are being welcomed home.

If employers perceive the continuing retention of Reserves as un-
reasonable, support could deteriorate and put the entire total-force
concept at risk.

Prior to Desert Shield, employment conflicts were said to account
for as much as one-third of the unprogrammed losses in the Select-
ed Reserves. I am concerned that figure could grow if the citizen
soldiers are not back at their jobs when the parades are over.

As Chairman of th;s Committee, I am deeply concerned that
1,600 VA health-care workersincluding 200 physicians and 900
nursesare still not back.

As a Senator from California, I have received more than 100 let-
tersI have a stack of them herefrom reservists and their fami-
lies who are frustrated because the reservists are still not coming
home. Let me read to you from some of these letters to give you a
sense of the disruption in the lives of the fine men and women who
are serving our country.

This letter is from a southern Californian: "When President
Bush ordered the activation of certain reservists, my life was
changed. My fiance was called to serve his country. I learned more
about the world and a little about politics during Desert Shield and
then Desert Storm. However, now that the situation is somewhat
under control and a peace treaty is at hand, I am left in a state of
confusion and somewhat resentful that my fiancé is still in Okina-
wa with his release nowhere in sight."

I've heard from a number of reservists serving in Okinawa.
Here's another letter from a young woman in Oregon whose fiance
in Okinawa was just informed that he will be traveling to Singa-
pore, Malaysia, and possibly the Philippines:

"My fiance was taken out of school a week before his final
exams. He was to graduate last January with a GPA of 3.5. Be-
cause of his departure, he lost all credits for the entire semester,
he has completely missed the spring semester, and with this
planned return sometime in September he will miss yet another se-

7
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mester. I feel these people should be home in time to register for
the fall semester that starts in August."

Assistant Secretary Duncan, I hope that during your comments
you can explain why reservists activated for Operation Desert
Shield/Desert Storm are still in Okinawa, with plans to travel
around the Far East.

I am also concerned about the number of doctors who have prac-
tices that they have left behind whose patients are leaving them
and who may be losing their livelihoods. Here is a letter from a
doctor in southern California:

"I am a physician and an Army reservist who was called to
active duty in December 1990 t3 help with the national emergency.
This is the commitment that I accepted as a reservist when I
joined.

Now that the emergency no longer is present, my commitment
has reverted to maintaining my solo medical practice and support-
ing my family. If I am gone for more than a few months, the doc-
tors who refer to me will have changed their referral patterns and
use another urologist. At 56 years of age, I don't have 5 years to
begin to reestablish a practice nor can I borrow enough money to
start again.

Today, we were informed that our Reserve unit was to be kept on
active duty until December. This is primarily to till the long-term
void the service has had in treating retirees and military depend-
ents. The price of going bankrupt and losing a practice that took 20
years to establish is too great for me to pay to save the military
medical system a few dollars in patient care."

Another doctor from northern California has written about a col-
league:

"I feel that it i:, wrong for this doctor, as a reservist, to be still
stationed on the front while many active duty doctors have already
come home. More importantly, we have a rural area that has
sorely missed his medical services. He is a general surgeon and we
very much need him. He has already been gone for 6 months.
Please help us to get him home.'"

And this letter was from May 7. "I wonder if we are taking ad-
vantage of our medical reservists to fill longstanding shortages in
our military medical care facilities."

Finally, this is from a Californian in the Naval Reserve now sta-
tioned in Puerto Rico:

"Most of us took a severe cut in pay and a lot have lost business-
es, or are about to. We need your help to inquire as to why we are
still here when onr active duty replacements are in Mississippi and
have been since January 19:)i.

"Our morale is on a downslide and we feel like the abused child
locked in the closet that no one knows about. Please get us borne
while there is some yellow ribbon left-

Again, Assistant Secretary Duncan, I hope you will be able to ex-
plain the rationale behind the continued deployment of reservists
over active-duty personnel.

As dramatic and far reaching as are the massive Reserve callups,
the ongoing test of the reemployment rights law, year in and year
out, relates to the ordinary requirements of being a member of the
Selected Reserve or National Guard,
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In S. 1095, we are proposing a complete revision of the 50-year-
old reemployment rights laws. Our aim is to avoid delays and dis-
putes in the implementation of the law by stating more clearly the
rights and obligations of all parties.

At this time, I recognize toe cooperative efforts of many here
today who have had a part in bringing forward this needed revi-
sion. About 3 years ago. the Departments of Labor, Defense, VA
and Justice, together with the Office of Personnel Management,
began the tedious process of reorganizing this seemingly simple,
but highly technical chapter of title 38.

Their efforts serve as the basis on which the Chairman of the
House Veterans' Affairs Subcommittee on Education, Training, and
Employment, Representative Penny, was able to develop H.R. 1578,
a bill that the House passed on May 14. H.R. 1578, in tura, served
a$ a starting point for S. 1095, which we developed with various
changes and with further technical assistance from the Adminis-
tration.

For 50 years, the Reemployment Rights Program has run very
smoothly, due in large part to the efforts of the Department of
Labor, where more than 90 percent of disputed cases are resolved
by negotiation rather than litigation.

Much credit is also due the Department of Defense, whose Na-
tional Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve
keeps the lines of communication open between employees, their
units, and their employers.

Finally, I note with appreciation the aggressive leadership taken
by the Director of OPM during the recent Persian Gulf conflict to
provide an affirmative support of Federal employees ordered to
active duty.

I look forward to working with OPM, Labor, DOD, Justice and
the other organizations represented here today, the Committee's
Ranking Minority Member, Senator Specter, and all members of
the Committee to develop legislation that will gain the support of
our Committee.

Again, my sincere thanks for your participation today.
I also have an announcement to make about DIC reform. I've

been working for several months to draft a bill to reform the D1C
program. My proposa! will address the present inequities in the
system, without redwing benefits for those already receiving DIC.

I have not yet introduced a D1C reform bill because I feel that it
would not be responsible. to do that before we have a firm idea of
the cost entailed. On April 2, Committee staff asked C130 to pro
vide a preliminary cost estimate for my draft bill. Unfort.mately,
data currently available from VA are not sufficient to allow CRO
to make a reliable estimate, and VA advises that it could take sev-
eral months to collect 3ample data sufficient for this purpose. I will
place in the record of this hearing a copy of a letter I received from
CRO about this problem.

iThe letter referred to appears on p. 160.1
Chairman CRANSTON, For these reasons, I have decided to

remove DIC reform from the agenda of the June. l2t h hearing and
the June 2tith markup. This will enable other legislationmost no-
tably the COLA f'or service-connected compensationto go forward
in a timely manner.

1.1111111.1111.1111111111.111111110.1-



I plan to hold hearings on DIC reform proposals as soon as we
receive the Administration's bill and a cost estimate for my bill.

[The prepared statement of Senator Cranston appears on p. 148.]
Chairman CRANSTON. Now, turn to Arlen Specter, the Rank-

ing Minority Member of the Committee for whatever opening re-
marks he may desire to make.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR SPECTER

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I commend you for scheduling this important hearing on educa-

tion and reemployment for our Gulf veterans and on very impor-
tant issues generally for the veterans population.

I think it worth noting for the record that three of our colleagues
are on the floor at this momentSenator Thurmond, Senator
Simpson and Senator Jeffords, all members of this Committee, and
I was just there a moment agoon the introduction of the educa-
tion bill which the President has sponsored which will have a very
important impact on what is being decided !)ore.

I commend the very distinguished panel of witnesses and the
very extensive efforts which have gone into the legislative propos-
als and the hearing which we are having today, an unusual coordi-
nation of four major departmentsDepartment of Labor, Depart-
ment of Defense, Department of Justice, the Office of Personnel
Managementso that we have a very important lineup.

I'm not going to speak at length in an opening statement but
would ask unanimous consent that my prepared statenwnt be
placed in the record.

(The prepared statement of Senator Specter appears on p. 161.1
Senator SPECTER. Regretably I'm going to have to exclise myself

because we have Secretary of State Baker testifying before the For-
eign Operations Subcommittee beginning in 10 minutes at 10
o'clock. There are so many critical issues, it's hard to single one
out, but perhaps the most important issue for the veterans of
America and for America is that there not be another war in the
Gulf. The Administration and the Secretary of State are making
Herculean efforts along that line,

I shall return if it is possible. In any event. I will be following
these proceedings very closely as we work through our very ambi-
tious schedule which the Chairman of the Committee has orga-
nized.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you, Arlen. very much.
We now go to our first panel, those seated at the table, which

consists of representatives of various executive branch agencies. I
welcome Tom Collins, Assistant Secretary of Labor for Veterans'
Employment and Training; Stephen Duncan, Assistant Secretary of
Defense for Reserve Affairs; Stuart Schiffer, Deputy Assistant At-
torney General for the Civil Division of the Department of Justice;
and Patricia Lattimore, Deputy Associate Director for Career
Entry Group, Office of Personnel Management.

Tom, if you would now summarize your testimony in minutes,
then we'll proceed with the other witnesses in the order in which I
introduced you.
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Thank you again very, very much.

STATEMENT OF HON. THOMAS E. COLLINS III, ASSISTANT SECRE-
TARY FOR VETERANS' EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING, DEPART-
MENT OF LABOR

Mr. COLLINS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to
present testimony on this very important area of veterans' reem-
ployment rights. I certainly support the Committee's effort and rec-
ognize your commitment toward strengthening the Veterans' Re-
employment Rights Program through a new Liniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act.

I'll make a brief summary of the written testimony which is sub-
mitted for the record.

The citizen soldier is an American tradition. Throughout our his-
tory, Americans have left their civilian pursuits to defend the
Nation and the principles of liberty and justice we cherish. The
recent conflict in the Middle East has been no exception.

Thousands of men and women serving in the National Guard
and the Reserve components were called to active duty to respond
to an active aggressic that challenged and threatened all who
value freedom and rule of law. In addition, experienced merchant
seamen left other lines of work to staff cargo and Navy vessels
going to the theater of operations. Some have come back, others
will return. They have and will be coming homereturning to
their families and to the civilian endeavors they interrupted to
serve our Nation.

Since 1940, the existing Veterans' Reemployment Rights law has
protected employees who leave civilian jobs for voluntary or invol-
untary service in the regular military forces. Upon completion of
their military service, they are entitled to return to their previous
civilian jobs or similar jobs with the precise seniority, status, rate
of pay, that they would have attained if they had remained con-
tinuously employed.

Throughout the years, amendments to the law ht..ve given Re-
serve and National Guard members the right to leaves of absence
from their civilian jobs to participate in military training, and
have protected them from service-related discharge or discrimina-
tion in emP oyment by the employers.

Under the Total Force Policy, adopted by the Department of De-
fense in 19711 z7,c1 recently validated by Operation Desert Storm,
our country is more dependent than ever upon our Reserve compo-
nents. An essential element of readiness is participation and train-
ing necessary to maintain and enhance military skills.

Reserve component personnel are unlikely to be willing to par-
ticipate in such training unless they can be offered reasonable as-
surances that they will not suffer harm with respect to their civil-
ian jobs and careers. For this reason, the effective enforcement of
reemployment rights is more important than ever before.

After a 3-year effort by a task foz ce of interested Fedrral agen-
cies, the Administration proposed a comprehensive revision of the
Veterans' Reemployment Rights statute to secure the reemploy-
ment rights of servicemembers. The need for this revision was mag-
nified during the latest military action where large n imbersover

. 1 1
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200,000Reserve and National Guard members were activated and
some weaknesses in Lhe Veterans' Reemployment !lights law
became more appareat.

The Administration's proposal, which has been substantially
adopted by the House of Representatives as H.R. 1578, is designed
to establish clearly the rights of servicemembers and the responsi-
bilities of employers through clear, simple statutory language.

The Administration's intent also was to ensure that rights under
thr .. existing statute and its case law would be improved or pre-
served. In addition, we sought to reduce case loads and litigation
through more timely resolution of differences.

We are very pleased that your Committee's leadersh;o has pro-
posed legislation that would accomplish many of these improve-
ments, while also retaining and continuing the basic focus and
rights of the current law. For example, S. 1095, like H.R. 1578,
would help close the gaps in health insurance coverage; would con-
tinue to provide similar protections for Federal employees as well
as non-Federal employees; would eliminate distinctions between
categories of military training and service; would make the law
more understandable; would outlaw employer reprisals for claim-
ants; and it would assist recruitment and retention of reservists
and members of the National Guard to support the Total Force
Policy.

We are in the process of analyzing the provisions of S. 1095 and
comparing them to the Administration's proposal and the House-
passed bill, H.R. 1578. We will supply views on S. 1095 as soon as
possible.

[The viems referred to appear on p. 3551
Mr. COLLINS. We can point out at this time that there are several

areas of concern. I will just highlight these. Perhaps we can discuss
them later and certainly we would need to address these in writing
at a later date.

In the area of health insurance coverage, a vital pa-t, there
seems to be some uncertainties as to the intent of the Senate bill.
The Administration and the House bill follows the basic pattern of
COBRA.

There is some concern over the Senate bull's annual leave state-
ment. We believe it is just rather unclear as to when on leave of
absence, should the employee be entitled to leave of absence poli-
cies of the employer's or entitled to leave rights based upon the
active work status.

S. 1095 would also increase direct spending; therefore, it would
be subject to the pay-as-you-go requirement of the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act. We an. preparing, with the help of OMB, an
impact study on these costs.

We have :3ome other suggestions for changes to the bill which we
will be presenting in writing at a later date.

There is also a section in the proposed Senate bill which requires
the Department, through my office, to undertake an extensive
public information campaign. We believe this is unnecessary in the
statutory language because this campaign is already well under-
way, has been very successful, and such a requirement in the stat-
ute would indeed be redundant.
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In conclusion, we look forward to working with the Committee to
clarify And simplify the current Veterans Reemployment Rights
statute, to the proposals in S. 1095 and to resolve all issues that we
have addressed.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Collins appears on p. 172.]
Chairman CRANSTON. Steve, I want to ask each of you to try to

do the 5 minute summary. Your full statement will go in the
record.

STATEMENT OF HON. STEPHEN M. DUNCAN. ASSISTANT
SECRETARY FOR RESERVE AFFAIRS. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Mr. DUNCAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I'm going to try to respond to some cf the remarks you made in

your opening remarks and then perhaps during the question and
answer period we'll have a chance to explore them at greater
length.

Let me commence by saying that this is a rather remarkable
time in the history of American Reserve Forces. A lot of people
have different impressions about what did and did not happen in
Desert Storm. What did happen is that for the first time since our
Nation went to an All-Volunteer Force and adopted the Total
Force Policy, the Nation called reservists involuntarily to active
duty and in addition to that, we had literally tens of thousands of
people volunteer who were not called.

Chairman CRANSTON. You're speaking of reserQts?
Mr. DUNCAN. Reservis;...;, National Guardsmen and reservists. On

one day, I recall that we had over 10,000 volunteers from the Air
Reserve components alone. Those were volunteering on a given
day.

We had almost 228,000 National Guardsmen and reservists who
were called to active duty; 106,000 of those served in the Kuwaiti
theater of operations; 71 reservists gave their lives in Desert Shield
and Desert Storm; and I think by any fair standard, by any stand-
ard that I'm aware of, you could only conclude that their perform-
ance was absolutely outstanding. They responded with alacrity to
the Nation's call to arms and they performed as only American
volunteers who have the patriotism they do, could perform.

If you'd asked me 6 months ago, whether a callup of this magni-
tude could have gone so well, I would have said, I hope so, hut I'm
skeptical. But, it really did go this well.

I'm very pleased, and let me express my thanks to this Commit-
tee and the individual members on it, for the help we received on
the Soldiers and Sailors Civil Relief Act. I think that went a long
way to alleviating some of the perceived inequities by some of the
members of' those Reserve forces.

The particular legislation we're discussing this morning is some-
thing I have a great deal of personal interest in. I've been working
on it personally since 1987. As a former Assistant U.S. Attorney, 1
have some firsthand experience dealing with statutes that are am-
biguous awl lead judges to reach different conclusions about what
the rights of people are.
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I think it's in the best interest, not only of American reservists,
but of their employers, to have clear signals, absolute certainty as
clearly as we can make it, of what the law permits and what the
law requires.

I will tell you that our experience with American employers in
this conflict has also been absolutely outstanding. Everywhere I
goas recently as last Friday in New Orleans when I was down
welcoming home a squadron of 18 A-10 aircraft from the Air Force
Reserves, the 926th Tactical Fighter Groupwherever I go, I ask
about their relationship with their employers and I'm astounded at
the support that American employers have given to our Guards-
men and reservists in the conflict.

To address specifically one of your concerns about what we're
doing with reservists, let me summarize it in this way. There is
considerable misunderstanding about why some reservists are still
on active duty. There are lots of factors. I won't presume to go into
them during my 5 minutes of opening, but let me summarize very
quickly by saying, it's not accidental.

In the case of the Army. for example, almost 70 percent of the
Army's combat support and combat service support elementsspe-
cifically medical units, transportation units, ammunition handlers,
port handlers, water purifiers, civil affairs units, et ceteraare in
the Army RL5erve components. It was designed to be that way. We
have more combat units in the Active component and far more
support units', in the Reserve components.

Those people with those precise logistical skills are the people
that we need most as we're loading up the remaining 500 shiploads
of things, including everything from people to ammunition, but
whatever, to bring back to our country.

It was a magnificent projection of military force done under diffi-
cult circumstances, but it's no less difficult to bring all of that force
back. Some of those people, many of those people, have precisely
the skills that we need to help us load all of that. up, and they are
performing very, very well.

I will concede that there may be individual instances where they
have not been told, and there is no excuse for that, if they've not
been told exactly what the plans are or why they are being needed.
That's all leadership and perhaps we need to look into some indi-
vidual cases. We are doing that as we become aware of those indi-
vidual cases.

The reservists also need to know that while the perception per-
haps in the media was that the conflict ended on February '.*4,
since then we've had the Kurdish situation, we've had the Bangla-
desh situation, we also have an awful lot of' peopleand this
doesn't answer the equation entirelywe have an awful lot of
active duty soldiers who had been deployed from home for months
who then deployed for several additional months to go fight the
war and have not been home in a great deal of time.

So what we're trying to do is to be as fair and equitable to all of
the members of the Armed Forces as possible. This has Secretary
Cheney's personal attention. Just this week, he informed me that
he's discussed the matter with the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of'
Staff, with Lieutenant General Pagonis over in the Persian Gulf.
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It has the attention of the policy leadership of the Department.
We're doing our very best and I'll be glad to discuss specifics with
you about how we're going about the business of bringing our re-
servists home.

Let me summarize quickly with respect to the legislation at
hand. We certainly endorse the concept of what the Congress is
trying tr do. I believe in the long run, it will benefit both reservists
and their employers.

I might just conclude with a final note. I checked as recently as
yesterday with my National Committee for Employer Support of
the Guard and Reserve and was informed that at least measured
by the number of telephone calls that are coming in from employ-
ers, employers continue to be very, very supportive and seem to
have a very great understanding of precisely what we're trying to
do, and that we're keeping reservists only to meet operational
needs.

I can't predict for certainty how that will go in the future but as
of yesterday, it seemed to be there was a pretty broad-based under-
standing by employers.

I'll look forward to your questions, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Duncan appears on p. 179.]
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very, very much.
Stuart.

STATEMENT OF STUART E. SCHIFFER. DEPUTY ASSISTANT AT-
TORNEY GENERAL, CIVIL DIVISION. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Mr. SCHIFFER. Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
I join my colleagues in expressing gratitude to the Committee for

its consideration of this important legislation.
As the Chairman indicated, the existing Veterans' Reemploy-

_ ment Rights law has served well for over 50 years. Nevertheless,
efforts to amend the statute have not always kept pace fully with
changes such as the dramatic evolution of the role of the Reserves
as part of our total military force. Equally, I think it's clear that
recent years have seen substantial changes in the types of employ-
ment rights E n d benefits which are important in the civilian work
force.

There can't be any more important incentive to voluntary mili-
tary service than assurance of clearcut and unqualified rights to re-
employment without penalty. I would place emphasis on the need
for these to be clearcut and unqualified. Those who answer the call
to their Nation's colors simply shouldn't have to fear for their civil-
ian livelihood.

The need for legislative clarification and revision as embodied in
the Administration proposal and in S. 1095 is probably best mani-
fested by cases such as King v. St. Vincent's Hospital, to which we
allude in our prepared statement and is currently before the Su-
preme Court.

It's an area of tho law that can't abide ad hoc or unpredictable
results. In the King case, the lower court engrafted a reasonable-
ness requirement as have several courts on the duration, length,
and type of service that qualifies for coverage under the act.

1 5t
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We believe these decisions were wrong but in any event, this cre-
ates a situation where individual reservists are almost dependent
en the laws of 13 Federal circuits to ascertain whether their rights
are going to be fully protected. This bill would make clear that
such a requirement has no basis in the law, just as we think it had
no basis in the existing law.

As illustrated by our petition for certiorari in the King case, the
Justice Department takes its responsibilities to represent veterans
who were denied reemployment very seriously. We've been pleased
to work with our colleagues in the other executive agencies and the
Congress on this legislation. I pledge that we will continue to work
with your staffs to perfect the bill.

Our prepared testimony does take note of certain limited con-
cerns we have with S. 1095. For example, we express concern about
the notion of attorneys in the Office of Special Counsel represent-
ing Federal employees in the courts in cases where the Govern-
ment is the defendant, but I want to assure the Committee of our
overall support for the legislation and our willingness to continue
to work with you to see that this bill is passed.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Schiffer appears on p. 1S6.1
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very, very much.
Patricia.

STATEMENT OF PATRICIA LATTIMORE. DEPUTY ASSOCIATE DI-
RECTOR. CAREER ENTRY GROUP. OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MAN-
AGEMENT

Ms. LATTIMORE. Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
OPM also thanks you for inviting us to share our perspectives on

the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemploynwnt Rights
Act. OPM shares my colleagues' view that VRR, a longstanding
law, has been amended and subjected to numerous judicial inter-
pretations and has become difficult and cumbersome to administer.

OPM strongly supports efforts to make the statutory employ-
ment protections for veterans and reservists stronger and clearer.
We will generally defer to the Department of Labor's analysis of
the details of S. 1095 and the differences between the Senate and
House proposals for amending the VRR law.

The Federal Government, us an employer, is very proud of the
longstanding tradition of support and encouragement of employees
in our Reserve system and has a reputation already for offering
considerably more benefits to reservists than do many employers.

OPM continues to he committed and willing to continue the full-
est support of our veterans in the reservist system and believes
that our returning veterans from the Gulf War, our citizen sol-
diers, deserve no less,

We thank you and we too are available to answer any questions
that you may have.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Constance Berry Newman ap-
pears on p. 1941

Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very, very much.
Senator JetThrds has joined us. Do you have any opening remarks

to make?

1 t;
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OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR JEFFORDS
Senator JEFFORDS. Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman. I'll just take a couple

of minutes.
I certainly want to welcome everyone here to the hearing this

morning, especially on the programs that we are discussing on edu-
cation and employment benefits. This is an area of great interest to
me.

This is kind of an education morning. We were just over on the
House floor talking about the President's efforts in the bipartisan
area and I'm headed off to the Education Committee on Higher
Education after awhile.

I'd like to make the rest of my statement a part of the record,
Mr. Chairman. I'm pleased to be here and am looking forward to
the testimony.

[The prepared statement of Senator Jeffords appears on p. 166 1
Chairman CRANSTJN. Thank you very much.
Steve, let me start by pursuing the matter that I stressed in my

opening remarks. I appreciate your comments and your brief sum-
mary on my concerns.

I do want to explore the matter of the number of reservists and
members of the National Guard ordered to do cht4 for Operation
Desert Storm who are still on active duty more than 2 months
after hostilities in the Persian Gulf have subsided.

I know the demobilization can be a iengthy process and that re
servists were tasked with many of the duties necessary to support
our current Gulf mission. I'm proud of their performance, as are
you, and all who are aware of what they accomplished.

The fact that reservists have jobs or education pursuits to which
they need to return and the fact that many have greatly reduced
incomes while serving really has to be taken into account. Our abil-
ity to sustain a large Reserve Force depends on two key factors: the
willingness of hundreds of thousands of individuals to volunteer for
Reserve service and the cooperation of thousands of employers.

Keeping reservists on active duty for unnecessarily lengthy
tours, if they are unnecessary, could be detrimental to both Re-
serve recruitment efforts and the cooperative spirit that you need
from employers.

Can you expand a bit on what the services are doing to carry out
the priority goal of bringing reservists home as rapidly as practical,
all factors taken into consideration?

Mr. DUNCAN. Sure. Let me make several comments in response.
I'm sensitive to the issue because I was a reservist for IS years

and I was also a practicing attorney and as a professional, I darned
well knew exactly what the risks were when I was called to active
duty and how it would affect income, my family and et cetera. We
didn't live near a naval base or military base. so I'm aware of these
concerns firsthand.

Chairman CRANSTON. It is helpful t hat you have that back-
ground.

Mr. DtINCAN. I believe so. Let me tell you that I'm following this
on literally a daily basis. I have discussed it with the service Secre-
taries, the issue with thy Secretary of Defense', with military lead-
ership, and so forth. No one in the Department of' Defense would

1 7,
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subscribe to the notion of keeping a reservist on active duty unnec-
essarily.

The issue is simply that we are still in a fonr of conflict, even
though the shooting has stopped. I find this area similar to that
part of Desert Shield before the shooting started in January but
after we started sending forces there in August. We built up all of
that force and recall that we started sending forces to the Persian
Gulf in the middle of August of 1990. The shooting war did not
start until January of 1991. It took us that long to get all of the
logistical support system to the Persian Gulf.

One cannot reasonably expect to bring it home in much less time
than that. We are doing our best, but we're talking about hundreds
of shiploads of cargo, logistics and so forth. It is a factin retro-
spect, I think it was probably a good decision but something we'll
be looking atthat we consciously placed much of the support sys-
temsin the case of the Army, the biggest of the Armed Forces
in the Reserve components. This was not done accidentally.

For example, the case of medical perr,onnel. The numbers of med-
ical personnel that we need in peace,ime for the members of the
Armed Forces are considerably less than the numbers of medical
personnel that we need in a shooting conflict. Our soldiers, ma-
rines, sailors, airmen, and coastguardsmen are absolutely entitled
to good medical care. So, we place a large number of medical per-
sonnel in the Reserve components so they can be available for the
Nation when they are needed in combat, but not on active duty at
the cost of the American taxpayer in peacetime.

Well, it so happens that a large part of our medical personnel
still in the Gulf are reservists. They were designed to be in the sup-
port structure. We've put much of the medical force structure into
the Reserve component. I will tell you that we've already brought
home over half of the medical personnel. We are looking at every
one of these kinds of units and are asking our field commanders,
the people who define the operational needs, to go through and to
identify as best as they can, a date certainunderstanding that
these things change on a daily basis just like in a conflict, they
don't go the way you plan alwaysbut to identify as best as they
can the dates on which various units in the Reserve components
and Active components will be returning home, leaving the thea-
ter, and so forth.

They are working very ha-d to do that. We have had success in
some services more than others but it is a fact, for example. that
there are fewer coastguardsmen in the Persian Gulf than there are
U.S. Army personnel. So it's a bigger problem in the Army to try
to reach those objectives.

I talked to the Secretary of the Army. He has informed me, and I
have so informed sorne of the members of the Senate of this, that
the Army is going to utilize for thiF logistical return a small, pre-
dominantly Active component Residual Force, augmented by civil-
ian contractor persornel to meet all of the remaining operational
requirements.

The Army's Residual Force requfrement for July is 20,00(), 15,000
in September, 10,000 in November. Requirements beyond those for
which the Army can enter into ;:ontracts are going to be metthis
is the Army's planfirst with Active Component Forces, next with

1 n
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volunteers from the Reserve componentsand we still receive a
large number of volunteersand then, if necessary, with other
Active Component Forces. I've been assured that the Army's going
to continue to rely upon the Reserve Forces only as a last resort
and that every avenue is currently be explored to insure that no
reservist is being kept on active duty any longer than is operation-
ally necessary.

So the service Secretaries are following this. We are sensitive to
the sacrifices made by reservists and make no mistake about it, re-
servists do make

Chairman CRANSTON. If you could give us for the record in detail
that study data to which you just referred?

Mr. DUNCAN. Yes, sir. I'd be happy to do that.
[Subsequently. Secretary Duncan furnished the following infor-

mation:1

RESERVE COMPONENT PERSONNEL IN AOR

Army

Nary

Acr orre

Niatore Corps

CO3St Guard

Total

(4nrefit
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11 173 1 971

14 379 15

375 2

106 047 21 061

NIA`r.r, U 19n eVeSfT1' 4047 YIJ Cynhrie0 I pc31. f)N !My firo,rw pe,sone! KtRgit!fr CuirT,

(1;rrahol DLSkRI SHIttrl S1NI41

Mr. DUNCAN. We are very much sensitive to the fact that reserv-
ists make very large sacrifices to serve in the Reserve Forces. I'm
speaking with firsthand knowledge. When you're away from your
professional practice, you give up your free time and so fbrth to
serve.

I also happen to believe that the great majority of reservists
being volunteers, know what they were doing, knew what they
were doing and are very happy to serve. We owe it to them not to
keep them any longer than is necessary and we are doing our best
to insure that we do not.

I can't alleviate every hardship. They do incur significant hard-
ships to serve and we recognize that. So we're doing all we can by
way of policy to insure that we'!t. as fair and equitable to all of the
members in the Armed Forces as we possibly can be.

Chairman CRANSTON. How many Reserves and National Guards-
men are still on active duty and serving in locations other than the
Gulf?

Mr. DUNCAN. I don't have those numbers exactly. do my best
to give those to you. I'll be happy to do that. Anywhere in the
world outside of the Persian Gulf.

[Subsequently, Secretary Duncan furnished the following infor-
mation:]
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OUTSIDE THE CONUS

Pe34'
Serwe 3/ 10/

911

Cum;
(6/9/
91)

Army 9,550 2.472

Navy 2,965 509

kr Forte 1.314 472

Manne Corps 2,240 2 494

Coast Guard 14 0

Total 16,083 5,947

IN BONUS
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91)

. _ .

Army 56,284 11,921

Navy 10,202 2 319

Air Force 22,197 12,828
Mame Corps 16,244 7,668

Coast Guard 600 276

Total 105.527 35,01/
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Chairman CRANSTON. Are they fairly substantial numbers?
Mr. DUNCAN. Well, they are not significant numbers at all if you

include the continental United States. We called up, for example,
in the case of the Naval Reserve, approximately 20,000 naval re-
servists called to active duty; about 50 percent of those were medi-
cal personnel. Many of those people went to places like naval hos-
pitals in the United States so that the active duty medical person-
nel could go to the Persian Gulf. So we do have several people still
serving in the continental United States.

If you combine the United States and the Persian Gulf situation,
and then take into account that we also sent some reservists to
Europe so active duty people could go over to the Persian Gulf
from Europe, I don't know how you'd count it but we feel that they
are not serving in any place that it's not needed, I'll put it this
way.

Chairman CRANSTON. In my opening statement., I mentioned re-
servists who are still in Okinawa. Why are they being retained
there and when will they be released?

Mr. DUNCAN. have to supply an answer fcr the record on
that? Are those Marine Corps reservists, Mr. Chairman, you're in-
quiring about, or do you not know?

[Subsequently, Secretary Duncan furnished the following infor-
mation:]

Reserve ground units assigned to Okinawa as part of Marine Corps Unit Deploy-
ment Program IUDI3 are scheduled to return in August 1991. These units include:
2d Bn/23d Marines (Encino, CAI
1st lin/24th Marines . (Detroit. M11

Btrv/3d Bn/l4th Marines W. Trenton, NJ)
C litry/Ist Bn/Lith Marines (Jackson. MS)
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Aviation Units assigned to Okinawa as part of UM' are scheduled to return to
CONUS by December 1991. These units include:
VMAQ-4 tEA .65 Scidni ...... .......... (Whidbey is, WAI
HML-17I it.1141N/ (So. Weymouth. MAI
HML-77t; AH- IWi. ittlenview. fli
HMH-772 iCH-53 Sqdni it/alias, TX and Willow Crove, PA,

The primary purpose of UIP is to reduce the personnel turbulence associated
with 12-month dependents-restricted tours in WestPac and to sustain maximum uni-
form readiness of tactical units throughout the Marine Corps.

In order to meet worldwide commitments, which included protection of U.S. inter-
ests during civil unrest in Liberia, Somalia. and the Philippines. in addition to Oper-
ations DEERT SHIELD/STORM, active Marine Corps squadrons on UDP were re-
quired to remain overseas for five additional months. The active squadrons that
would normally replace them are just returning from Southwest Asia and need time
to refurbish equipment and rotate personnel. Selected Marine Corps Reserve avia-
tion squadrons will replace active squadrons extended on UDP for nearly one full
year, until other active squadrons can be made available in December 1991.

Chairman CRANSTON. Yes, Marine Corps.
Mr. DUNCAN. Marine Corps reservists'? I'll find out for you al-

though I will tell you that I was just informed in the last 2 to 3
days by the Chief of the Marine Corps Reserve that many of the
people that they even a couple of weeks ago thought they would
have to retain even into the fall, they've reworked it and figured
out a way to get them back so that a lot of those youngsters who
would be starting school in the fall will be back in time to start
college.

Chairman CRANSTON. The VA and a good many rural communi-
ties really need their doctors and other health-care professionals
back. Are any special efforts being made to release health-care
workers'?

Mr. DUNCAN. I'm not sure. Of course that's being done on kind of
a service-by-service basis, but let rne suggest that you know, when
we called reservists, we had by policy some standards that permit-
ted exemptions in the case of hardships, including community
hardship, so we didn't blindly the Department of Defense did
not blindly call up all reservists and be insens:tive to the needs of
communities, and individuals. By policy, each of the individual
services had authority to go through on a case-by-case basis and
look at each individual situation and to grant exemptions where
facts merited them.

We're trying to be equally sensitive as we bring back people, but
again, the driving factor will be the operational needs of the field
commander.

Chairman CRANSTON. What can be done about cases like the two
that I alluded to through reading their messagesone, a doctor
who is very concerned about losing his practice; the other, someone
telling about another doctor who not only is in danger of losing his
practice, but whose services are very badly needed as a general
practitioner in a rural community that is without that service
now? What can be done in special cases like that?

Mr. DUNCAN, We're still and we will be for months and perhaps
years studying how we can improve the process. One of the kinds
of factors we're going to be looking at are those kinds of hardships.

I don't have any absolute answers but my initial impression is
that we did a pretty good job in granting dis".retion to each of the
military services to handle on a case-by-case basis instead of requir-
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ing broad policy results that required tall the services to act abso-
lutely in all cases the same way. We're balancing uniformityso
that people are treated equally and they aren't treated differently
because they wear a blue uniform as opposed to a green uniform
versus the need to give the services flexibility in individual cases. I
think we handled it pretty well.

As a practical matter, let's be candid. Our Reserve components
are All-Volunteer Forces. I'm doing all I can, and I'm sure the Sec-
retary and everyone in the Department is also, to be sensitive to
that, but it is a fact that we can't alleviate all hardships. Sacrifices
are involved in serving one's country. One who serves in the Re-
serves components I'm sure understands that the mere fact that
the Nation has not called them to service in 5 years does not mean
that the Nation may not have a need to call in the future. One has
to be prepared to serve.

Our job in the Department of Defense is to make sure that it's
applied equally, fairly, even-handedly, and that we don't keep them
on active duty any longer than operationally necessary. We're
doing our best to accomplish that.

Chairman CRANSTON. Do you have a system for looking at indi-
vidual cases now to see if there is some particular hardship in-
volved?

Mr. DUNCAN. Oh, sure.
Chairman CRANSTON. Not in terms of calling them up, in terms

of letting them go?
Mr. DUNCAN. I've made several inquiries. As facte come to my

knowledge that a particular unit may not be needed or something,
I simply inquire from the service involved and ask the service Sec-
retary to find out what's going on with that unit. So we don't hesi-
tate to ask hard questions as we become aware of individual cases.

Chairman CRANSTON. What about the point that I mentioned in
my opening remarks that active duty personnel are being returned
from the Persian Gulf ahead of reservists and National Guard per-
sonnel? What's the explanation for that?

Mr. DUNCAN. Well, I guess I would need to know more specifics.
In the abstract, that is not per se bad because, for example, many
of the active forces are combat forces. If the operational command-
er decides we do not need an armored unit, a tank, unit in the
sands of Saudi Arabia, there is no reason to keep it and it should
come home. But, while that active duty armored unit is coming
home, we may have a desperate need for ammunition handlers and
transportation companies to load all of that logistical force onto
several hundred ships to bring it home. Those may be the reserv-
ists. It's simply that they have the skills that we need at this time.

Chairman CRANSTON. Senator Jeffords, my 10 minutes just ran
out. Do you have any questions?

Senator JEFFORDS. Yes. I just want to follow up on the problems
of rural doctors, and the Reserves' ability to attract new young doc-
tors. After medical school, young doctors have extremely high debt
loads. These debts are difficult to repay, especially if one is work-
ing in a rural area where salaries are lower. There are cases of doc-
tors being deployed with their Reserve units for Operation Desert
Storm. And now that they have returned, they are faced with keep-
ing the banks happy as well as getting back into practice.



I'm concerned that if we don't do some of the things along the
lines the Chairman was talking about to examine that, that we are
going to have a very difficult time of attracting new, young doctors
into the Reserves. You're right, they had 5 years without being
called up, but that doesn't help us now because everybody's going
to be looking at the suffering that some of those are being caused
by economic problems in returning.

Mr. DUNCAN. I might respond just simply by saying, yes, there
are those risks but I would hope that any young, future physician
or nurse who contemplates joining the Reserve Forces would weigh
the benefits against the potential risk of being called up to serve
the country in cases that might involve some hardship.

Let me simply tell you a story. I could talk benefits all day but
here's one that's pretty good, that directly affects physicians. When
I first came to office, I was down in Honduras, I was there to ob-
serve National Guardsmen building roads, doing some nationt.aild-
ing, but I heard that there was i National GuardI believe it was
a National Guard, maybe Army Reservemedical unit in a neigh-
boring village and I wanted to se> it.

I flew over there and as I lanr:ed, you could see that the people of
the village had almost no understanding of basic concepts of clean-
liness and hygiene and so forth. Yet, there was a large group of
people and it was the end of the day, and they were circling around
some Army medics.

I walked over to an Army Colonel who was sitting on a tree
stump, a doctor, and he was physically drained, you could tell he
was exhausted. I went over to him and I said, "Doc, what do you do
in your private life?" He said, "I have a private medical practice in
Utah." I said, "Why are you here? You don't smell very good,
you're drained, you're exhausted, you're tired, you're dirty, and I
:an't pay you enough in 2 years to equal what you could earn in
your medical practice in a short period of time, so why are you
here?"

lie said, "Well, obviously I want to serve, but I will tell you
something. See that young woman over there wearing her only
dress? She walked all day yesterday barefooted so her baby could
see an American doctor and so long as you send me to places where
I can see a direct connection between my service and that kind of
reward. I don't care if you call me to active duty for weeks and
weeks each year.

'If you have me standing around the Reserve center only con-
ducting physicals on the weekends. I'rn probably not very interest-
ed, but if you challenge me and work me hard, and I can see things
that I will never see in my own private medical practice, see those
kinds of rewards. I'll be with you forever.-

So my job is to do all I can to make sure that our physicians un-
derstand that yes, there is the risk of those kinds of hardships, but
in addition to that, there is the risk, and opportunity is not a risk.
but the opportunity for service that they can never see in their pri-
vate medical practice.

Senator JEFFOROS. Well, that's certainly a part of the reward
system as well as retirement benefits and matters like that. but if
you're a young doctor who has started in business and you come
back and your malpractice insurance premium is due and you
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don't have enough money to pay for it, and the bank is wondering
how you're going to get caught up on your loans that you borrowed
for your equipment, as well as your loans that you had to get
through medical school, it seems to me that we should look into
such things as emergency loan programs, not necessarily give-
aways, but ability for these to know that if they get into those kind
of financial binds and the local banks or creditors are not willing to
come forth, that we have a system to say OK, if you get into those
problems, you can at least have access to capital to put you back on
your feet.

Mr. DUNCAN. Of course I'd be prepared to explore discussions
about anything that would help reservists. I must also tell you that
I do seeand I speak from firsthand knowledge, not some obscure
bureaucrat who has never done this himselfthat ail reservists
also have a responsibility to take into account that the Nation may
need them unexpectedly, and because you can't predict when the
Nation may call, one probably ought to make sure that your preces-
sional house is in darned good order if you're going to continun to
serve in the Reserve components.

That means you probably need to have a family plan, you need
to give some thought as to how you would handle the professional
situation if the Nation called, because we don't call unless you're
desperately needed. We have not called reservists in over two dec-
ades, but when we called, we desperately needed them.

I would simply suggest that as a matter of good professional
planning, all reservists ought to work on the assumption that the
Nation may call someday and we'll do all we can to be helpful to
them along the way.

Senator JEFFORDS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very much.
I'd like to address this to both you, Steve, and you, Patricia. In

the case of those who have been released what administrative prob-
lems, if any, have you identified that involved Federal agencies?

Mr. DUNCAN. As employers, you mean, Mr. Chairman?
Chairman CRANSTON. Yes, sir.
Mr. DUNCAN. I'm not aware that we've any significant problems

with Federal agencies that are any different thanI'm aware of
some individual casesbut overall, that are any different than our
civilian employers. At least they haven't reached my attention if
they are significant.

Chairman CRANSTON. Patricia, do you have any?
Ms. LATrisionE. The extent of our contact has been people look-

ing for clarity on various provisions regarding returning reservists,
but we have not had any specific problems we've had to resolve as
of yet.

Chairman CRANSTON. The Department of Defense supports sec-
tion 4327 of S. 1095 which in effect would override the judicially-
established reasonableness test for training orders with regard to
their timing or duration. If this provision were enacted, what
policy would the Department adopt to avoid any increase in em-
ployment conflict?

Mr. DUNCAN. Weil, I'll start with the proposition, Mr. Chairman,
that it is in the best interest of our reservists not to have to litigate
with their employers in a court of law. To the extent that conflicts
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arise with employers, I would much prefer to see those resolved in-
formally and that's why we have our National Committee for Em-
ployer Support of the Guard and Reserve.

Many times, it's simply educating people as to what the require-
ments of law are. They are not here to make it hard for American
employers. We really have stepped up and done a magnificent job
during this conflict. We are all looking for certainty, so we can pre-
dict with some certainty what the law is, what the law requires.

lf, in fact, the legislation is adopted and we see that it perhaps
poses some kind of' unreasonable hardship on employers. I'm cer-
tainly prepared to explore, by way of policy within the Depart-
ment, what we might be able to do to alleviate that. We're not
trying to be unfair to anyone. To the contrary, we're trying to be as
fair as possible but we cannot live with these situations, factual sit-
uations where a reservist simply cannot predict how his employer
is going to react because the law is unclear or how Federal courts
might react because some may try to weigh the reasonableness of
the Reserve callup versus the hardship on the employer. We can't
live with that. We've got to he able to count on these reservists
when the Nation calls.

Chairman CRANSTON. Steve, in your testimony. you indicated
that representation of Federal employees by the Office of Special
('ounsel in Federal court which would review the Merit System
Protection Board decisions is not warranted. Although the Board
has considered only 10 veterans reemploynwnt Cases since it was
established more than 11 years ago, in S of those cases. the Board
did not grant the relief sought by the employee.

Since the Federal Government provides representation to State
and private sector employees all the way to the U.S. Supreme
Court, why shouldn't the Federal Government also provide repre-
sentation to Federal employees in the courts?

Mr. DUNCAN. You are referring to my prepared statement. Mr.
Chairman'? Is that where it's from'?

Chairman CRANSTON. I believe that's where it is. You just said
you indicated that representation of Federal employees by the
Office of Special Counsel in reviews of Merit System Protection
Board decisions isn't warranted. I just wondered what your ration-
ale is'?

Mr. DuNCAN. That's simply consistent with our colleagues orer
in the Justice Department. and I would frankly defer to Mr.
Schiffer on that.

Chairman CRANsToN. Would you comment'?
Mr. SOHIFFER. I think, first of' all, Mr. Chairman, without saying

that any individual case is not important. that the problem arises
more in the abstract, in all honesty, than it does in reality. We
have not the slightest quarrel with the notion that the Fedend
Government should be not just a model employer but indeed the
model employer. I think the numbers to which you allude bear that
out.

Our concerns an,. very candidly, more of a policy nature than
any suggestion that the Constitution is going to be torn asunder,
hut we art. troubled by the notion of lawyers working for one Gov-
ernment agencyindeed. a Government agency th:it enjoys great

25
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independencebut lawyers for one Government agency litigating
with lawyers for another agency.

The cases you cite where the Merit Systems Protection Board did
not grant relief, I would suggest just as likely that relief was not
granted because the cases were not found to be meritorious. I just
don't know that there is a need to have Government agencies on
both sides of the same case.

Chairman CRANSTON. Tom, do you have any comment on this
issue?

Mr. COLLINS. Mr. Chairman, we do recognize that it continues to
be an issue but we do not take issue with the Department of Jus-
tice. We have no big differences on this issue and in the Depart-
ment of Labor, it is not a big issue with us because of our monitor-
ing of caseloads and complaints. We have not identified it, frankly,
as a large, overwhelming problem, so long as, of course, the Merit
System Protection Board processes and procedures are working as
they should. Of course, a lot of effort and attention has been devot-
ed to that recently.

Chairman CRANSTON. Stuart, on the matter of the Government
being on both sides, wouldn't it be obvious to a court that the
Office of Special Counsel is representing an individual and is not
representing the Federal Government?

Mr. SCHIFFER. I think indeed it would and I have no quarrel with
that notion. Maybe I've belabored our ecincern too substantially,
but I think the real point of our testimc.,of is the Federal Govern-
ment should be putting people back to work if there is the slightest
argumentif there is any substantial merit in the argument. I just
don't think we're going to run into a number of cases where this is
a major issue.

Chairman CRANSTON. There are obviously not a lot of cases, but
it is a question of fairness and equity and every individual is enti-
tled to that. I don't want Federal employees to be short-changed.

Later this morning, Professor Harold Brun' from the University
of Texas School of Law will testify on the issue of the constitution-
ality of this provision. If after Professor Bruff testifies any of you
would like to submit a written rebuttal, I would ask you to do so,
or any comments on what he has to say.

Tom, S. 1095 places a lot of responsibility on the Veterans Em-
ployment and Training- Service to investigate employee complaints
and to provide timely resolution of' the conflict through negotia-
tions relating to them. On the average, how much time currently
expires between the opening and closing of a case and how does
that compare with your timeliness standard?

Mr. COLIANS. Mr. Chairman, we have data that as of last Friday
we have 2:35 complaints which have developed into cases. Our basic
requirements are that a case be responded to immediately or
within 3 days. If we adhere to that, our trained field staffand we
have achieved some excellent training recently through our Na-
tional Veterans Training Institute over the last several yearsare
able to respond in a very timely manner.

We have had concern on the national level--and this is before
the.recent crisisabout backlogs of cases. I do not have those sta-
tistics with me this morning on what we refer to as our backlog of
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cases. There's hardly any backlog of cases that precedes the cur-
rent Desert Shield/Desert Storm operations.

We have been very attentive and the survey report that I have
that indicates there have been 235 complaints developed into cases
to date relating to Desert Storm nationwide, also indicatesthese
are strictly indicators from the survey not census type informa-
tionthat almost all of these cases have had an early, successful
resolution.

This all points out that the employers of this country, both
public and private, are welcoming the veterans and the troops
home. Although our staff is prepared, they're ready, we're meeting
almost all of the Reserve and Guard members at the demobiliza-
tion site with a briefing and offer of assistance and other informa-
tion that they may need, all of this amounts into a very timely car-
rying out of our responsibilities.

Right now, in the sense of Desert Shield and Desert Storm, we're
thinking in terms of doing it immediately and frankly, it will be
several months before I have data on the backlog of cases or how
many cases have gone into a prolonged status. It appears right now
that is a very positive situation.

[Subsequently, the Department of Labor furnished the following
information:I

The average length of time that elapses between the opening of a ease and the
closing of that case is only 50 days. This compares with our timeliness standard of
seeking administrative. closure in 90 days. The 50 day figure is attributed to sub-
stantial training provided to our field FAaff and their commitment to the program.

Chairman CRANSTON. Can you tell me how many cases you have
now that are over 1 year old?

Mr. COLLINS. I would prefer to respond to that in writing since
that is a precise number which I don't have with me.

Chairman CRANSTON. All right, do that.
Mr. COLLINS. I could guess at it but certainly those cases that are

over a year old usually result from some complications indicating
that they've gone into a form of litigation or some hangups in the
investigative process, Certainly, I will say this very strongly, noth-
ing to do with the compi fence, training and ability of our field
staff.

Chairman CRANSTON. I would appreciate it if you'd give me that
for the record.

[Subsequently, the Department of Labor furnished the following
information:1

We have seven cases that are over I year old. This represents the lowet,t (Igo; e
have had in many years This is due to the' emphasis we have placed on reducing
the number of old cases to a minimum level. Our goal, of course, is to reduce the
figure even further so that there are no cases over 1 year old

Chairman CRANSTON. Another matter you may want to supply
for the record, how many cases do you normally have in litigation
and how long on average does litigation take?

Mr, COLLINS. The number, Mr. Chairman, is relatively low but I
would be pleased to respond to that in writing to have a precise
number.

Chairman CRANSTON. All right.
[Subsequently, the Department of Labor furnished the following

information:i
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We normally have about 40 cases in litigation. These 40 cases represent those we
forward to the Department of Justice with a recommendation to litigate based on
our view that they have merit and are valid claims. Further, an additional 15 cases
are referred to the Department of Justice with a "no merit" recommendation.

On the average, we estimate that litigation efforts take approximately 2.50 days.
This figure was derived from a sample of cases from October I, 1989 to May :30, 1991
of cases referred to the Department of Justice for litigation that they reported
closed. It represents the amount of time that the Department of Justice needs to
settle or to litigate a complaint, since it does not include complaints for which repre-
sentation by the Department of Justice was declined.

Chairman CRANSTON. What plans do yc have for the prompt
handling of cases if the law is indeed amended as proposed in S.
1095?

Mr. COLLINS. I didn't understand the question, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman CRANSTON. What plans do you have to implement the

law if we enect it in regard to prompt handling of cases?
Mr. CoLurs. Well, Mr. Chairman, as I just said, our mission is to

handle cases promptly and we're very proud of having that capabil-
ity in carrying out that mission. We encourage the Department of
Labor and our veterans employment representatives primarily in
each State Veterans Employment Service Office are the people pri-
marily responsible for hearing complaints. So through our public
inform9titm campaign, which is underway and very successful, we
are trying to advertise to employersvery importantas well as
the Reserve and Guard members, and employees, to call the Veter-
ans Employment and Training Service. You will get an immediate
response.

So we're thinking right now in terms of immediate responses and
immediate investigations and immediate actions. So far in the
survey information I have on Desert Storm, it's working that way.
So the answer to the question of how we will implement case proc-
essing time, it will be very prompt.

Chairman CRANSTON. Let me ask you simply to take a look at
the provisions in S. 1095 and respond in writing as to how you
would implement them if we enact them.

Mr. Comm. Yes, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
ISuosequently, the Department of Labor furnished the ibllowing

information:l
We intend to act promptly to implement the new Act, while maintaining our cur-

rent effectiveness in handling cases promptly. Our plans include the development of
regulations, and refinement of existing guidance, such as the "VRR Handbook," to
reflect new provisions of the law. Our plans also include training of staff who
handle VRR cases, development of materials for use by both the uniformed services
and employers to clarify its provisions We also intend to continue efforts to secure
the facts regarding a complaint and negotiate a resolution as early as practicable
witk a view toward reducing our current average processing time (50 days) for com-
plaints.

Chairman CRANSTON. I realize that all of you and the other wit-
nesses have had S. 1095 only for a short period of time and that
upon further review of the bill, or based on the testimony of others
here today, you may have comments in addition to the testimony
you're submitting today.

I welcome further input and would just ask you submit any addi-
tional comments to the Committee as soon as you can. There are
still some issues to resolve in the bill and I appreciate your help in
trying to work them 9ut.
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Mr. DUNCAN. Mr. Chairman, could I make one last comment?
Chairman CRANSTON. Yes.
Mr. DUNCAN. Because of your sensitivity and ours too on this

issue on the return of reservists, let me just simply note for the
record that even last week, we had an additional 15,000 reservists
return home. Secretary Cheney has already testified that the vast
majority of the reservists who've been called should be home by the
4th of July.

Chairman CRANSTON. Good. Glad to end with that note.
Thank you very much.
Our next witness is Frank Nebeker, accompanied by Robert F.

Comeau. There will be a brief recess while they come to the table.
[Recess. ]
Chairman CRANSTON. Senator Daschle, do you have any opening

statement to make?
Senator DASCHT.E. No, I don't. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.
Chairman CRANSTON. I'm delighted to welcome once again,

Frank Nebeker, Chief Judge of the U.S. Court of Veterans Appeals,
accompanied by Robert Comeau, Clerk of the Court. We welcome
you both and Frank. would you proceed and try to do it in 5 min-
utes, please?

STATEMENT OF IION. FRANK Q. NEBEKER. CHIEF JUDGE.
COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS. ACCOMPANIED BY ROBERT F.
COMEAU, CLERK OF THE COURT

Judge NEBEKKR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It's good to see you
again. I indeed shall confine my comments to less than that tinw.

Before making comments, I want to say that the Court appreci-
ates your courtesN in your prompt consideration of S. 1050, the bill
to provide the authority of the Court to receive gifts, both in terms
of service and channels. We feel that is necessary and can antici-
pate that in the future such a provision will prove necessary.

As to section 4 of II.R. 153 dealing with discipline. I can state
that over the 20 odd years that I have been in contact with State
Appellate Judges, they have told me that they found their own
State legislatures are always willing to devote effort and money to
the education and discipline of judges on a presumption that it is
needed. That assumption probably applies to this body as well and
indeed, we welcome the thoughts and the purpose behind the disci-
plinary provisions. It's necessary, as we see it, to maintain public
confidence in the integrity of an accountable judiciary.

Without the enactment of the provisions of section 3 of H.R. 153,
we believe the Court, as an article I court, does not have the dear
authority to consider disciplinary matters when they are raised.

We're prepared to move forward with implementing section 1

and have but one caveat '.nd an observation with respect to it as is
outlined in greater detail in my formal written testimony.

As presently drafted, the Court itself will consider disciplinary
matters that are raised before it. There is no review beyond the
Court and it very well may be that it's a wise idea to have review
beyond. After all, there are two people involved in a disciplinary
complaintthe individual complaining and the judge complained
of.
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Whichever way the Court resolves the case, whether it be in
favor of the judge or in favor of the complaint, one would say well,
the losing side ought to have an opportunity for some kind of
review to insure there has been an objective approach taken.

It's true that the President has the authority under the present
Judicial Review Act to remove for misconduct. This disciplinaiy
provision would obviously dovetail so that if misconduct is found,
the matter could be referred to the President for such action as he
deems appropriate.

That is not unlike what is done under the Ethics in Government
Act for presidential appointees where the Director of the Office of
Government Ethics finds misconduct by a presidential appointee,
then the matter is simply referred over to the President for such
action as he -wants to take. It's not a formal re%iew process in any
sense of the word.

A review process could be established. I'm not prepared at thisjuncture to make any recommendations with respect to where
review ought to go. Indeed, I certainly wouldn't recommend with-out the benefit of the views of the Judicial Qmference of the
United States, that review ultimately wind up with that body. I
think that's a matter for them and perhaps for the Senate Judici-
ary Committee to consider because it would no doubt entail amend-
ment to provisions of title 28 affecting the judiciary generally.

In conclusion, I would like to thank you for this opportunity to
present the Court's comments, but I would add two comments with
respect to objections that are made to some of the technical amend-
ments.

I understand there is an objection to the repeal of the findings of
fact and conclusions of law requirement that presently exist in the
Judicial Review Act. I will remind the Chairman and the Commit-tee that we've discussed on numerous instances in the past that
that provision really has no place in a statute creating an appellate
court.

By the other terms of the Judicial Review Act, our Court maynot find fact, we may not grant a trial de novo on factual issues
that are determined. The limitation on factual issues on review is
whether factual determinations are clearly erroneous. That is a
question of law, not a finding of fact,

So a requirement that the Court have a duty to articulate its
findings of facts in its decision is really a square peg, I submit, in a
round hole for us. There is nothing insidious in our request to havethat eliminated or repealed. We simply suggest that in the interest
of reeognizing, as the rest of the act does, the true appellate nature
of the Court, that provision is incongruous and ought really to beeliminated.

There is no question but what the Court will, as it does, continue
to express its reasons for its decision. That is necessary to facilitate
further review and there is really no question about the Court be-
corning rather arbitrary in terms of its dispositions. Even in the
short ones, we take pains to point out the basis for it.I fail to understand any objection to our having a judicial confer-
ence separate and apart from the Federal Judicial Conference,We're asking for it because nonlawyers are not able en masse to bemembers of the Federal Judicial Conference, We, therefore, would
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like our awn to benefit the veterans' service organizations and
their nonlawyer staffs so that they can attend a judicial conference
at which we can consider their concerns in the administration of
this kind of justice.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Jucli.; Nebeker appears on p. 2011
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very much.
As you know, the Paralyzed Veterans of America, among others,

are concerned about the last point you brought up.
Judge NEBEKER. Yes.
Chairman CRANSTON. What is your response to the assertion that

elimination of the requirements contained in section 4067(b) would
result in appellants having less due process protection than they
have under current law?

Judge NEBEKER. I would respond that they are not entitled, as a
matter of due process under the act as a whole, to articulation of
findings of fact by the Court. That simply is an impossibility. We
do not find fact. So one cannot say that the veteran is entitled to
an articulation of those findings by the Court. C:early, he is enti-
tled to such an articulation by the Board of Veterans' Appeals and
it is at that level that we are enforcing the reasons or basis re-
quirement of the law that it be articulated at that level.

Ours, I repeat, is a purely review function. We have no business
finding fact and I'm reasonably confident that if they think about
it, the veterans community doesn't want our Court to be finding
fact because that means another trial.

Chairn an CRANSTON. Where a case is decided summarily by ref-
erence to an earlier decision or decisions, could you adopt a prac-
tice of providing t he appellant with a copy of the earlier decision or
decisions?

Judge NEBEKER. There is no question about that. Yes, that can he
done. We are in the hinterland here before our opinions are going
to be publicly and readily available throughout the Nation. As soon
as that issue can be resolvedand it is rapidly coming to resolu-
tionI think there will he no difficulty with respect to that.

chairman CRANSTON. If you would do that, that would be fine.
Among the' first letters you wrote to me after your confirmation

and beforc any other nominations to the Court were made, was a
June 19. 19s9 letter indicating your view that "The Associate
Judges on the Court of Veterans Appeals should be paid the same
salary as the Chief Judge." Would you please explain when you de-
cided this would be a good idea and what your reasons are?

Judge Ni.;BF.KER. Yes, I'd be happy to.
As the law presently stands with respect to this Court, it is the

only Federal court in the 1.7nited States, and probably the only
court in the United States, where the Associate Judges who are
performing the same judicial functions as the Chief Judge are re-
ceiving substantially less pay.

As you said, Mr. Chairman, in your opening statement with re-
spect to this Court. you "hold a strong belief that the Court should
be like all other Federal courts" and the purpose for my recom-
mendation at the very early stages was precisely that. It, if you
will, is sort of an equal pay for equal work requirement. They are
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performing the same inctions judicially that I perform and I
maintain they're entitled to the same pay.

Incidentally, as Yt.)u have observed, the other Federal courts Lae
at the level that the bill purports to place the pay of the Associate
Judges of our Court on a par with the Court of Military Appeals.
My understanding has been all along that the veterans community
was viewed as entitled to the sarile kind of a day in court with the
same relatively statured court as the other Federal courts. It is
consistent with that notion that I have made the request.

Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very much. I have no further
questions and I appreciate seeing you again.

Judge NEREKr.it. ft's a pleasure to come and see you, sir. I'm glad
to see that yo,,'re in good health.

Chairmar CRANSTON. Thank you very much.
We now have a panel from the VA, the Honorable D'Wayne

Gray, Chief Benefits Director, accompanied by Grady Horton, Di-
rector of Education Service; Dean Gallin, Deputy Assistant General
Counsel; and also Mr. Ronald Cowles, Deputy Assistant Secretary
for Personnel and Labor Relations.

Welcome to you. I want again to ask you to summarize your tes-
timony in not more than 3 minutes. The entire statement will be
appear in the record.

D'Wayne, as always, we're delighted to have you before us.
Would you please proceed?

STATEMENT OF IrWAYNE GRAY, CHIEF BENEFITS DIRECTOR,
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS, ACCOMPANIED BY
GRADY HORTON, DIRECTOR. EDUCATION SERVICE: DEAN
CALLIN. DEPUTY ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL; AND
RONALD COWLES, DEPUTY ASSTSTANT SECRETARY. PERSON-
NEL AND LABOR RELATIONS

Mr. GRAY. Thank you, Mr. Chaiiman, and may I say, first, that
it's good to see you back and looking fit, sir.

Chairman CRANSTON. Thank :you very much.
Mr. GRAY. Knowing you'v got a lot of witnesses. I will be very

brief.
The Department of Veterans Affairs supports S. 86S, deferring to

the Department of Defense on those matters that are properly
under its purview. I think I probably need to elaborate no more on
that.

With regard to our position as an employer of reservists and
Guardsmen, we are very proud in the VA of' our members who are
part of the Guard and Reserve. We are proud of those some 3,200
of them who were called to active duty during this Gulf' crisis.
About half of them are back now; we'rv glad to have them back.
We're looking forward to the return of the rest of' them.

The Chairman just introduced the other members who accompa-
ny me here. My colleagues and I are prepared, Mr. Chairman, to
try to answer your questions and those of the other members of the
Committee.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Gray appears on p. 207.1
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very, very much. I like the

brevity of your statement. We'll just go to questions now then.
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Ron, I'm very concerned about the impact that the recent mobili-
zation of Reserve and National Guard members has had and con-
tinues to have on VA health-care facilities. Can you tell us how
many VA health-care personnel were activated as a result of Oper-
ation Desert Storm/Desert Shield?

Mr. CowLEs. There were over 3,000 employees from Veterans
Health Administration that were called up to active duty. The ma-
jority of those employees were health-care personnel. At one time,
we had as many as 1,350 nursing personnel that had been called
up.

As you had stated earlier in your statement, we continue to have
891 nursing personnel still on active duty and 212 physicians. I
was, in fact, glad to hear from the earlier testimony that most of
the reservists are due back by July 4. We'll he glad to see them
back in our medical centers.

Chairman CRANSTON. Let me go to D'Wayne and then I'll go
back to you, Ron. D'Wayne. what's been the impact of the callup
on the Veterans Benefits Administration?

Mr. GRAY. Ael ually. Mr. Chairman, we were impacted very light-
ly in those stations where significant numbers relative to the size
of the station were called up. The nature of' our work allows us to
transfer work, in some cases, electronically or by mai and have it
done at other stations and in sonie cases, we sent in help teams
from stations that were not so impacted.

The callup did not move the needle on the meter as far as VBA
is concerned. It was the Veterans Health Administration I think
that was impacted more seriously.

Chairman CRANsToN. D'Wayne, I have no further questions for
you and if you want to leave to catch a plane. feel free to do so.

Mr. GRAY. You're kind. Mr. Chairman. Thank you very kindly.

Chairman CRANSTON. Ron, how many of those have not returned
to their VA positions? For the record, please break down the total
and the categories of professions and occupations?

Mr. CowiTs. I'd be more than happy to provide that for the
record.

Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you,
I note that Reserve personnel are entitled to 90 days of recovery

time from discharge to reinstatement. Does the number you will
give us represent personnel still on active duty or will it include
those who have left active duty but not returned to their VA as-
signments?

Mr. CowLEs. Still on active duty, sir.
Chairman ('RANSTON. Can you give me just a rough idea of how

many are still on active duty?
Mr. Cowl.F.s. I can tell you with health-care providers, we have

about 1,0M). I would give you a rough estimate of probably another
hundred perhaps that are not involved in health care that are still
on active duty. We can go ahead and try to confirm and verify a
more accurate number.

Chairman CRANSTON. We'd appreciate that.
(Subsequently. the Department of Veterans Affairs furnished the

following information:(

3 3:
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Total Mobilized

VIIA 3.042
VBA 74

VACO 31

General Counsel (field) 5
Acquisitions and Facilities (field) 5

NCS (field) S

Canteen (field! 2
Public Affairs (field). ,, . 1

Total 3.111S

Key Health Carr Personnel Total Mobt li:ed

Physicians 301
Registered Nurses. ...... .. 993
LPN/LVN. 21'
Nursing Assistants ....... .. . ..... 145
Dentists ....... ........ 41;

Other Medical 519
Support Personnel. ....... ........... .

S20

Total... 3.042

Health ( 'are Personnel Still Mobilized Way 24

Physicians ..... 210
Registered Nurses.... 749
LPN/LVN 150
Nursing Assistants.. 103
Dentists.
Other Medical 375
Support Personnt4 541

Total... 2.1(l7

Chairman CRANSTON. Is there any ongoing communication be-
tween VA and the Department of Defense regarding a timetable
for when VA might expect to have all of its health-care personnel
back on the job?

Mr. COWLES. Not that I'm aware of, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman CRANSTON. Wouldn't it be a good idea to try to work

that out with them'?
Mr. COATIY,S, Absolutely.
Chairman CRANSTON. I have no further questions. Thank you

very much.
Our next witness is Mr. Harold II. Bruff, Professor of 141w, Uni-

versity of Texas.
Professor Bruff. let me say, is here at my request to respond to

the Administration's opposition to our proposal to provide for the
Office of Special Counsel to represent in the Federal courts individ-
ual reservists seeking to enfbrce reemployment rights against a
Federal agency.

I thank you for being with us today. I know that you're presently
at George Washington University Law School in this community.
Would you please state your background briefly in relevant areas
of constitutional law and then tell us whether you believe the pro-
vision in question is constitutional and very briefly give us your
reason?

53-055 0 - 92 - 2
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STATEMENT OF HAROLD H. BRUIT, REDDITT PROFESSOR OF
LAW, UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS

Mr. BRUFF. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I am currently the John Redditt Professor of Law at the Univer-

sity of Texas, a 1968 graduate of the Harvard Law School. I have
been writing and teaching constitutional and administrative law
for almost 20 years, and, I'm sad to say, the Government still isn't
perfect.

I've been writing especially in separation of powers and that
brings me to my interest in this bill and to my response to the Jus-
tice Department. I would like, if I may, to submit a written summa-
ry of my brief oral remarks so that the Department may respond to
them for the Committee if it cares to.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Bruit- appears on p. 2131
Chairman CRANSTON. I appreciate that very much.
What's your response to the policy objections expressed by the

Administration witnesses, that is, that the provision would create
an unacceptable conflict of interest by allowing the Special Counsel
Office lawyer to oppose a Department of Justice attorney repre-
senting a Federal agency?

Mr. BRUFF. Let me begin with the premise that you mentioned
earlier, Mr. Chairman, that it's important not to shortchange Fed-
eral civil servants who are veterans pursuing their reemployment
rights against Federal agencies.

The bill before you provides for Justice Department representa-
tion for private employers or State employers in conflicts with
their veterans, but something different has to be done for Federal
civil servants.

I think that this bill instead of creating a conflict of interest re-
lieves one, if one considers the alternative provisions that are used
for State and private employersthat is, the Department of Justice
is to provide representation for those veterans. I think it is perfect-
ly competent for Congress to provide representation as well to Fed-
eral civil servants so that they won't be disadvantaged in pursuing
their rights.

But I think it obvious that Congress cannot simply provide that
the Justice Department shall represent both the agency involved
and the private citizen, the Federal civil servant who is contesting
the issue with the agency. That would, indeed, put the Justice De-
partment on both sides of the case, as Mr. Schiffer mentioned earli-
er, and I think would be an unacceptable conflict of interest.

This bill uses an independent agencythe Office of Special Coun-
selto provide that lawyerly service and I think that this is an ex-
actly correct use of independent functions because what it does is
to provide that the executive branch will provide in its usual way
for defense of the agency, but for defense of the individual who is
adverse to the agency, we have an independent officerthe Office
of Special Counselproviding that service.

So I think that use of the provision here instead of creating a
conflict of interest relieves one in a way similar to the Ethics in
Government provisions for independent counsels that were upheld
in Morrison v. Olson.
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I thinl also that there is no "constitutionally troubling impres-
sion" that the executive branch is taking both sides and I believe
Mr. Schiffer essentially conceded this earlier because it should be
obvious to all observers that OSC is not the Department of Justice.
That is the point of creating it originally and having the independ-
ence provisions.

Finally, I note a minor point which is that unlike, for example,
the provisions of the Ethics in Government Act that were upheld
by the Supreme Court, this provision does not take part of the De-
partment of Justice's prosecutorial discretion away. These are pro-
visions for Federal civil servants to bring appeals. They make the
decision. The Office of Special Counsel really provides representa-
tion that could occur anyway.

Chairman CRANSTON. Just to be clear on one point, you do not
believe that the provision raises any constitutional problems?

Mr. 13RUFF. I think any time Congress uses an independent offi-
cer to perform any executive function, a constitutional inquiry is
appropriate. I share with the Justice Department the belief that
Congress, for both policy and constitutional reasons, should be very
sparing in that device.

I think, though, that because this relieves rather than creates a
conflict of interest, there is a sound justification and no serious
constitutional objection to this bill.

Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you for that clear statement and
thank you also for offering to provide in writing your views in a
more formal way. I'd appreciate it if you would do that and we will
provide copies to the Administration witnesses.

Mr. BRUM Thank you, sir. I hope I was on time and under
budget.

Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very, very much, you were.
Our final witnest.cs this morning represent five veterans' service

organizations: John Hanson from The American Legion; Robert
Manhan from the VFW; Lennox Gilmer from DAV; Jonathan Gaff-
ney from AMVETS; and Clifton Dupree from PVA.

I thank you for your presence. Your prepared statements will go
in the record as if read. Would you please summarize each of you
not more than 5 minutes the testimony you wish to emphasize.

John, woul.d you please begin?

STATEMENT OF JOHN HANSON. DIRECTOR, NATIONAL VETERANS
AFFAIRS AND REHABILITATION COMMISSION, THE AMERICAN
LEGION

Mr. HANSON Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Com-
mittee, for the chance for The Legion to present our views on sev-
eral issues of importance to the Nation's veterans.

For the sake of brevity, I won't be speaking here about veterans
reemployment rights. We have staff here to answer any questions
if you do have questions on that.

The Legion commends the Committee for its work to protect edu-
cation and employment rights for veterans. Beginning in Novem-
ber though, I'd like the Committee to know that The American
Legion conducted a survey of large corporations in the United

lt;
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States to find out about their policies affecting employees who were
reservists and members of the National Guard.

Jim Hubbard, our Director of National Economics, is here and
will answer questions if you have them. We'll also be glad to share
that data with the Committee at your pleasure.

I'd like to use our time today to focus on an issue that we think
is quite important to all veterans, especially the men and women
who served in the Persian Gulf War. It's come to our attention
during the past few years that the people who serve in the military
today are not receiving anywhere near the benefits that were given
to their parents and their grandparents, especially education bene-
fits.

Veterans participating in today's Montgomery GI Bill receive
about 42 percent of the average cost of attending school at a State-
run college or university. Veterans of Vietnam receive in excess of
95 percent on average and earlier veterans did even better. Today's
veterans do not only receive less, but in order to get the full benefit
at all, they have to contribute $1,200.

Don't get us wrong, the Montgomery GI Bill is better than noth-
ing, but today it's just barely better than nothing. The improve-
ments proposed by you are the very least that should be made at
this time.

We are proposing that a new program which realistically reflects
the cost of education be put into place for veterans. Under our
plan, Desert Shield and Desert Storm veterans, those who served
between Aum'et 2, 1990 and whenever the end of the period will be
set, will receive $'177 per month in education benefits. That's the
amount set by the Congressional Research Service as being equal
to the benefits received by Vietnam veterans.

In addition, these veterans will be automatically eligible for the
benefits without having to contribute any money to the fund. This
amount will be a base level for a single veteran with no dependents
and will be adjusted annually.

To be eligible, a veteran would have to have served 90 days on
active duty or to be called to active duty from the National Guard
or Reserves for any amount of time beginning on August 2, 1990.

It will also make some improvements in the Montgomery GI Bill.
First, benefit levels for Montgomery GI Bill beneficiaries will be
raised to the base level of $777 per month and furthermore, the
benefits will be provided without requiring any of the currently re-
quired reductions in pay. In cther words, veterans will no longer be
required to make a financial contribution in order to receive their
GI bill education benefiti.

If they have made any contributions, our proposal would provide
for a restitution in the form of nontaxable readjustment assistance
in any amount which thrAr basic pay was reduced since August 1,
1990.

Pre-Persian Gulf War veterans who elected not to participate in
chapter 30 will now be deemed to have elected to receive assistance
and those who didn't participate will have their basic entitlement
reduced by $50 a month until the reductions in educational assist-
ance are equal to the amount their pay would have been reduced
prior to August 1.
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Mr. Chairman, you know how valuable the original GI bill has
proven to be. It's never cost the Government money really because
by the Government's own estimates, the return ia increased
income taxes and productivity provided by GI bill participants has
been on the leval of about 20 times the Government's initial invest-
ment.

We can't find many other Federal programs with that kind of
return on investment. That's a budget-driven example at a time
when we're asking that you not make decisions about veterans ben-
efits based on budget-driven ideas. This isn't about return on in-
vestment; this is more about equity and we feel that we can't, as a
Nation, afford to offer only a token benefit now when the men and
women who served agree to do so with honor and distinction.

Thank you again, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to be here
am4 for permitting our entire statement to be submitted for the
record.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Hanson appears on p. 215.]
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very much, John.
Let me say that I thank you first for that testimony. Second,

we'd like to have the information that The Legion has collected re-
garding the responses to the Guard and the Reserve calls. That
would be very helpful to us.

Mr. HANSON. Thank you, sir. We'll be glad to do it.
[The survey referred to appears on p. 222.1
Chairman CRANSTON. Bob.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT MANIIAN. SPECIAL ASSISTANT. NATION-
AL LEGISLATIVE SERVICE. VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF
THE UNITED STATES

Mr MANHAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
It's my pleasure to represent the almost 3 million members of

the Veterans of Foreign Wars. Our statement is already a part of
the record. Therefore, I'll highlight in my 5 minutes only where we
have some questions or differences on the bills.

First of all, VFW strongly supports S. 868 as proposed. I'll then
go to S. 1095, the Uniform Services Employment and Reemploy-
ment Rights Act of 1991. We have two comments. The first one
deals with section 4324. VFW would like to see those employees
who may be working for either the Federal legislative and/or judi-
cial branches of Government, and/or who may be National Guard
technicians, enjoy the same reemployment rights as those employ-
ees who presently work for the Federal executive branch of the
Government. We plead our case as a matter of both proprietary
and equity.

The next issue regards section 4325. As we first looked at it, we
thought the language in the bill was saying that an employee who
was called up to active duty could request that his employer-spon-
sored health insurance program be maintained for a period of up to
18 months.

We are not certain that the employer is absolved of having to
pay any portion of the ongoing health benefits package. lf, in fact,
the language is intended to say that the employee called to active
duty will pay 100 percent of the entire benefitthe employee por-
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tion and the employer portionthen the VFW has no objection to
the language as contained in the present bill.

Perhaps it might benefit others if that language were clarified.
The last bill is H.R. 153, the technical amendments to the Veter-

ans Judicial Review Act. We are certainly one of the veterans orga-
nizations who would like to see subsection (b) of section 4067 re-
tained. We think it's a courtesy that any judicial office should
extend to any citizen, particularly a veteran, to know why his
appeal was denied.

It can also help the veteran exercise another right that he has,
to further appeal his case to the next higher judicial authority.

Along the same lines, the VFW would like to see both para-
graphs (1) and (2) of subsection (d) of section 4067, retained. That is,
we like the idea from a veteran's point of view that the court
would retain both the single judge panel and the panel of judges
for very obvious reasons. It works to the veteran's advantage.

Last, the new section 4086, which is an expansion and deals with
the Judicial Conference of the Court of Veterans Appeals, we
would like our representatives of our national office and/or our
people who also practice before the Court, to be part of any type of
a body that will sit around and discuss how best to improve the
procedures and/or be involved in any changing administrative pa-
rameters.

Of course since I prepared the statement, I've had the benefit of
listening to Judge Nebeker's comments on this topic and perhaps
these amendments can be further amplified or expanded to add an-
other type of a conference between Federal judges and those people
who practice before them to insure that the veteran community in-
terests are kept to the forefront.

This summarizes our position. Thank you very much. Mr. Chair-
man.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Manhan appears on p. 2411
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you.
Len.

STATEMENT OF LENNOX E. GILMER. ASSOCIATE NATIONAL
EMPLOYMENT DIRECTOR, DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS

Mr. GILMER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On behalf of the more than 1.4 million members of the Disabled

American Veterans and its Ladies Auxiliary, I'm pleased to appear
before you today to present our views on the four bills pending
before this Committee.

We have submitted written testimony for the record and I will
summarize that testimony here.

We want to begin by expressing our appreciation to this Commit-
tee for its continuing concern over the employment rights of our
Nation's veterans. Before I address the pending bills, permit me to
offer an observation that may be more appropriate for a later over-
sight hearing.

As the Persian Gulf War winds down and while our troops are
beginning to be demobilized, the Administration has focused almost
exclusively on reemployment rights and has not addressed employ-
ment security staff, including local veterans employment represent-
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atives. In fact, the Administration has proposed the decimation of
the Disabled Veterans Outreach Program.

At the same time, employment service personnel are being taken
out of their offices to support much needed transition assistance
programs for separating military persoanel. In fact, the Adminis-
tration's 1992 budget request proposes reducing by over 75 percent
the DVOP program staffing levels established by statutory formula
from the already reduced staff of 1,885 to 438 staff beginning Janu-
ary 1992. The DVOP personnel have been the primary source of
staff for the recently initiated TAP program.

An additional concern, Mr. Chairman, is that many reservists
and National Guardsmen called up to serve in the Persian Gulf
will not be entitled to be served as veterans through the nation-
wide network of job service offices because they do not meet the
required periods of service. We believe these individuals should be
accorded veteran status for the benefits provided through chapter
41 of title 38 of the United States Code.

We also suggest you amend section 2010tal of title 38, United
States Code. That section currently provides for studies of unem-
ployment among special disabled veterans and among veterans who
served in the Vietnam theater of operations during the Vietnam
era. We suggest a new subsection (c) be added as follows: "On an
annual basis, a study will he conducted of unemployment among
special disabled veterans and veterans who served in the Persian
Gulf theater of operations."

Historically, military personnel, including reservists and Guards-
men with reemployment rights, have had little difficulty in exercis-
ing those rights. Currently, employers have been very receptive
and responsive to their obligations according to most news ac-
counts. Reportedly, many employers have gone beyond statutory
requirements to assure their valued employees who have made a
commitment to serve our country are cared for.

By way of example, we point to the Office of Personnel Manage-
ment. We cannot say enough to express our appreciation for the
Federal reemployment rights initiatives advanced by the Director
of OPM, Ms. Constance Newman and her Deputy Director, Bill
Phillips.

I'd like to discuss S. 1095 now, the Uniform Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991 proposing the complete re-
write of chapter 4:3 of title 38, United States Code.

At the outset, Mr. Chairman, you should be aware that the provi-
sions and intent of S. 1095 are generally supported by the DAV and
our testimony contains certain recommendations that, in our view,
serve to further strengthen the proposed intent of the bill.

Mr. Chairman, this measure in section 4321 would provide pro-
tections against discrimination for a person who performs, has per-
formed, or applies to perform in a uniform service. It is not clear to
us if "applies to perform" means an application to enter the Re-
serves or is currently in the Reserves and applies for active duty.
We urge clarification of the intent of the language so as to avoid
confusion at some later date.

Section 4322(c) provides excepticris to the requirement of not
more than 5 years of service to be eligible for reemployment rights.
We urge an amendment to subparagraph (2) as follows: After the
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word "person," add "including a disability, irjury or disease in-
curred while serving on active duty." This language will insure
that those injured and retained in the service for treatment will be
granted an exception to the 5 year limitation if necessary.

Mr. Chairman, section 4322(dX2) provides additional time for cer-
tain disabled veterans to report back to that person's employer for
work. This is very important and has the full support of the DAV.
We encourage a process be developed whereby the employer, the
vocational rehabilitation specialist or counseling psychologist, and
in some cases, a DVOP, form a staffing team to meet with the vet-
eran to been the rehabilitation and reasonable accommodations
process. This should be done as soon as possible even while the vet-
eran is still hospitalized.

Section 4323 appears to allow an employer to make a determina-
tion about the qualification of the individual to be reemployed.
Subsection (aX1XB) states, in part, "if not qualified to perform the
duties of a position." We believe clarification is needed to guard
against any employer abuse and suggest report language be includ-
ed to emphasize the Department of Labor retain authority to deter-
mine qualifications for reemployment.

Mr. Chairman, we support section 4324, in part, because we be-
lieve strongly that all veterans should be entitled to similar reem-
ployment rights, whether they be Federal, State or local govern-
ment or private sector employees. We note that the Department of
Justice objections to the Office of Special Counsel providing repre-
sentation before the Merit Systems Protection Board appear to
have no legal foundation, at least as it relates to their statement
this morning.

There was a provision in the House bill that provided for civil
penalties for employers who failed to provide reemployment rights
to veterans. We urge that a similar provision be put into this bill.

Additionally, we'd note that we have no objection to S. 1050 and
that we are generally in support of S. 153 in its present form.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Gilmer appears on p. 2491
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very much, Len. I want you to

know that I'm working hard to get full funding for DVOPs and
LVERs in the coming fiscal year.

Mr. GILMER. Thank you.
Chairman CRANSTON. Jon, before you begin, let me welcome you

back, as a reservist who was called up for Operation Desert Storm
and is now back. How did you manage to get out and back so soon?

Mr. GAFFNEY. I was one of the fortunate few that got called just
before the war started, whereas a lot of my peers were called up
back in August, as Mr. Duncan mentioned earlier. So there's a lot
of people who served a long, long time. You don't have to go over-
seas to serve the country and I guess a lot of these folkF are still on
active dutya lot of physicians, unfortunately, nurses, administra-
tors, they're all in Bethesda of all places, backfilling for people who
went to the Middle East.

Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you.

41
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STATEMENT OF JONATHAN GAFFNEY, NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE
DIRECTOR. AMVETS

Mr. GAFFNEY. Thanks for giving AMVETS the opportunity to
provide our insights into proposed legislation which would restore
educational assistance entitlements to those members of the mili-
tary, both active and reserve, who could not complete educational
courses or programs utilizing these programs due to activation or
transfer in support of Operation Desert Shield and Desert Storm,
the legislation which would amend chapter 43 of title 38, United
States Code, Veterans Reemployment Rights.

With regard to provision of educational entitlements, AMVETS
sees no reason why legislation which would reinstate educational
assistance entitlements to Operation Desert Storm and Desert
Shield participants and the programs under chapters 30, 32 and 35
of title 10, and chapter 106 of title 10, should not be passed.

As an individual who benefited greatly from VA-administered
educational benefits in the late 1980s while concurrently serving as
an officer in the Naval Reserves, I couldn't fathom having my
hard-. rned educational benefits penalized in the event of a recall.

F mermore, as a recently activated and demobilized Medical
Se:vice Corps officer serving as a casualty tracking officer out of
Bethesda, I know firsthand numerous young men and women who
were recalled in support of Desert Storm and Desert Shield, indi-
viduals who due to remons ranging from transfer to the Kuwait
theater of operations, transfer to naval hospitals in other parts of
the United States, or simply rotating shifts, 12 hour shifts, out of
Bethesda, that had to withdraw from higher education programs in
which they were enrolled.

For many of them, the recall periodand for some it still
existsstarted at the beginning or during the fall of 1990 semester
and continued through the now ending spring 1991 semester.

As Assistant Secretary Duncan mentioned as part of his testimo-
ny, it is the Department of Defense's intent to have the majority of'
Guard and reservists home and demobilized by July, which is
almost close to a year from when they were called up. In light of'
these aspects, this education reinstatement package is not a lot to
ask and certainly will send the right message to current members
of the militaryand something you pointed out earlierparticular-
ly those people who are thinking about joining.

The VRR agenda of this hearing is an extremely important issue
to AMVETS membership and we are pleased the Committee saw
fit to finally address some of the more dated provisions of the law.

After careful review of the proposed changes to chapter 43, title
:38, including review of the House legislation, AMVETS is pleased
with some of the proposed revisions that have been made. First of
all, we appreciate the clear delineation of the types of discrimina-
tion prohibited by the legislation as defined in section 4321, par-
ticularly the inclusion of such employment areas as promotion, re-
tention and reemployment.

Second, the extension of the reemployment rights from a period
of 4 years to 5 years as well as the standardization of the return
period for a servicemember to an employer will help to not only
make it easier for an individual to serve in the military, but will
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make the laws governing that service clearer and much easier to
understand.

Third, we strongly endorse the inclusion of the provisions which
grant the 2 year interval for return to an employer of a service-
member who was hospitalized due to a service-connected illness or
injury. The current law is blatantly unreasonable.

Finally, AMVETS supports the language in this legislation which
provides entitlement to reemployment rights, does not depend on
timing, frequency, duration or nature of service. AMVETS has long
been an opponent of those rare cases of reasonableness tests deter-
mining as servicemembers' rights and benefits.

While we have briefly touched upon some of the more pertinent
provisions of this legislation, we want to go on the record again as
supporting this entire piece of legislation and the efforts of this
Committee and the House committee to bring this rewrite about.

We consider it fair, timely and truly reflective of the nature of
the business in serving in the U.S. military in the 1990s.

Again, AMVETS wishes to express our sincere appreciation to
the Committee for allowing us to provide our testimony this morn-
ing. As always, we stand by to provide you with any further infor-
mation or support.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Gaffney appears on p. 2651
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very much.
Finally, Clif.

STATEMENT OF currON E. DUPREE, ASSOCIATE LEGISLATIVE
DIRECTOR, PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA

Mr. DUPREE, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, it's
a pleasure and personal privilege to appear today on behalf of the
Paralyzed Veterans of America.

Mr. Chairman, PVA supports S. 868 as proposed. The programs
authorized by chapter 35 have significance for the members
of the PVA and their families. Through this program dependents
and spouses of severely disabled veterans can pursue an education
without depleting their family savings or accumulating significant
debt.

For the purposes of maintaining continuity and Nuality in the
program, PVA opposes VA's legislative proposal to eliminate eligi-
bility of stepchildren for chapter 35 survivors and dependents edu-
cational assistance.

In reference to the Uniform Services Employment and Reemploy-
ment Rights, S. 1095, Mr. Chairman, we want to thank you and the
members of the Committee for your continuing concern over the
employment rights of our Nation's veterans. We are very apprecia-
tive of the action taken in legislation to provide employment for
those reservists who incur a disability while serving on active duty.

We strongly support the provisions contained in the bill which
would allow disabled individuals up to 2 years hospitalization and
convalescence before exercising his or her reemployment right op-
tions.
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PVA strongly supports your provision of accommodation which
certainly should be no less than that provided under current law
contained in the American Disabilities Act of 1990.

PVA supports the provision which provides a Federal Govern-
ment employee the same representation by the Office of Special
Counsel before the Merit Systems Protection Board and judicial
review of Board decisions as those provided persons employed by
State and private employers.

In reference to H.R. 153, Veterans Judicial Review Act, PVA op-
poses the provisions contained in H.R. 153 which would provide
that the Court shall include in its decisions a statement of its con-
clusions of law and determinations of factual matters. This is an
important right for veterans and must be preserved in the law.

Veterans are entitled to know the reasons for the decisions of the
Court. Quite simply, when a veteran seeks review from the Court,
the veteran is entitled to be informed in language he or she can
understand, the findings made by the Court, and the reasons for
those findings.

While this information is naturally important to the veteran, it
will be important for advocates of veterans. Veterans advocates
will be severely hampered in their representational efforts if they
cannot discover the reasons for past Court decisions. The develop-
ment of a law by the Court is an important new phase in the law
of veterans benefits. If the Court is not required to give reasons
and legal basis for its decisions, it will be difficult to use its deci-
sions for legal precedence and predict how the Court will rule in
future cases.

It is a matter of extreme importance for organizations represent-
ing veterans in administrative and judicial proceedings. This provi-
sion is not a unique one for courts. The U.S. Claims Court which
reviews Military Correction Board decisions regarding issues of pay
is required by statute to state its conclusions of law and findings of
fact. Additionally, every U.S. District Court, plus the Court of
International Trade, are similarly charged.

H.R. 153 also proposes a new statutory provision under section
4086, title 38, United States Code that would authorize a Judicial
Conference of the Court of Veterans Appeals. As explained in our
written testimony, because the Court does not yet issue roles guar-
anteeing nonattorney practitioners full status before the Court, we
oppose this provision as being premature.

In reference to S. 1050, PVA has no objection to this legislation
which will allow the U.S. Court of Veterans Appeals to accept vol-
untary services, gifts and bequests.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank you again on behalf of the
members of the Paralyzed Veterans for holding this hearing on
these most important and timely matters. This concludes my testi-
mony and I'll be happy to answer any questions you may have.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Dupree appears on p. 271.1
Chairman CRANSTON. Thank you very much.
You suggested that the legislation should require a disabled vet-

eran to notify the employer that he or she is interested in return-
ing to work. I'm concerned that to designate a required time in the
statute might restrict reemployment rights to persons who within
the allowable 2 year reporting time would make the decision to

4
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return to work but might fail to meet an established notice period.
Does that prospect concern you?

Mr. GILMER. Mr. Chairman, that prospect does concern us. I
think a part of what we're trying to do here is balance the employ-
er's needs against a disabled veteran's needs. If in fact the employ-
er is not aware within some reasonable timeframein this case, up
to 2 yearsthat the veteran wants to return to work, we think
that's going to be difficult for him to accommodate the needs of
that disabled veteran.

Chairman CRANSTON. What would be a reasonable time?
Mr. GILMER. Well, I'm sorry, I can't offer that at this moment.

I'd be glad to get back to you with that.
Chairman CRANSTON. If you would think about it and get back to

us?
[Subsequently, Mr. Gilmer furnished the following informationj

DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS,
NATIONAL SERVICE AND LEGISLATIVE HP.ADQUARTERS,

807 MAIN AVENUE, S.W., WASHINGTON, DC 20024.
March 17, 1992.

THE HONORABLE ALAN CRANSTON.
Chairman, Senate Veterans Affairs Committee,
414 Russell Senate Office Bldg.,
Washington, DC 20510.

DEAR SENATOR CRANSTON: We offer the following to clarify our May 23 1991 testi-
mony on S. 1095 before the Senate Veterans Affairs Committee.

During the hearing you asked how long an employer should be obligated to
extend veterans' reemployment rights to a severely disabled veteran. The concern
was that some disabled veterans may require extensive medical treatment with re-
habilitation therapy or counseling before they could return to work. This tieatment,
therapy and counseling, in some cases, cou:d easily exceed a year.

Our testimony proposed an in depth process that would involve the veteran, em-
ployer and a VA vocational counselor in the development of an Individual Employ-
ment Assistance Plan (IEAP).

We believe that putting off the development and implementation of an IEAP is
detrimental to the rehabilitation of people with disabilities. Attachment to an occu-
pation is stronger the less time a person is away from their job. Returning to work
is more frightening the longer you are away from your occupation, especially if the
interruption is the result of a disability. Thus, vocational rehabilitation is most ef-
fective when intervention is provided at the earliest possible date.

If the employer is to be invited into this process, he must receive some notifica-
tion of the intent of the disabled veteran. We believe this process must begin within
one year of the veteran's separation from service. For this reason, we believe the
employer must be notified of the veteran's intent to return to work and be invited
by the VA vocational rehabilitation counselor to participate in the development of
the IEAP. The employer's veterans' reemployment rights obligations should cease
two years from the severely disabled veteran's medical recovery.

Sincerely,
LENNOX E. GILMER.

A.ssoctatt. National Employnwnt Director.

Chairman CRANSTON. Clif, do you agree?
Mr. DUPREE. Yes, sir. One statement I'd like to add to that is the

employer would be aware, I would assume, that the person was
going to take a long period of time for recovery and the attempt
was made to be reemployed and in that way, the employer and the
employee would be working together during the rehabilitative proc-
ess to see if it can happen. But if during the process the employee
would not be able to return to work, at least the employer would
be aware of the situation.
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Chairman CRANSTON. If you would also give us for the record,
your further thoughts on what you think would be an appropriate
time period?

[Subsequently, Mr. Dupree furnished the following information:]
Return to Work After Disability

PVA prefers a provision which would provide for an extension of time limits by
which an individual must report for reemployment by (1) up to one year if a person
is hospitalizsd or convalescing from an illness or injury incurred during service; (2)
up to two years if the individual is a special disabled veteran whose disability sig-
nificpntly impairs the veteran's ability to work and if the employee informs, in writ-
ing, the employer concerned of the individual's condition. an intention to return to
employment, and the plans for rehabilitation; or (3( the employer should make this
accommodation because of the circumstances which are beyond the individual's con-
trol.

Chairman CRANSTON. Although H.R. 1578 and S. 1095 have many
substantive provisions that are similar, there are some significant
differences between the two proposals. Some of you noted a few of
those differences. It would be of great assistance to us if each of
you would submit your views on all substantive matters on which
the House and Senate bills are different. If possible, if you could
get that to us by the close of business on May 31, that would be
appreciated. To assist you, the Committee will provide you tomor-
row with a listing of the differences we've identified. If you will
give us your comments on that in writing by the 31st, I'd appreci-
ate it.

Chairman CRANSTON. I have no further questions and that con-
cludes our hearing. Thank you all very much for your attendance.

[Whereupon, at 11:35 a.m., the Committee adjourned, to recon-
vene at the call of the Chair.]
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To amend title 10, United States Cade, and title 38, United States Code,
to improve educational assistance benefits for members of the Seleeted
Reserve of the Armed Forces who served on active duty during the
Persian Gulf War, and for other purposes.

IN TIIE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES
APRIL 18 (legislative day, Amt. 9), 1991

Mr. CRANSTON introduced the following bill; which was read twice and
referred to the Committee on Veterans' Affairs

A BILL
To amend title 10, United States Code, and title 38, United

States Code, to improve educational assistance benefits
for members of the Selected Reserve of the Armed
Forces who served on active duty during the Persian
Gulf War, and for other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Reprasenta-

2 tives of the United States of Amerioa in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION I. RESTORATION OF ENTITLEMENT TO EDIJCA-

4 TIONAL ASSISTANCE.

5 (a) CHAPTER 30 PROGRAM.Section 1413 of title

6 38, United States Code, is amended by adding at the end

7 the following new subsection:

(43)
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2

1 "(f)(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this

2 chapter or chapter 36 of this title, any payment of an edu-

3 cational assistance allowance desenled in par-graph (2)

4 shall not,--

5 "(A) be charged against any entitlement of any

6 individual under this chapter, or

7 "f.B) be counted toward the aggregate period

8 for which section 1795 of this title limits an individ-

9 ual's receipt of assistance.

10 "(2) Subject to paragraph (3), the payment of the

11 educational assistance allowance referred to in paragraph

12 (1) is the payment of such an allowance to an individual

13 for pursuit of a course or courses under this chapter if

14 the Secretary finds that the individual-

15 "(A) in the ease of a member of the Selected

16 Reserve, had to discontinue such course pursuit as

17 a result of being ordered, in connection with the

18 Persian Gulf War, to serve on active duty under see-

19 tion 672(a), (d), or (g), 673, or 673b, of title 10;

20 or

21 "(B) in the case of a person serving on active

22 duty, had to discontinue such course pursuit as a re-

23 sult of being order ed, in connection with such War,

24 to a new duty location or assignment or to perform

25 an increased amount of work; and

le SOS IS
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3

1 "(C) failed to receive credit or lost training

2 time toward completion of the individual's approved

3 education, professional, or vocational objective as a

4 result of having to discontinue, as described in sub-

5 paragraph (A) or (B), his or her course pursuit.

6 "(3) The period for which, by reason of this subsec-

7 tion, an educational assistance allowance is not charged

8 against entitlement or counted toward the applicable ag-

9 gregate period under section 1795 of this title shall not

10 exceed the portion of the period of enrollment in the

11 course or courses for which the individual failed to receive

12 credit or with respect to which the individual lost training

13 time, as determined under paragraph (2)(C) of this sub-

14 section.".

15 (b) CHAPTER 32 PROG1AM.-(1) Section 1631(a) of

16 such title is amended by adding at the end the following

17 new paragraph:

18 "(5)(A) Notwithstanding any other provision of this

19 chapter or chapter 36 of this title, any payment of an edu-

20 cational assistance allowance described in subparagraph

21 (B) of this paragraph-

22 "(i) shall not be charged against the entitle-

23 ment of any eligible veteran under this chapter; and
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4

1 "(ii) shall not be counted toward the aggregate

2 period for which section 1795 of this title limits an

3 individual's receipt of assistance.

4 "(B) The payment of an educational assistance allow-

5 ance referred to in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph

6 is any payment of a monthly benefit under this chapter

7 to an eligible veteran for pursuit of a course or courses

8 under this chapter if the Secretary finds that the eligible

9 veteran-

10 "(i) in the ease of a member of the Selected Re-

11 serve, had to discontinue such course pursuit as a

12 result of being ordered, in connection with the Per-

13 sian Gulf War, to serve on active duty under section

14 672(a), (d), or (g), 673, or 673b of title 10; or

15 "(ii) in the case of a person serving on active

16 duty, had to discontinue such course pursuit as a re-

17 sult of being ordered, in connection with such War,

18 to a new duty location or assignment or to perform

19 an increased amount of work; and

20 "(iii) failed to receive credit or training time to-

21 ward completion of the individual's approved educa-

22 tional, professional, or vocational objective as a re-

23 sult of having to diseontinue, as described in clause

24 (1) or (ii) of this subparagraph, his or her course

25 pursuit.

5
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5

1 "(C) The period for which, by reason of this subsec-

2 tion, an educational assistance allowance is not charged

3 against entitlement or eounted toward the applicable ag-

4 gregate period under section 1795 of this title shall not

5 exceed the portion of the period of enrollment in the

6 course or courses for which the individual failed to receive

7 credit or with respect to which the individual lost training

8 time, as determined under subparagraph (B)(iii) of this

9 paragraph.

10 "(D) The amount in the fund for each eligible veteran

11 who received a payment of an educational assistance allow-

12 ance described in subparagraph (B) of this paragraph

13 shall be restored to the amount that would have beAn in

14 the fund for the veteran if the payment had not been

15 made. For purposes of carrying out the previous sentence,

16 the Secretary of Defense shall deposit into the fund, on

17 behalf of each such veteran, an amount equal to the entire

18 amount of the payment made to the veteran.

19 "(E) In the case of a veteran who discontinues pur-

20 suit of a course or courses as described in subparagraph

21 (B) of this paragraph, the formula for ascertaining the

22 amount of the monthly payment to which the veteran is

23 entitled in paragraph (2) of this subsection shall be imple-

24 mented as if
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1 "(i) the payment made to the fund by the SCC-

2 retary of Defense under subparagraph (D) of this

3 paragraph, and

4 "(ii) any payment for a course or courses de-

5 scribed in subparagraph (B) of this paragraph that

6 was paid out of the fund,

7 had not been made or paid.".

8 (2) Section 1631(a)(2) of such title is amended by

9 inserting "in paragraph (5)(E) of this subsection and"

10 after "Except as proviead".

11 (c) CHAPTER 35 PROGRAKSection 1711(a) of such

12 title is amended-

13 (1) by striking out "Each" and inserting in lieu

14 thereof "(1) Each"; and

15 (2) by adding at the end the following new

16 paragraph:

17 "(2)(A) Notwithstanding any other provision of this

18 chapter or chapter 36 of this title, any payment of an edu-

19 eational assistance allowance described in subparagraph

70 (B) of this paragraph shall not-

21 "(i) be charged against the entitlement of any

22 individual under this chapter; or

23 "(ii) be counted toward the aggregate period for

24 which section 1795 of this title limits an individual's

25 reeeipt of assistance.

41 ON IS
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1 "(B) The payment of the educational assistance al-

2 lowanee referred to in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph

3 is the payment of such an allowance to an individual for

4 pursuit of a course or courses =der this chapter if the

5 Secretary finds that the individual-

6 "(i) had to disoontinue such course pursuit as

7 a result of being ordered, in connection with the

8 Persian Gulf War, to serve on active duty under see-

9 tion 672 (a), (d), or (g), 673, or 673b of title 10;

10 and

11 "(ii) failed to receive credit or training time to-

12 ward completion of the individual's approved educe-

13 tional, professional, or vocational objective as a re-

14 sult of having to discontinue, as described in clause

15 (i) of this subparagraph, his or her mine pursuit.

16 "(C) The period for which, by reason of this subsec-

17 tion, an educational assistance allowance is not charged

18 against entitlement or counted toward the applicable

19 gregate period under section 1795 of this title shall not

20 exceed the portion of the period of enrollment in the

21 course or courses for which the individual failed to receive

22 credit or with respect to which the individual lost training

23 time, as deterinined under subparagraph (B)(ii) of this

24 paragraph.".

.5 SIM IS
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1 (d) SELECTED RESERVE PROGRAM.Seetion

2 2131(c) of title 10, United States Code, is amended by

3 adding at the end the following new paragraph:

4 "(3)(A) Notwithstanding any other provision of this

5 chapter or chapter 36 of title 38, any payment of an edu-

cational assistance allowance describee, in subparagraph

7 (B) of this paragraph shall not-

8 "(i) be charged against the entitlement of any

9 individual under this chapter; or

10 "(ii) be countod toward the aggregate period for

11 which section 1795 of title 38 limits an individual's

12 receipt of assistance.

13 "(B) The payment of the educational assistance al-

14 Iowance referred to in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph

15 is the payment of such an allowance to the individual for

16 pursuit of a course or courses under this chapter if the

17 Secretary of Veterans Affairs finds that the individual-

18 "(1) had to discontinue such course pursuit as

19 a result of being ordered, in connection with the

20 Persian Gulf War, to serve on active duty under see-

21 tion 672 (a), (d), or (g), 673, or 673b of this title;

22 and

23 "(ii) failed to receive credit or training time to-

24 ward completion of the individual's approved educa-

25 tional, professional, or vocational objective as a re-

848 IS
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1 sult of having to discontinue, as desenled in clause

2 (i) of this subparagraph, his or her course pursuit.

3 "(C) The period for which, by reason of this subsec-

4 tion, an educational assistance allowance is not charged

5 against entitlement or counted toward the applicable ag-

6 gregate period under section 1795 of title 38 shall not ex-

7 ceed the portion of the period of enrollment in the course

8 or coursee for which the individual failed to receive credit

9 or with respect to which the individual lost training time,

10 as determined under subparagraph (B)(ii) of this para-

11 graph.".

12 SEC. 2. DELIMITING DATE.

13 Section 2133(b) of title 10, United States Code, is

14 amended by adding at the end the following:

15 "(4)(A) In the case of a member of the Selected Re-

16 se ve of the Ready Reserve who, during the Persian Gulf

17 War, serves on active duty pursuant to an order to activo

18 duty issued under section 672 (a), (d), or (g), 673, or

19 673b of this title-

20 "(i) the period of such active duty service shall

21 not be considered in determining the expiration date

22 applicable to such member under subsection (a); and

23 "(ii) the member may not be considered to have

24 been separated from the Selected Reserve for the
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1 purposes of clause (2) of such subsection by reason

2 of the commencement of such active duty service.

3 "(B) For the purposes of Ws paragraph, the term

4 'Persian Gulf War' shall have the meaning given such

5 term in section 101(33) of title 38.".

.8 818 18 r c.,) tl
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S. 1050

II

To amend title 38, United Statas Code, to allow the United States Court
of Veterans Appeals to accept voluntary services and gifts and bequests,
and for other purposes.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES
MAY 14 (legislative day, APRIL 25), 1991

Mr. CRANSTON (by request) introduced the following bill; which was read
twice and referred to the Committee on Veterans' Affairs

A BILL
To amend title 38, United States Code, to allow the United

States Court of Veterans Appeals to accept voluntary
services and gifts and bequests, and for other purposes.

1 Re it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 ayes of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION I. ACCEPTANCE OF VOLUNTAkY SERVICES AND

4 GIFTS BY THE UNITED STATES COURT OF

5 VETERANS APPEALS.

6 Section 7281 of title 38, United States Code, is

7 amended by adding at the end the following new subsec-

8 tion:
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2

1 "(i) The Court may accept and utilize voluntary and

2 uncompensated (gratuitous) services, including services as

3 authorized by section 3102(b) of title 5 and may accept,

4 hold, administer, and utitize gifts and bequests of personal

5 property for the purpose of aiding or facilitating the work

6 of the Court. Gifts or bequests of money to the Court shall

7 be covered into the Treasury.".

0

.5 I MO IS



55

II

102D CONGRESS S. 10951ST SESSION

To amend title 38, United States Code, to improve reemployment rights
and benefits of veterans and other benefh.s of employment of certain
members of the uniformed servicvs.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES
MAY 16 (legislative day, APRIL 25), 1991

Mr. CRANSTON (for himself, Mr, SPECTER, Mr. DECONCINI, Mr. GRAHAM,
Mr. AKAKA, and Mr. DASCHLE) introduced the following bill; which was
read twice and referred to the Committee on Veterans' Affairs

A BILL
To amend title 38, United States Code, to improve reemploy-

ment rights and benefits of veterans and other benefits
of employment of' certain members of the uniformed serv-
ices.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 fives of the United States of America in Congress assemblea,

3 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

4 This Act may be cited as the "Uniformed Services

5 Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991".
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I SEC. 2. REVISION OF CHAPTER 43 OF TITLE 38.

2 (a) RESTATEMENT AND IMPROVEMENT OF EMPLOY-

3 MENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS.Chapter 43 of title

4 38, United States Code, is amended to read as follows:

5 "CHAPTER 43EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOY-

6 mENT RIGHTS OF PERSONS WHO SERVE IN

7 THE UNIFORMED SERVICES

"SUBCHAPTER IPusrosEs, RELATION TO OTHER LAW, AND DEFINITIONS

"SCC

"4301 Purposes; sense of Congress
"4302 Relation to other law, construction.
"4303 Definitions
4304. Honorable service required.

"SUBCHAPTER IIEMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIOHTS AND
LIMITATIONS, PROHIBITIONS

4321 Discrimination against persons who serve in the uniformed services and
acts of reprisal prohibited

4322 Reemployment rights of persons who perform service in the uruformeti
services.

4323 Reemployment positions
4324. Special rules for reemployment by the Federal Government.

"4325 Seniority, insurance, and other employment rights and benefits
"4326. Employee pension benefit plans.
"4327 Entitlement to rights and benefits not dependent on timing or natu N

of service.

"SUBCHAPTER IIIASSISTANCE IN SECURING EMPLOYMENT ANL
REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS; ENFORCEMENT

"4331 Definition.
-4332 Assistance in secunng reemployment or other employment rights or

benefits
4333 Enforcement of righto with respect to the Federal Government

"4334 Enforcement of rights with respect to a State or private. employer

"SUBCHAPTER IVINVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS

4341 Conduct of investigation, subpoena.s

4351 Regulations.
4352 Severability

S 1095 IS

"SUBCHAPTER VMISCELLANEOUS

6 )
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3

1 "SUBCHAPTER IPURN)SES, RELATION TO

2 OTHER LAW, AND DEFINITIONS

3 94301. Purposes; sense of Congress

4 "(a) The purposes of this chapter are-

5 2 "(1) to encourage nonregular and noneareer

6 service in the uniformed services by eliminating or

7 minimizing the disadvantages to civilian careers and

employment which can result from such service; arid

9 "(2) to minimize the disruption to the lives of

10 persons performing service in the uniformed services

11 and to the lives of their former employers, their fel-

1 2 low employees, and their communities, by providing

13 for the prompt reemployment of such persons upon

14 their eompletion of such service under honorable

15 conditions.

16 "(b) It is the sense of Congress that the Federal Gov-

ernment should be a model employer in carrying out the

18 reemployment practices provided for in this chapter.

19 94302. Relation to other law; construction

20 "(a) Nothing in this chapter shall supersede, iiulliIy

21 or diminish any provision of Federal or State law (includ-

22 ing any local law or ordinance), or any provision of a plan

23 provided, contract entered into, or policy or practice

24 adopted, by an employer, which establishes a right or ben-

25 efit that is more beneficial to a person referred to in see-

9 1095 19
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tion 4301(a)(2) of this title than a right or benefit provid-

2 ed for such person in this chapter or is in addition to a

3 right or benefit provided for such person in this chapter.

4 "(b) This chapter supersedes any State law or em-

5 ployer plan, contract, or policy or practice that would have

6 the effect of limiting in any manner any right or benefit

7 provided by this chapter, including any State law or em-

8 ployer pian, contract, or policy or practice that establishes

9 a prerequisite to the exercise or any such right or the re-

10 ecipt of any such benefit that is not a prerequisite estab-

11 lished by this chapter.

I 2 "(c) Nothing in this chapter shall be interpreted to

13 limit in any way any of the rights conferred by the Arneri-

14 cans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-336;

15 42 17.S.C. 12101 et seq.).

16 "§ 4303. Definitions

17 "For the purposes of' this chapter:

18 "(1) The term 'Attorney General' means the

1 9 Attorney General of the United States or any person

20 designated by the Attorney General to carry out a

21 responsibility of the Attorney General under this

22 chapter.

23 "(2) The term 'benefit' or 'benefit of employ-

24 ment' means any advantage, profit., privilege, warn,

25 status, account, or interest that acemes by reason of'

S 1095 IS
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1 an employment contract or an employer practice or

2 custom (other than wages or salary for work per-

3 formed) and includes rights under a pension plan,

4 insurance coverage and awards, rights under an em-

5 ployee stock ownership plan, any bonus, severance

6 pay, L .y supplemental unemployment benefit, an en-

7 titlement to leave with or without pay, work hours,

8 and the location of employment.

9 "(3)(A) Except as provided in subparagraph

10 (B), the term 'employer' means any person, institu-

II organization, or other entity that pays salary or

12 wages for work performed or that has control over

13 employment opportunities, including-

14 "(0 a person, institution, organization, or

15 other entity to whom the employer has delegat-

16 ed the performance of employment-related re-

17 sponsibilities;

18 "(ii) the Federal Government;

19 "(iii) a State; and

20 "(iv) any successor in interest to a person,

21 institution, organization, or other entity re-

22 ferred to in this subparagraph.

23 "(13) In the case of a National Guard techni-

24 cian employed under section 709 of title 32, the

1093 IS
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term `employer' means the adjutant general of the

2 State in which the technician is employed.

3 "(4) The term `Federal Government' includes

4 the United States Postal Servit,e, the Postal Rate

5 Commission, any nonappropriated fund instrumen-

6 tality of the United States, and a Government corpo-

7 ration (as defined in section 103(1) of t'tk 5).

8 "(5) The term `reasonable accommodation' has

9 the meaning given such term in section 101(9) of

10 the Amerieans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42

11 U.S.C. 12111(9)).

12 "(6) The term 'seniority' means longevity in

13 employment together with any benefits of employ-

14 ment which accrue with, or are determined by. Ion-

15 gevity in employment.

16 "(7) The term 'service in the aniformed sem-

17 ices' means the performance of duty on a voluntary

18 on involuntary basis in a uniformed service under

19 competent authority arid includes active duty, active

20 duty for training, initial active duty for training, in-

21 active duty training, full-time National Guard duty,

22 and a period for which a person is absent from a po-

23 sition of employment for the purpose of an examina-

24 tion to determine the fitness of the person to per-

25 form any such duty.

S 1093 IS
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"(8) The term 'undue hardship' has the mean-

2 ing given such term in section 101(10) of the Ameri-

3 cans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C.

4 12111(10)).

5 "(9) The term 'uniformed services' means the

6 Armed Forces and the commissioned corps of the

7 Public Health Service.

8 9 4304. Honorable service required

9 "A person's entitlement to the benefits of this chapter

10 by reason of the service of such person in one of' the uni-

11 formed services terminates upon the occurrence of any of

12 the following events:

13 "(1) A separation of such person from such

14 uniformed service with a dishonorable or bad con-

15 duct discharge.

16 "(2) A separation of such person from such

17 uniformed service under other than honorable condi-

18 tions, as characterized pursuant to regulations pre-

19 scribed by the Secretary concerned.

20 "(3) In the case of' service on active duty, a re-

21 lease of such person from active duty under other

22 than honorable conditions, as characterized pursuant

23 to such regulations.

24 "(4) A dismissal of such person permitted

25 under section 1161(3) of title 10.

1093 IS
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1 "(5) A dropping of such person from the rolls

2 pursuant to section 1161(b) of title 10.

3 "SUBCHAPTER HEMPLOYMENT AND REHM-

4 PLOYMENT RIGHTS AND LIMITATIONS; PRO-

S HIBITIONS

6 44321. Discrimination against persons who serve in

7 the uniformed services and acts of repris-

8 al prohibited

9 "(a) A person who performs, has performed, applies

10 to perform, or has an obligation to perform service in a

11 uniformed service shall not be denied initial employment,

12 reemployment, retention in employment, promotion, or

13 any benefit of employment by an employer on the basis

14 of that serviee or obligation.

15 "(b) An employer shall be considered to have denied

16 a person initial employment, reemployment, retention in

17 employment, promotion, or a benefit of employment by an

i 8 employer in violation of this section if the person's service,

19 application for service, or obligation for service in the uni-

20 formed services is a motivating factor in the employer's

21 action, unless the employer can demonstrate that the ac-

22 tion would have been taken in the absence of such service,

23 application, or obligation.

24 "(c)(1) An employer may not discriminate in employ-

25 rnent against or take any adverse employment action

S 1095 IS
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1 against any person because such person has taken an ac-

2 tion to enforce a protection afforded any person under this

3 chapter, has testified or otherwise made a statement in

4 or in connection with any proceeding under this chapter,

5 has assisted or otherwise participated in an investigation

6 under this chapter, or has exercised a right provided for

7 in this chapter.

8 "(2) The prohibition in paragraph (1) shall apply

9 with respect to a person regardless of whether that person

10 has performed service in the uniformed services.

11 94322. Reemployment rights of persons who per-

12 form service in the uniformed services

13 "(a) Subject to subsections (b) and (e), any person

14 who is absent from a position of employment by reason

15 of the performance of service in the uniformed services

16 shall be entitled to the reemployment rights and benefits

17 and other employment benefits of' this chapter if-

18 "(1) the person (or an appropriate officer of the

19 uniformed service in which such service is per-

20 formed) hm given advance written or verbal notice

21 of such service to such person's employer;

22 "(2) except as provided in subsection (c) of this

23 section, the cumulative length of the absence and of

24 any previous absences from a position or employ-
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1 ment with that employer by reason of service in the

2 uniformed services does not exceed five years; and

3 "(3) the person reports or submits an applica-

4 tion to such employer upon completion of such serv-

5 ice in accordance with the provisions of subsection

6 (d).

7 "(b) No notice is required under subsection (a)(1) if

8 the giving of such notice is precluded by military necessity

9 or, under all of the relevant circumstances, the giving of

10 such notice is otherwise impossible or unreasonable. A de-

1 1 termination of military necessity, impossibility, or

12 unreasonableness for the purposes of this subsection shall

13 be made by tht. Secretary concerned and shall not be sub-

14 jeet to judicial review.

15 "(e) A person referred to in subsection (a) shall be

16 entitled to the rights and benefits referred to in such sub-

17 section even though the cumulative length of the person's

18 absences from a position of employment with the employer

19 by reason of service in the uniformed services exceeds fiv e

20 years if the absence which results in a cumulative absence

21 in excess of five years is a result of the performance of-

22 "(1) service required to complete an initial peri-

23 od of obligated service;

24 "(2) service from which, through no fault of

25 that person, the person could not obtain a discharge

S 1096 IS
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or release in time to prevent the curnulative absences

2 from exceeding 5 years;

3 "(3) service required under section 270 of title

4 10 or section 502(a) or 503(a) of title 32 or re-

5 quired to fulfill additional training requirements de-

6 termined by the Secretary concerned to be necessary

7 for professional development or for completion of

8 skill training or retraining;

9 "(4) service pursuant to-

10 "(A) an order to, or retention on, active

11 duty under section 672(a), 672(g), 673, 673b,

12 673e, or 688 of title 10;

i 3 "(B) an order to, or mtention on, aetivc

14 duty (other than for training) under any other

provision of law during a war or national emer-

if. !Tney deelared by the President or by Congress;

17 -(C, an order to Iwtive duty (other than

18 for training) in support (as determined by the

19 Secretary concerned) of an operational mission

20 for which personnel have been ordered to active

21 duty under section 673b of title 10;

22 "(D) an order to active duty in support (as

23 determined by the Secretary concerned) of a

24 critical mission or requirement of the uniformed

25 services; or

S 1093 18
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1 "(E) a call into Federal service under

2 chapter 15 of title 10 or section 3500 or 8500

3 of such title; or

4 "(5) any other category of service specified by

5 the Secretary of Labor, in consultation with the Sec-

6 retary of Defense, in regulations prescribed pursuant

7 to section 4351.

8 "(d)(1) Sul lject to paragraphs (2) and (3), a person

9 referred to in subsection (a) shall, upon the completion

10 of a period of service in the uniformed services, notify the

11 employer referred to in such subsection of the person's re-

12 turn to a position of employment with such employer as

13 follows:

14 "(A) In the ease of a person who is absent from

15 a position of employment for less than 31 days, by

16 reporting to the employer-

17 "(i) not later than the beginning of the

18 first full regularly scheduled work period on the

19 first full calendar day following the completion

20 of the period of service and a period for the

21 safe transportation of the person from the place

22 of that service to the workplace of the employer;

23 or

24 "(ii) as soon as possible after the expira-

25 tion of the period required under clause (i), if

S 1095 18
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1 reporting within the period referred to in such

2 clause is impossible or unreasonable through no

3 fault of the person.

4 "(B) In the ease of a person who is absent from

5 a position of employment for a period of any length

6 for the purposes of an examination to determine the

7 person's fitness to perform service in the uniformed

8 services, by reporting in the manner and time re-

9 ferred to in subparagraph (A).

10 "(C) In the case of a person who is absent from

11 a position of employment for more than 30 days but

12 less than 181 days, by submitting an application for

13 reemployment with the employer not later than 31

14 days after the completion of the period of service.

15 "(I)) In the case of a person who is absent

16 from a position or employment for more than 180

17 days, by submitting an application for reemployment

18 with the employer not later than 90 days after the

19 completion of the period of service.

20 "(2) A person who is hospitalized for, or convalescing

21 from, an illness or injury incurred in, or aggravated by,

22 the performance or a period or service in the uniformed

23 services shall report to the person's employer (in the case

24 of a person described in subparagraph (A) or (B) of para-

25 graph (1)) or submit an application for employment with

S 1095
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1 such employer (in the ease of a person described in sub-

2 paragraph (C) or (D) of such paragraph) at the end of

3 the period (not to exceed two years) that is necessary for

4 the person to recover from such illness or injury.

5 "(3) A person referred to in subparagraphs (A) or

6 (B) of paragraph (1) who fails to report to an employer

7 within the time period referred to in such paragraph shall

8 be considered to have failed to report for such work on

9 schedule but may be treated by the employer no less favor-

10 ably than the employer treats other absent employees pur-

1 1 suant to the employer's established policy or the general

12 practices of the employer relating to employee absences.

13 "(e)(1) A person who submits an application for re-

14 employment in accordance with subparagraph (C) or (D)

15 of subsection (d)(1) shall provide to the person's employer

16 (upon the request of such employer) documentation to es-

17 tablish that-

18 "(A) the person's application is timely;

19 "(B) the person has not exceeded the service

20 limitations set forth in subsection (a)(3) (except as

21 permitted under subsection (c)); and

22 "(C) the person's entitlement to the benefits

23 under this chapter has not terminated under section

24 4304 of this title.
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1 "(2) Documentation of any matter referred to in

2 paragraph (1) that is issued pursuant to regulations pre-

3 scribed by the Secretary concerned shall satisfy the docu-

4 mentation roquirements in such paragraph.

5 "(3) An employer shall reemploy in accordance with

6 the provisions of this chapter a person who fails to provide

7 documentation that satisfies the requirements prescribed

8 pursuant to paragraph (2) if the failure occurs because

9 such documentation does not exist or is not, readily avail-

10 able at the time of the request of the employer. If, after

1 I such reemployment, documentation becomes available that

12 establishes thLt such person does not meet one or more

13 of the requirements referred to in clauses (A) through (C)

14 of paragraph (I), the employer of such person may termi-

15 nate employment of the person and the provision of any

16 rights or benefits afforded the person under this chapter.

17 9 4321 Reemployment positions

IS "(a) Subject to subsections (b) and (e), a person enti-

19 tied to reemployment under section 4322 of this title upon

20 completion of a period of service in the uniformed services

21 shall be reemployed in a position of employment as follows:

22 "(1) In the ease of a person who is not

23 d isabled-

24 "(A) in a position of employment in which

25 the person would have been employed if the

S 1098 IS
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1 continuous employment of such person with the

2 employer had not been interrupted by such

3 service, or a similar position of like status and

4 pay, the duties of which the person is qualified

5 to perform; or

6 "(B) if not qualified to perform the duties

7 of a position pursuant to subparagraph (A), in

8 the position of employment in which the person

9 was employed on the date of the commencement

10 of the service in the uniformed services, or a

11 position with like status and pay, the duties of

12 which the person is qualified to perform.

13 "(2)(A) In the case of a person who is disabled,

14 one of the following positions in the order of priority

15 in which the positions are listed:

16 "(i) A position referred to in paragraph

17 (1)(A).

18 "(ii) A position referred to in paragraph

19 (1)(B).

20 "(iii) A position similar to a position re-

21 ferred to in clause (ii) that is consistent with

22 the circumstances of the person's ease, the du-

23 ties of which the person is qualified to perform.

24 "(iv) A position of lesser status and pay

25 than a position referred to in clause (iii) that

13 1001$ IS
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is consistent with the circumstances of the per-

2 son's case, the duties of which the person is

3 qualified to perform.

4 "(3) An employer shall employ a person in a

5 position referred to in clauses (i) through (iv) of

6 subparagraph (A) even if the employer must make

7 a reasonable accommodation for the disability of

8 such person (and any limitations related to such dis-

9 ability) to facilitate the person's ability to perform

10 the duties of that position.

11 "(b) A person shall be considered qualified to perform

12 the duties of a position of employment under subsection

13 (a) if the person can perform the essential functions of

14 the position or will be able to perform such functions (1)

15 after receiving training providt:d by the employer to re-

16 fresh or update the necessary skills of that person, or (2)

17 through other reasonable efforts undertaken by the em-

18 ployer

19 "(c)(1) An employer is not required to reemploy a

20 person under this chapter if the employer's circumstanees

21 have so changed as to make such reemployment impossible

22 or unreasonable.

23 "(2) An employer is not required to make an aceom-

24 modation under subsection (a) or provide training or un-

25 dertake any other effort under subsection (b) if such ac-
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1 eommodation, training, or effort would impose an undue

2 hardship on the operation of the business of the employer

3 to do so.

4 "(3) In any administrative or judicial proceeding in-

5 volving an issue of whether (A) any reemployment referred

6 to in paragraph (1) is impossible or unreasonable because

7 of a change in an employer's circumstances, or (2) any

8 accommodation, training, or effort referred to in para-

9 graph (2) would impose an undue hardship on the oper-

ation of the business of the employer, the employer shall

11 have the burden of proving the impossibility or

12 unreasonableness or undue hardship.

13 "(d)(1) If 2 or more persons request reemployment

14 under this chapter in the same position of employment by

15 reason of an interruption of employment resulting from

16 service in the uniformed services, the person whose contin-

17 uous employment was so interrupted earlier shall be reern-

18 ployed in that position.

19 "(2) Any person entitled to reemployment under this

20 seetion who is not reemployed in a position of employment

21 by reason of paragraph (1) shall be entitled to be reem-

22 ployed as follews:

23 "(A) In the case of' a person who is not dis-

24 abled, in any other position referred to in subsection

25 (a)(1) (in the order of' priority set out in that sub-
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section) that provides a similar status and pay to a

2 position referred to in paragraph (1) of this subsee-

3 tion, consistent with circumstances of such person's

4 case.

5 "(B) In the ease of a person who is disabled,

6 in any other position referred to in subsection (a)(2)

7 (in the order of priority set out in that subsection)

8 that provides a similar status and pay to a position

9 referred to in paragraph (1) of this subsection, eon-

10 sistent with circumstances of such person's case.

11 "§4324. Special rules for reemployment by the Feder-

12 al Government

13 "(a) If the reemployment, of a person under this chap-

14 ter in a particula: Federal Government position is not fea-

15 siblc, the Director of the Office of Personnel Management

16 shall ensure that such person is offered an alternative po-

17 sition of employment in the executive branch that satisfies

18 the requirements of section 4323(a) of this title.

19 "(b)(1) For the purposes of subsection (a), the Direc-

20 tor of the Office of Personnel Management shall determine

21 whether the reemployment of a person in a position in an

22 executive agency, the United States Postal Service, or the

23 Postal Rate Commission is feasible.

24 "(2) For the purposes of subsection (a), the Director

25 of the Office of Personnel Management shall accept a de-

1005 18
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I. termination that the reemployment of a person in a posi-

2 tion described in paragraph (A) or (B) is not feasible from

3 the official referred to in that subparagraph, as follows:

4 "(A) In the case of a position in the legislative

5 branch or the judicial branch, the officer or employ-

6 ee authorized to appoint a person to that position.

7 "(B) In the case of a National Guard techni-

8 clan position in a State; the adjutant general of that

9 State.

10 "(c) Subsection (a) does not apply to a person whose

11 reemployment in a legislative or judicial branch position

12 or in a position as a National Guard technician is not fea-

13 sible if such person is not eligible to acquire a civil service

14 status necessary for transfer to a position--

15 "(I) in the case of a person whose position of

16 employment would be in the legislative or judicial

17 branch, in the competitive service in aceordanco with

18 section 3304(c) of title 5; or

19 "(2) in the case of a person whose position of

20 employment would be as a National Guard techni-

21 cian, in the competitive service in accordance with

22 section 3304(d) of such title.

23 "(d) A person's entitlement to reemployment under

24 this section does not entitle such person to retention, pref-

25 erenee, or displacement rights over any person who, with-

S 1090 IS

75



75

21

1 out regard to the provisions of this chapter, has superior

2 retention, preference, or displacement rights under the

3 provisions of title 5 that relate to veterans and other pref-

4 erence eligibles (as defined in section 2108 of such title).

5 44325. Seniority, insurance, and other employment

6 rights and benefits

7 "(a) A person who is reemployed under section 4323

8 or 4324 of this title shall be entitlA to the same seniority

9 such person would have had if the person's employment

10 had not been interrupted by service in the uniformed sem-

11 ices.

12 "(10 For the purposes of this section, a person who

13 is reemployed pursuant to section 4323 or 4324 of this

14 title in a position of civilian employment shall be consid-

15 erect to have been on a leave of abstrace while performing

16 service in the uniformed services arid shall he entitled to

17 such rights and benefits provided to other employees of

18 the employer who are on furlough or leave of absence

19 under a plan, contract. or policy or practice in force at

20 the beginning of the period of such service or which 6.-

21 comes effective during such period. ..*.;ueh person may be

22 required to pay the employee cost, if' any, of any t Tided

23 benefit ctintinued pursuant to such plan, contract, or poli-

24 cy or practice.
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1 "(c)(1) A person whose civilian employment with an

2 employer is interrupted by service in the uniformed serv-

3 ices shall, at such person's request, be covered by insur-

4 anee provided by such employer for other employees of the

5 employer during the period of such service. In no event

6 shall such coverage be required to be provided for more

7 than 18 months after the commencement of such service.

8 Such person may be required to pay not more than 102

9 percent of any premium required of other employees for

10 the continuation of any insurance coverage that is contin-

11 ued under this paragraph, except that a persor who per-

12 forms service in the uniformed services for less than 31

13 days such person may not be required to pay more than

14 the employee share, if any, of the cost of such coverage.

15 "(2) In the ease of a person whose coverage by an

16 employer-offered health insurance as an employee is termi-

17 nated by reason of the service of such person in the uni-

18 formed services, an exclusion or waiting period may not

19 be imposed in connection with coverage of such person

20 upon reemployment by the employer under this chapter,

21 or in connection with any other person who is covered by

22 the insurance by reason of the reinstatement of the cover-

23 age of such person upon reemployment, if-

24 "(A) an exclusion or waiting period would not

25 have been imposed under such insurance had cover-
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1 age of such person by such insurance not been ter-

2 minated as a result of such service; and

3 "(B) the condition of such person has been de-

4 termined by the Secretary not to have been incurred

5 or aggravated in the line of duty in the military,

6 naval, or air service.

7 "(d)(1) Subject to paragraph (2), a person who is re-

8 employed in a position of employment by an employer

9 under section 4323 or 4324 of this title may not be invol-

10 untarily removed from such position, except for cause-
11 "(A) within 180 days after the date of reem-

12 ployment, if the total of the person's periods of em-

13 ployment by the employer before such reemployment

14 was less than 48 months; or

15 "(B) within one year after the date of reem-

16 ployment, if the total of the persons' periods of em-

17 ployment by such employer before such reemploy-

18 ment was more than 48 months.

19 "(2) For the purposes of paragraph (1), a person's

20 period of employment with an employer shall include the

21 period of such person's absences from such employment

22 by reason of service in the uniformed services.

23 "(e)(1) Any person described in paragraph (3) whose

24 employment with an employer referred to in that para-

25 graph is interrupted by service in the uniformed services
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1 shall be entitled to use during such interruption any annu-

2 al leave with pay accumulated by the person before the

3 commencement of such service. A person shalt use annual

4 leave with pay under this paragraph by submitting a writ-

5 ten request for such use to the person's employer before

6 the cornmeneenThnt of such service,

7 "(2) Subject to the policy or practice of an employer

8 referred to paragraph (1), a person referred to in sueh

9 paragraph shall accrue annual leave with pay during the

10 period of service that interrupts the person's employment

11 with the employer and shall (upon the written request of

12 the person) be entitled to use any leave accumulated by

13 reason of such accrual.

14 -(3) A person entitled to the benefit described in

15 paragraph (1 ) is a person who--

16 "(A) has accumulated annual leave with pay

17 under a policy or practiee of a State (as an employ-

18 yr) or private employer; or

19 "(B) has accumulated such leave as an employ-

20 ce or the Federal Government pursuant to subehap-

21 ter 1 of chapter 63 of title 5.

22 "§4326. Employee pension benefit plans

23 "(a)(I) In the case of a right provided pursuant to

24 art employee pension benefit plan described in section 3(2)

25 cf the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

13 tan Is
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1 (29 U.S.C. 1002(2)) or a right provided under any Feder-

2 al or State law governing pension benefits for governmen-

3 tal employees, the right to pension benefits of a person

4 reemployed under this chapter shall be determined under

5 ths subsection.

6 "(2)(A) A person reemployed under this chapter shall

7 be treated as not having incurred a break in service with

8 the employer or employers maintaining the plan by reason

9 of such person's period or periods of service in the uni-

10 formed serviees.

11 "(13) Each period served by a person in the uniformed

12 services shall, upon reemployment under this chapter, be

13 deemed to constitute service with the employer oi mploy-

14 ers "al i,taining the p.an for purpose of determinin5.; the

15 nontorl'eitabib, v of' the person's ace -ued benefits and for

16 the rmrpos e of deternlirihg the accrual of benefits under

17 the plan.

18 "(b)(1 An employer renploying a person under this

19 chapter shall be liable to an employee benefit pension plan

20 for funding :my obligation of the plan to provide the bene-

21 fits described in subsection (a)(2). For purposes of deter-

22 mining the amount of such liability and for purposes of

23 section 515 of the Employee Retirement Income Security

24 Act of 1974 (29 U.S.C. 1145) or any similar Federal or

25 State law governing pension benefits for governmental cm-
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1 ployees, service in the uniformed services that is deemed

2 under subsection (a) to be service with the employer shall

3 be kemed to be service with the employer under the terms

4 of the plan or any applicable collective bargaining agree-

5 ment.

6 "(2) A person reemployed under this chapter shall

7 be entitled to accrued benefits pursuant to subsection (a)

8 that are derived from employee contributions only to the

9 extent the person makes payment to the plan with respect

10 to such contributions. No such payment may exceed the

11 amount the person would have been permitted or required

12 to contribute had the person remained continuously em-

13 ployed by the employer throughout the period of service

14 described in subsection (a)(2)(B).

15 "(e) Any employer who reemploys a person under this

16 chapter and who is an employer contributing to a multiern-

17 ployer plan, as defined in section 3(37) of the Employee

18 Retirement Ineome Security Act of 1974 (29 U.S.C.

19 1002(37)), under which benefits are or may be payable

20 to such person by reason of the obligations set forth in

21 this chapter, shall, within 30 days after the date of such

22 reemployment, provide notice of such reemployment to the

23 administrator of such plan.
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1 44327. Entitlement to rights and benefits not de.

2 pendent on timing or nature of service

3 "A person's entitlement to a right or benefit provided

4 under this chapter does not depend upon the timing, fre-

5 queney, or duration of the person's performance of service

6 in the uniformed services or the nature of such service

7 in the uniformed services.

8 "SUBCHAPTER IIIASSISTANCE IN SECURING

9 EMPLOYMENT ANT) REEMPLOYMENT

10 RIGHTS; ENFORCEMENT

"§4331. Definition

12 "For the purposes of this subchapter, the term

13 'wrongful personnel action' means the following:

14 "(1) In 'be ease of a State (as an employer) or

15 a private employer, an action taken by the employer

16 in violation of a provision of this chapter or a failure

17 by the employer to take an action required by the

18 provisions of this chapter.

19 "(2) In the case of the Federal Government-

20 "(A) an action taken by an officer or em-

21 ployee of the Federal Government. in violation

22 of a provision of this ehapter or a failure by

23 such an officer or employee to take an action

24 reiciired by the provisions of this chapter; or

25 "(11) a failure of the Director of the Office

26 oi Personnel Managment to take an action re-
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quired of the Director under section 4324 of

2 this title.

3 44332. Assistance in securing reemployment or

4 other employment rights or benefits

5 "(a)(1) Any person who claims to have bmn subject

6 to a wrongful personnel action may submit a complaint

7 regarding such action to the Secretary of Labtr

8 "(2) A complaint submitted under paragraph (1)

9 shall be in a form prescribed by the Secretary of Labor

10 and shall include--

11 "(A) the name and address of the employer or

12 potential employer against whom the complaint is di-

13 reeled; and

14 "(B) a summary of the allegations upon which

15 the complaint is based.

16 "(b) The Secretary of Labor shall investigate each

17 complaint submitted to such Secretary pursuant to subsec-

18 tion (a). If the Secretary of Labor determines as a result

19 of the investigation that the allegation of the wrongful per-

20 sonnet action in such complaint is valid, such Seeretary

21 shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that the individual

22 named in the complaint complies with the provisions of

23 this chapter.

24 "(e) If the efforts of the Secretary of Labor with re-

25 spect to a complaint under subsection (b) are unsuecess-
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1 ful, the Secretary shall notify the person who submitted

2 the complaint of-

3 "(1) the results of the Secretary's investigation;

4 "(2) the efforts made by the Secretary; and

5 "(3) the complainant's entitlement to proceed

6 under the enforcement of rights provisions provided

7 under section 4333 of this title (in the case of a per-

8 son submitting a complaint against the Federal Gov-

9 ernment) or 4334 of this title (in the ease of a per-

10 son submitting a complaint against a State or pri-

11 sate employer).

12 "(d) The Secretary of Labor shall carry out the re-

13 sponsibilities of such Secretary under this section through

14 the Assistant Secretary of Labor for Veterans' Employ-

15 ment and Training.

16 '14333. Enforcenient of rights with respect to the
17 Federal Government

18 "(a)(1) A person who receives a notification from the

19 Secretary of Labor of an unsuccessful resolution of a corn-

20 plaint relating to a wrongful personnel action pursuant to

21 section 4332(e) of this title may request that the Secretary

22 of Labor refer the complaint for litigation before the Merit

23 Systems Protection Board. The Secretary of Labor shall

24 refer the complaint regarding such wrongful action tc 9
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1 Office of Special Counsel established by section 1211 of

2 title 5.

3 "(2)(A) If the Special Counsel determines that the

4 allegation of a wrongful personnel action in such com-

5 plaint is valid, the Special Couneel may initiate an action

6 regarding such complaint before the Merit Systems Pro-

7 tection Board and, upon the request of the person submit-

8 ling the complaint, represent the person before the Board.

9 "(B) If the Special Counsel decides not to initiate an

10 action or represent a person before the Merit Systems Pro-

11 tection Board as authorized under subparagraph (A), the

12 Special Counsel shall rot:try, .,,uch person of that decision

13 and the reasons for the decision.

14 "(b)(1) A person referred to in paragraph (2) may

15 submit a complaint alleging a wrongful personnel action

16 directly before the Merit Systems I'rotection Board. A per-

il son who seeks a hearing or adjudication under this para-

18 graph may be represented at siteh hearing or adjudicatioi.

19 in accordance with the rules of the Board.

20 "(2) A person entitled to submit a complaint to tlw

21 Merit Systems Protection Board under paragraph (1) is

2.2 a wrson who-

23 "(A) has chosen not to apply to the Secretary

24 of Labor for assistarwe regarding the complaint

25 under sectiGn 4:532(a),
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1 "(B) has received a notification from the Secre-

2 tary of Labor under section 4332(e) of this title;

3 "(C) has chosen not to be represented before

4 the Board by the Special Counsel pursuant to sub-

5 section (a)(2)(A): or

6 "(D) has received a notification of a decision

7 from the Special Counsel under subsection

8 (a)(2)(B).

9 "(e)(1) The Merit Systems Protection Board shall

10 adjudicate any complaint brought before the Board pursu-

11 ant to subsection (a)(2)(A) or (b)(1).

12 "(2) If the Board determines that an officer of the

13 Federal Government has not complied with the provisions

14 of this chapter relating to the reemployment of a person

15 by the Federal Government, the Board shall enter an

16 order requiring such officer to comply with such provisions

17 and to compensate such person for any loss of wages or

18 benefits suffered by such person by reason of such lack

19 of compliance.

20 "(3) Any compensation received by a person pursuant

21 to an order under paragraph (1) shall be in addition to

22 any other right or benefit provided for by this chapter and

23 shall not be deemed to diminish any such right or benefit.

24 "(4) If the Board determines as a result of a hearing

25 or a4judieation conducted pursuant to paragraph (1) that
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1 a person is entitled to an order referred to in paragraph

2 (2), the Board may, in its discretion, award such person

3 reasonable attorney fees, expert witness fees, and other

4 litigation expenses.

5 "(d) A person may petition the United States Court

6 of Appeals for the Federal Circuit to review a final order

7 or decision of the Merit System Protection Board that de-

8 nies such person the relief sought. Such petition and re-

9 view shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth

10 in section 7703 of title 5.

11 "(e) A person may be represented by the Special

12 Counsel in an action for review of a final order or decision

13 issued by the Merit Systems Protection Board pursuant

14 to subsection (e) that is brought pursuant to section 7703

15 of title 5 unless the person was not represented by the

16 Special Counsel before the Merit Systems Protection

17 Beard regarding such order or decision.

18 "§4334. Enforcement of rights with respect to a State

19 or private employer

20 "(a)(1) A person who has submitted a complaint of

21 a wrongfol personnel action by a State (as an employer)

22 or a private emp!oyer to the Secretary of Labor pursuant

23 to smtion 4332(a) of this title and who has received a

24 notification of the unsuccessful resolution of the complaint

25 under section 4332(e) of this title, may request that the
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1 Secretary of Labor refer the complaint to the Attorney

2 General. The Attorney General may commence an action

3 for appropriate -..?ief on behalf of such person in an appro-

4 priate United States district court. The Attorney General

5 shall appear on behalf of, and act as the attorney for, the

6 person in the prosecution of such action.

7 "(2)(A) A person referred to in subparagraph (B)

8 may commence an action for appropriate relief in an ap-

9 propriate United States district court.

10 "(B) A person entitled to commence an action for re-

11 lief with respect to a complaint under subparagraph (A)

12 is a person who-

13 "(1) has chosen not to apply to the Secretary of

14 Labor for assistance regarding the complaint under

15 section 4332(a);

16 "(ii) has chosen not to request that the Secre-

17 tary of Labor refer the eomplaint to the Attorney

18 General under subsection (a)(1); or

19 "(iii) has been refused representation by the At-

20 torney General with respect to the complaint under

21 such subsection.

22 "(b) In the case of an action against a State as an

23 employer, the appropriate district court is the court for

24 any district in which the State exercises any authority or

25 carries out any function. In the case of a private employer
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1 the appropriate district court is the district court for any

2 district in which the private employer of the person main-

3 tains a place of business.

4 "OW) The district courts of the United States shall

5 have jurisdiction, upon the filing of a motion, petition, or

6 other appropriate pleading by or on behalf of the person

/ entitled to a right or benefit under this chapter to require

8 the employer to comply with the provisions of this chapter

9 and to require the State or private employer, as the case

10 may be, to compensate the person for any loss of wages

11 or benefits suffered by reason of such employer's wrongful

12 personnel aetion. Any such compensation shall be in addi-

13 tion to, and shall not be deemed to diminish, any of the

14 benefits provided for in such provisions.

15 "(2)(A) No fees or court costs may be charged or

16 taxed against any person claiming rights under this chap-

17 ter.

18 "(B) In any action or proceeding comnwneed by a

per4on under subsection (a)(2) and in which such person

20 is the prevailing party, the court may, in its discretion,

21 award such person reasonable attorney fees, expert wit-

22 ness fees, and other litigatioa expenses.

23 "(3) The court may use its full equity powers, includ-

ing temporary or permanent injunctions and temporary

8 11,96 18
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1 restraining orders, to vindicate fully the rights of persons

2 under this chapter.

3 "(4) An action under this chapter may be initiated

4 only by a person claiming rights or benefits under the pro-

5 visions of subchapter II of this chapter, and not by an

6 employer, prospective employer, or other entity with obli-

gations under this chapter.

8 "(5) In any such action, only the State, private em-

9 ployer, or potential employer (as the case may be) or, in

10 the case of benefits described in section 4326 of this title,

11 an employee pension benefit plan referred to in that see-

12 tion, shall be considered a necessary party respondent.

13 "(6) No State statute of limitations shall apply to any

14 proceeding under this section.

15 "(7) A State shall be subject to the same remedies,

16 including prejudgment interest, as may be imposed upon

17 any private employer under this section.

I 8 "SUBCHAPTER IVINVESTIGATION OF

19 COMPLAINTS

20 "§4341. Conduct of investigation; subpoenas

21 "(a) In carrying out any investigation under this

22 chapter, the Secretary of Labor shall have reasonable ac-

23 eess to documents of the complainant or an employer that

24 the Secretary considers relevant to the investigation. The

25 Secretary may examine and duplicate such documents.

8 1098 18
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1 "(b) In carrying out investigations under this chap-

2 ter, the Secretary of Labor may require by subpoena the

3 attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production

4 of documents relating to any matter under imstigation.

5 In case of disobedience of the subpoena or contumacy and

6 after a request by the Secretary of Labor, the Attorney

7 General may apply to the district court of the United

8 ,;tates for any district in which such disobedience or eon-

9 tumaey occurs for an order enforcing the subpoena.

10 "(c) Upon application, the district courts of the Unit.

11 ed States shall have jurisdiction to issue writs command-

12 ing any person or employer to comply with the subpoena

13 of the Secretary of Labor or to comply with any order

14 of such Secretary made pursuant to a lawful inquiry under

15 this chapter. The district courts shall have jurisdiction to

16 punish failure to obey a subpoena or other lawful order

17 of such Secretary as a contempt of court.

18 "SUBCI1APTER VMISCELLANEOUS

19 44351. Regulations

20 "(a) The Secretary of Labor, in consultation with the

21 Secretary of Defense, may prescribe regulations relating

22 to the implementation of this chapter with respect to re-

23 employment and the provision of other ernphwment rights

24 and benerits by States (as employers) and private employ-

25 ers.

S ION IS
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1 "(b) The Director of the Office of Personnel Manage-

2 ment (in consultation with the Secretary of Labor and the

3 Secretary of Defense) may prescribe regulations relating

4 to the implementation of this chapter by the Federal Gov-

5 ernment (as an employer). This subsection does not au-

6 thorize the Director to prescribed regulations relating to

7 the responsibilities or activities of the Merit Systems Pro-

8 teetion Board or the Office of the Special Counsel under

9 this chapter.

10 4352. Severability

11 "If any provision of this chapter, or the application

12 of such provision to any person or circumstances, is heid

13 invalid, the validity of the remainder of this chapter, or

14 the application of such provision to persons or circum-

15 stances other than those as to which the provision is held

16 invalid, shall not be affected.".

17 (b) TABLE OF CHAPTERS.The tables of chapters

18 at the beginning of title 38, United States Code, and the

19 beginning of part III of such title are each amended by

20 striking out the item relating to chapter 43 and inserting

21 in lieu thereof the following:

"43. Employment and reemployment rights of per oons
who serve in the uniformed services 4301.

22 (e) REVISION OF DEFINITION OF "STATE" FOR RE-

23 EMPLOYMENT PURPOSES.Seetion 101(20) of title 38,

24 United States Cade, is amended by adding at the end the

S 10115 18
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I following new sentence: "For the purposes of chapter 43,

2 such term also includes Guam, the Virgin Islands, other

3 possessions of the United States, and the agencies and po-

4 litical subdivisions thereof.".

5 (d) OUTREACH PROGRAM.(1) Not later than 180

6 days after the date of the enactment of this Act, the Secre-

7 tary of Labor, after consultation with the Secretary of De-

li fense, the Secretary of Transportation, the Secretary of

9 Health arid Human Services, and the Secretary of Veter-

10 ans Affairs, shall make available to veterans and persons

11 who perform service in the uniformed services and the em-

12 ployers of veterans and such persons information relating

13 to the reemployment and additional employment rights,

14 benefits, and obligations of such veterans, persons, and

15 employers under the provisions of sueh chapter.

16 (2) Por the purposes of this subsection:

17 (A) The term 'veteran' shall have the meaning

18 given such term in sect;in 101(2) of title 38, United

19 States Code.

20 (B) The term 'uniformed services' shall have

21 the meaning given such term in section 4303(9) of

22 tiiie 38, United States Code (as added by subsection

23 (a) of this section).

24 (e) REPORT RELATING TO IMPLEMENTATION OF RE-

25 EMPLOYMENT RIGHTS PROVISIONS.Not later than one

S 1045 IS
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1 year after the date of the enactment of this Act, the Secre-

2 tary of Labor, the Attorney General, and the Special

3 Counsel referred to in section 4333(a)(1) of title 38, Unit-

4 ed States Code (as added by subsection (a)), shall each

5 submit a report to the Congress relating to the implemen-

6 tation of chapter 43 of such title (as added by such subsec-

7 tion).

8 SEC. 3. REPEAL OF TITLE 5 PROVISIONS RELATING TO RE-

9 EMPLOYMENT RIGHTS OF RESERVISTS.

10 (a) It1YEAt..Subehapter H of chapter 35, title 5,

11 United States Code, is repealed.

12 (b) CONFORMING AMENDMENT.The table of see-

13 tions at the beginning of such chapter is amended by strik-

14 ing out the items relating to subchapter 11 and section

15 3551.

16 SEC. 4. CONFORMING AMENDMENTS.

17 (a) TITLE 38.Section 5303A(b)(3) of title 38,

18 United States Code, is amended-

19 (1) by striking our "or" at the end of clause

20 (E);

21 (2) by striking out the period at the end of

22 clause (F) and inserting in lieu thereof "; or"; and

23 (3) by adding at the end thereof the following

24 new clause;

S 1095 IS
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1 "(0) to reemployment benefits under chapter

2 43 of this title.".

3 (b) TITLE 5.Seetion 1204(a)(1) of title 5, United

4 States Code, is amended by striking out "section 2023"

5 and inserting in lieu thereof "chapter 43".

6 (c) TITLE 10.Section 706(c)(1) of title 10, United

7 States Code, is amended by striking out "section 2021"

8 and inserting in lieu thereof "chapter 43".

9 SEC. 5. TECHNICAL AMENDMENT.

10 Section 9(d) of Public Law 102-16 (105 State. 55)

11 is amended by striking oat "Act" the first place it appears

12 and inserting in lieu thereof "section".

13 SEC. G. TRANSITION RULES AND EFFECTIVE DATES.

14 (a) APPLICABILITY OF CHAPTER 43 TO PERSONS

15 COMMENCING SERVICE AFTER DATE OF ENACTMENT.

16 (1) AFTER 90 DAYS AFTER SUCH DATE.The

17 provisions of chapter 43 of title 38, United States

18 Code (as added by section 2(a) of this Act), and see-

19 tion 5303A(b)(3)(0) of such title (as added by see-

20 Lion 4(a) of this Act) shall apply to persons who

21 commence the performance of periods of service in

22 the uniformed services after the 90-day period begin-

23 ning on the date of the enactment of this Act.

24 (2) WITHIN 90 DAYS AFTER SUCH DATE.

25 (A)(i) Subject to subparagraph (B), any person who

1095 19
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1 commences the performance of a period of service in

2 the uniformed services during the 90-day period re-

3 ferred to in paragraph (1) shall be covered by the

4 provisions of chapter 43 of title 38, United States

5 Code (as added by section 2(a) of this Act), and sec-

6 tion 5303A(b)(3)(G) of such title (as added by sem-

7 tion 4(a) of this Act).

8 (ii) For the purposes of section 4322(a)(1) of

9 such title (as so amendexl) a person referred to in

10 clause (i) shall be deemed to have satisfied the noti-

11 fieation requirement referred to in such section.

12 (13) Any person referred to in subparagraph

13 (A)(i) who completes the performance of sev.ice re-

14 ferred to in that subparagraph within the time peri-

1 5 od referred to in that subparagraph shall be covered

16 by the provisions of chapter 43 of title 38, United

17 States Code, in effect on the day before the date of

18 the enactment of this Act.

19 (b) APPLICABILITY OF CIIAI"I'ER 43 TO PERSMIS

20 PERFORMING ACTIVE DUTY ON DATE OF ENACTMENT.-

21 (1) IN GENERA11,-(A) Subject to paragraph

22 (2), arty person who is performing service in the uni-

23 formed services on the date of the enactment of this

24 Act shall be covered by the provisions of chapter 43

25 of title 38, United States Code (as added by section

S 1095 IS
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1 2(a) of this Act), and section 5303(A)(b)(3)(G) of

2 such title (as added by section 4(a) of this Act).

3 (B) For the purposes of section 4322(a)(1) of

4 such title (as so amended) a person refermd to in

5 subparagraph (A) shall be deemed to have satisfied

6 the notification requirement referred to in such sec-

7 tion.

8 (C) For the purposes of calculating the eumula-

9 tive length of service performed by a person referred

10 to in this paragraph under section 4322(a)(2) of

11 such title (as so amended), any service in the uni-

12 formed services (other than service referred to in

13 section 4322(c) of such title (as so amended)) shall

14 be included.

15 (2) ALTERNATIVE REPORTING REQUIRE-

16 MENT.Notwithstanding paragraph (1), a person

17 referred to in subparagraph (A) shall report to work

18 in accordance with the provisions of section 2024(d)

19 of title 38, United States Code, in effect on the day

20 before the date of the enactment of this Act.

21 (c) SPECIAL RULE FOR APPLICABILITY OF INSUR-

22 ANCE PROVISIONS.Notwithstanding subsections

23 (a)(2)(B) and (b)(1), a person referred to in such subsee-

24 tions shall be covered by the provisions of section

25 2021(b)(1) of title 38, United States Code (relating to in-

S 1096 IS
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1 surance benefits), in effect on the day before the date of

2 the enactment of this Act until the person has received

3 notice of the provisions of section 4325(e) of such title

4 (as amended by this Act) and has had a reasonable oppor-

5 tunity to elect to be covered by the provisions of such see-

6 tion 4325(e) (as so amended).

7 (d) REEMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS.

8 (1 ) IN GENERALSection 4323(a)(2) of chap-

9 ter 43 of title 38, United States Code (as amended

10 by section 2(a) of this Act) shall apply to

11 reemployments initiated on or after August 1, 1990.

12 (2) REPEAL(A) Effective as of August 1,

13 1990, section 2027 of title 38, United States Code

14 (as in effect on the day before the date of the enact-

15 ment of this Act), is repealed.

16 (Ii) Effective as of August 1, 1990, the table of

17 sections at the beginning of chapter 43 of such title

18 (as in effect on the day before the date of the enact-

19 ment of this Act) is amended by striking out the

20 item relating to section 2027.

21 (f!) DEFINITION. For the purposes or this section,

22 the term "service in the uniformed services" shall have

23 the meaning given such term in section 4303(7) of title

24 38, United States Code (as added by section 2(a) lf this

25 Act).

S 1095 IS
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102D CONGRESS Fl R. 1531ST SESSION

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

FEBRUARY 28 (legislative day, FEBRUARY 6), 1991

Received

MARCH 7 (legislative day, FEBRUARY 6), 1991

Read twice and referred to the Committee on Veterans' Affairs

AN ACT
To amend title 38, United States Code, to make miscellaneous

administrative and technical improvements in the operation

of the United States Court of Veterans Appeals, and for
other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 tires of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION I. PROCEDURES FOR DECISIONS OF THE COURT OF

4 VETERANS APPEALS.

5 Section 4067 of title 38, United States Code, is

6 amended

? (1) by striking out subsections (b) and (d);

8 (2) by redesignating subsections (c) and (e) as sub-

9 sections (b) and (c), respectively; and
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1 (3) by striking out "except as provided in subsee-

2 tion (d) of this section" in subsection (a).

3 SEC. 2. JUDICIAL CONFERENCE.

4 (a) IN GENERALSubchapter I II of chapter 72 of title

5 38, United States Code, is amended by adding at the end the

6 following new section:

"§1086. Judicial Conference of the Court of Veterans

Appeals

9 "The Chief Judge of the Court of Veterans Appeals

10 may summon the judges of the Court to an annual judicial

11 conference, at a time and place that the (Thief Judge desig-

12 mites, for the purpose of considering the business of the

13 (7ourt and recommending means of improving the administra-

14 tion of justice within the Court's jurisdiction. The Court shall

15 provide by its rules for representation and active participation

16 at such conference by persons admitted to practice before the

17 Court and hy other persons active in the legal profession.",

18 (b) CLERICAL AMENDMENT.The table of sections at

19 the beginning of such chapter is amended by inserting after

20 the item relating to section 4085 the following new item:

4(184. Judicial Conference of the Court of V,Icrung Appeals.'

21 SEC. 3. SALARY OF JUDGES.

99 (a) IN GENERAL.(1) Subsection (e) of section 4053 of

23 title 38, United States Code, is amended to read as follows:

HR 153 RFS



100

3

1 "(e) Each judge of the Court shall receive a salary at

2 the same rate as is received by judges of the United States

3 Courts of Appeals.".

4 (b) EFFECTIVE DATE.The amendment made by sub-

5 section (a) shall take effect on the first day of the first pay

6 period beginning after the date of enactment of this Act.

7 SEC. 4. JUDICIAL DISCIPLINE.

Section 4053 ef title 38, United States Code, is

9 amended by adding at the end the following new subsection:

10 "(g) The Court shall prescribe rules, consistent with the

11 provisions of section 372(e) of title 28, establishing proce-

12 dures for the filing of complaints with respect to the conduct

13 of any judge of the Court and for the investigation and reso-

14 lution of such complaints. In investigating and taking action

15 with respect to any such complaint, the Court shall have the

16 powers granted to a judicial council under such section.".

17 SEC. 5. RECUSAL OF JUDGES.

18 Section 4064 of title 38, United States Code, is

19 amended by adding at the end the fallowing:

20 "(c) Section 455 of title 28 shall apply to judges and

21 proceedings of the Court".

011 153 RFS
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1 SEC. 6. PARTIrIPATION OF JUDGES IN THE THRIFT SAVINGS

9 PLAN.

3 (a) IN GENERAL-(1) Subchapter III of chapter 84 of

4 title 5, United States Code, is amended by adding at the end

5 the following new section:

6 "0 8440e. Judges of the United States Court of Veterans

Appeals

8 "(a)(1) A judge of the United States Court of Veterans

9 Appeals may elect to contribute to the Thrift Savings Fund.

"(2) An election may be made under paragraph (1) only

11 during a period provided under section 8432(h) of this title for

12 individuals subject to chapter 84 of this title.

13 "(b)(1) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection,

14 the provisions of this subchapter and subchapter VII of this

15 chapter shall apply with respect to a judge making eontribu-

16 tions to the Thrift Savings Fund.

17 "(4!) The amount contributed by a judge may not exceed

IS 5 percent of the amount of the judge's basic pay. Basic pay

19 does not include any retired pay paid pursuant to section

20 4096 of title 38.

21 "(3) No contributions may be made for the benefit of a

22 judge under section 8432(c) of this title.

23 "(4) Section 8433$) of this title applies with respect to

24 a judge who elects to make contributions to the Thrift Say-

25 ings Fund and retires under section 4096(b) of title 38.

HR 169 RFS
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1 "(5) A transfer shall be made as provided in section

9 8433(d) of this title ir the case of a judge who elects to make

3 contributions to the Thrift Savings Fund :Ind thereafter

4 ceases to serve as a judge of the United States Court of Vet-

5 erans Appeals hut does not retire under section 409((b) of

6 title 38.

7 "(6) The provisions of section 8351(h)(7) of this title

8 shall apply with respect to a judge who has elected to con-

9 tribute to the Thrift Savings Fund under this section."

10 (2) The table of sections at the beginning of such chap-

11 ter is amended by inserting at the end of the items relating to

12 the sections in subchapter III the following:

inclgys tff thy Stntys ecagt tif Vyterans Appeals.",

(1) FIRST KLECTION.A judge of the United States

14 Court of Veterans Appeals on the date of the enactment of

15 this Act may make an election under section 8440c(a) of title

16 5, United States Code (as added by subsection (a)), within 60

17 days after the date of the enactment of this Act.

1. (C) CONFORMING AMENDMENTS.(1) Section

19 4096(f)(2)(A) of title 38, United States Code, is amended by

20 inserting "except as authnrized by section 8440c of title 5"

21 before the semicolon at the end.

22 (2) Section 4097(n) of title 38, United States Code, is

23 amended by inserting before the period at the end of the first

21 sentence the following: "except section 8440c of title 5".

RR fa RFS
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I SEC. 7. DISTRIBUTION OF THE CONGRESSIONAL RECORD

2 TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF VETERANS

3 APPEALS.

4 Section 906 of title 44, United States Code, is amended

5 by inserting "the United States Court of Veterans Appeals,"

6 after "the Tax Court of the United States," both places it

7 appears.

8 SEC. S. TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS.

9 Chapter 72 of title 38, United States Code, if',

10 amen( '!d-

11 (1) in subsection (c) of section 4067 (as redesig-

12 nated by section 1), by striking out "Administrator of

13 the National Archives and Records Administrntion"

14 and inserting in lieu thereof "Archivist of the United

States";

16 (2) in section 4068(b)(2)

17 (A) by striking out "rhar and inserting in

18 lieu thereof "mav, upon motion of the appellant Or

19 the Secretary,"; and

(11) by striking out "before" and inserting .n

91 lieu thereof "or"; and

Hid 13 RFS
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1 (3) by redesignating the second subsection (d) of

2 section 4054 (authorizing judges of the Court to ad-

3 minister oaths) as subsection (e).

Passed the House of Representatives February 20,
1991.

Attest: DONNALD K. ANDERSON,

Clerk.
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102D CONGRESS H. R. 15781ST SESSION

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES
MAY 16 (legisla...ive day, APRIL 25), 1991

Received; read twice and referred to the Committee on Veterans' Affairs

AN ACT
To amend title 38, United States Code, with respect to

employment and reemployment rights of veterans and
other members of the uniformed services.

1 Re it enacted by the Senate and House of' Itepresenta-

2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembfrd,

3 SECTION I. SHORT TITLE.

4 This Act may be cited as the "Uniformed Services

5 Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of I 99 1".

6 SEC. 2. EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS OF

7 MEMBERS OF THE UMFORMED SERVICES.

8 tliapter 43 of title 38, United States Code, is amend-

9 ed to read as follows:



106

2

I "CHAPTER 43EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOY-

2 KENT RIGHTS OF MEMBERS OF THE UNI-

3 FORMED SERVICES

"SUBCHAPTER IPURPOSES, RELATION TO OTHER LAW, AND
DEFINITIONS

"See
"2021 Purposes
"2022 Relation to other law and plans or agreements
"2023. Definitions

"SUBCHAPTER IIPROHIBITIONS, RIGHTS, AND LIMITATIONS

"2031 Discrimination against members of the uniformed services and acts of
reprisal prohibited.

"2032 Rights of persons absent from employment to serve in the uniformed
services; limits on right.

"?033. Position to which entitled upon reemployment..
"2_134 Rights, benefits, and obligations of persons absent from employment for

service in a uniformed service.

"SUBCHAPTER IIIPROCEDURES FOR ASSISTANCE AND
ENFORCEMENT

"2041 Assistance in obtaining employment or reemployment, assistance in as
sating claims with respect to State or local government or pri-
vate employers

"2042 Assistanut in obtaining employment or reempluyment by the Federal
Government.

"2043 Enforeemtmt of employment or reemployment rights with the Federal
Government-

"2044 Enforcement of employment or reemployment rights with a State or pri-
vate employer.

"SUBCHAPTER IVINVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS

"2051 Conduct of investigation, subpoenas

"SUBCHAPTER V MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

"2061 Regulations
"2062 Reports
"2063 Severability provision

4 "SUBCHAPTER IPURPOSES, RELATION TO

5 OTHER LAW, AND DEFINITIONS

6 2021. Purposes

7 "The purposes of this chapter are

HR tan RFS
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1 "(1) to encourage noncareer service in the uni-

2 formed services of the United States by eliminating

3 or minimizing those disadvantages to civilian careers

4 and employment which would not occur but for such

5 ..-.f.Tvice; and

6 "(2) to minimize the disruption to the lives of

7 individuals performing service in the uniformed serv-

8 ices, as well as minimizing the disruption to employ-

9 ers, to fellow employees, and to the community, by

10 providing for the prompt reemployment of persons

11 completing service in the uniformed services under

12 honorable conditions.

13 2022. Relation to other law and plans or agree-

14 manta

15 "(a) Nothing in this chapter shall supersede, nullify,

16 or diminish any Federal or State law (including any local

17 law or ordinance) or any plan provided by an employer

18 which establishes rights or benefits which are greater than

19 or in addition to those provided in this chapter.

20 "(b) This chapter supersedes State laws (including

21 any loeal law or ordinance), employer practices, agree-

22 ments, and plans, and other matters that reduce, limit,

23 or eliminate in any manner rights or benefits provided by

24 this chapter, including the establishment of additional pre-

25 requisites to the, exercise of such rights.

IIR 1675 RFS
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1 "ft 2023. Definitions

2 "For the purposes of this chapter:

3 "(1) The term 'Attorney General' means the

4 Attorney General of the United States or any person

5 designated by the Attorney to carry out an activity

6 under this chapter.

7 "(2) The term 'benefit', 'benefit of employ-

8 rnent', or 'employment related rights and benefits'

means any aspect of the employment relationship,

10 other than wages or salary for work performed, pro-

11 vided by contract or employer practice or custom,

12 that offers advantage, profit, privilege, gain, status,

13 acezunt, or interest and includes, but is not limited

14 to, pension plans P id payments, insurance coverage

15 and awards, employee stock ownership plans, bo-

16 nuses, severance pay, supplemental unemployment

17 benefits, vacations, and selection of work hours or

18 locations of employment.

19 "(3) The term 'completion of service in the uni

20 formed services under honorable conditions' means

21 the completion of a period of service in the uni-

22 formed services in all circumstances except-

23 "(A) receiving a dishonorable discharge,

24 dismissal, or bad oonduct discharge adjudged

25 under chapter 47 of title 10;

RR 1578 RFS
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1 "(13) being discharged under other than

2 honorable conditions, under regulations pre-

3 scribed by the Secretary of Defense or a Secre-

4 tary concerned; or

5 "(C) being dismissed from or dropped from

6 the rolls of a uniformed service under section

7 1161 of title 10.

8 "(4)(A) Except as provided in subparagraphs

(B) and (C), the term 'employer' ileans any person,

10 institution, organization, or may paying salary or

11 wages for work performed or having control over em-

12 ployment opportunities, including--

13 "(i) any person, institution, organization,

14 or entity to whom the employer has delegated

15 employment-related responsibilities; and

16 "(ii) the Federal Government, any State or

17 political subdivision thereof, and any private

18 employer (including successors in interest).

19 "(B) Except as an actual employer of employ-

20 ees, an employee pension benefit plan described in

21 section 3(2) of the Employee Retirement Income Se-

22 eurity Act of 1974 (29 U.S.C. 1002(2)) shall be

23 deemed to be an employer only with respect to the

24 obligation to provide benefits described in section

25 2034( f).

HR 1578 RFS
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1 "(C) In the ease of a National Guard technician

2 employed under section 709 of title 32, the term

3 'employer' means the Adjutant General of the state

4 in which the technician is employed.

5 "(5) The term 'Federal Government' includes

6 the executive branch, the judicial branch, and the .

7 legislative branch, with the executive branch

8 including-

9 "(A) any department, administration,

10 agency, eommission, board, or independent es-

11 tablishment in, or other part of, the executive

12 branch (including any executive agency as de-

13 fiAed in section 105 of title 5);

14 "(B) the United States Postal Service and

15 the Postal Rate Commission;

16 "(C) any nonappropriated fund activity of

17 the United States; and

18 "(I)) any corporation wholly owned by the

19 Unit ed States.

20 "(6) The term 'notice' means (with respect to

21 subchapter II) any written or verbal notification of

22 an obligation or intention to perform service in the

23 uniformed services provided to an employer by the

24 employee who will perform such service or by the

HE IPS RFS
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1 uniformed service in which such service is to be per-

2 formed.

3 "(7) The term 'other than a temporary posi-

4 tion' means a position of employment as to whieh

5 there is a reasonable expectation that it will continue

6 indefinitely.

7 "(8) The term 'qualified' means having the

8 ability to perform the essential tasks of an employ-

9 ment position.

10 "(9) The term 'reasonable efforts' means ac-

11 Lions, including training provided by an employer,

12 that do not create an undue hardship on the em-

13 ployer.

14 "(10) The term 'Secretary' means the Secretary

15 of Labor or any perscn designated by such Secretary

16 to carry out an activity under this chapter.

17 "(11) The term 'seniority' means longevity in

18 employment together with any benefits of employ-

19 ment which accrue with or are determined by such

20 longevity.

21 "(12) The term 'service in the uniformed serv-

22 ices' means duty performed in a uniformed service

23 under competent authority and includes active duty,

24 active duty for training, initial active duty for train-

25 ing, inactive duty training, full-time National Guard
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duty, and the period of time an employee is absent

2 from employment for the purpose of examination to

3 determine fitness for such duty.

4 "(13) The term 'State' means each of the sever-

5 al States of the United States, the District of Co-

6 lumbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto iti, Guam,

7 the Virgin Islands, and other territories of the tinit-

8 ed States (including the agencies and politieal subdi-

9 visions thereof).

10 "(14) The term 'uniformed services' means the

11 United States Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine

12 Corps, and Coast Guard, including the reserve corn-

13 ponents thereof, the Army National Guard and the

14 Air National Guard when engaged in active duty for

15 training or in inactive duty for training, the commis-

16 sioned corps of the National Omanic and Atmos-

17 pheric Administration, the commissioned corps of

18 the Public, Health Service, the Merchant Marine dur-

19 ing time of war, national emergency, or when

20 deemed necessary by the Secretary of Defense in the

21 interest of national defense, and any other category

22 of persons designated by the President in time of

23 war or national emergency.
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I "SUBCHAPTER IIPROHIBITIONS, RIGHTS, AND

2 LIMITATIONS

3 "112031. Discrimination against members of the uni-

4 formed services and acts of reprisal pro-

5 hibited

6 "(a) A person who is a member of, was a member

7 of, applies to become a member of, or has an obligation

8 to a uniformed service shall not be discriminated against

9 because of such present or past membership, application

10 for membership, or obligation by being denied initial em-

11 ployment, reemployment, continuation of employment,

12 promotion, or any benefit of employment.

13 "(b)(1) It shall be unlawful for an employer to dis-

14 criminate against, discipline, or to take any other action

15 of reprisal against any person because such person has

16 riled a complaint or sought assistance concerning an al-

17 leged violation of this chapter, has testified in any proceed-

18 ing under this chapter, has assisted or otherwise partici-

19 pated in an investigation under this chapter, or has exer-

20 cised any right afforded by this chapter.

21 "(2) The prohibition in paragraph (1) shall apply

22 with respect to employment, reemploymert, continued em-

23 ployment, or promotions, and any benefit of employment

24 and shall apply regardless of whether the person with re-

1 I 7
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1 spect to whom the acts are performed has ever served in

2 the uniformed services.

3 "(e) A person shall be considered to have been denied

4 employment, reemployment, continued employment, any

5 promotion or benefit of employment in violation of this

6 chapter if the person's status or activity protected by this

7 chapter was a motivating factor, although not necessarily

8 the only factor, in the employer's decision to deny the per-

9 son employment, reemployment, continued employment,

10 any promotion or benefit of employment, unless the em-

11 ployer can demonstrate that the same decision would have

12 been made in the absence of the protected status or

13 activity.

14 "§2032. Rights of persons absent from employment to

15 serve in the uniformed services; limits on

16 right

17 "(a) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter,

18 any person who is absent from or leaves a position (other

19 than a temporary position) in the employ of any employer

20 for voluntary or involuntary service in the uniformed serv-

21 ices is entitled to a leave of absence or is entitled, upon

22 completion of service in the uniformed services under hon-

23 arable conditions, to
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1 "(1) reemployment by such employer, unless

2 such employer's circumstances have so changed as to

3 make it impossible or unreasonable to do so; and

4 "(2) employment related rights and benefits, as

5 provided in this chapter.

6 "(b) Subsection (a) shall apply if such person's cumu-

7 lative period of service in the uniformed services, with re-

S speet to the employe- relationship for which a person seeks

9 reemployment, does lot exceed five years, except that any

10 such period of service shall not include any service-

11 "(1) that is required, beyond five years, to corn-

12 plete an initial period of obligated service;

13 "(2) during which such person was unable to

14 obtain orders releasing such person from a period of

15 service in the unlormed services before the expira-

16 tion of such five-year period and such inability was

17 through no fault of such person;

18 "(3) performed as required pursuant to section

19 270 of title 10, under section 502(a) or 503 of title

20 32, or to fulfill additional training requirements de-

21 termined by the Secretary concerned to be necessary

22 for professional development or for completion of

23 skill training or retraining;

24 "(4) performed by a member of a uniformed

25 service who is
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1 "(A) ordered to or retained on active duty

2 under section 672(a), 672(g), 673, 673b, 673e,

3 or 688 of title 10;

4 "(B) ordered to or retained on active duty

5 (other than for training) under any provision of

6 law during a war or during a national emergen-

7 ey declared by the President or the Congress;

8 "(C) ordered to active duty (other than for

9 training) in support, as determined by the Sec-

10 retary concerned, of an operational mission for

11 which personnel have been ordered to active

12 duty under section 673b of title 10;

13 "(D) ordered to active duty in support, as

14 determined by the Secretary concerned, of a

iS critical mission or requirement of the uniformed

16 services; or

17 "(E) called into Federal service as a mem-

18 ber of the National Guard under chapter 15 of

19 title 10 or under section 3500 or 8500 of title

20 10; or

21 "(5) any other category of service specified by

22 the Secretary, in consultation with the Secretary of

23 Defense, in regulations prescribed pursuant to see-

24 tion 2061.
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1 "(e) Upon completion of service in the uniformed

2 services under honorable conditions, a person returning

3 from a leave of absence or otherwise entitki to reemploy-

4 rnent under this section shall, in order to retain the mem-

bees rights under this chapter except as otherwise ex-

6 pressly provided, report to such person's employer for

7 reemployment-

8 "(1) at the beginning of the first regularly

9 scheduled working period on the first calendar day

10 following completion of such service and the time for

11 safe transportation back to the member's residence

12 and to the member's place of employment-

13 "(A) if such person's period of service was

14 less than 31 days; or

15 "(B) if such person's service was for the

16 purpose of examination to determine such per-

17 son's fitness to enter service in the uniformed

18 services, regardless of the length of such serv-

19 ice;

20 "(2) not later than 14 days following comple-

21 tion of such service and transportatior, if such per-

22 son's period of service was 31 days or more but less

23 than 181 days; or
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1 "(3) not later than 90 days following comple-

2 tion of such service and transportation, if such per-

3 son's period of service was 181 days or more.

4 "(d) The time limits specified in subsection (c) for

5 a person to report for employment or reemployment shall

6 be extended-

7 "(1) by up to one year if the person is hospital-

8 ized or is convalescing from an illness or injury in-

9 curred in military service;

10 "(2) by up to two years if the person is a spe-

ll eial disabled veteran described in section

12 2011(1)(A)(i) whose disability significantly impairs

13 the veteran's ability to work and if such person in-

14 forms, in writing or verbally, the employer concerned

15 of the person's condition, intention to return to em-

16 ployment, and plans for and progress in rehabilita-

17 tion; or

18 "(3) by the minimum time required to accom-

19 modate the circumstances beyond such person's con-

trol which make reporting within the time limit spec-

21 ified in paragraphs (1) and (2) impossible or unrea-

22 sonable.

23 "(e) A person who fails to report for employment or

24 reemployment within the time limits specified in subsee-

25 tion (e) does not automatically forfeit such person's right
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1 under subsection (a) but shall be subject to the conduct

2 rules of the employer pertaining to explanations and disci-

3 pline with respect to absence from scheduled work.

4 "(f)(1) When reporting for reemployment upon re-

5 lease from service in the uniformed services, a person,

6 upon request, shall provide to the person's employer such

7 documentation, if any, as is then readily available to estab-

8 lish that the person's application is timely, that the person

9 has not exceeded the service limitations set forth in sub-

10 seetion (b), and that the person completed service in the

11 uniformed services under honorable conditions. Doeumen-

12 tation from any official cource that these criteria have

13 been met shall satisfy the documentation requirements es-

14 tablished by this subsection.

15 "(2) It shall be unlawful for an employer to delay

16 or attempt to defeat a reemployment obligation by de-

17 mending documeltation that does not then exist or is not

18 then readily available.

19 "(g) The right of a person to reemployment under

20 this section shall not entitle such person to retention, pref-

21 erence, or displacement rights over any person with a su-

22 perior claim under the provisions of title 5, United States

23 Code, relating to veterans and other preference eligibles.

24 "(h) Any employer who reemploys a person under

25 this chapter and who is an employer contributing to any

HR 1678 1W8



I

120

16

1 multiemployer plan, as defined in section 3(37) of the Em-

2 ployee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (29

3 U.S.C. 1002(37)), under which benefits are or may be

4 payable to such person by reason of the obligations set

5 forth in this chapter, shall, within 30 days after the date

6 of every such reemployment, provide notice of such reem-

7 ployment to the administrator of every such plan.

8 "(1) In any determination of a person's entitlement

9 to protection under this chapter, the timing, frequency,

10 and duration of the person's training or service or the na-

11 ture of such training or service (including voluntary serv-

12 ice) in the uniformed services shall not be a basis for deny-

13 ing protection of such training or service if the service

14 does not exceed the limitations set forth in subsection (b)

15 and the notice requirements established in section 2024(d)

16 are met.

17 42033. Position to which entitled upon reemploy-

18 ment

19 "(a) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, a

20 person who is entitled to reemployment under section

21 2032 shall-

22 "(1) if such person's period of service was fewer

23 than 181 days-

24 "(A) first, be employed promptly in the po-

25 sition which such person would have attained by
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1 remaining continuously employed by such em-

2 ployer, unless the employer can demonstrate

3 that such person is not qualified for such posi-

4 tion and cannot become qualified with reasons-

5 ble efforts by such employer; or

6 "(B) if not employed under subparagraph

7 (A), be employed promptly in the same position

8 which such person left for service in the uni-

formed services, unless the employer can dem-

10 onstrate that such person is not qualified for

11 such position and cannot become qualified with

12 reasonable efforts by such employer;

13 "(2) if such person's period of service was 181

14 days or more-

15 "(A) first, be employed promptly in the po-

16 sition which such person would have attained by

17 remaining continuously employed by such em-

18 ployer or in another position which is equivalent

19 in seniority, status, and pay to such position,

20 unless the employer can demonstrate that such

21 person is not qualified for such position or any

22 equivalent position and cannot become qualified

23 with reasonable efforts by such employer; or

24 "(B) if not employed under subparagraph

25 (A), be employed promptly in the same position
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1 which such person left for service in the uni-

2 formed services or in another position which is

3 equivalent in seniority, status, and pay to such

4 position, unless the employer can demonstrate

5 that such person is not qualified for such posi-

t) tion and cannot becomc qualified with reasona-

7 ble efforts by such employer; or

"(3) if disabled because of a disability incurred

9 during, or as a result of, a period of service in the

10 uniformed services, and if, after reasonable efforts

11 by the employer to accommodate the disability, such

12 person is not qualified due to such disability to be

13 employed in the position the person would have at-

14 mined if the person had remained continuously em-

15 ployed by such employer or in the position which

16 such person left for service in the uniformed serv-

17 ices, be employed promptly-

18 "(A) in any other position which is equiva-

19 lent in seniority, status, and pay for which the

20 person is qualificAl or would become qualified

21 with reasonable efforts by the employer; or

22 "(B) if not employed under subparagraph

23 (A), in a position which is the nearest approxi-

24 mation thereof consistent with circumstances of

25 such person's case; or
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1 "(4) if such person is not qualified to be em-

2 played in the position the person would have at-

3 tained if the person had remained continuously em-

4 played by such employer or in the position which

5 such person left for service in the uniformed services

6 for any reason other than disability incurred during

7 a period of service in the uniformed services and

8 cannot become qualified with reasonable efforts by

9 the employer, be employed promptly in any other po-

10 sition of lesser status and pay which such person is

11 qualified to perform, with full seniority.

12 "(b) If two or more persons are entitled to reemploy-

13 ment under section 2032 in the same position and more

14 than one of them has reported for such reemployment, the

15 person who left the position first shall have the prior right

16 to be reemployed in that position. Any person not reem-

17 ployed in a position because of the application of the pre-

18 ceding sentence is entitled to be employed promptly-

19 "(1) in any other position which is equivalent in

20 seniority, status, and pay and for which the person

21 is qualified or would become qualified with reasona-

22 ble efforts by the employer; or

23 "(2) if not employed under paragraph (1), in a

24 position which is the nearest approximation thereof

25 consistent with circumstances of such person's case.
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1 42034. Rights, benefits, and obligations of persons
2 absent from employment for service in a
3 uniformed service
4 "(a) A person who is reemployed under this chapter
5 ,..ntitled to the seniority and other rights and benefits
6 determined by seniority that the person had at the time
7 such person left the job concerned for service in the uni-

formed services plus the additional seniority and rights
9 and benefits that such person would have attained if the

10 person had remained continuously employed.

11 "(la) A person who performs service in the uniformed

12 services is considered to be on a leave of absence while
13 in the uniformed services and is also entitled to such other
14 rights and benefits, not determined by seniority, relating
15 to other employees on furlough or leave of absence which
16 were established. by contract, policy, or practice, at the
17 beginning d. such period of service or while such person
18 is performing such service. Such person may be required
19 to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit
20 continued pursuant to the preceding sentence.
21 "(e)(1) A person who performs service in the uni-

22 formed services shall, PI such person's request, continued
23 to be covered by insurance provided by such employer for
24 up to 18 months. Such person may be required to pay
25 the entire cost of any benefit continued pursuant to the
26 preceding sentence, cunt that in the ease of persons or-
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1 dered to traiaing or service for fewer than 31 days, such

2 person may be required to pay only the employee share,

3 if any, of the cost of such benefit.

4 "(2) In the ease of employer-sponsored health bene-

5 tits, an exclusion or waiting period may not be imposed

6 in connection with coverage of a health or physical condi-

7 tion of a person entitled to participate in these benefits,

8 either under paragraph (1) or upon reinstatement, or a

9 health or physical condition of any other person who is

10 covered by the benefit by reason of the coverage of such

11 person, if-

12 "(A) the condition arose before or during that

13 person's period of training or service in the uni-
14 formed services;

15 "(B) an exclusion or waiting period would not

16 have been imposed for the condition during a period

17 of coverage resulting from participation by such per-

18 son in the benefits; and

19 "(C) the condition of such person has not been

20 determined by the Secretary of Veterans Affairs to

21 be service-connected.

22 "(d) A person who leaves a civilian job for service

23 in the uniformed services after the 60-day period begin-,
24 ning on the date of the enactment of the Uniformed Serv-

25 ices Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991
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1 shall give written or verbal notice to such person's civilian

2 employer that service in the uniformed services will cause

3 such person to be absent from scheduled civilian employ-

4 ment, except that no notice is required in circumstances

5 in which giving notice is impossible or unreasonable, in-

6 eluding but not limited to circumstances where providing

7 notice is precluded by military necessity, as determined by

8 the uniformed service concerned, with such determination

9 not being subject to judicial review.

10 "(e) A person who is reemployed by an employer

11 under this chapter shall not be discharged from such em-

12 ployment, except for cause-

13 "(1) if such person's period of service was 181

14 days or more, within one year,

15 "(2) if such person's period of service was 31

16 days or more but less than 181 days, within six

17 months; or

18 "(3) if such person's period of service was less

19 than 31 days, within a period of time that is equal

20 to the period of service concerned.

21 "(0(1) In the ease of a benefit provided by an em-

22 ployee pension benefit plan described in section 3(2) of

23 the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

24 (29 U.S.C. 1002(2)), or a benefit provided under any Fed-

25 eral or State law governing pension benefits for govern-
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mental employees, the right to pension benefits of a person

2 reemployed under this chapter shall be determined under

3 this subsection.

4 "(2) Subject to subsection (g)(2), a person reem-

5 ployed under this chapter-

6 "(A) shall not be treated as having incurred a

7 break in service with the employer or employers

8 maintaining the plan by reason of such person's pe-

9 riod or periods of service in the uniformed services;

10 and

11 "(B) shall have each period served by such per-

12 son in the uniformed services deemed to constitute

13 service with the employer or employers maintaining

14 the plan for purposes of determining the

15 nonforfeitability of the person's accrued benefits and

16 for the purpose of determining the accrual of bene-

17 fits under the plan,

18 if such person meets the eligibility criteria under this

19 chapter.

20 "(g)(1) Au employer reemploying a person under this

21 chapter shall be liable to an employee benefit pension plan

22 for fUnding any obligation of the plan to provide the bene-

23 fits described in subsection (f)(2). For purposes of deter-

24 mining the amount of such liability, and for purposes of

25 section 515 of the Employee Retirement Income Security
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1 Act of 1974 (29 U.S.C. 1145) or for purposes of any sizni-

2 lar Federal or State law governing pension benefits for

3 governmental employees, service in the uniformed services

4 that is deemed to be service with the employer pursuant

5 to such subsection shall be deemed to be service with the

6 employer under the terms of the plan or any applicable

7 collective bargaining agreement.

"(2) A person reemployed under this chapter shall

9 be entitled to accrued benefits pursuant to subsection

10 (f)(2) that are derived from employee contributions only

11 to the extent the person makes payment to the plan with

12 respect to sueh contributions (not to exceed the amount

13 the person would have been permitted or required to eon-

14 tribute had the person remained continuously employed by

15 the employer throughout the period of deemed service de-

16 scribed in subsection (f)(2)).

17 "(h) Any person who is absent from or leaves a posi-

18 tion (other than a temporary position) in the employ of

19 any employer for voluntary or involuntary service in the

20 uniformed services may utilize, during any period of such

21 service, accrued or other leave which the person could have

22 utilized if the person had remained in such position.
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1 "SUBCHAPTER IIIPROCEDURES FOR

2 ASSISTANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

3 "§2041. Assistance in obtni_ning employment or reem-

4 ploymen4 assistance in asserting claims

5 with respect to Stato or local government

6 or private employers

"(a) The Secretary (through the Veterans' Employ-

8 ment and Training Service) shall provide assistance in ob-

9 taining employment or reemployment to any person enti-

10 tied t, rights or benefits under this chapter. The Secretary

11 may use existing Federal and State agencies engaged in

12 similar or related activities and the assistance of volun-

13 teers.

14 "(b) Any person who claims that a private employer

15 or a State or political subdivision thereof has denied or

16 is about to deny such person any right or benefit under

17 this chapter may apply to the Secretary for assistance in

18 asserting that claim.

19 "§2042. Assistance in obtaining employment or reem-

20 ployment by the Federal Government

21 "(a) Except as provided in subsections (c), (d), and

22 (e), if a person is entitled to be reempleyed under section

23 2032 by the Federal Government, such person shall be re-

24 employed in a position as described in sections 2033 and

25 2034,
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1 "(b) Any person who claims that the Federal Govern-

2 ment, as employer, has denied or is about to deny such

3 person any right or benefit under this chapter may apply

4 to the Secretary for assistance in asserting that claim.

5 "(c) If the employer of a person described in subsec-

6 tion (a) was, at the time such person entered service in

7 the uniformed services, an agency in the executive branch,

8 and the Director of the Office of Personnel Management

9 determines that-

10 "(1) such employer no longer exists and its

I I functions have not been transferred to another part

12 of the executive branch; or

13 "(2) it is not feasible for such employer to re-

14 employ sueh person.

15 The Director shall identify an alternative position of like

16 seniority, status, and pay for which such person is quali-

17 fied in another part of the e:Alcutive branch, and the Di-

18 rector shall cause employment in such position to be of-

19 fered to such person.

20 "(d) If Lhe employer of a person described in subsee-

21 tion (a) was, at the time such person entered service in

22 the uniformed services, a part of the judicial branch or

23 the legislative branch of the Federal Government, and

24 such employer determines that
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1 "(1) it is not feasible for such employer to re-

2 employ such person; and

3 "(2) such person is otherwise eligible to acquire

4 a status for transfer to a position in the competitive

5 service in accordance with section 3304(c) of title 5,

6 such person shall, upon application to the Director of the

7 Office of Personnel Management, be considered for and

8 offered employment in an alternative position in the execu-

9 tive branch on the same basis as described in subsection

10 (e).

"(e) If the adjutant general of a State determines

12 that it is not feasible to reemploy a person who was a

13 National Guard technician employed under section 709 of

14 title 32, and such person is otherwise eligibL to acquire

15 a status for transfer to a position in the competitive serv-

16 ice in accordance with section 3304(d) of title 5, such per-

17 son shall, upon application to the Direetor of the Office

18 of Personnel Management, be considered for and offered

19 employment in an alternative position in the executive

20 branch of the Federal Government on the same basis as

21 described in subsection (c),

22 "§ 2043. Enforcement of employment or reemploy-
23 ment rights with the Federal Government

24 "(a) Any person who claims that
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"(1) such person is entitled under this chapter

2 to employment or reemployment rights or benefits

3 with respect to employment by the Federal Govern-

4 ment; and

5 "(2)(A) such employer has failed or refused to

6 wmply with the provisions of this chapter; or

7 "(B) the Office of Personnel Management has

8 failed or refused to comply with the provisions of

9 this chapter,

10 may file a complaint with the Secretary, and the Secretary

11 shall investigate such complaint. Subsection (a) of section

12 2051 shall be applicable to such investigation but not sub-

13 sections (b) and (c) of such section.

14 "(b) Such complaint shall be in writing, be in such

15 form as the Secretary may prescribe, include the name

16 and address of the employer against whom the complaint

17 is filed, and contain a summary of the allegations that

18 form the basis for the complaint. Before the receipt of a

19 written complaint, the Secretary shall, upon request, pro

20 vide advice or technical assistance to the potential elaim-

21 ant and, if the Secretary determinci it apprepriate, to

22 such claimant's employer.

23 "(c) If the Secretary, after investigation, is reason-

24 ably satisfied that such a violation has occurred, if efforts

25 to obtain voluntary compliance are not successful, and if
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1 the claimant requests that the claim be referred for litiga-

2 tion before the Merit Systems Protection Board, the See-

3 retary shall refer the case to the Office of the Special

4 Counsel. If the Special Counsel is reasonably satisfied that

5 the person requesting representation is entitled to the

6 rights or benefits sought, the Special Counsel shall appear

7 and act as attorney for the claimant in filing an appeal

8 to the Merit Systems Protection Board and in pursuing

9 that appeal.

10 "(d) If the Special Counsel refuses to represent a per-

11 son after receiving a referral from the Secretary or if a

12 person chooses not to apply to the Secretary for assistance

13 or to utilize the Special Counsel for representation under

14 this section, such person may be represented before the

15 Merit Systems Protection Board by counall of the person's

16 choice.

17 "(c)(1) If the Merit Systems Protection Board con-

18 eludes that the Federal Government, as employer, has

19 failed or refused to comply with the provisions of this

20 chapter or that the Director of the Office of Personnel

21 Management has not met an obligation set forth in subsec-

22 lion (c), (d), or (e) of section 2042, the Board shall enter

23 an order specifically requiring the employing agency or the

24 Director to comply with such provisions and to compen-

25 sate such person for any loss of wages or benefits suffered
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1 by reason of the employing agency's or the Director's un-

2 lawful action.

3 "(2) Any such compensation shall be in addition to

4 and shall not be deemed to diminish any of the other

5 rights or benefits provided for by this chapter.

6 "(f)(1) A claimant under this chapter may petition

7 the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit

8 to review a decision of the Merit Systems Protection

9 Board denying such claimant the relief sought, in whole

10 or in part, subject to the conditions and in accordance

11 with the procedures set forth in section 7703 of title 5.

12 "(2) The Secretary and the Special Counsel shall not

13 represent persons with respect to review of decisions of

14 the Merit Systems Protection Board under this chapter

15 in the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Cir-

16 cuit or the Supreme Court.

17 "(3) If a person seeks such judicial review, or in any

18 ease in which a person is involved in the Board's decision

19 being appealed by another party, such person may be rep-

20 resented by coungel of the person's choice.

21 "i) 2044. Enforcement of employment or reemploy-
22 ment rights with a State or private em-
23 ployer

24 "(a) A person who claims that-
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1 "(1) such person is entitled under this chapter

2 to employment or reemployment rights or benefits

3 with respect to employment by a State or political

4 subdivision thereof or a private employer; and

5 "(2) such employer or potential employer has

6 failed or refused to comply with the provisions of

7 this chapter,

8 may file a complaint with the Secretary, and such corn-

9 plaint shall be investigated under the provisions of sub-

10 chapter W.

11 "(b) Such complaint shall be in writing, be in s.ch

12 form as the SecretaTy may prescribe, include the name

13 and address of the employer against whom the complaint

14 is filed, and contain a summary of the allegations that

15 form the basis for the complaint. Before the remipt of a

16 written complaint, the Secretary shall, upon request, pro-

17 vide advice or technical assistance to the potential claim-

18 ant and, if the Secretary determines it appropriate, to

19 such claimant's employer.

20 "(c) If the Secretary, after investigation, is reason-

21 ably satisfied that such a violation has occurred, if efforts

22 to obtain voluntafy compliance are not successful, and if

23 the claimant requests that the claim be referred for litiga-

24 tion, the Secretary shall refer the ease to the Attorney

25 General. If the Attorney General is reasonably satisfied
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1 that the person requesting representation is entitled to the

2 rights or benefits sought, the Attorney General shall ap-

3 pear and act as attorney for the claimant in the firing of

4 a complaint and other appropriate motions and pleadings

5 and the prosecution thereof.

6 "(d)(1) If any employer which is a private employer

7 or a State or political subdivision thereof fails or refuses

8 to comply with the provisions of this chapter, the district

9 court of the United States for any district in which such

10 private employer maintains a place of business, or in

11 which such State or political subdivision thereof exercises

12 authority or carries out its functions, shall have the power,

13 upon the filing of a motion, petition, or other appropriate

14 pleading by the person entitled to the rights or benefits

15 of such provisions, specifically to require such employer

16 to comply with such provisions and to compensate such

17 person for any loss of wages or benefits suffered by reason

18 of such employer's unlawful action. Any such compensa-

19 tion shall be in addition to and shall not be deemed to

20 diminish any of the other rights or benefits provided for

21 by this chapter.

22 "(2)(A) No fees or court costs shall be charged or

23 taxed against any person claiming rights or benefits under

24 this chapter.
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1 "(B) In any action or proceeding to enforce a provi-

2 sion of this chapter by a person described in subsection

3 (a) who obtained private counsel for such action or pro-

4 ceeding, the court, in its c.'.ieretion, may award any such

5 person who prevails in such action or proceeding a reason-

6 able attorney's fee,, expert witness fees, and other litiga-

7 tion expenses.

8 "(3) The court may use its full c...luity powers, includ-

9 ing temporary or permanent injunctions and temporary

10 restraining orders, to vindicate fully the rightr or benefits

11 of persons under this chapter.

12 "(4) An action under this chapter may be initiated

13 only by a person claiming rights or benefits under this

14 chapter, not by an employer, prospettive emplo;er, or

15 other entity with obligations under this chapter.

16 "(5) If the Attorney General refuses to represent a

17 person after receiving a referral from the Secretary or if

18 a person chooses not to apply to the Secretary for assist-

19 ance or to utilize the Attorney General for representation

20 under this section, such person may be represented before

21 the district court by munsel of the person's choice.

22 "(6) In any action under this chapter, only the em-

23 ployer shall be deemed a necessary party respondent.

24 "(7) No State statute of limitations shall apply to any

25 proceedings under this chapter.
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1 "(8) A State shall be subject to the same remedies,

2 including pretjudgment interest, as may be imposed upon

3 any private employer under this section.

4 "(e) If reasonably satisfied that the provisions of this

5 chapter have been willfully violated by a private employer

6 or a State or political subdivision thereof, the Attorney

7 General may file a pleading in a district court of the Unit-

8 ed States in which the private employer concerned main-

9 tains a place of business, or in which the State concerned

10 or political subdivision thereof exercises authority, for the

11 assessment of a civil penalty against such employer. If,

12 as a result of the proceeding resulting from such a filing,

13 the employer is found to have willfully failed or refused

14 to comply with any provision of this chapter, a civil penal-

15 ty of not more than $25,000 for each such failure or refus-

16 al may be assessed against such employer, taking into con-

17 sideration criteria established in regulations by the Secre-

18 tary for such purpose.

19 "SUBCHAPTER IVINVESTIGATION OF

20 COMPLAINTS

21 "4/ 2051. Conduct of investigation; subpoenas
22 "(a) In carrying out investigations under this chap-

23 ter, the Secretary's duly authorized representatives shall

24 at all reasondble times have access to, for the purpose of

ER MPS RFS
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1 examination, and the right to copy and receive, any docu-

2 ments of any person or employer.

3 "(b) In canying out investigations under this chap-

4 ter, the Secretary may require by subpoena the attendance

5 and testimony of witnesses and the production of docu-

6 ments relating to any matter under investigation. In ease

7 of disobedience of the subpoena or eontumacy and on re-

8 quest of the Secretary, the Attorney General may apply

9 (other than with respect to an investigation carried out

10 under section 2043(a)) to any district court of the United

11 States in whose jurisdiction such disobedience or eontuma-

12 cy occurs for an order enforcing the Secretary's subpoena.

13 "(c) Upon application, the district courts of the Unit-

14 ed States shall have jurisdiction to issue writs command-

15 ing any person or employer to (Imply with the subpoena

16 of the Secretary or to comply with any order of the Secre-

17 tary made pursuant to a lawful investigation under this

18 chapter (other than an investigation carried out under sec-

19 tion 2043(a)). The district courts shall have jurisdiction

20 to punish failure to obey a subpoena or other lawful order

21 of the Secretary as a contempt of court (other than with

22 respect to an investigation carried out under section

23 2043(a)).

WI 1578 RFS
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1 "SUBCHAPTER VMISCELLANEOUS

2 PROVISIONS

3 "02061. Regulations

4 "(a) The Secretary (in consultation with the Secre-

5 tary of Defense) may presenle regulations implementing

6 the provisions of this chapter with regard to the applica-

tion of this chapter to States, local governments, and pri-

g vate employers.

9 "(b)(1) The Director of the Office of Personnel Man-

10 agement (in consultation with the Secretary and the See-

11 retary of Defense) may prescribe regulations implement-

12 ing the provisions of this chapter with regard to the appri-

13 cation of this chapter to the Federal Government as em-

14 ployer. Such regulations shall be consistent with the regu-

15 lations pertaining to the States and private employers, ex-

16 cept that employees of the Federal Government may be

17 given greater or additional rights. Nothing in this subsec-

18 tion constitutes authority for the Director to prescribe any

19 matter for which any regulation may be prescribed under

20 paragraph (2).

21 "(2) Regulations may be prescribed-

22 "(A) by the Merit Systems Protection Board to

23 carry out "ts responsibilities under this chapter; and

24 "(B) by the Office of Special Counsel to car y

25 out its responsibilities under this chapter.

IIR 1578 RFS
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1 "(3) It is the sense of Congress that the Federal Gov-

2 ernment should be a model employer with respect to the

3 requirements of this chapter,

4 "$2062. Reports

5 "The Secretary shall, after consultation with the At-

6 torney General and the Special Counsel referred to in see-

7 tion 2043(e) and no later than February 1, 1992, and

8 each February 1 thereafter, transmit to the Congress, a

9 report containing the following matters for the fiscal year

10 ending before such February 1:

1 "(1) The number of cases reviewed by the De-

12 partment of Labor under this chapter during the fis-
13 cal year for which the report is made.

14 "(2) The number of cases referred to the Attor-

15 ney General or the Special Counsei pursuant to see-

16 tion 2044(c) or 2043(e), respectively, during such
17 fiscal year.

18 "(3) The number of pleadings filed by the At-
19 torney General pursuant to section 2044(e) during
20 such fiscal year.

21 "(4) The nature and status of each case report-

22 ed on pursuant to paragraph (1), (2), or (3).

23 "(5) An indication of whether there are any ap-
24 parent patterns of violation of the provisions of this
25 chapter, together with an e.xplanation thereof.
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1 "(6) Recommendations for administrative or

2 legislative action that the Secretary, the Attorney

3 General, or the Special Counsel considers necessary

4 for the effective implementation of this chapter, in-

5 eluding any action that could be taken to encourage

6 mediation, before claims are filed under this chapter,

7 between employers and persons seeking employment

8 or reemployment.

9 42063. Severability provision

10 "If any provision of this chapter, or the applieztion

11 of such provision to any person or circumstances, is held

12 invalid, the remainder of this chapter, or the application

13 of such provision to persons or circumstances other than

14 those as to which it held invalid, shall not be affected

15 thereby.".

16 SEC. 3. CONFORMING AMENDMENTS.

17 (a) AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 38.(1) Section

18 3103A(b)(3) of title 38, United States Code, is

19 amended-

20 (A) by striking out "or" at the end of clause

21 (E);

22 (13) by striking out the period at the end of

23 clause (.') and inserting in lieu thereof "; or"; and

24 (C) by adding at the end thereof the following

25 new clause:
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1 "(G) to reemployment benefits under chap-

2 ter 43 of this title.

3 (2) The table of parts preceding part I of such title

4 is amended by striking out the item for chapter 43 and

5 inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"43. Employment and Reemployment Rights of Members
of the Uniformed Services 2021".

6 (3) The table of chapters at the beginning of part

7 HI of such title is amended by striking out the item for

8 chapter 43 and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"43. Employment and Reemployment Rights of Members
of the Uniformed Services 2021".

(b) AMENDMENT TO TITLE 5.Section 1204(a)(1)

10 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by striking out,

11 "section 2023" and inserting in lieu thereof "chapter 43",

12 (2) Subchapter II of chapter 35 of such title is re-

13 pealed.

14 (3) The table of sections for chapter 35 of such title

15 is amended by striking out the items relating to subchap-

16 ter II.

17 (e) AMENDMENT TO TITLE 10.--Section 706(e)(1) of

18 title 10, United States Code, is amended by striking out

19 "section 2021" and inserting in lieu thereof "chapter 43",

20 (d) AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 28.Section 631 of title

21 28, United States Code, is amended-

22 (1) by striking out subsection (j);

BR 2675 EPS
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(2) by redesignating subsections (k) and (I) as

2 subsections (j) and (k), respectively; and

3 (3) in subsection (j), as redesignated by para-

4 graph (2), by striking out "under the terms or and

5 all that follows through "section," the first place it

6 appears and inserting in lieu thereof "under chapter

7 43 of title 38,".

8 SEC. 4. EFFECIIVE DATES.

9 (a) REEMPLOYMENT.(1) Except as provided else-

10 where, the amerdments made by this Act shall be effective

11 with respect to reernploprumts initiated on or after the

12 first day after the 60-day period beginning on the date

13 of the enactment of this Act,

14 (2) The provisions of chapter 43 of title 38, United

15 States Code, in effect on the day before such date of enact-

16 merit shall continue to apply to reemployments initiated

17 before the end of such 60-day period.

18 (3) In determining the number of years of service

19 that may riot be exceeded in an employee-employer rda-

20 tionship with respect to which a person seeks reemploy

21 merit under chapter 43 of title 38, United States Code,

22 as in effect before or after the date of the enactment of

23 this Act, there shall be included all years of service without

24 regard to whether the periods of service occurred before

25 or after such date of enactment unless the period of serv-

HR 1578 1120
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1 iee is exempted by the chapter 43 that is applicable, as

2 provided in paragraphs (1) and (2), to the reemployment

3 concerned.

4 (b) DISCRIMINATION.The provisions of section

5 2031 of title 38, United States Code, as provided in the

6 amendments made by this Act, and the provisions of sub-

7 chapters III and W of chapter 43 of such title, as provided

8 in the amendments made by this Act, that are necessary

9 for the implementation of such section 2031 shall become

10 effective on the date of the enactment of this Act.

I 1 (e) INSURANCE.(1) Except as provided in pare-

12 graph (2), the provisions of section 2034(c) of title 38,

13 United States Code, as provided in the amendments made

14 by this Act, concerning insurance coverage shall become

15 effective on the date of enactment of this Act.

16 (2) A person who entered active service in the uni-

17 formed services after August 1, 1990, and before the date

18 of the enactment of this Act, or a family member or per-

19 sonal representative of such person, may, after the date

20 of the enactment of this Aet, elect to reinstate or continue

21 insurance coverage as provided in such section 2034. If

22 such an election is made, insurance coverage may remain

23 in effect for the remaining portion of the 18-month period

24 that began on the date of such person's separation from

25 civilian employment.
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1 (d) DISABILITY.(1) Section 2033(a)(3) of chapter

2 43 of title 38, United States Code, as provided in the

3 amendments made by this Act, shall apply to

4 reemployments initiated on or after August 1, 1990.

5 (2) Effective as of August 1, 1990, section 2027 of

6 title 38, United States Code, as in effect on the date of

7 the enactment of this Act, is hereby repealed.

8 (e) REPORTS.The reports made by the Secretary

9 or Labor pursuant to section 2062 of title 38, United

10 States, as provided in the amendments made by this Act,

11 shall be made with respect to eases pertaining to chapter

12 43 of such title without regard to whether a ease originat-

13 ed under such chapter before, on, or after the date of the

14 enactment of this Act.

15 (f) PREVIOUS ACTIONS.-14:xeept as otherwise provid-

16 ed, the amendments made by this Act do not affect

17 reemployments that were initiated, rights, benefits, and

18 duties that matured, penalties that were incurred, and

19 proceedings that were begun before the end of' the 60-day

20 period referred to in subsection (a).
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1 SEC. S. TECHNICAL AMENDMENT.

2 Section 9(d) of Public Law 102-16 is amended by

3 striking out "Act" the first place it appears and inserting

4 in lieu thereof "section".

Passed the House of Representatives May 14, 1991.

Attest: DONNALD K ANDERSON,

Clerk.
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Opening Statement
Senator Aaan Cranston

Chairman
Committee on Veterans' Affairs

Hearing to Cansider Legislation Relating to
Reemployment Rights (S. 1095 and H.R. 1578),

Educational Assistance (S. 868), and
the U.S. Court of Veterans Appeals (S. 1050 and H.R. 153)

May 23, 1991

Good Morning. Welcome to today's hearing, which will focus
on legislation in three areas -- veterans' reemployment rights,
veterans' education, and the United States Court of Veterans'
Appeals. My thanks to all the witnesses who are appearing here
today, and to those who have submitted written testimony, for
taking the time to share their views with the Committee.

Specifically, this hearing will cover S. 1050, legislation I
introduced at the request of the Chief Judge of the Court last
week, to allow the Court to accept voluntary services and gifts;
P.R. 153, legislation, which passed the House on February 20, to
nake technical amendments and certain improvements in the
veterans' Judicial Review Act; S. 868, an education bill that I
introduced on April 18, to improve education benefits for those
who served during the Persian Gulf conflict; S. 1095, the
veterans' reemployment rights bill I introduced last week,
together with Senators Specter, Deconcini, Graham, Akaka, and
Daschle; and H.R. 1578, a veterans' reemployment rights bill that
passed the House on May 14.

Clearly, our agenda is quite full this morning. Today's
witnesses include representatives of the Department of Veterans
Affairs, the U.S. Court of Veterans Appeals, other Executive
Branch entities, and veterans' service organizations.

UNITED STATES COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS

We will receive testimony on two measures related to the
United States Court of Veterans Appeals. The Court of Veterans
Appeals was established by the Veterans Judicial Review Act,
compromise legislation crafted in the closing hours of the 100th
Congress. Because the Judicial Review Act was drafted under
extreme time constraints, the Senate and House Veterans' Affairs
Committees have continued to work cooperatively with each other
and with Chief Judge Nebeker to make needed technical corrections
to the enabling legislation so as to ensure that the Court and
its judges are provided with similar authority and held to
similar standards as other federal appellate courts.

The two bills before us today -- N.H. 153, which passed the
House cr. February 20, 1991, and S. 1050, which I recently

1 04.r
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5. 868, VETERANS' EDUCATIum

With reference to the veterans' employment and education

measures, the recent Poraian Gulf conflict has underscored the

impact that commitment of our military forces has on the lives of

ao many individuals.

S. 868 contains twe provisions to improve educational
assistance benefits for certain servicenembers and reservists

who served during the Persian Gulf conflict. Specifically, this

bill would amend chapters 30, 32, and 35 of title 38, United
States Code, end chapter 106 of title 10 to restore educational
assistance entitlement to participants in the programa under
these chapters who had received benefits for the pursuit of

courses which they were unable to complete because either they

were reservists who were called to active duty or, in the case of
active-duty servicemembers, they were assigned duties that

prevented them from completing their courses. The bill would

also anend chapter 106 to protect reservists who were called to
active duty from losing any time in which to use their benefits.

It would achieve this by extending the delimiting date for
reservists' education entitlement by the length of their periods
of active duty and provide that reservists are not to be

considered to have been separated from the Selected Reserve for
education benefits purposes by reason of their active-duty

service.

These provisions are derived from two Persian Gulf benefits

bills -- H.R. 1108, as introduced on February 25, and, in part,

from S. 490, as introduced by Senator Boren on February 26.
Similar provisions were included in the Persian Gulf
servicemembers and veterans benefits package -- H.R. 1175, as
passed by the House on March 13, and in S. 578, as part of the
leadership amendment passed by the Senate on March 24 as an

amendment to H.R. 1275 -- but not included in S. 725 as enacted

in Public Law 102-25. Unfortunately, the measure enacted on
April 6 was limited by a monetary cap on funding for all
veterans' benefits in the bill and, es a result, did not include

these provisions.

S. 2095, VIIIRABS' IMIMPLOTIENT AMOIS

S. 1095, the proposed *Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act of 1991," which I introduced on May 26,

along with the Committee's Ranking Minority Member, Senator
Specter, and Committee numbers DeConcini, Graham, Akaka, and
Useable, would completely revise chapter 43 of title 38, United

States Code, in order to clarify veterans' reemployment rights
(VRR) law provisions and to make improvements in various aspects

of this law.

With the mobilization of approximately 228,000 reservists
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introduced at the request of Chief Judge Nebeker -- represent our
ongoing efforts in that regard.

B.R. 153

H.R. 153 as passed by the House generally reflects a
compromise agreement that the Senate and House Committees on
Veterans' Affairs reached on certain bills, amendments, and
provisions relating to the Court of Veterans Appeals that were
considered by the two Veterans' Affairu Committees, but were not
enacted during the 101st Congress. All but two of the provisions
contained in this bill were formally requested by Chief Judge
Nebeker. As to the two remaining provisions -- one, which would
make applicable to the Court of Veterans Appeals the provisions
of title 28, United States Code, regarding disqualification, was
reported by the Senate Committee in S. 2100. The remaining
provision relates to procedures for filing complaints with
respect to the conduct of judges.

H.R. 153 would make technical amendments and substantive
improvements to the Veterans' Judicial Review Act. Specifically,
the bill would (1) delete a provision which requires the Court to
include in its decisions a statement of its legal conclusions and
determinations as to its factual determinations, (2) authorize
the Chief Judge of the Court to convene annually a judicial
conference, (3) provide for each judge of the Court to receive a
salary at the same rate as judges of the United States Courts of
Appeals, (4) make applicable to the Court the provisions of title
28 relating to procedures for filing complaints with respect to
the conduct of judges and the disqualification of judges, (5)
allow judges of the Court to participate in the Thrift Savings
Plan, (6) authorize the distribution of the Congressional Record
to the Court, and (7) make certain other technical amendments to
the Judicial Review Act.

S. 1050

S. 1050 is legislation that I recently introduced at the
request of Chief Judge Nebeker. In his April 18, 1991, letter to
me requesting this legislation, Chief Judge Nebeker noted that
the Court of Veterans Appeals lacked the authority to establish
unpaid internships and to accept gifts of personal property.
S. 1050 adopts the language of section 604(a)(17) of title 28,
which grants to article III courts authority to accept such
services and gifts of personal property. This legislation would
allow the Court to establish an intern program for law students
and to accept gifts, such as books and works of art.

In view of my strong belief that the Court of Voterans
Appeals should be treated like other federal courts, I support
enactment of H.R. 153 and S. 1050.
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and National Guard members since last Xagust, we have become
acutely aware of the price that citizen soldiers, their families,
and their employers must pay to meet our national security
commitments around the world. Approximately SO percent of the
enlisted personnel and 90 percent of the officers recently
activated were full-time employees in civilian jebe at the time
of their order to duty.

As of last week, two and a half months after the fighting
subsided, 118,000 reservists and Guard members were still on
active duty. These individuals -- and their families -- were
read, to make and have made many sacrifices. Thiry performed
their supporting roles extrenely well during the build-up and the
weeks of actual conflict. In exchange, I believe the Axmed
Porces should make it a priority to return these individuals to
their civilian jobs and educational pursuits as quickly as
operational needs can allow. They should not be kept on for the
convenience of the military and doing jobs that could be turned
over to active-duty personnel or contractors.

Generally speaking, employers have reacted in a truly
patriotic and supportive manner. I am concerned, however, that
employer support -- the main element in the successful workings
of veterans' reemployment rights laws for over SO years -- may be
severely tested with the continued active deployment of nearly
half of the mobilized reserve force, a significant number of whom
still are beinj used to perform duties in an uncertain overseas
environment while regular forces are being welcomed home. our
all-volunteer military depends on the ready reserves for roughly
45 percent of its total force. If employers perceive the
continuing retention of reserves as unreasonable, support could
deteriorate and put the entire total-force concept at risk.
Prior to Desert Shield, employment conflicts were said to account
for as much as one third of the unprogrammed losses in the
Selected Reserves. I am concerned that that figure could grow if
the citizen soldiers are not back at their jobs when the parades
are over.

As Chairman of this Committee, I am deeply concerned that
1,617 VA health-care workers -- including 212 physicians and 891
nurses -- are still not back.

As dramatic and far reaching as are the massive reserve
call-ups, the ongoing test of the reemployment rights law, year-
in and year-out, relates to the ordinary requirements of being a
member of the Selected Reserve or Rational Guard. In S. 1095, we
are proposing a complete revision of the 50-year-old reemployment
rights laws in order to clarify the complex and archaic
provisions of current law and to codify certain important court
decisions. Our aim is to avoid delays and disputes in the
implementation of the law by stating more clearly the rights and
obligations of all parties.
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At this time, I recognize the cooperative efforts of many
here today who have had a part in bringing forward this needed
VRR revision. About three years ago, the Departments of Labor,
Defense, Veterans Affairs, and JUstice, together with the Office
of Personnel Management, began the tedious process of
reorganizing this seemingly simple, but highly technical, chapter
of title 38. Their efforts served as the basis on which the
Chairman of the House Veterans' Affairs Subcommittee on
Education, Training, and EMpIoyment, Representative Penny, was
able to develop H.R. 1578, a bill that passed the House on May
14. H.R. 1578, in turn, served as a starting point for S. 1095,
which was developed with various changes and with further
technical assistance from the Administration.

For 50 years the reemployment rights program has run very
smoothly, due in large part to the efforts of the Department of
Labor, where more than 90 percent of disputed cases are resolved
by negotiation rather than litigation, and of the Department of
Defense, whose National Comnittee for the Support of the Guard
and Reserve keeps the lines of communication open between
employees, their units, and their employers.

Finally, I note with appreciation the aggressive leadership
taken by the Director of OPM during the recent Persian Gulf
conflict to provide an affirmative support of federal employees
ordered to active duty -- perhaps as nuch as 15 percent of the
activated reserve and National Guard forces.

Many of the provisions in this bill are intended only to
restructure and clarify current law. At this time, I will only
discuss in detail provisions of the new chapter 43 that would
make significant substantive changes to the VIIR law.

Prohibition Aaninet piscrtmination and Acts of
Reprisal Re-taunt Reeervists

The proposed new section 4321 of title 38 would expand the
current prohibition against discrimination, which provides that a
person may not be denied hiring, retention in employment, or any
promotion or other incident or advantage of employment because of
an obligation as a member of the reserves or National Guard. The
new section would provide that a person who serves in the
unioormed services, or who has plans to serve, past service, or
an obligation for future service, may not be denied initial
employment, reemployment, continuation of employment, promotion,
or any other benefits of employment by an employer on the basis
of service or the individual's plan or obligation to serve. As a
further expansion, the bill would prohibit employer reprisals
against employees who have taken an action to enforce their
employment or reemployment rights or against witnesses in such

,
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cases.

To maintain a strong and effective reserve force, it is
necessary to ensure reservists that they will not have to
sacrifice their civilian job security and advancement because of
an obligation for service in uniform. This provision would
strengthen considerably the current-law proscription against
discrindnation.

Minimum Perlo4 of Send-, for COvereon

Under current law, a person is permitted to remain on active
duty for a total of four years and still retain reemployment
rights. An additional year of eligibility for reemployment
rights is granted if a person remains on active duty beyond the
four-year period at the request of, and for the convenience of,
the federal government. The service limitations in current law
apply only to active-duty service.

Proposed new section 4322 of title 38 would simplify this
four-plus-one limitation by replacing it with a five-year limit
on the cumulative length of absence from a position of employment
for reemployment rights purposes. The five-year service
limitations would apply to all types of service in the uniformed
services.

However, in certain instances, training needs, emergency
situations, or other extraordinary national defense needs may
require noncareer servicemembers to serve longer than five years.
As the VRR law is intended to protect civilian employment in
order to encourage noncareer military service, the new section
would provide for certain exceptions to the five-year service
limit. These exceptions would include service required to
complete an initial period of obligated service, involuntary
retention on active duty during a war or national emergency,
National Guard and reserve training requirements under specific
statutes, additional training determined by the Secretary of
Defense to be necessary for individual professional development
or skill training, and any category of service specified in
regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Labor in consultation
with the Secretary of Defense.

EX2211-21-SMOSOl

Under current law, an individual is eligible for
reemployment rights only if the position held prior to absence
for service in the uniformed services was mother than teeporary."
There is no definition of ^temporary" for reemployment purposes,
and the scope of the exclusion is unclear. Over the past 50
years, the courts have determined that many positions that
employers would describe as temporary are covered by the current
law.
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As first proposed by the Chairman of the Comnittee on Labor
and Hunan Resources, Senator Kennedy, in S. 336, our bill would
repeal the exclusion of temporary positions. In proposing the
application of the reemployment rights law to temporary
poeitions, we intend to remove one potentially contentious
issue -- whether a particular job was temporary or not -- that
could create an unnecessary Obstacle to prompt reemployment.

The inclusion of temporary positions would not alter for
employers the fundamental protection in current law -- and
incorporated in our bill -- against having to reemploy an
individual when the employer's circumstances have changed so as
to make it impossible or unreasonable to do so. I also note that
the employer is only obligated to restore the individual to a
position that he er she would have attained by continuous
employment without interruption for service in the uniformed
services.

o

Under current law, distinctions are made among types or
categories of mdlitary training or service for the purposes of
reemployment rights. For example, the time periods during which
a person must report back to work vary depending on the type of
service, and an employee who is ordered to active duty as a
reservist is treated differently than an employee who is inducted
into the Armed Forces.

Under proposed new section 4322 ell types of service would
be treated as 'service in the uniformed services" and time
periods during which a person must return to work or make an
application for reemployment would be based on the length of an
individual's absence for that service.

In addition, proposed new section 4322 would provide for an
extension of up to tw., years of reemployment reporting dates for
persons who are hospitalised for or convalescing from a service-
connected injury or illness. Current law provides for an
extension of reporting requirements by up to one year while the
individual is hospital'sed. In my view, this does not allow
sufficient time for recovery or rehabilitation. Appropriate
physical and vocational rehabilitation can take a considerable
amount of time during and beyond hospitalization. Thin bill
would afford persons with service-connected disabilities a more
reasonable amount of time for recovery and rehabilitation.

Bsptj_2_,astsggaofgg.tkm_gr_sj,L jzttogsg_
The Persian Gulf War Veterans' Benefits Act of 1991 amended

the VBX law to require employers to make reasonable
accommodations for disabled persons seeking reemployment. That
provision was derived from a provision of S. 33G as introduced by
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Senator Kennedy. However, in conference with the House an
exemption from this requirement was added for certain employers,
primarily small businesses. When the Senate considered the
conference report on S. 725, I notEr1 my concern that disabled
veterans seeking to return to Jobe with small employers would not
have the clear right to reasonable accommndation even where it
would not result in undue hardship for th. employer. As
promised, I did revisit this issue in the development of this
revision of the reemployment rights law. Thus, proposed section
4323 contains no limitction on the applicability of the
reasonable accommodation requirement.

Employment Itiohte end Alsonefite

Continuation, qf Insurance Coverase: Proposed new section
4325 would provide for, at the employee's request, a continuation
of employer-offered insurance coverage for up to 18 months after
an individual enters on duty in a uniformed service. The
employee generally could be required to pay no more than 202
percent of the premium required of other employees for such a
continuation of coverage, and a person serving for less than 31
days may not be required to pay more than the normal employee
share of any premium.

When Congress passed a similar health benefit provision in
the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, it
exempted group health plans sponsored by the fideral government
and certain church-related organisations, as well as private
sector, State, and local plans maintained by employers with fewer

- than 20 employees in the previous year. The proposed new section
would close those gaps for purposes of the reemployment rights
law and provide the health-care option for all those whose
employment is interrupted by service in the uniformed services.

petention Riphtss Under current law, retention rights for
reemployed persons are based upon length of service in the
uniformed services. Thus, the law generally requires r:at
persons who are reemployed in their civilian jObs aftei serving
for 90 days or more cannot be disdharged without cause for one
year. A person who served less 90 days cannot be discharged
without cause for six months. In

I believe that a person's retention rights should be linked
to the amount of previous employment with a particular employer,
not the length of absence for service in the uniformed services.
For example, an employee with 18 years of seniority who must
report for a month of reserve training should not have only six
weeks of protection upon returning to the job. Thus, proposed
new section 4325 would provide a person who had been employed
with an employer for less than four years, including time spent
in the uniformed services, with six months of retention rights.
A person whc but been employed with an employer for four or more
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years, again including time spent in the uniformed services,
could not be discharged without cause for one year.

Accrued Leaves Proposed new section 4325 also would provide
that a person, upon submitting a written request to his or her
employer, would be able to use accrued leave while serving in the
uniformed services. Under current law, many employers treat
persons ordered to active duty as if they were on furlough or
leave without pay. Thus, the salary that they earn from the
uniformed services, which often is less than their civilian pay,
becomes their only income. This provision would allow employees
with accrued annual leave with pay to use that leave while
serving in the uniformed services, thereby helping to alleviate
the hardship of a suddenly reduced income.

Employee Pension Reeefit Plans: Proposed new section 4326
would clarify conflicting federal case law regarding employee
rights to various pension benefits plans while on active duty
with the uniformed services. All pension benefit plans described
in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (29 U.S.C.
1002(2)) or under federal or State laws governing pension
benefits for governmental employees -- whether defined-benefit or
defined-contribution plans -- would be covered by the new law.
Under this provision, for pension purposes, a person would be
treated as not having incurred a break in service with the
employer; service in the uniformed services would be considered
service with the employer; the employer who reemploys the person
would be liable for funding any resulting obligation; and the
reemployed person would be entitled to any accrued benefits from
employee contributions to the extent that the person makes
payments.

Entitlement Limitations: A number of lawsuits have arisen
regarding extended and frequent reserve and National Guard
training tours of duty. Although current section 2024(d) of
title 38 does not place a limit on the nature, timing, frequency,
or duration of periods of military training, a number of judicial
decisions have upheld the application of a "reasonableness-
requirement to military leave requests. It is my belief that
such a test is contrary to the purposes of the VRR law and unduly
constrains the ability of the dirlformed services to determine the
best use of its reserve members. Proposed new section 4327 would
clarify conflicting federal case law regarding limitations on
entitlement to reenployment rights and benefits by providing that
entitlement does not depend upon the timing, frequency, duration,
or nature of a person's service. This provision would preclude
training requests being subject to a *reasonableness' test by
employers to determine a reservist's entitlement to reemployment
rights and benefits.

1 61
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jamm1gyftat_gx_s2
plohte or Benefttp

Under current law, the Secretary of Labor is required to
assist persons who seek the Secretary's help in obtaining
reemployment. In carrying out this requirement, the Secretary
utilises State and federal agencies and volunteers. Proposed new
section 4332 would provide clear instructions regarding the
submission of a complaint to the Secretary of Labor and the
Secretary's responsibilities in providing assistance.

Invoottaatiope of Comoloints

Most reemployment cases currently are resolved without the
need for litigation. Upon receiving a complaint from a returning
employee, the Department of Labor notifies the employer and
investigates the circumstances under which restoration was denied
to determine if the employee is entitled to the job. The
Department then attempts to achieve voluntary compliance with the
law by the employer to obviate the need for litigation.

In order to strengthen the ability of the Department to
investigate and resolve these cases in a timely manner, proposed
new section 4332 would authorize the Secretary of Labor to
request by subpoena the attendance and testimony of witnesses and
the production of documents relating to any matter under
investigation.

Enforcement

Federal Oovernment Employees: In the case of failure or
refusal by the federal government to comply with the reemployment
rights law, current law provides the Office of Personnel
Management with the authority to order compliance and to require
compensation for loss of salary or wages for the employee
concerned. These cases are adjudicated by the Merit Systems
Protections Board, before which claimants must represent
themselves or retain private counsel at their own expense.
Unlike employees of State or private employers, however, federal
employees receive no federal representation in adjudicating their
reemployment rights.

This bill would rectify the inequity that exists for federal
workers who seek enforcement of the VBR law. Under proposed new
section 4333, federal employees whose cases are not resolved
successfully by the Department of Labor would be able to request
representation by the Office of Special Counsel before the MSPB.
Alternatively, they could appear before the MSPB with
representation of their own choosing.

In addition, federal employees would be able to petition a
U.S. Court of Appeals to review a decision of the MSPB and could

53-055 0 - 92 - 6
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continue to be represented by Special Counsel at the appellate
level. Both the RSPB and Courts of Appeals would have the
authority to award reasonable attorneys' fees, expert witness
fees, and other litigation expenses to individuals who prevail.

Zmplovees of State and Private poleyeres Under current
law, the employees of State and private employers are provided
with representation for their VFW claims by United States
Attorneys. Thus, responsibility for determining which cases
merit representation is dispersed throughout 94 federal district
jurisdictions, which has led to some differential treatment of
VRR claims based on where the individual seeking reemployment
lives. Proposed new section 4334 would give the Attorney General
the authority to decide which cases will receive representation.
This should help to ensure that the provision of federal
representation is dependent more upon the merits of individual
cases 8nd less upon the location of the employee concerned.

As in the case of federal employees, this section would give
individuals the option of choosing private counsel and would
authorize the awerd of attorneys' fees and expenses to employees
who prevail.

The best way to ensure timely reemployment is to provide
employers and employees with accurate information regarding their
rights, benefits, and obligations under the law. Thus, this bill
would require the Secretary of Labor, after consultation with the
Secretaries of Defense, Transportation, Health and Human
Services, and Veterans Affairs, to make reemployment rights
information available to veterans, persons serving in the
uniformed services, and employers of such persons.

ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING DIC REFORM

I have an announcement about DIC reform. I have been
working for several swaths to draft a bill to reform the
dependency and indemnity compensation program. My proposal will
address the present inequities in the aystem, without reducing
benefits for those already receiving DIC.

I have not yet introduced a DIC-reform bill because I feel
that it would not be responsible to do that before we have a firm
idea of the cost of the proposal. On April 2, Committee staff
anked the Congressional Budget Mice to provide me with a
preliminary cost estimate for my draft bill. Unfortunately, data
currently available from VA are not 'sufficient to allow CSO to
make a reliable estimate, and VA advises that it could take
several months to collect sample data sufficient for this
purpose. I will place in the record of this hearing a copy of t
letter I received from CSO about this problem.

pwr
t etd, .
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For these reasons, I have decided to remove DIC-reform from

the agenda of the June 12 hearing and the June 26 markup. This

will enable other legislation -- most notably the COLA for
service-connected compensation -- to go forward in a timely

manner.

I plan to hold hearings on DIO-reform proposals as soon as

we receive the Administration's bill and a cost estimate for my

bill.

CONCLUSION

In closing, I note that a mark-np for the education and

Court of Veterans Appeals legislation before the Committee today
has been scheduled for June 6, 1991. Due to the complexity of

the reemployment rights legislation, it will be included in the
Committee's June 26 mark-up. I look forward to working with VA

and the other organizations represented here today, the
Committees Ranking Minority Member, Senator Specter, and all

Members of the Committee to develop legislation that will gain

the support of our Committee.

Again, my sincere thanks for your participation today.
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COSSIIIMISIONAS. MOW OM=
U.S. COMMIS
WASHINGT011. D.C. aii

May 22, 1991

Honorable Alan Cranston
Chains=
Committee on Veterans Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mr. Cheinnan:

Reeert D. Seise Issuer
DIreeter

Your staff has asked the Congressional Budget Office to provide you with an update cm the
status of our efforts to estimate the cost of legislatkm to reform the Dependency and Indemnity
Compensation (DIC) program. The request pertained to the Committee's draft proposal that we
received on April 2, 1991.

As sve dismissed with your staff, there were no data available on which to base a reliable
estimate of the impact of this legislation Therefore, on April 10, 1991, CB0 asked that the
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) provide us with data on a sample of 1.200 DIC CUM On
May 9, 1991, CB0 received from VA limited information on a much smaller sample pleases. After
reviewing the data, we determined that it is insufficient for our purposes, and on May 13 we
resubmitted the original request. At this time, VA expects to have the full sample available within
a few months.

Nevet leas, CB0 is now examining ahernative ways of estimating the DIC proposal based
on data currently available. We would like very much to provide the Committee with an indication
of the magnitude of Lois proposal's effects on the DIC population and on the budget, but our ability
to analyze the proposal effectively wW be constrained by the inadequaq of the available data. As
discussed with your staff, we hope to provide a preliminary estimate to the Committee shortly after
the Memorial Day recess. Once we receive thr full sample data from VA, we will review our
preliminary animate in tile light of new information.

We will continue to keep your staff informed of the status of this estimate.

Robert D. Reisebauer
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STATRNENT OF SENATOR ARLEN SPECTER (R-PA)

IN CONNECTION wins THE NAT 23, 1991 HEARING OF

2B8 SENATE conmrprEn on VITERANS" Armin

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and thank you. And thanks also

to our witnesses. I can see we will have a full morning on

these important matters.

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to be present this morning for

the Committee's hearing on five important bills: S. 1095, the

"UnifGrmed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of

1991," and its companion measure from the House, H.R. 1578;

S. 868, a bill to make amendments in education measures for the

benefit of our Persian Gulf War veterans; H.R. 153, a bill to

make miscellaneous administrative and technical improvements in

the operation of the United States Court of Veterans Appeals;

and S. 1050, a bill which would permit the Court of Veterans

Appeals to accept voluntary services.

S. 1095/H.R. 1578

Mr. Chairman, I was pleased to join you as an original

cosponsor ot E 'Uniformed Services Employment and

Reemployment Rig.its Act of 1991." This bill would amend the

veterans' reemployment rights (VRR) law (chapter 43 of title 38,

United States Code) to provide a basic reorganization of the VRR

1 f
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law, and to assure that returning servicemembers are protected

in all aspects of their employment (except for pay and work

performed) as if they had been continuously employed during such

period of service.

Since 1940, veterans, reservists and members of the

National Guard have enjoyed varying degrees of protection that

assured their return to civilian pre-service employment

following military duty. During those 50 years, VRR law has

grown in size and complexity. Nevertheless, since its last

substantial recodification in 1974, more than 600 court cases

have further defined the limits of the law. Not surprisingly,

occasional confusion has resulted, leading to the need for this

bill.

I am pleased to note that S. 1095 drawy in large part on

three years of hard work by a task force comprised of

representatives of the Departments of Labor, Defense and

Justice, and of the Office of Personnel Management. The

majority and minority staffs of the Committee on veterans'

Affairs, in a bipartisan effort, have worked together and with

Administration officialu to produce the bill we introduced last

Thursday, May 16. We will also be reviewing a very similar

bill, H.R. 1578, which passed the House on Nay 14. While there

remain a few technical matters to work out, / am confident that

all concerns can be resolved.

- 2 -
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This area of the law, Mr. Chairman, can be highly

technical. But to the individual citizen-soldiers--the r:n and

women on wham this nation has proudly relied in times of

military crisis--these rights are critical. Further, our total

force policy makes our country more dependent than ever on the

Reserve Components for essential military readiness. There can

be no clearer demonstration of this than the current situation

in the Persian Gulf, when many of our friends and neighbors

unhesitatingly traded business attire for desert fatigue

uniforms to protect our interests thousands of miles from home.

The purpose of S. 1095 is to clarify the rights of these

brave men and women. I am proud to be associated with such an

effort, and look forward to reviewing the testimony on this bill

at our hearing today.

S. 868

Mr. Chairman, S. 868, would restore certain educational

benefita available to reserve and active-duty personnel under

the Montgomery Gl Bill to students whose course studies were

interrupted by being called to active duty or given increased

work as a result of the Persian Gulf conflict. The pursuit of

education is an important one, and those individuals who not

only pursue academic excellence, but also answer the call to

duty of their country should not be penalized with the loss of

their educational benefits. This legislation would restore the

- 3 -
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full amount of benefits available to the student veteran as if

the interrupted course had not been taken.

H.R. 153

Mt. Chairman, H.R. 153 would amend title 38, United States

Code, to make miscellaneous administrative and technical

improvements in the operation of the United States Court of

veterans Appeals.

Technically, the bill would eliminate the current 30-day

delay in the effective date of COVA decisions and make

discretionary, rather than mandatory, the return by the Court of

books, records, and diagrams submitted to the Court as part of

an administrative determination.

Administratively, the bill would direct the Couxt to

prescribe rules which establieh procedures for the filing,

investigation, and ruling of complaints with respect to the

conduct of any COVA judge; authorize the Chief Judge of the

Court to annually summon the judges of such Court to a judicial

conference in order to consider business of the Court and to

improve the administration of justice sdthin the Couzt's

jurisdiction; apply current Federal rules concerning the

disqualification of justices, judges, or magistrates to COVA;

- 4 -
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and require the Congressional Record to be distributed to the

COVA.

With respect to the individual COVA judges, the bill would

raise the salary of the associate judges from one egnal to that

of a U.S. District Court judge--currently $125,100--to one equal

to the salary of a U.S. Court of Appeals judge--currently

$132,700--and would permit COVA judges to contribute five

percent of their basic pay to the Thrift Savings Fund.

S. 1050

S. 1050 would permit COVA to accept voluntary services and

gifts of personal property--such as law books and works of art--

and to establish unpaid law student intern and extern prograna

similar to those operated by other federal courts. This bill,

Mr. Chairnan, was requested by the Court and parallels authority

within the Article III courts.

Mr. Chairman, I look forward to hearing and reviewing

today's testimony.

- 5 -
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SENATOR JAMS N. =MORNS
MATE FNMA= AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

NAT 23, 1991

Mr. Chairman:

I would like to welcome members of the veterans services
organizations and officials from the Departments of Veterans
Affairs, Defense, Labor, and Justice here today to present
testimony concerning changes and improvements in veterans'
education and employment benefits and judicial review issues.
am pleased to be able to have a chance to hear your valuable
input on the legislation before us this morning.

Clearly, we all agree on the importance and of S. 868, a bill
introduced by the Chairman of this committee, Senator Cranston.
S. 868 would restore educational benefits lost by members of the
Armed Forces as a result of being called up to active duty, or
being deployed and unable to complete the courses in which
they were enrolled.

Also introduced by Senator Cranston is S. 1095, the Uniformed
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991. As you
all know, since shortly before World War II, employment
protections for members of the Armed Forces have been in place to
ensure veterans that their civilian jobs would not be jeopardized
by their military service. However, over the years, many changes
have been made to the original law to neet the changing
circumstances of military duty. Conseqeently, the law has become
complex and difficult to interpret.

Recognizing the inadequacy of the existing veterans reemployment
statutes, a task force was formed in 1907 to determine what
revisions had to be made to meet the needs of today's veterans.
For three years task force members representing the Departments
of Labor, Defense, Justice, and the Office of Personnel
Management have worked to draft effective revisions. S. 1095 is
the result of their efforts.

It is very important to remember that because we are reducing the
size of our Armed Forces, we must rely more and more on the
Reserves and the National Guard. while offering incentives to
retain and recruit personnel into the Reserves and National
Guard, we must also offer a guarantee that military service will
not result in the loss of their jobs.

And finally, I am looking forward to hearing testimony concerning
S. 1050, legislation requested by Chief Judge Nebeker of the
Court of Veterans Appeals, and H.R. 153, the Veterans Judicial
Review Amendments of 1991.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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STATEMENT BY SENATOR ALAN K. SIMPSON

SENATE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS, HEARING OF MAY 23, 1991

MR. CHAIRMAN, I APPRECIATE HAVING THIS OPPORTUNITY TO COMMENT ON

THESE IMPORTANT ISSUES RELATING TO THE EMPLOYMENT AND EDUCATION OF

VETERANS AND THE COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS. THIS HEARING IS AN

APPROPRIATE FORUM FOR THESE MATTERS WITH WHICH WE ARE ALL SO DEEPLY

CONCERNED.

I WANT TO COMMEND THE ADMINISTRATION, AS WELL AS THE CHAIRMAN AND

RANXING MEMBER, FOR WORKING SO DILIGENTLY TO INTRODUCE LEGISLATION

WHICH AMENDS THE VETERANS REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS (VRR) LAWS. THE NEED TO

CLARIFY AND REVISE THESE LAWS IS UNNISTAKABLE. I BELIEVE THAT THIS

PROPOSAL IS A THOUGHTFUL AND TIMELY RESPONSE TO THE NEEDS OP VETERANS

AND ONE THAT MOST DEFINITELY DESERVES THE ATTENTION OF THIS COMMITTEE.

I XNOW THAT THE DEPARTMENTS OF LABOR, DEFENSE, AND JUSTICE, AND

THE OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT HAVE ALL PLAYED KEY ROLES IN

DRAFTING BOTH THIS BILL AND A SIMILAR BILL WHICH WAS RECENTLY PASSED BY

THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES. I TRUST THAT WE WILL ALL WORK TOGETHER

IN RESOLVING WHATEVER TECHNICAL DISAGREEMENTS MAY STILL REMAIN. IT IS

OUR RESPONSIBILITY TO ASSURE THAT THOSE CITIZENS WHO MAY BE PRESSED

INTO ACTIVE DUTY ARE TREATED FAIRLY WHEN THEY RETURN TO THEIR JOBS. I

PLEDGE MY FULL SUPPORT roR MEETING THIS IMPORTANT OBJECTIVE.

I ALSO WANT TO EXPRESS MY SUPPORT FOR THE "EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE

AMENDMENTS" THAT THE CHAIRMAN HAS INTRODUCED. AGAIN, THESE PROVISIONS

ARE AN APPROPRIATE RESPONSE TO THE EDUCATIONAL NEEDS OF THOSE SERVICE

1 7
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MENEM AND RESERVISTS WHO SERVED IN THE mu CONFLICT. THEY PROPOSE

THAT EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE BENEFITS BE RESTORED TO THOSE INDIVIDUALS

WHO HAD RECEIVED BENEFITS, BUT WERE UNABLE TO COWLITZ THEIR COURSES

BECAUSE OF THEIR SERVICE. ALL THOUGHTFUL PERSONS WILL AGREE THAT THE

FINE YOUNG MEN AND WOMEN WHO HAVE SERVRD THIS COUNTRY WITH SUCH

DISTINCTION SHOULD NOT LOSE ANY EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE BENEFITS BECAUSE

THEIR SERVICE PREVENTED THEM FROM COMPLETINGTLEIR COURSES. WE JUST

WILL NOT LET THAT HAPPEN.

FINALLY, I WOULD LINE TO COMMENT ON THE COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS

LEGISLATION. WHILE THESE BILLS SEEM TO SE NONCONTROVERSIAL FOR THE

MOST PART, I WOULD OFFER A CAUTIONARY NOTE ABOUT THE PROVISION IN THE

HOUSE BILL THAT REQUIRES EACH JUDGE OF THE COURT TO BE PAID AT THE SAXE

RATE AS JUDGES ON THE U.S. COURTS OF APPEAL. I UNDERSTAND THAT THE

RATIONALE FCM PAYING THE CHIEF JUDGE AT THE HIGHER RATE IS TO

COMPENSATE HIM FOR HIS ADMINISTRATIVE DUTIES. BUT I DO HAVE SOME

RESERVATIONS ABOUT THE MERITS OF PAYING THE OTHER JUDGES AT TEE HIGHER

RATE.

THE COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS IS AN ARTICLE I COURT, JUST LIRE THE

U.S. CLAIMS COURT OR THE U.S. TAX COURT, BOTH OF WHICH ARE PAID AT THE

SAME RATE AS U.S. DISTRICT COURT JUDGES. I THINE THIS IS A PROVISION

WE RAY WANT TO REVIEW MORE CLOSELY TO DETERMINE IF, IN FACT, THE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COURT WARRANT THIS PAY INCREASE. I UNDERSTAND

TEAT TIIE MONETARY EFFECT OF THIS LEGISLATION WOULD BE ABOUT $7500 PER

JUDGE. COMPARED TO SOME OF THE OTHER THINGS WE DO AROUND HERE, THAT

MIGHT SEEM TO BE A PALTRY SUM OF MONEY, BUT I DO NOT BELIEVE THAT ALONE

IS SUFFICIENT REASON TO APPROVE THIS PROVISION. I WOULD URGE NT

172
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COLLEAGUES TO GIVE THIS PAY INCREASE A MORE THOROUGH REVIEW BEFORE

PASSING IT INTO LAW.

AGAIN, I THANK THE CHAIRMAN AND RANKING MEMBER FOR THEIR

LEADERSHIP ON THESE ISSUES. SOME OF THE LEGISLATION la CRANK OUT OF

THIS COMMITTEE TENDS TO BE A BIT DRY AND LACKING IN GLAMOR, BUT IT IS

SO VERY IMPORTANT TO THE VETERANS WHO BENEFIT FROM IT. I AM PROUD TO

BE INVOLVED IN THESE MATTERS AND I LOOK FORWARD TO CONTINUING A

PRODUCTIVE SESSION.

1. 7
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STATENEUT BY SENATOR STROM THURMOND (R-SC) BEFORE A HEARING OF THE
SENATE VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE REFERENCE VETERANS EDUCATION AND
EMPLOYMENT AND THE COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS, THURSDAY, MAY 23,
1991, RUSSELL 418, 9:40 AM.

MR. CHAIRMAN:

It is a pleasure to be here today to receive testimony on

several pieces of veterans legislation, including: 1) S. SW a bill

to improve educational assistance benefits for members of the armed

forces who served on active duty during the Persian Gulf War; 2)

5.1095, the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights

Act; 3) the Court of Veterans Appeals pay raise legislation; and 4)

S. 1050, legislation to allow the Court of Veterans Appeals to

accept voluntary services, gifts, and bequests.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to commend you and the ranking

minority member, Senator Specter, for scheduling this hearing. I

also want to take this opportunity to extend a warm welcome to the

distinguished group of witnesses present today. It is good to see

that Chief Judge Frank Nebeker is with us today. It has been a

little over two years since the Court of Veterans Appeals was

established and Judge Nebeker has shown the able leadership

neccesary to the success of the Court's mission of protecting the

rights of our veterans. The welfare of veterans has always been a

matter of utmost concern to me, and I am pleased to hear from each

of the witnesses this morning.

Due to the tremendous Federal deficit and the struggle to get

the budget under control, all Senate committees face the difficult

task of weighing competing demands for limited Federal resources. At

the same time, we must remain committed to providing the best of

- 1 -
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care for the brave men and women who have served in the armed

forces.

The testmony presented here today will help this committee to

make well-informed decisions and I want to thank the witnesses for

the insight they vill share with us.

Mr. Chairman, I must leave to attend another meeting at this

time. I look forward to reviewing the testimony.

- 2 -

END
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OTAIIMMI Of
TOMAS O. COMM

ASSIOMOT OICOMART Of LABOR
VOX VITZIANS' IMPLOVIOM MID mamma

WORM fil
COMMIX ON iffIRAW AVYILIRE

ammo OTATIO =MTN

May 23, 1991

Mr. Chairman and Distinguished Members:

Thank you for the opportunity to present testimony on the

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Right. Act. I

certainly support the Committee's effort and recognize your

commitment toward strengthening the veterans' remployment rights

program through a new Uniformed Services Employment and

Reemployment Rights Act.

The citizen soldier is an American tradition. Throughout

our history, Americans have left their civilian pursuits to

defend the nation and the principles of liberty and justice we

cherish. The recent conflict in the Middle East has been no

exception. Thousands of men and women serving in the National

Guard and other military reserve components ware called to active

duty to respond to an act of aggression that challenged and

threatened all who value freedom and rule of law. In addition,

experienced serchant seamen left other lines of work to staff

cargo and Navy vessels going to the theater of operations. Some

have cone back, others soon will return. They have and will be

coming home -- returning to their families and to the civilian

endeavors they interrupted to serve our nation.

176
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Since 1940, the existing Veterans' Reemployment Rights law

has protected employees who leave civilian jobs for voluntary or

involuntary service in the regular military forces. Upon

completion of their military service, they are entitled to return

to their previous civilian jobs or similar jobs with the precise

seniority, status and rate of pay they would have attained if

they had remained coatinuously employed. Throughout the years,

amendments to the law have given Reserve and National Guard

members the right to leaves of absence from their civilian jobs

ter participate in military training, and have protected them from

service-related discharge or discrimination in employment by

their employers.

Under the Total Force Policy, adopted by the Department of

Defense in 1973 and recently validated by Operation Desert Sf.arm,

our country is more dependent then ever before upon the Reserve

Components. An essential element of readiness is participation

in training necessary to maintain and enhance military skills.

Reserve Coeponent personnel are unlikely to be willing to

participate in such training unless they can be offered

reasonable assurances that they will not suffer harm with respect

to their civilian jobs and careers. For this reason, the

effective enforcement of reemployment rights is more important

than ever before.

17
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After a thres-year effort by a Task Force of interested

Federal agencies, the Administration proposed a comprehensive

revision of the Veterans' Reemployment Rights statute to secure

the reemployment rights of servicemembers. The need for this

revision was magnified during this latest military action when

large numbers of Reserve and National Guard members were

activated and some weaknesses in the Veterans' Reemployment

Rights law became more apparent.

The Administration's proposal, which has been substantially

adopted by the House of Representatives as H.R. 1578, is designed

to establish clearly the rights of servicemembers and the

responsibilities of employers through clear, simple statutory

language. The Administration's intent also was to ensure that

rights under the existing statute and its case law would be

improved or preserved. In addition, we sought to reduce case

loads and litigation through more timely resolution of

differences.

He are very pleased that the Committee's leadership has

proposed legislation that would accomplish many of these

improvements, while also retaining and continuing the basic focus

and rights of the current law. For example, S. 10950 like H.R.

1578, would:
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Help close gaps in health insurance coverage,

Contiwe to provide similar protections for Federal

employees and non-Federal employees,

Eliminate distinctions between categories of military

training and service,

Make the law more understandable,

Outlaw employer reprisals for claimants, and

Assist recruitment and retention of reservists and

members of the National Guar to support the Total

Force Policy through better job protection.

We are in the process of analyzing the provisions in S. 1095

and comparing them to the Administration's proposal and the

House-passed bill, H.R. 1578. We will supply vritten views on

S. /095 as soon as possible.

We cco point nut at this time that the Senate lin differs

in some .ml.ortant areas from the House bill. The Housl bill,

which we support, provid,s for up to 18 months of insurance

coverage and thr employee lay be reciLired to pay the sntire cost.

The 8a4,0 provieiun or insurance is similar to the continuation

of health benefits requiree ersder the Consolivated Omnibus Budget

Reconciliatix Act of 2985 iCOF(A) for terminated employees:

COBRA requires up to 18 mont:m of continued cov4resie and

specifies that beneficiariec may be required to pay the total

cost of group coverage plus 2 percent for administrative costs.

17!)
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We object to the Senate's requirexent that all employers provide

insurance for up to 18 months with the employee's payment not to

exceed IO2 percent of the oremium reauired of other employees.

Another troublesome provision of the Senate bill requires

all employers, private sector and the Federal Government, to

provide annual leave with pay during the employee'r period of

absence for military service subject to the policy or practice of

the employer. It is unclear whether provision of leave is guided

by the employer's policies with respect to other employees on

leave of cbsence or furlough, or whether accrual of leave is

guided by the employer's policy for employe-4) in active work

status. We support the House bill on Cam issue, which would

entitle employees absent for service in the uniformed services to

the same accrual of leave that other employee; on furlough or

leave of absence have.

S. 1095 would increase direct spending; therefore it is

subject to the pay-as-you-go requirement of the Omnibus Budget

Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA). Offsets to the direct

spending must be included as required by OBRA. The OMB is

working on an estimate of the direct spending impact of the bill.

We have some other suggestions for changes to the bill which

can provide further improvements. H.R. 1578, which the

Administration supports, applies VRR protections to all seven
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uniformed services, which include the five Armed Forces plus the

Public Health Service and the commissioned corps of the National

Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA).

The House bill also covers the Merchant Marine Service *when

domed necessary by the Secretary of Defenee in the interests of

national defense." During Operation Desert Shield/Storm, the

Nation called upon experienced seamen to leave their jobs in

other lines of work to operate vessels carrying military cargo to

th, Persian Gulf area. The Department of Defense and the

Departaent of Transportation have informed us that according

reemployment rights to such persons would be very helpful in

ensuring their availability if they are needed again.

We would also point out that S. 1095 omits the House-passed

provision authorising the President to designate any other

category of persons a "uniformed service" during time of war or

national emergency. DUring World War II, particularly, some

persons (e.g., Women's Air Service Pilots) who were coasidered

r:ivilians performed important, arduous, and dangerous service

under military-like conditions. It is important that the

President have the authority to address these situations as they

arise without having to ask Congress for special legislation.

Another area of concern involves pensions. The language of

S. 1095 needs some clarificatioa in this area. Without change

181
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the pension language could lead to unintended results with regard

to the crediting elf service for benefit accrual purposes under

those plans where contributions are related to current services.

Employer contributions to "defined contribution" plans are

commonly set as a percentage of pay. Requiring crediting of

service for benefit accrual purposes would have no real meaning

in this context and could lead to confusion in interpretation.

In addition, the intelligence community agencies have some

concerns regarding the enforcement procedures involving their

employees. The Administration will submit language to resolve

this concern.

Thera also is a section in the proposed Senate bill which

requires the Department, through my office, to undertake an

outreach or public information campaign to inform veterans of

their reemployment rights. Such a requirement is an unnecessary

repetition of a vigorous, on-going public information campaign

that the Secretary initiated several months ago and that has

already exceeded our expectations in terms of its success. These

efforts irllude national radio and television Public Service

Anncuncements featuring Secretary of Labor Lynn Martin and

General Colin Powell, as well as flyers, fact sheets and the

establishment of a toll-free hotline for veterans' reemployment

rights information. (1-800-442-2VET.) This statutory

requirement would add little to efforts already undertaken but

could negatively impact on our abilities to undertake other

needed activities.

In conclusion, we lock forward to working with the Committee

to clarify and simplify the current veterans' reemployment rights

statute and to resolve the issues I have addressed.
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Mr. Chairman and Membeis of the Committee.

1 am very pleased to appear before you today to discuss the
proposed legislation which would ameed Chapter 43 to Title 38 of
the United States Code, involteleq reemployment rights of military

veterans. As you have requested, I will also comment on S. 868,

a bill to improve educational assistance benefits for members of
the Armed Forces who were called to active duty in support of the

Persian Gulf conflict.

The fundamental right protected by the provisions of Chapter
43 is the right of reinstatement to emplcyment following military
service, including protec4len :If seniority, status, and rate of

pay. Statutory employment protections for members of the Armed
Forces were first enacted just prior to tee Second World War.
Provisions extendirg employment pietections to cover trwining in
the Reserve components were added in 1951. Other ivportant
provisions affecting Peeervists weee added in 1960. In 1968,
additional protection was adopted which prohibits discharge
from employment or denial of promotion or other incidents of
employment, because of an individual's membership in the Reserve
components. An important provis on prohibiting discrimination
against Reservists in tha hiring process were added in 1986.

These statutory provisions are of immense importance to
the Department of Defense generally and to the members of the

uniformed services in particular. They are especially important
to membere of the National Guard and federal Reserve fercee.
Over 80 percent of the enlisted members of the Selected Reserve
and nearly 90 percent of the officers ere employed in the
civilian sector. Whatever incentives may be put in place to
encourage recruitment .ma irtention in the Reserve components,
the incentives are almost certain to be inadequate if Reserviets
are not confident that their military service wizl not resvl in
the loss of their full-time civilian employment.

The progressive piecemeal changes which have been made to
the current veterans' Reemployment Rights statute, changing
circumstances and requirements associated with military duty,
and new laws and practices covering pension plans and health
benefits, have made the current statute complex and difficult to
interpret. To the extent that ambiguities exist, they have
potentially serioua e_nsequences with respect to the basic right
provided by the statute -- reinstatement to previous employment
following military service. Indeed, on February 1, 1991, the
U.S. Supreme Court agreed to consider a case involving the
reemployment rights of a Reservist because of an ambigeity in
the current statute. The isuue in question has been deeided
differently by the federal circuit courts of appeals.
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As a former Assistant United States Attorney, I have had
first-hand experience in representing the government in cases
where ambiguities of law raise doubts about the intent of
Congress. COnsequently, I believe that a revision to the current
statute is required to ensure that we can continue to meet the
original intent of Congress in establishing reemployment rights
for veterans -- i.e., the elimination of disincentives to
military service caused by a fear of loss of civilian employment
opportunities.

Recognizing that progressive changes in the statute coupled
with changing circumstances of military duty have resulted in a
law which needs comprehensive revision, an Interagency Committee
was formed in 1987 to review the current law and to recommend
legislative changes. Representatives from the Departmenta of
Defense, Labor, Justice, and Veterans Affairs joined in the
effort. The proposed legislation which is the product of the
Interagency Cemmittee has received a detailed review within the
Administration. The result of this extended and concentrated
effort is the proposed "Uniformed Services Employment Rights Act
of 1991," which was forwarded to the Congress this March.

Last week H.R. 1578, which encompasses the essence of the
Administration's proposal, was passed unanimously by the Rouse of
Representatives. We have also reviewed S. 1095, the bill which
ynu introduced last week to clarify and improve the Veteran's
Reemployment Rights law. While S. 1095 differs in format from
the Administration's proposal, it is not, In our view, at
variance with the Administration's proposal on most important
matters of substance. There are a number of technical issues
which we believe should be addressed in furtherance of the
most effective and efficient operation of the law, however. I
would ask that we be allowed to provide these technical concerns
for the record.

It is important to note that the proposed legislation would
apply to members of all seven uniformed Services who return to
civilian life after military duty or training, not just
Reservists. We believe it important that all seven uniformed
Services be covered by the statute and that there be stand-by
provisions to provide employment protections to the Merchant
Marine in certain emergency situations. I have been informed by
the Department of Labor, however, that tha great majority of the
cases which it handles involve Reservists. Moreover, the cases
involving Reservists are among the most complex.

In considering these matters, Congress has concluded that
"the support of employers and supervisors in granting employees a
leave of absence from their jobs to participate in military

2
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training without detriment to earned vacation time, pcomotions,
and job benefits is essential to the maintenance of a strong
Guard and Reserve force." I agree. The Department of Defense
also subscribes to the view of Congress that enthusiastic
voluntary cooperation end support from employers is Critical to
successful Reserve programs, but that statutory protections and
an enforcement mechanism form a necessary foundation for this
cooperation.

It was for the purpose of fostering cooperation,
understanding an4 voluntary support by employers of their
employee-Reservist:, that the National Committee for Employer
Support of the Guare and Reserve, an agency within my office, was
originally established. Through effective communication of the
role and importance of Reserve forces within the Total Force, we
believe that we can gain the support of employers in establishing
personnel policies and practices that will encourage, or at least
not obstruct participation by their employees in Reserve
programs.

The National Committee is a grass roots organization which
supports state-level Employer Support Crzolittees, involving over
3,700 volunteera who are influential members of local business,
labor, and professional communities in all fifty states, the
District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands. Guam and
Saipan. The National Committee develops public information
programs, including television and radio spots which are directed
at employers, supervisors and the public to increase the
understanding of the role of National Guardsmen and Reservists in
the Total Force and the Importance of military training time.
The Committee establishes contacts with professional, business
and labor associations and seeks to obtain official statements of
support from associations and their member firms.

The National Committee also works to foster understanding of
the legal rights and obligations of both citizen-soldiers and
thsir employers. During Operations DESERT SHIELD/STORM,
additional telephone banks and a 24-hour telephone watch were
established to answer a wide range of questions from both
Reservists Ind employers. Volunteer civilian members of the
National Committee in the individual states were asked to visit
mobilization sites to answer queetions about employer-related
matters. Difficult or complex questions were referred to
representatives of the Department of Labor.

The great majority of employers want to do what is right and
are supportive of their employee-Reservists who join and serve in
the Armed Forces. During Operations DESERT SHIELD/STORM, many
employers have gone far beyond what the law requires in support

3
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of their employee-Reservists who have been activated. The
proposed statute which we are discussing this morning would serve
as an important reference point for such support.

Permit me to briefly outline what I believe to be some of
the most important features of our proposal. First it would
eliminate distinctions in the protections offered under the law
based on categories of persons or types of duty. Many of the
existing distinctiols are no longer warranted, nor are they
relevant to the eml.loyment relationship. Under existing law,
for example, those 'arsons who enter active duty for a period of
less than four years have 90 days within which to apply for
reinstatement with their former employer. Reservists entering
training duty (other than initial active duty for training in
excess of 12 consecutive weeks), must report for work at the next
scheduled work period after their return. Those who perform
initial active duty in excess of 12 weeks or are ordered to
active duty under section 3731, of Title 10, United States Code,
for any period of time, have 31 days within which to apply for
reemployment.

These distinctions are unlikely to be of concern to
enployers. The most significant factor to an employer is the
length of time the employee is absent. Under the proposed
revision, the time period which the returning servicemember will
have in which to report to his or her preservice employer will
depend upon the duration of the service or training. For
example, a member whose service was for fewer than 31 days will
be required to report to work on the first day after completion
of the service. If the service was 281 days or more, the member
will have up to 90 days to request reemployment and report for
work. This will be easier to understand and apply.

Second, the proposed legislation would clear up existing
confusion on the length of military training that is protected.
The current statute protects the employment of Reservists who
perform military training duty but it does not expressly address
the timing, frequency or duration of the training. The federal
courts of appeals are divided on the proper interpretation of the
law on this point. It is self evident that a Reservist must know
with certainty when he or she oomplies with orders to military
training duty that the legitimacy of the orders with respect to
the timing, frequency or duration of training will not be
questioned. The legislation proposed by the Administration, and
in slightly different form that passed by the House of
Representatives, would eliminate the confusion on this point.

4
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A third important feature of the proposed legislation would
be its clarification of the existing coverage of federal
employees. The amendments to Title 38 of the United States Code
would reiterate that the reemployment obligation applies to the
federal government just as it applies to any other employer. The
Administration proposal would add a new Chapter 92 to Title 5 of
the Code. The proposed new chapter would make it Clear that the
federal government should be a model employer with respect to the
purposes and policies set out in the employment riehts law for
members of the uniformed services. It would also clarify
appellate procedures under which federal employees could seek to
enforce reemployment rights if a federal agency were to fail or
refuse to comply with it obligations under the law. In this
respect, we believe that representation of Federal employees by
the Office of Special Counsel (OSC) should be limited to the
Merit Systems Protection Board Representation of Federal
employees by the OSC in Federal Courts, in section 4333(e) of

S. 1095 is not, in our view. warranted.

The final feature of the proposed legislation which I want
to note here is ts treatment of health end pension benefits.
The importance of these benefits has greatly increased since the
last major revision to the Veterans' Reemployment Rights statute.
During this period of time, other federal laws, such as the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) and the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), have been
enacted. The proposed legislation would sat out clear and
reasonable rules relating to these benefits which are fair and
consistent with other legislation in the benefits area. It would
also ensure that National Guardsmen and Reservists do not lose
health or life insurance benefits, for themselves or their
dependents, because of the performance of short tours of training
duty. The provisions of the legislation which relate
to health benefits would, in my judgment, effectively complement
those provisions relating to health insurance reinstatement
upon reemployment that were included in the Soldiers' and
Sailors' Civil Relief Act Amendments of 1991 which was enacted
on March 18.

There are many other positive features of the legislation
which we have proposed and which you are considering today. As I
indicated earlier, I believe the bill which you introduced last
week is consistent in intent and generally consistent in
substance, Mr. Chairman, with the proposal submitted by the
Administration. I believe the provisions of this legislation
will provide important protections not only for the thousands of
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National Guardsmen and Reservists who have served during
Operations DESERT SHIELD/STORM, but also for those citizen-
soldiers, aailors, Marines, airmen, and coast guardsmen who will
continue to be a critically important part of the Total Force in
the future.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, and with reference to all members of
the Aimed Forces who served in support of the conflict in the
Persian Gulf, I believe that the provisions of S. 868 which you
have introduced would add important protection with respect to
unanticipated consequences of wilitary service on educational
assistance benefits. I would offer only two suggestims in the
interest of perfecting this proposal. First, I believe that its
provisions should include all members ordered to active duty in
support of Operations DESERT SHIELD/STORM. This would then
include members of the Individual Ready Reserve and Retired
members within the provisions of the bill. Secondly, I would
recommend that the provisions of Section 2 of the bill, with
respect to the delimiting date, be modified. We would suggest
that it provide that a member whose eligibility for educational
assistance under the provision of Chapter 30 of Title 10, United
States Code, is affected as the result of the member's active
service in support of the Persian Gulf conflict, be granted an
additional period of eligibility equal to the length of such
service, if needed. This approaeh, while accomplishing the
objective you intend, would preclude the imposition of an
additional administrative burden on the Selected Reserve
educational assistance program which is already overburdened.

6
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

We appreciate the opportunity to provide our views on

S. 1095, the "Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment

Rights Act of 1991," which would amend Chapter 43 of Title 38,

United States Code (Veterans Reemployment Rights). We welcome

the Committee's interest in this important area, which is

especially timely in light of the recent successful efforts of

our military forces in the Persian Gulf.

As you klow, the Administration submitted to the Congress,

in March 1991, a bill to amend the Veterans Reemployment Rights

("VRR') statute. And, on May 14, 1991, the House of

Representaties passed its own version of that bill, H.R. 1578,

the 'Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of

1991." Although different in some relatively minor respects.

H.R. 1578 closely resembles the Administration's bill, which the

Department of Justice fully supports.

The present VRR statute (38 (J.E. 64 2021-2026) was first

enacted shortly before World War II and has been amended many

times over the years. The fundamental right provided by the law

for veterans, reservists, and National Guard members is the right

to reinstatement to their former positions, as if they had never

left, following completion of active duty military service or

training.

The Department of Justice and our United States Attorneys,

together with the Department of Labor, have been closely involved
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with the implementation of VRR rights since, if disputes with

private sector employers cannot be amicably resolved (and, by

far, most of them are), the statute gives a right to the service

member to have the Department of Justpice represent him or her in

a court action against the employer.

Problems have arisen with the implementation of the current

statute, particularly in the area of reemployment rights for

reservists, since our military has increasingly relied upon the

use of reservists in recent years. Years ago, reservists and

National Guard members usually performed their training on

weekends and at two-week summer camps. Now, they are often

required to spend several months or years in training and, as in

Operation Desert Storm, may be called up for extended perioe- of

active Juty service.

In some cases, employers have objected to extended absences

for reservists and guard members. A good example of this is a

recent case involving a request by "Sky° King, a sergeant major

in the Alabama National Guard, for a three-year leave of absence

from his emplcyer to become the State Command Sergeant Major, a

full-time pouition requiring a three-year commitment. The United

States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit held that a

three-year leave of absence is pex sg unreasonable and that the

employer had no obligation under the VRR statute to grant such a

Ieave request. Xing v. St. Vincent'5 _HatIA1, 901 F.2d 1068

(11th Cir. 1990), cert. arAnlad, 59 U.S.L.W. ::545 (U.S. Feb. 19,

1991) (No. 90-889).

- 2 -
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Other courts have also applied a 'reasonableness" test to

determine whether a leave of absence requested by a reservist or

guard member is allowable, See, e,a rgalt_allagt§_apgx_c_grp_,__LL,

Ingram, 811 F.2d 1464 (11th Cir. 1987); lee V. Cktv of_yeasacokle,

634 F.2d 886 (5th Cir. 1981). Apt_pee Nolkhorst v._TilghEen, 897

F.2d 1282 (4th Cir. 1990).

At our request, the Supreme Court granted cerIiorari to hear

the Xing case. We believe the case was wrongly decided since, in

our view, under the existing VRR statute, courts should not

impose their own concepts of 'reasonableness° on the length of

leaves of absence which military necessity may require for

reservists and guard members. Cases such as the Xing case and

others, however, have highlighted features in the existing VAR

statute that are not well-adapted to the modern *total force

policy," which is dependent upon the reserve components,

including the National Guard, for essential military readiness.

In recognition of the need to modernize the existing VRR

statute, an interagency Task Force was formed in 1987 to review

the current law ar ' recommend changes which would preserve

and maintain the be._ rigets of the existing statute, but which

would clarify, strengthen, and modernize the law. The

Departments of Defense, Labor, Justice, and Veterans Affairs,

and other interested agencies participated in the effort. The

Administration's bill is the product of this effort. We believe

that the bill would help avoid litigation where possible or, at

least, make such litigation less expensive and time-consuming for

- 3
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veterans and employers alike. We also believe that passage of an

updated and modernized VIM bill would significantly aid our

representation of veterans in court when that becomes necessary.

Many of the provisions of the Administration's bill are

included in S. 1095, which we largely agree with and believe

wou3 4 reduce and simplify litigation of VRR cases. We do,

however, have certain objections to S. 1095 in its present form

which are important to point out to the Committee.

First, we object to section 4333(e), which provides that

federal employees may be represented by the Office of Special

counsel (00SC°) before both the Merit Systems Protection Board

(214SP13') and the federal courts in appeals from MSPB decisions.

The proposal for OSC representation of federal employees would

create a serious conflict of interest for OSC attorneys because

their erpleyer -- the executive branch -- would be the defendant

in the suit. Moreover, the oSC representation of the employee

could create the constitutionally troubling impression that the

executive branch was taking inconsistent positions before an

Article III tribunal. There is no comparable provision in the

law providing for OSC representation of federal employees in any

other type of case. While the OSC has authority, under 5 U.S.C.

S 1212, to prosecute actions before the MSPB against federal

agencies and individual tederal employees engaging in prohibited

personnel practices, those actions are brought in the name of the

OSC, not in the name of aggrieved employees. OSC's role in such

cases is prosecutorial; it institutes MSPB actions to enforce the

- 4
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law, but does not act as attorney for the aggrieved individuals.

And the OSC has no right of appeal to the federal courts from an

adverse board decision in such cases. Although the aggrieved

employee may appeal from the board's decision, he must do so Jug

ee or retain private counsel.

While we fully support the notion that the Federal

Government ahould be a model employer with respect to VRR rights,

federal employees are adequately protected by section 2029 of the

Administration's bill (which provides for OSC representation

before the RSPB, but not before the federal courts), and also by

the general obligation of federal agencies to cooperate with each

other in complying with Congressional mandates. The Executive

Branch has been very successful in resolving the complaints of

its employees. We understand that, over the past decade, only a

handful of VRR cases have been brought before the MSPB under the

existing procedures set forth at 5 C.F.R. § 353. We should also

note that section 2043 of H.R. 1578 is consistent with section

2029 of the Administration's bill. It provides for OSC

representation of federal employees in actions before the RSPB,

but not before the federal courts. We urge deletion of section

4333(e) of S. 1095. The Committee should adopt the

Administration's proposal with respect to the representation of

federal employees claiming entitlement to VRR benefits.

Second, S. 1095, in sections 4333(c) (4) and 4334(c)(2)(3),

authorizes the MSPB and the district courts, respectively, to

award attorney fees (and ^ther litigation expenses) to prevailing

- 5 -
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employees. We do not believe that these fee provisions are

necessary, since federal representation would be available, at no

cost, to employees with meritorious cases. In addition, such fee

provisions may encourage litigatior1 that could otherwise ba

avoided. Aggrieved employees nay choose to retain private

counsel and instxtute lawsuits, rather than seek the assistance

of the Department of Labor, which has historically had a high

rate of success in resolving these disputes amicably and

obtaining voluntary compliance with the law.

We should also note that section 4333(c) (4) authorizes the

MSPB to award attorney fees to a federal employee whether he is

represented by the OSC or private counsel, while section

4334(c)(2)(B) authorizes the district courts to award fees only

when the empliviee is represented by private counsel, and not when

represented by the Department of Justice. This appears

inconsistent.

Third, we urge the Committee to adopt section 2022(a) of the

Administration's bill. That provision states that:

The provisions of this chapter are intended to
be liberally construed in favor of persons with
entitlements under this chapter and to be
interpreted according to their plain and common
meaning, except as specifically provided herein.

This language is intended to codify the statement of the Supreme

Court that the VRR statute should be 'liberally construed for the

benefit of those who left private life to serve their country.'

yishgold v, Sullivan DrvdocX and Renoir Corp., 328 U.S. 275, 285

(1946). Section 2022(a) of the Administration's bill

- 6 -
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appropriately reflects the view of the courts that VRR

legislation should be construed in favor of veterans. This

provision should be included in the Committee's bill, as it will

undoubtedly assist us when litigation is necessary.

Finally, we also urge the Committee to adopt the definition

of "uniformed services' set faith in section 2023(11) of the

Administration's bill and in section 2023(12) of H.R. 1578. The

definition of "uniformed services contained in S. 1095 at

section 4303(9) is significantly narrower than that set out in

the Administration's bill. Section 4303(9)0 for example, does

not include the Merchant Marine or the commissioned corps of the

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, and it does not

provide for the inclusion of other categories of persons as

designated by the President in time of war or national emergency.

Thank you for this opportunity to present our views.

- 7 -
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bafon: the

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS
UNITED STATES SENATE

at a bearing an

S. 1095, TO AMEND THE VETERANS REEMPLOYMENT
RIGHTS LAW

MR. CHAIRMAN AND =MRS OF THE COMMUTER:

THANK YOU FOR INVITING NE TO JOIN YOU TODAY TO DISCUSS

S. 1095, THE "UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT

RIGHTS ACT OF 1991.w

S. 1095 WOULD REVISE AND RESTRUCTURE THE 50-YEAR-OLD

VETERANS' REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS (VRR) LAW WHICN PROTECTS

EMPLOYMENT INTERESTS WHEN A CIVILIAN IS ABSENT TO PERFORM

ACTIVE MILITARY DUTY OR TRAINING. AS COULD BE EXPECTED WITH

ANY LONG-STANDING LAW, VAR PROVISIONS HAVE BEEN AMENDED

REPEATEDLY OVER THE YEARS AND HAVE BEEN SUBJECT TO NUMEROUS

JUDICIAL INTERPRETATIONS, SO THAT THEY HAVE BECOME DIFFICULT

AND CUMBERSOME TO ADMINISTER. ESSENTIALLY, S. 1095 PROPOSES

A COMPREHENSIVE REFORM OF THE VAR LAW TO: ESTABLISH UNIFORM

DEFINITIONS OF RIGHTS AND BENEFITS, SIMPLIFY THE DETERMINA-

TION OF ELIGIBILITY AND ENTITLEMENTS, AND CLARIFY AND IMMEOVE

PROCEDURES FOR ENSURING TIMELY COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW.

9
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EARLY THIS YEAR, THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR TRANSMITTED A LEGIS-

LATIVE PROPOSAL TO CONGRESS WITH THE SIMILAR PURPOSE OF

STRENGTHENING AND CLARIFYING STATUTORY EMPLOYMENT PROTECTIONS

FOR VETERANS. ON MAY 14th, THE HOUSE PASSED H.R. 178, WHICH

SHARES THE PURPOSE OF S. 1095. THE ADMINISTRATION EXPRESSED

STRONG SUPPORT FOR PASSAGE OF H.R. 1578.

OPM STRONGLY SUPPORTS EFFORTS TO MAKE THE STATUTORY EMPLOY-

MENT PROTECTIONS FOR VETERANS AND RESERVISTS STRONGER AND

CLEARER. I WILL GENERALLY DEFER TO THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

FOR A FULLER ANALYSIS OF THE DETAILS OF, AND THE DIFFERENCES

BETWEEN, THE SENATE AND HOUSE PROPOSALS FOR AMENDING THE VRR

LAW.

I WOULD NOTE A SERIOUS CONCERN WITH SEVERAL PROVISIONS OF

S. 1095 RELATED TO CIVILIAN EMPLOYEE FRINGE BENEFIT

PROTECTIONS DURING ABSENCES FOR ACTIVE MILITARY DUTY THAT GO

BEYOND PRESENT FEDERAL PERSONNEL LAWS. IN THE AREAS or

HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE, FOR EXAMPLE, THE BILL WOULD

REQUIRE CONTINUATION OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES HEALTH AND LIFE

INSURANCE COVERAGE, WITH GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTION, FOR 18

MONTHS IN LIEU OF THE 12 MONTHS CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO

EMPLOYEES ON LEAVE WITHOUT PAY. THE BILL ALSO ENTITLES

EMPLOYEES TO ACCRUE AND USE ADDITIONAL ANNUAL LEAVE DURING

ABSENCES FOR MILITARY SERVICE. FINALLY, THE BILL WOULD

1 1)
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REDUCE THE DEPOSIT THAT IS NOW REQUIRED TOR MILITARY SERVICE

CREDIT UNDER THE FEDERAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM.

S. 1095 WOULD INCREASE DIRECT SPENDING. THEREFORE, IT IS

SUBJECT TO THE PAY-AS-YOU-GO REQUIREMENT OF THE OMNIBUS

BUDGET RECONCILIATION ACT OF 1990. OFFSETS TO THE DIRECT

SPENDING MUST SE INCLUDED AS REQUIRED BY THAT ACT. OMB IS

WORKING ON AN ESTIMATE OF THE DIRECT SPENDING IMPACT OF THE

BILL.

THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT, AS AN EMPLOYER, HAS A LONG-STANDING

TRADITION OF SUPPORT TO AND ENCOURAGEMENT OF EMPLOYEES IN OUR

RESERVE SYSTEM AND HAS A REPUTATION FOR ALREADY ornama

CONSIDERABLY MORE BENEFITS TO RESERVISTS THAN MANY EMPLOYERS.

AS YOU KNOW, EMPLOYEES ARE ENTITLED TO BE REEMPLOYED IN THE

POSITION THEY LEFT, OR AN EQUIVALENT POSITION IN THE AGENCY.

THEY RETAIN ALL THE RIGHTS AND BENEFITS WHEN THEY RETURN THAT

THEY WOULD HAVE RAD IF THEY HAD NEVER LEFT.

TO ENSURE THAT THESE RIGHTS ARE PROVIDED, THE MERIT SYSTEMS

PROTECTION BOARD (MSPB) EXERCISES THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE FORMER CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION TO HEAR ANY APPEALS.

ARISING FROM EMPLOYEES WHO FEEL THAT THEY HAVE NOT RECEIVED

ANY OF THE RIGHTS PROVIDED BY LAW. HISTORICALLY, VERY FEW
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APPEALS HAVE ARISEN, AND THOSE THAT HAVE ARE ALMOST ALWAYS

THE RESULT OF MISUNDERSTANDING RATHER THAN MALICE. THE SMALL

NUMBER OF CASES IS QUITE SIGNIFICANT, GIVEN THE FACT THAT

FEDERAL EMPLOYEES MAKE UP A VERY LARGE PORTION OF THE

RESERVES--AN ESTIMATED 10 PERCENT.

OPM yaEs HAVE A ROLE IN HELPING FEDERAL AGENCIES UNDERSTAND

THEIR OBLIGATIONS TO EMPLOYEES RETURNING FROM MILITARY DUTY,

AND IN INFORMING EMPLOYEES OF THEIR RIGHTS. WE HAVE

EXTENSIVELY REVISED, UPDATED, AND CLARIFIED OUR INFORMATIONAL

MATERIALS IN THIS AREA IN THE LAST SEVERAL YEARS.

IN RESPONSE TO THE MASSIVE DEPLOYMENT OF RESERVISTS TO THE

PERSIAN GULF, OPM HAS INCREASED OUR COMMITMENT TO ENSURING

THAT THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS AS A MODEL EMPLOYER

WITH RESPECT TO VETERANS' EMPLOYMENT PROTECTIONS. THIS

COMMITMENT HAS EXCEEDED THE USUAL REQUIREMENTS OF VRR LAW IN

SEVERAL RESPECTS.

FOLLOWING THE eRESIDENT'S DECISION ON AUGUSA 22, 1990, TO

CALL CERTAIN MEMBERS OF THE ARMED FORCES RESERVES TO ACTIVE

DUTY, OPM ISSUED A GOVERNMENTWIDE MEMORANDUM TO REMIND AGEN-

CIES OF THEIR VRR OBLIGATIONS AND URGE A A TO NW CERTAIN

THAT AFFECTED EMPLOYEES WERE REASSURED ABOUT THEIR EMPLOYMENT

PROTECTIONS BEFORE THEY LEFT FOR MILITARY DUTY.

2 1
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OPM URGED AGENCIES TO RETAIN ASSENT RESERVISTS IN THEIR OWN

POSITIONS ON THE AGENCY ROLLS ETHER =Ad SEPARAT? THEM tan

REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS. THIS ALLOWS THE EMPLOYEES TO CONTINUE

TO RECEIVE PAY FOR THE DURATION OF THEIR HILITARY OR ANNUAL

LEAVE, AND THEY PRESERVE THEIR FEDERAL EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND

LIFE INSURANCE ELIGIBILITY FOR UP TO THE FULL YEAR PERMITTED

BY APPLICABLE LAWS FOR EMPLOYEES ON LEAVE WITHOUT PAY.

FURTHER, OPM ISSUED INTERIM REGULATIONS THAT WAIVED THE

EMPIOYEE SHARE OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES HEALTH BENEFITS PREMIUMS

FOR EMPLOYEES wHILE THEY ARE ON MILITARY DUTY IN SUPPORT OF

OPERATION DESERT SHIELD AND DESERT STORM.

WHEN THE PERSIAN GULF COKLICT CLAIMED THE FIRST AMERICAN

CASUALTIES, OPM ESTABLISHED SPECIAL PROCEDURES TO EXPEDITE

PROCESSING OF SURVIVOR BENEFITS FOR THE FAMILIES OF ANY

FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WHO MIGHT NOT RETURN. WE ONLY HAD TO EMPLOY

THESE PROCEDURES IN FOUR CASES, BUT AT LEAST WE WERE ABLE TO

PROVIDE ESPECIALLY RESPONSIVE SERVICE TO THE FAMILIES OF

THESE EMPLOYEES.

IN ADDITION TO OPM'S OWN INITIATIVES TO PROMOTE THE FULLEST

PROTECTION OF EMPLOYMENT INTERESTS rag FEDERAL EMPLOYEES

PARTICIPATING IN THE PERSIAN GULF WAR, WE HAVE ACCORDED H/GH

PRIORITY TO IMPLEMENTATION OF RECENT PRESIDENTIAL AND CON.
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GRESSIONAL INITIATIVES TO PROVIDE SPECIAL RECOGNITION FOR

VETERANS AS THEY RESUME CIVILIAN LIFE.

ON MARCH 8, 1992, PRESIDENT BUSH SENT A MEMORANDUM TO THE

HEADS OF EXECUTIVE AGENCIES HIGHLIGHTING THE RESPONSIBILITY

OF CIVILIAN EMPLOYERS TO EASE THE RETURN OF RESERVISTS TO

cIvnam LIFE AND SETTING FORTH SOME APPROPRIATE ACTIONS

FEDERAL AGENCIES SHOULD TARE TO SET A NATIONAL EXAMPLE. IN

ADDITION TO REINFORCING OUR PREVIOUS GUIDANCE CONCLRNING

GUARANTEED RESTORATION TO THE EXACT POSITION AN EMPLOYEE LEFT

TO ENTER ACTIVE MILiTARY DUTY, THE MEMORANDUM AUTHORIZED FIVE

DAYS OF PAID ABSENCE WITHOUT CHARGE TO LEAVE FOLLOWING

RESTORATTON TO CIVILIAN EMPLOYMENT. FURTHER, IT DIRECTED OPM

TO ENSURE THAT FEDERAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES ARE AVAILABLE

TO THE GREATEST EXTENT POSSIBLE FOR ALL VETERANS AND IN

PARTICULAR ANY WHO SUFFER SERVICE-RELATED DISABILITY.

BY EXECUTIVE ORDER 12754, THE PRESIDENT AUTHORIZED VETERANS

PREFERENCE FOR PERSONNEL SERVING IN DESERT SHIELD AND DESERT

STORM OPERATIONS IN SOUTHWEST ASIA ON OR AFTER AUGUST 2,

1990. MOAEOVER, MANY VETERANS WHO ARE NOT FEDERALLY EMPLOYED

WILL QUAIFY nil GOVERNMENT APPOINTMENT WITHOUT HAVZNG TO

TAXE CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINATIONS UNDER THE EXPANDED VETERANS

READJUSTMENT APPOINTMENT (VRA) AUTHORITY, ENACTED BY PUBLIC

LAW 102-16, SIGNED MARCH 22, 1991.
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WE HAVE PREPARED DETAILED GUIDANCE FOR AGENCIES CONCERNING

DETERMINATION AND DOCUMENTATION OF VETERANS PREFERENCE

ELIGIBILTTY FOR GULF UR PARTICIPANTS MD THE NEW VRA

AUTHORITY AND WE ARE INAUGURATING A GOVERN/MTN= NETWORE OF

OPM CONTACTS TO HANDLE INQUIRIES ON VETERANS BENEFITS.

MOST RECENTLY, PUBLIC LAW 102-25 DIRECTED OPM TO ISSUE

REGULATIONS ESTABLISHING A GOVERNMINTWIDE RESERVIST LEAVE

BANE PROGRAN. THIS PROGRAM ALLOWS FEDERAL EMPLOYEES TO

DONATE A PORTION OF THEIR ANNUAL LEAVE FOR USE BY OTHER

FEDERAL EMPLOYEES WHEN THEY RETURN TO CIVILIAN SERVICE

FOLLOWING ACTIVE DUTY IN THE ARMED rams DURING THE PERSIAN

GULF CONFLICT. INTERIM REGULATIONS WERE ISSUED EARLIER THIS

MONTH AND OPM HAS DISTRIBUTED ADDITIONAL GUIDANCE FOR AGENCY

USE IN IMMMENTING THE PROGRAM.

OPM IS COMMITTED TO CONTINUING THE FULLEST SUPPORT or

VETERhNS NOW RETURNING FROM THE GULF. orm THE LARGE NUM-

BERS OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES WHO WERE CALLED TO ACTIVE DUTY AND

THE FACT %TAT MANY HOLD KEY POSITIONS IN THEIR AGENCIES, OUR

EFFORTS TO ENSURE MAXIMUM PROTECTION or THEIR EMPLOYMENT

RIGHTS AND BENEFITS HAVE REQUIRED CONSIDERABLE CREATIVE

PROBLEM-SOINING ON THE PART OF AGENCIES IN CONTINUING TO

CARRY OUT THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES. HOWEVER, WE BELIEVE THAT

OUR CITIZEN/SOLDIERS WHO HAVE SERVED TO PRESERVE FREEDOM IN

THE PERSIAN GULF DESERVE NO LESS.

I WOULD BE GLAD TO RESPOND TO ANY QUESTIONS YOU HAVE AT THIS

TIME.
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STATEMENT OF
HONORABLE FRANK Q. IMBERER

CHIEF JUDGE, UNITED STATES COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS
BEFORE THE

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS
umrrmv STATES SENATT

MAY 23, 1991

MR. CHAIRMAN AND MENBERS OF THE COMMITTEE:

On behalf of the Court, I appreciate this opportunity to

comment on pending legislation affecting the operations of the

Court. my comments will focus primarily on section 4 of H.R. 153,

which would authorize the Court to establish judicial discipline

procedures. I will also briefly address S. 1050, which you were

kind anough to introduce on behalf of the court. Before I address

either S. 1050 or section 4 of H.R. 153, however, permit me to uake

two brief preliminary comments, one concerning H.R. 153 in general,

and one directed to a specific provision.

First, I can state that the Court endorses all provisions of

H.R. 153. Second, I would like to comment briefly on section 3 of

H.R. 153, which establishes a judicial pay structure consistent

1
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with that of all other Article I and Article III courts, including

the U.S. Court of Military Appeals. The pay structure of those

courts recognizes the principle of equal pay for equal work.

initially recommended such action on June 8, 1989, and believe that

the provision now under consideration is consistent with the intent

of the legislation that created the Court. In view of this Court's

appellate status, I believe that a salary level commensurate with

that of the Court of Military Appeals is the most appropriate one.

Third, the Court appreciates your courtesy in giving such

prompt consideration to S. 1050. We again endorse this proposal,

transmitted to the Committee on April 18, 1991. S. 1050 would

amend section 4081 of title 38 by adding a new subsection (1),

which would permit the Court to accept voluntary services and gifts

of personal property. The new subsection (i) would permit the

Court, generally in cooperation with educational institutions, to

establish unpaid law student intern and extern programs similar to

those o.-erated by other federal courts. After hiving been

approached by law schools and individual students, we have noted

that the Court is not covered by any exception to the statutory

limitation on voluntary services contained in section 1342 of title

31. Proposed subsection (i) would create such an exception. It

would incorporate the language of section 604(0(17) of title 28,

which grants authority to the Director of the Administrative Office

of the United States Courts (AO) to accept such services on behalf

of Article III courts.

2
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Other language in proposed subsection (i) anticipates the

likelihood that gifts or bequests, particularly of books or works

of art, will be made to this Court as they have to other courts.

The provision would grant authority to the Court to accept such

gifts or bequests. The proposed language also parallels language

in section 604(a)(17), that grants similar authority to the

Director of the AO.

I turn now to section 4. Section 4 of H.R. 153 would add a

new subsection (g) to section 4053 of title 38. Subsection (9)

would authorize the Court to establish procedures consistent with

those of section 372(e) of title 28 for the filing of complaints

about alleged conduct of any judge of the Court and for the

investigation and resolution of such complaints. 1 would like to

make two points concerning section 4 of H.R. 153. My first point

is that the Court endorses section 4 because it provides the

authority necessary for the Court to establish a judicial

discipline procedure. My second point is that the Court believes

that further statutory amendment is necessary and desirable to

provide for appeal to judicial entities outside the Court, as is

permitted with respect to judicial discipline actions of the Claims

Court under sections 176, 331, and 372(c) of title 28.

Without the enactment of provisions such as those in section

4 of H.R. 153, we believe that this Court, as an Article 1 court,

has no clear authority to establish judicial discipline procedures.

3
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Judicial discipline procedures under title 28 clearly apply to the

judges of the U.S. district courts, the twelve regional circuit

courts of appeals, and three other courts identified specifically

in what had been paragraph (17) -- now redesignated as paragraph

(18) -- of section 372(0) of title 28. The three courts are two

Article III courts -- the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal

Circuit and the U.S. Court of International Trade -- and a single

Article I court -- the U.S. Claims court. Paragraph (18) requires

these courts to "prescribe rules consistent with" the provisions of

section 372(c). Congress has apparently viewed legislation as the

appropriate method for the establishment of a judicial complaint

mechanism for Article III courts and for the Claims Court. Section

4 of H.R. 153 will provide the required statutory directive to the

Court of Veterans Appeals.

Let me state as preface to my second point concerning section

4 that the Court has no objection to that section as presently

drafted. The Court is prepared to move forward with its

implementation. It can be implemented by the Court in a way

substantially consistent with section 372(c) of title 28, and with

the removal provisions of section 4053(f) of title 38.

Section 4053(f) (1) of title 38 currently provides for removal

of the court's judges by the President only "on grounds of

misconduct, neglect of duty, or engaging in the practice of law."

However, the Court notes that, with the exception of review by the

4
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President in a removal case, it does not appear that the proposed

legislation or existing law would authorize any process for

independent review by an entity outside the Court of a Court

disposition of a complaint. Such review is provided for in section

372(C)(4)-(10) of title 28 for certain courts specifically

referenced in section 372(c). Review under these provisions occurs

in a special committee of a regional judicial council, in the full

judicial council, and through appeal of the council's action to the

Judicial Conference of the United States by the complainant or

respondent judge. Because the Court of Veterans Appeals is not

referenced in section 372(c) of title 26, independent review of the

Court's disciplinary actions by a judicial entity outside the Court

itself does not appear to be available.

Accordingly, the Court favors an amendment to provide for such

appeal. I am not prepared to recommend such actira until I know

the position of the Judicial Conference of the United States.

However, providing for an appeal outside the Court itself would

avoid any perception of partiality or unfairness.

It may be determined that such legislation requires formal

action by the Senate Judiciary Committee and an amendment to title

28. In that event, while the process moves forward in the Congress

regarding consideration of such a title 28 amendment, the Court is

prepared to implement proposed subsection (g) if it is enacted as

currently drafted in section 4 of H.R. 153. The Court is reviewing

5
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various options for implementation and will be prepared to proceed

promptly to implement any judicial discipline legislation that is

enacted.

In conclusion, I again thank you for this opportunity to

present the Court's comments concerning the pending amendments to

title 38. I want to express my gratitude, and that of all the

Court's judges, officers, and employees, for this Committee's

continuing support. We will be happy to answer any questions the

Committee may have concerning the Court's comments.

6
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STATEMENT OF

DMITRI GRAF

CHIEF ENNEFITS DIRECTOR

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

BEFORE THE

COMMITTEE OM VETERANS AFFAIRS

UNITED STATES SENATE

MAY 23, 1991

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committees

Thank you for the opportunity to appear before the

Committee to provide the views of the Department of Veterans

Affairs (VA) on S. 868, legislation that you, Mr. Chairman,

recently introduced to restore certain education benefits lost

by members of the Armed Forces as a result of their active duty

service during the Persian Gulf War. I am also pleased to

relate, as requested, the Department's experience as an

employer in implementing the veterans reemployment rights

provisions of chapter 43 of title 38 pertinent to reservists

and National Guard members who served in connection with the

Persian Gulf War.

211



208

2.

Mr. Chairman, it is unquestionably fitting that we provide

the relief accorded by S. 868, as described below, so that no

person who served on active duty during the Persian Gulf War

loses, by reason of such service, any measure of the

educational opportunity intended to be afforded by the

educational benefits to which such person had established

entitlement. Consequently, to the extent it affects benefits

programs within our jurisdiction, we would f.,Yport this measure.

However, Mr. Chairman, S. 868 would increase direct

spending; therefore, it is subject to the pay-as-you-go

requirement of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990

(OBRA). No offsets to the direct spending increases are

provided in the bill. Although the Administration supports the

substantive provisions of S. 868, I must note that such support

is contingent upon the inclusion of offsets to the increases to

direct spending contained in the bill as required by OBRA. The

Office of Management and Budget's preliminary scoring estimates

of this bill are $13 million for Fiscal Year 1995.

Section 1 of S. 860 provides for restoration of certain

education benefit entitlement. It would amend chapters 30, 32,

and 35 of title 38 and chapter 106 of title 10 to provide that

any payment of educational assistance under those chapters to a

member of the Selected Reserve would not be charged against the

21`L
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reservist's entitlement if he or he had to discontinue pursuit

of education or training because of being ordered to active

duty under section 672(5), (d), or (g), 673, or 673b of

title 10 in connection with the Persian gulf War. The

provision would apply only to course pursuit for which the

individual did not receive credit or lost training time toward

completion of the approved educational, professional, or

vocational objective.

The same section also would restore entitlement for members

of the Armed Forces who had to discontinue course pursuit while

on active duty as a result of being ordered, in connection with

such War, to a new duty location or assignment or to perform an

increased amount of work.

In addition, to effect the restoration of entitlement with

respect to the chapter 32 contributory GI Sill (VEAP), the

Department of Defense would restore, by deposit to the VEAP

Puhd on behalf of the participant, an amount equal to the

entire amount of the payment made to the participant for the

uncompleted course.

As previously indicated, se support the concept of this

restoration. Among the sacrifices made by our young men and

women in the Armed Forces who served on active duty during the

2 1. )
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Persian Gulf hostilities was the disruption to their

educational pursuit. Clearly, it ww...!4 be neither fair nor

prudent for the Government to allow such a disruption to cause

a forfeiture of any portion of an individual's earned education

benefits. Thus, except to the extent applicable to the chapter

32 and chapter 106 programs, on which we defer to the views of

the Defense Department, we favor the enactment of this

provision.

section 2 of S. 803 amends title 10 to provide that a

reservist called to active duty under section 672(5), (d), or

(9), 673 or 673b of that title in connection with the Persian

Gulf War would have that period of active duty excluded from

his or her 10-year delimiting date. Further, such service

would not be considered a separation from the Selected Reserve

for delimiting date determination purposes.

Chapter 106 currently provides that educational assistance

must be used within 10 years of the date on which the

individual first became entitled or the date of separation from

the Selected Reserve, whichever first occurs. Thus, the

proposed amendment would replace the time lost from educational

pursuit so as not to penalize the reservist who responded to

the Country's call to active service as a result of Desert

Shield/Storm operations.

21
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VA fully supports the Defense Department's position that

the period of an eligible Selected Reservist's active duty in

connection with the Persian Gulf War should be excluded from

his or her 10-year delimiting date under the chapter 106

Montgomery GI Bill program if necessary to insure the

reservist's education benefits are not adversely affected by

such service.

Mr. Chairman, before turnifig to VA's experience as an

employer of reservists and National Guard members, I would

first like to tell you how proud we in VA are of all of our

employees who serve in the Armed Forces Reserves and wi.th

National Guard units. More than 3,500 VA employees were called

to active duty in connection with the Persian Gulf War and thus

far almost half have returned to their positions.

VA'S experience with restoring employees to our employment

rolls after their discharge from active duty military service

has been very positive. They return to their civilian

positions with renewed confidence and a desire to undertake

more challenging tasks. Generally, employee, going on active

duty for 1 year or longer are separated from the Department and

advised of their restoration rights. It is our policy to

strive to restore returning employees whenever possible to the

same positions in the facility where they last worked prior to

2 t
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their call to military service. If this is not possible, we

place them in a position of comparable salary and status for

which they are qualified.

In all wars there are casualties, and some VA employees do

receive injuries. In the event that an employee applies for

restoration but is no longer physically able to perform all of

the duties of the position, we are committed to restoring that

employee to the best available position for which he or she is

qualified.

vA supports employee participation in the Armed Forces

Reserves and National Guard units and lives up to the

requirements of chapter 43 of title 38 of the United States

Code. I encourage all employers, both private and public

sector, to permit their employees to continue to serve their

Country through service in the Armed Forces Reserves or the

National Guard.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my testimony. I will be

pleased to respond to any questions you or the members of the

Committee may have.

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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June 23, 1991

Honorable Alan Cranston. Chairman
Senate Committee on Veterans' Affairs
414 Senate Russell Building
Waahington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

Thank you for your courteous and attentive consideration of mytestimony to your Committee on May 23. 1991. on veterans reemploymentlegislation. I write to summarize my oral statement. so that the justiceDepartment, whole representative was not present, can respond to it, TheDepartment's written statement expressed concern about the
constitutionality, or at least the wisdom, of SWUM 4333(e). It would allowthe Office of Special Counsel (OSC) to represent federal employees in federalcourt litigation against their employing agencies.

As I testified, this provision presents no serious constitutional
question. True, the bill would place performance of what is surely anexecutive function, the conduct of litigation, in an officer who is independentof plenary presidential supervision. I believe, as I am sure the Departmentdoes. that any such provision presents at least a potential constitutionalproblem, and that Congress should be sparing in its use of independent
officers. For the reasons that follow, however,I believe that use of the OSCfor this particular function is fully justified.

After Aforrisan E aiso4 the constitutional test for use of an
independent officer is whether it impairs the President's performance of hisfmnstitutional functions The Department's statement expresses threetmcerns that, although not stated as constuutional objections, do implythem. I believe that MarrOads holding and logic amply dispose of all three.

First is the possibility that OSC representation could create a seriousconflict of interest for OSC attorneys, because the executive branch wouldappear on both sides of the suit. I begin with the propositions voiced byseveral other witnesses at your hearing, that Congress is competent toprovide a veteran claiming denial of reemployment rights with governmentcounsel, and that employees of federal agencies should be treated equallywith tnose of state governments or private employers. (There seems noadequate reason to force Congress to employ the expensive and cumbersomealternative of recompensing private counsel for this representation. A

217



214

federal employee, like others. should have counsel who can gain experience
in these cases.)

Under current law, nonfederal employees receive representation by
the US. Attorney. Surely the Department would not extend that
representation to federal employees, because the resulting conflict of
interest would be direct. Compared to this alternative, the use of OSC
removes, rather than mates, a conflict, It is precisely the function of
independence to take the officer involved out of the line of command in the
executive. In Maris= the Court noted that the use of independent counsel
removes the conflicts that seff-prosecution produces for the executive.
Hence I believe that the bill's provision for OSC representation does more to
avert than to cause a separation of powers problem.

What I have said so far also responds to the Department's second
concern, that of creating the impression that the executive is taking
inconsistent positions in court. Again, the purpose of OSC's organizational
structure is to provide both the reality and the appearance of independence
from executive control. I note that Mr. Shiffer did not press this point in his
colloquy with you.

The third concern is the extension of OSC authority to represent
federal employees beyond administrative litigation, where it now exists, into
federal court. It is not entirely clear whether this objection is meant to be
separate from the first two. It may be an expression of the Department s
longstanding (and I believe justified) policy of attempting to concentrate
control of federal litigation under the Attorney General. But some etceptions
are necessary, such as the independent counsel. My response to the first two
points shows why this is another. Also, since these suits are brought at the
instance of the disgruntled employee and OSC merely provides a lawyer, the
Department's traditional policy control over litigation brought in the name of
the United States is not infringed.

hope that my oral statement and these corn writs are helpful to the
Committee, Of course I will be happy to respond to any further questions
you may have

Sincerely.

Harold H fin*
Redditt Professor of Law
The University of Texas
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before the

CCMMITTEE ON VETT1bMS AFFAIRS
UNITED STATES SENATE

on

VETERANS EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE AND REEMPLOYNENT RIGHTS

MAY 23. 1991

2 1 :1



216

STATEMENT OF JOHN HANSON

DIRECTOR. VETERANS AFFAIRS AND REHABILITATION

THE AMER/CAN LEGION

BEFORE THE

U.S. SENATE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

MAY 23, 1991

EDUCATION BENEFTIS

Mr. Chairman, we oammend you and the committee for the work you have done to provide

enhanced education benefits for Amenca's veteran& We certainly support the provisions you call for to

ensure and improve the educational benefits for the veterans of the Persian Gulf War. Clearly, the war

shuuld in no way interfere with the education goals of the brave men and women who serve us on amive

duty and in the reserves. So, at the very least. S. 868 contains provisions we think are essential to

guarinteeing the minimum of what the nation should do for these veterans.

But, with all due respect, Mr. Chairman, we would like to look at the provision of edumition

benefits in a broader sense.

The Montgomery GI Bill has been in place sine 1985, It has been a very useful and popular

program that haa been mstrunsemal in attracting high quality recruits to the armed forces, Unfonunately.

the program's full potential has bout compromised by prevailing arguments in Congress and the

administration that the nation cannot afford a more generous and realistic -- array of benefits.

The most recent example of tho occurred during congressional debate in March of this year. when

a proposal to improve these benefits by as much as 67 percent was scaled back to the neighborh:lod of 20
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peseta Even the initial recommendation wee modest. when we consider that there had been no

adjustment in benefit levels in the six years of the plogram.

The American Legion is coevinced that the nation can afford a more realistic educational

maim= pecksge for military veiterms, ami we belkse thst our nation's elected kadership should

commit itself to that goal.

The Legion believes that substential chimps are in order. We commend those who developed the

Montgomery GI BilL and those who actively supported realistic improvements in the pmgranrs benefu

levels. Now, it is time to permit Cse program to reach its potential.

According to the Congramional Research Service, current education entitlements provide about

42 percent of the average cost of attending a state institution. World War IL Korean War and Vietnam

veterans each received on average somewhere between 90 percent and 100 percent of their education

and training paid for.

And, what did the country get for what appeared to be a substantial outlay ef federal dollars? We

got an entire generation of college graduates nu one anticipated before World War IL We trained and

educated a work force that became the great Americanmiddle class, Wc set a standard the world envied.

and the money came back in higher taxes and Increased production.

Our proposal makes several steps toward fixing the program before it gem worse.

First, it provides for an increase to S777 per month (for a veteran with no dependents) with

mandatory cost of living increases, for education benefits. For veterans setving beginning on August 2.
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1990, a new chapter to Tide 38 will be established. Dm requirement to make a conoibution is waived.

Veterans receive beavers 36 and 45 months of entitlemerus, depending upon length of service, as

provided in chapter 34. Educational assistance for these veterans will be considered as an incremental

cost af Operation Dam Storm.

To the anent possible, this bill provides that the pnagram costs will be paid by the Defense

Cooperation Account for Fiscal Yeats 1992-1995. If that amount is not adequate to handle thc costs, the

funds will be made available to veteram in FY 19924995 from binds appropriated to the Secretary of

Veterans AffaiTs for readjustment assistance.

Those people ehgible under the new Chapter 44 will not be eligible for benefits under Chapter 30.

To be eligible, a veteraa would have had to serve 90days on active duty beginning on August 2.

1990. The last date for benefits has not been selected yet, but that date would be the ending date for

eligibility under this plan. as it is foT other Desert Shield/Desert Storm benefits. People called to active

duty tn the reserve Of National Guard will have no minimum active duty time requirement, but will be

determined to be eligible based on the fact that they were activated.

The assistance allowances pnwided use $777 &s the ham monthly rate for a full time program of

education pursued by a veteran with no dependents. All other rates will be determined pniportionately, as

they are in Chapter 34 for Vietnam veterans.

The hill will also make some needed changes in the Montgomery GI Bill,

Benefit levels fur educational benefits under Chapter 30 are increased. generally, to those levels

established for Persian Gulf Conflict veterams. And those benefits will be provided without requiring any

of the required reductions in basic pay. In other words, veterans will no longer he required to make a

ftnancial contribution to their education.

SE
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If people have made a contribution to the plogram under earlier pmvisions, the bill provides for

reminnion in the form of non-taxable readjustment assistance of any amounts by which an imlividuars

basic pay was reduced since August 1, 1990. In addition, the bill makes similar restitution of such pay

reduesions made prior to August 1. 1990, to any veteran wh... for good cause shown, cannot take

advantage of his or her education assistance entitlements.

Pre-Persian Gulf War veterans who elected not to participate in Chapter 30 will now be deemed to

have elected to =rive assistance. However, these veterans who did not have their basic entitlement

mducal by up to 550 per month until the reductions in educational assistance arc equal to that amount by

which their pay would have been reduced if they had been subject to the pay reduction prior to August I,

1990.

Too often. necessary benefits for veterans hove been denied MOM because they seem too

expensive, rather than reviewed on the wits of the ideas. We saw earlier this year when the Congress

voted to increase education payments by 550. Somehow, it seemed too eXpeaSive to pmvide honestly

meaningful help to the men and women who have volun:totd to defend us.

For those people who disagree with our proposal because thO is not a military of conscripts, we

have to ask. "So w 'in.?* There may never have been a beam trained military in our history. but we

cannot ensure that we will always be so lucky in the future, if we don't offer something of real value in

exchange for that service. We wonder about efforts to provide tokens of appreciation for these men and

women. What if they had made only a token effort in their efforts against Saddam?

They didn't, though, and we owe them an honest measure of respect and gratitude., such m is

reflected in our draft legislation.

tf
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VETERANS REEMPLOYMErT mins

Tbe American Legion sur pro legislation which snengthens Chapter 43 of Title 38, USC. Inc

performance of Armed Feats Reserve and National Guard emits in Operations Desen Shield and Dcsen

Sam have beat absolutely superb and it is only appropriate to ensure that their jobs and careers ate

protected when they Mum home. AI the same tiMe. we Must recognize that plans are still in place tn

reduce the size of the active duty military forte significantly in the next five years. This ;eduction will

result in our nation placing Increased reliance on the National Guard and Armed FOTCCS Reserves in the

future. It is therefore 1.articularly appropriate that the amendments pmposed\posed in the Veterans

Reempkwiraii Rights statute are offered id this time. If =vice in the Reserves or National Guard

leisure, a burden for our citizens, they will not serve and the active duty force must be used to take up

the slack if national security ts to be maimained.

In general The American Legiou =news in aH of the amendments contained in the S 1095. We

are particularly pleased to see that the Federal and State Governments as well as the Government of the

District of Columbia 8TC Melia:W. WC alt 8180 pleased the appropriate sanctions against diseriminentin

are part of the bill We are aware of at least CRC CM while and individual was not hired for 8 job

because of membership in the National Guard. Practices such as this are intolerable and must be

prevented.

We note that S 1095 contains comprehenswe protection against daerimmation against any

veterans who may he disabled as a result of their service. It is appropriate that the anti-discrimirtatum

provisions refer to the Americans With Disabilities Act when defining tenns such as "reasonable

aciommodstsme aril "undue hardship." We ceagratulate the Senate for this addition.

We are also pleased with the enforcement provisions. There is one additional provision we would

like to see inserted, however. One of the funds actual rights of being a citizen th thrs country a the right

to the collectwe Judgement of one's pee,- on the rightness or wrongness of an action. In this case, the

penalties are not criminal but civil a.st while that a appropriate, we believe that cases brought to the

courts under the ncw provisions of Chapter 43 should be heard by a Jury rather than a Judge, provided

either the plaintiff or the defendant so desircs. Such a provesion woula protect the rights of both the
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military reservist or National Guard member, and the employer. We commend this suggestion to your

attention.

With respect to the veteran being able to seek relief in the courts, as this committee is aware, such

action typically invoIvers the retention of legal counsel. We have no quarrel with the use of counsel but

if a veteran retains counsel. and the coun ultimately finds in favor of the veteran, it should not be the

veteran who pays for the legal representation. The defendant employer should be held responsible for the

legal bills of the veteran plaintiff. The legislation proposed by the Senate provides for this. It is a positive

addition to the law, in our opinion.

It should he abundantly clear that there is a wellspring of good feeling about the outcome ofour

actions in the Persian Gulf. There is also a wellspring of good feeling about the troops who have served

there. They will return home to the hems welcome they so richly deserve. But there are active duty

troops who never went to the gulf, and not every reservist or National Guard member was called up. This

legislation also plotects them and rightly so. The individual soldier hits little or no influenceover where

he/she will serve.

The American Legion looks forward to working with you on passage of ibis important legislation.

)
53-055 0 92 - 8
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SURVEY OF CORPORATE TREATNIENT

OF

MEMBERS OF THE NATIONAL GUARD

AND
ARMED FORCES RESERVES

Pmpued By:
The Nadonal Economic Commasum
The Amertcan Legion
April 12, 1991
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SURVEY OF CORPORATE TREATMENT
OF

MEMBERS OF IRE NARONAL GUARD
AND

ANNIED FORCES RESERVES

AM. 12. 1991

MENSPANX

A later from the National Commander 04 The American Union wee sent to the chief
executive officer of each of the companies mimed in the f92132Kmaga1ine 11sf of the melons
top one-MOusand companiss. The sane Ism was sent to the nad one-thousand compel*, In
descending order of total walnut Attached to Me fetter was a survey form asking moral
questions reomding the policies of the company regarding the treatment 04 members of the
National Gust and armed tomes Reserves who were called to active duty during Operation
Desert Shisid/Oesert Stonn. Copies of the =my letter and the survey form are at Minimum
1 and 2.

Based on envelope returned, It is assumed that 1.950 survey forms were delivered A
iota of 358 completed bonne or 18.3% of those assumed delvered were returned. No forms
retuned after Acre 3, 1991. were tabulated Ni order to facilitate the availability of this report
Strawy toms were tended by compaty size and Waited in order to determine whether
company size influenced the treatment at rerenrista

MUM
it is apparent from Figure I that dm majority 04 the corporations responding to the survey

ans gokig beyond the requkanents at The 38 USC Ni ansupting to treat their et nployses who are
membem of the armed farces Reserves aid National Guard in a fair manner. More than two
thirde of Me responses were km carman*, which continued to allow employees to accrue sick
arid vacation leave wide on active duty. &mealy, more than 81% saki they mint masng up the
difference between the sexy paid while on active duly with the mtary and whet ti empoyee
would have eammi a Me regular pace of anploomint

Companies per Benne By Time Period
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TOTAL

Gotham Rawer YftpeALosry 1 13 4 8 1 , I 12
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Cayenne Mosilatia Waspkrow Pays Fiesnos0 0 1 2 2 26 29
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For cop Ara Country

Thomas Ashley
123 Place Street
Muskegon, MI 491142

Deer Thomas:

If you have been following the news, you know that our country has committed
thousands of troops to Operation Desert Storm. You also know that a substantial portion
of those troops ore members of Notional Guard and Armed Forces Reserves units
activated in communities ail over the United States.

Title 38 of the United States Code provides certain rights to members of the
Reserves and Notional Guard when they return to their homes and careers, and we
believe that American employers will fully comply with the law. We also know that some
companies are going above and beyond the requirements of the low when dealing with
employees who have beat activated.

The American Legion considers it appropriate to identify and provide some form of
national recognition to these companies for their contribution to the welfare of service
members who are also their employees.

Enclosed with this letter is a brief survey of some of the actions taken by
employers to ease finoncial hardships for employees called to active duty. I would very
much appreciate your having a responsible official complete this form and return it to
our National Headquarters in the postage paid envelope provided.

Thank you in advance for your assistance in this effort and for your contribution to
the well-being of your employees who also proudly wear the uniforms of our Armed
Forces.

Sincerely,

Robert S. Turner
National Commander

2 3
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SURVEY FORM

Corporate Name and Address Name, title and phone number of person
completing form:

I How large is your company?
___0-1.000 employees

000-10000 employees
_-15 000-20.000 employees

1.000-5.000 employees
10.000-15,000 employees

_Over 20.000 employees
2. Please estimate how many employees have been activated for National Guard or Armed

Forces Reserve duty

3 Below ma list of some steps taken by some-corporations on behalf of employees activated for
Operatton Desert Storm Please indicate those steps taken by your company

--Commue paying regular wage/salary
Make up salary difference between corporate wage/ salary and active duty military

PaY

Continue group health/life insurance coverage at no cost to employee

Corninue healthrlife insurance coverage with employees paying reduced share of
premiums

Continue health/life insurance coverage with employee paying regular share of
premium

Provide day-care facilities or benefits to children with one parent called to active duty

..Sponsor support groups tor spouses of those activated
_Sponsor social gatherings to make families of employees called to active duty feel part

of a "corporate family"
Continue accrual of vacation and sick leave while employee is on active duty

Provide cost of living Increases to active duty employees

_Other

Thank you for taking tome to complete this form Your support of our National Guard and
Reserves os appreciated

14.47-,fi .114VtaIL--
Robert Turner, National Commander
The American Legion

211.
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Companies Whose Desert Storm Benefits Match The Legion's

Home Savings of America
Irwindale, CA

Florida Power and Light
Juno Beach, FL

United Services Auto Assoc.
San Antonio, TX

Rohr Industries, Inc.
Chula Vista, CA

Phillips Petroleum Company
Bartlesville, OK

Amoco Corporation
Chicago, IL

United Telecom/US Sprint
Westwood, KS

The Great A&P Tea Company, Inc.
Montvale, NJ

Northwestern Mutual Life Ins. Co.
Milwaukee, WI

Quantum Chemical Corporation
New York, NY

The Torrington Company
Torrington, CT

Rohm and 1-4aas Co.
Philadelphia, PA

Shell Oil Company
Houston, TX

Pacific Telesis Group
San Francisco, CA

E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc.
Wilmington, DE

Humana Inc.
Louisville, KY

American Stores Company
Salt Lake City, UT

Sears Roebuck & Co.
Chicago, IL

Firms which grant merit raises instead of cost-of-Iiving increases to their activatedreservists/guardsmen are included here.

r)')
ipe eft.
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Companies Whose Benefits Are Superior To The Legion's

The Upjohn Company
Kolamazoo, MI

Matsushita Elec. Corp. of America
Secaucus, NJ

Northeast Utilities
Hartford, CT

New York Telephone/NYNEX
New York, NY

Bethlehem Steel Corporation
Bethlehem, PA

Merck & Co. Inc.
Rahway, NJ

Mercantile Bancorporation Inc.
St. Louis, MO

Degussa Corporation
Ridgefield Park, NJ

Columbia Scp.ings Bank SLA
Fair Lawn, NJ

Companies

Beneficial Corporation
Peapack, NJ

The Walt Disney Company
Burbank, CA

Champion Spark Plug Co.
Toledo, OH

Mobil Corporation
Fairfax, VA

The Boeing Company
Seattle, WA

Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation
Charleston, WV

The Turner Corporation
New York, NY

Chrysler Capital Corporation
Stamford, CT

BASF Corporation
Clifton, NJ

3 .
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Mr. Robert Turner, National Commander
The American Legion
PO Box 1055
Indianapolis, Indiana 462064055

Dear Commander Turner

P.O. Osx 0291011. M. R. 3703.11102

February 28, 1991

Your letter addressed to our fanner Chairman of Zhe Board, John J Hudiburg1
has been given to me for a response.

Our new Chairman of the Board is Jmmas L. Broadhead. His mailing address

is, PO Box 14000 Juno Beach, Florida, 33408.

We, at FPL are very proud of the lead The American Legion has taken in
the Operation Desert Shield. Starting with obtaining permission to wear
and then furnishing the American Flag to our Troops in the Middle East.

We nk this current effort to recognize American employers who are going
uxtra mile, will encourage others to also become involved. Even though

iL dppears that the 'War° is over, there is much yet to be done.

Commender Bob. We at FPL have been members of The American Legion Family
for years. The Chairman of The Board, when I joined the Company. McGregor

Smith, served as the local chairman of the Distinguished Guest Committee
for every National Convention held in the Miami Area, (and what a show
he would put on.) Many of our employees continue to serve in a number of
capacities.

Our company currently has 15,459 employees. Of this number 4842 are

veterans. One Hundred-Fifty-three are active reserves and 114 are shown
as inactive reserves. Seventeen of our members have been called to active
duty and are currently serving. We have the Commanding Office and Chief
Administrative Officer of a Medical Unit, with a number of our employees
in their unit, that had been alerted, prior to last nights cease fire order.
With these numbers, I have tried for years to win Dyke Shannons Employeer
of the Year award, but due to our size it has been difficult. This past
year, we had an early out program and most of our WW II (The Big War)

Veterans retired, so I guess my chances to win Dyke's award is further

away then ever.

Thanks again for giving us the opportunity to Brag!

ncerel

CL1/4--(14

Billy An erion.
Employment Manager

P$: Hi Bob Turner. I have sure enjoyed following your year as our Coamander.
Sorry 1 missed your last visit to Florida. Hope to see you next time you
come south. This past week, 1 completed my 49th year at FPL. so you see,
this must be a gool.elfce to work.

F11.1 se

billy

fil
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Robert S. Turner
National Commander
The American Legion
P.O. Box 1055
Indianapolis. IN 46206-1055

Dear Ccesmnder Turner:

March 6. 1991

Thank you for your recent letter requesting information on 18,4 employees

activated as a result of the current situation in the Middle East. Beyond

the information wt have listed on the attached form. IBM has alsu taken other

actions in support of Our employees, including:

Extending our military leave provisions from 30 to 365 days.

Contributing sop,aoo to the World USO Oreanization.

IBM with Stars and Prodigy Services have established a program

called "USA Contact." This permits Prodigy subscribers to sena

personal "electronic' letters to service personnel in the Gulf at

no charge.

On-going contact with family of active duty reservists, offering

support.

IBM managers of active duty employees provided with a special

account tcl purchase appropriate gifts for service personnel.

On-going communication o' the above with our overall employee

Pepulation,

Please call me if you have any Questions on the information we have provided.

RWH:jmb
Attachment

R. W. HallocA

):1
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reu limnsCOMM,
PO $ as 3707
S.ISTIO 98124.2201

February 28, 1991

Mr. Robert S. Turner
National Commander
Ths American Legion
National Meadquarters
P.O. Mos 1055
Indianapolis, tif 46206

Dear Mr. Turner:

I am responding to your letter addressed to Mr. Frank
Shronts, Presidant/CEO of The Boeing company.

Attached you will find the cospleted survey form which
indicates the support we have been providing to Boeing
employees who are miming our country at this critical
time. Indeed it is our privilege to fully support our
employees. We appreciate the concern expressed by The
American Legion and wish to reaffirm our support of
U.S. troops serving in The Middle East, particularly
those who are Boeing employees serving our country.

Sincerely,

R. D. Ds
Corporate Director - personnel
655-3897 1-1860

Attachment

23t;
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Vaa
Campania, Inc.

February 25, 1991

Mr. Robes; S. Turner
National Commando
The Amon= Legion
N100121 Headmartars
Post Ms Boa 1055
tadlanzPolls, Engem 46206-1055

Deo Mr. Turner:

I am pleased to respond to die mons leiter you sent to Roger Stange land. Chairman of the Board, of
The yam Commit* Inc.

Our compeny has taken adv. steps In ptomaine the rights and privileges of employees sailed up to
serve air comary in Operation Desert Weld sad more recently in Operation Desert Storm.

Our company has some 15,000 employees and hm made a decision to make up the salary cifferences
between dm wages the individuals euned as anployees of the company and their active duty ,tay We
are also spomoring active support mows and social githerings for spouses end families of int:ividuais
called to active duty. We will he condnuing aceruel of vacation and sick leave, pmviding cost V living
increases, m wed as pleviding well over $750,000 in direct food contributions to local military tram
within our trading arm.

We are pleased to be a pan of the nationwide support for our troops daring these troubled times.

Namely,
The Vans Companim, Inc,.

Guy B.
Director - Employment

fir

Enclosure

nr, I I .% itl .
N1.1,114164 4fl.Jl' 4. .111, .1 { A ..01' i4m, .

2 3 7
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Mobil Corporation

Mr. Robert S. TUrner
National Commander
The American Legion
National Headquarters
P. O. Box 1055
Indianapolis, IN 46206-1055

Dear Mr. Turner:

March 6, 1991

aCALCI4. . o :;63,

46x 7 a0Abra
ve Cioint

Aiovvost 'WV+.

I am responding to your letter to Allen MUrray regarding Mobil's

policies and other actions in support of America's troops in the

Persian Gulf.

Enolosid is the American Legion's survey form. By way of
background, before August 2, 1990, Mobil's policy for reservists

called for active duty provided for continuation of salary and

benefits for-three months. As soon as the war started, we
improved our policy to cover active duty for one year, or longer

if the War situation had continued.

In addition to policies supporting our own employee', we wanted
to show our support on a broader bass for America's role in the

war effort. First, MObil established a capital fund of $2

million to help Aeerican men and women (or their surviving

dependants) of Operation Desert Shield/Desert Storm further their
educational goals after completing their service. Twenty
universities are participating with us in a scholarehip program

funded by Mobil grants of $100,000 to each institution. Second,

Mobil's contribution of $250,000 was among the first to be

received by the American Red Cross following Elisabeth Dole's
national appeal to raise $20 million to support humanitarian
'services to U.S. troops in the Persian Gulf, their fasilies back
home, and victims of the conflict there.

Mobil is pleased and proud to support America's Armed Forces and

the Red Cross.

PLA/mab
Enclosure

Very truly yours,

Rex D. Adams

BET
r. 711 tr

ila Ob'tl`
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Great Food
Ice Cream

Aarch 11. 1991

Seibert D. Turner

Nattsnal Oommender
The American Legion
P.O. Dos 1055
Indianapolis, Indiana 46206-1055

Dear Al. 'Ammer:

Inclosed is a completed Copy a rour survey form wherein we have summarised
our efforts in support of those employee-reservists and national guard members
mho were called up during the Persian Gulf Crisis.

FUrther. as a result of our proximity to Westover A. F. 5.,
Friendly's hos been donatios tee =NO products to the troops am they have
aeseobled for transport to the Gulf over the past several oxnths and sors
recently. es Whop have begun to return home.

Wi are pleased to do Our part to support OW employee-reservists and all thcpse
military personnel mbo have passed through Westover A. P. 5.

Sincerely,

/ 27,ririritcx40

jOhn J. ooetcheus,
Personnel Manager

Ancloeure

F,4IndlY cc Cann, CO,PRiPOri 'MS east*, ;taw V. oixsPans Msestotuset. is 010* 3, .43
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mmot comma*.
$113WAIMMeir AWL, MOB Plans Ur Imo 3sto

March 1, 1991

Mr. Robert S. Turner
National Commander
The Piserican Legion
P.O. Box 1055
Indianapolis, IN 46206-1055

4ear Mr. Turner,

Responding to your letter to Mr. Donald Reed, Vice President-Human
Resourses and Quality, concerning members of the Reserves and National
Guard, I am pleased td Inform you that NYNEX, stands squarely behind our
troops, and employees who have been activated because of the Persian Gulf
Crisii. Just as our employees see their action as their duty, so does
NYNEX see it as its duty to support these men and women when they are
called to defend America's interests.

NYNEX will strictly adhere to the federal laws that govern employees'
rights as mdlitary reservists, and will enthusiastically perform its
obligations to make the re-entry process as smooth as possible for our
employees whenever they return, mo matter what length of time they are
away.

Enclosed, please find a listing of projects that NYNEX has acted upon.
Please note that the extension of benefits and PAW differential for up to
one year from tho date of call-up will be reviewed if the reservist is
required to stay for a longer period of time. The benefits include, but
are not limited td: medical; dental; vision cart; group fife insurance.
These benefits also cover the employees' qualified dependents.

If you have any questions, please feel fret to call me On (914) 644-6713.

Sincerely,

Staff Menager-Equal Employment Opportunity
Veterans Affairs

210
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NYNEX Support of Operation Desert Shield/Storm

In response to the urgent call by President Sash for the Military
reserves to participate in the Persian Gulf crisis, NYNEX Corporation
enhanced Iti policy to benefit its employees involved In the call-up.
Some of the activities to-date are as follows:

Extension of benefits and pay differential for up to one year
from the date of call-up.

NYNri currently has approximately 100 employees participating In
Desert Storm.

NYNEX provided emergency Installation of additicmal service on
the first weekend of mobilization (8124190) at the 77th US Army
Reserve Command Headquarters, among others, including new lines
and inside moves.

NYNEX provided emergency repair to a Commanding General's home
telephone service in order to keep him in constant contact with
his Headquarters.

NfNEX provided immediate response to a cable failure at fort
Totten on 8/29/90.

NYNEX bas positiond mobile units at US Army Reserve Centers.
This provided additional telephone service for personal calls by
recalled reservists at their home station prior to deployment to
their mobilization sits.

NvNEX has provided (8) cellular telephones for use by recalled
unit commanders and thir Major Subordinate Commander during
critical days Mittman mobilization and deplc/ment. These phones
are still in use.

NYNEX Community Team project. °He Care*, sent 2,500 Christmas
stockings to troops in Operation Desert Shield during the holiday
season.

NYNEX instituted a policy to ensure that no service member
recalled to support Operation Desert Shteld/Storm would havehis/her service interrupted for non payment of a telebbObe bill.

vy ILm
. created a special package COnteining Welkman,
special taped message and letter from Mr Ferguson, end twO
holiday tapes which were sent to every service member, A twenty
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five dollar money order to help defray the cost of telephcme

calls vas also sent to every service member's family. This is an

ongoing program and as additional individuals are identified.

packages and money orders are sent out. Plans are under

development to send a second package to each service member.

NYNEX Benefits department has contacted the families of our reservists to

*see how they are doing° and detrmine if NYNEX can be of any help to

them during the Desert Storm effort.

An BOO number (BOO 226-1524) has been established for family members to

call with any benefit questions they may have.
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February 21, 1991

Mr. Robert S. Turner
National Commander
The American Legion
P.O. Box 1055
Indianapolis, IN 45202-1055

Dear Mr. Turner:

Thanks for your survey. Unfortunately. we will be
unable to participate.

We appreciate your interest in Zenith anyway.

Cordially.

JIT:cd

2,1
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Coca-Cola USA
Col is7; erwa44.

February 27, 1991

Mr. Robert S. Turner
The American Legion
P.O. Bog 1055
Indianapolis, IM 46206

Dear Mr. Turner:

Donald Keough asked nie to thank you for offering us the
opportunity to participate in your survey. We appreciate your
interest in The Coca-Cola Company.

As you might lmagins, due to our worldwide visibility, egecutives
of The Coca-Cola Company receive numerous requests on virtually a
daily basis to take part in similar surveys, questionnaires and
research efforts. As much as we would like to be of assistance.
time constraints and fully committed schedules make it immossible
for us to participate.

We trust you appreciate our position and wish you much success in
your efforts

Sincerely,

!
Kirk Wile
Consumer Information Coordinator

KEG.keg

PO Onmer 734
Adams . GA 3C30i
t.800-GET COKE

2.1
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V .TERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED STATES

OFFWE OF TIE DIRECTOR

STATMONT OF

SOS RAMS, SFICIAL ASSISTANT
NATIONAL =mem IRMO

MOANS OW MILO WARS OF THR URITID STATES

MOSSO
am= ON MOANS AFFAIRS

OTTO STAIRS EMS!

WITS RINI= TO

S. Ms PERSIAN GULF VESIRAMS OCCASIONAL ASSISTARCE AMBIDIMS,
S. 1095s THE UNIFORM SIRTIOS TIFLOTIRMT AID RUNFLOTMETIT RIGHTS

ACT OF 1991, AND
H.R. 153s ANCOMIXTS TO THR VISERANS' JUDICIAL ROM ACT

mAsiumnam, D.C. MAT 23, 1991

MR. CHAIRMAN AND KERBERS OF TOE comarrug

'tank you for the opportunity to appear before this distinguished body

this nornins to present the views of tha Veterans of foreign Wars of the

United States (VfV) with respect to three pieces of lesislatioa. The

2.9 million umbers of the VPW, to include its Ladies Ausiliary, apereciates

the work end effort this ccmeittee has expended to ensure that all veterans,

their dependents, and widows are treated in *a equitable manner.

S. $601 MEM GOLF TOMO I:VOCATIONAL UMW= AMORISTS

Section 1 proposes to suture aducationel assistaace to participants in

progress for active duty service sembers, dependents and survivors, and

reservists who had received payment of VA -adeinistered educational benefits

but were unable to coeplete their roues/an an a result of a change in their

**A.*111*;71n 011111 t*
WIIIMIAL kW *A101.Atal AWAIT IN F. WANNINItiTrNi, Ji 21111r2 !OW MtlA Mar. 202 tel 223P
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liege 2

duties, or of their activation, in connection with the Persian CulY

cenflict.This bill vould restore tbs entitlement used for the interrupted

course of tudy. Therefore, upon returning to school, thee. categories of

studeots would resume their education with the sae amount of entitlement that

they had before entering the period of schooling but were unable to complete.

This proposal would amend chapters 30, 32, and 33 of title 38 USC and

chapter 106 of title 10 DSC.

Section 2 deals exclusively with Selected Reservists and would amend

chapter 106 by extending the delimiting date for reservists' education

entitlement by the same length of time they spent on settee duty. Also, this

bill would ensure that reservist, are not considered to have been separated

from the Selected Reserve for education benefit purposes because of their

active duty service requirement.

The VFW strongly supports bill S. 868 because it is both proper and

equitable. We recognixe the fact that it la a very complex but necessary

piece of legislation. The entire thrust of the bill is to ensure that no one

loses an entitlement because of military circuestances and situations that

were unforeseen when the original laws yere enacted. In fact, FL 102-26

addressed these same Issues for Selective Reservists who were borrowers of

federal money using the Department of Education's Stafford or Perkins Loses,

S. 1093t "051170ENSD mums isxmanaorr AND assmorwr RIGHTS ACT 07

1991 is the short title of the second piece of legislation I want to

discuss. It was introduced by Chairman Cranston on May 16, 1991. The overell

thrust of this bill is to conpletely rewrite chapter 43 of title 38 USC, which

24t)
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aeals exclusive:1y with the employment and reemployment rishts of persons who

serve in the uniformed services. This law was passed in 1940 and has over the

past five decades been amateded repeatedly by Congress. It has also been

subject to numerous court interpretations over these many years. Today, we

have reached the point Where the preeent law has become too difficult and

cumbersome to administer.

This bill does have the advantage of making the Law easier to understand

and to administer. It also sore effectively protects the veteran's

reemployment rights. Therefore, the VFW favors the bill. A summary of major

previa:ions of this bill are as follows:

o A statement of purpose &ad definitions of key terms.

o Prohibits discrimination against reservists.

o Provides eligibility for reemplOyeent rights if ali periods of
service is not sore than five years.

o Establishes time period during which an employee must return to work
or make application for reesployeent based on length of absence.

o Provides esployees who are hospitalised or convalescing from a
erviceconnect4d -lines. or injury with up to two years beyond the
applicable time periods mentioned above to return to work.

o Provides that reemployment rights do not depend on timing, frequency,

duration, or nature of service.

o Requires that all persons, including disabled persons, generally must
be restored in positioom for which they are qualified and which they
would have attained had they never left for military service.

o moaddes that, at the employee's request, insuranee coverage offered
by an employer suet continue for up to 10 months during the period of

ailitsry A:armies.

o Provides for retention rights upon reemployment based upon the length
of prior employment with employer.

o Provides that an employee may use accrued annual leave during a
period of servIce.

2 4
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o Provide' le the case of a tension benefit plan under MIRA, that a
person /a treated se not bovine immxtrred a break in service with the
esployer. Furthermore, the person is treated as not having incurred
a break in service with the esployer and service on active duty is
deemed to be service with the esployer for pension purposes.

o Provides that federal government =goyim mmy be represented by the
Office of Special Counsel before the Merit Systems Protection Board
sad in Judicial review of Board decialons.

o Authorizes the Director of Office Of Personnel Management to
determine whether reesplopent of a person in the Postal Service or
Postal Rats Commission is feasible, rather than giving this authority
to those species.

o Provides that a person would not be required to admit a reesployment
riehts complaint to the Department cf Labor in order to take a claim'
to the Merit Syeteam Protection Board or a D.S. District Court.

o Allows federal. state and local eeployers counsel of choice; and
authorise due award to a prevailing employee of attorney's fees and
litigation expenses.

o Establishes veterans' reesployment rishts information programs for
veterans, active duty persons and employers.

o Last, is the requirement to have the Secretary of Labor, the Attorney
General and the Special Counsel report to Congress on the
implementation of this proposed law after it has been la effect for
one year.

Of special interest to the VFW are the following provisions which

.lefinitely maks this bill a stronger, uch sore 'sprayed reemployment proposal

for vetereas.

First, all members of the Reserve force and National Guard will retain

their job security and advancement, regardless of past or future ilitary

service obligations.

Second, the expanded scope of reemployment coverage will include temporary

positions, except In eases when the enployer's cireuestances have changed ao

as to sake it unreasonable or difficult to recreate the temporary position.
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The thrust of this proposal Is only to ensure that the employee would be

restored to ths position be/she would have attained by continuous employment

without the interruption for military service.

Along this same line, we concur with the expanded principle that disabled

veterans seeking to return to jobs with small employers would have the clear

right to expect accommodations be side for their disability.

Tbe last significant improveeent la the proposal to allow Federal

employees to request federal legal representation from Deportment of Justice's

Office of Special Counsel. This representation conid be used at the initial

appeal before the Merit Systems Protections Soard level, end could continue to

the appellate level to a Court of Appeals.

At the present time, only employees of State government and the private

sector are provided with Federal representatioo regarding veterans'

reemployment rights claims by U.S. attorneys. This Is currently done

throughout the 94 geographic, Federal district jurisdictions which has led,

over time, to an uneven settlement of cases based ou where the veteman seeking

reemployment lives. In sum, this proposal should go long way to eneure that

the provision of Federal representation is more depeodent upon the @trite of

iedividoal cases.

The two prisary VFW =morns deal with the following issues:

o SECTION 4324

With respect to Section 4924, which sets forth the special rules
for reesployment by the Federal Governsent, it appears that proposed
language doas not estead full reemployment protection to s person
whose previous employment was with the Legislative or Judicial
Branch, or as a National Guard technician. In contrast, it appears
the protection afforded a person whose previous employment was with
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an Executive gamy is far superior, much sore meaningful end
decisive.

The language indicates that when it is not feasible to restore a
person to a Legislative or Jedicial branch position and the person is
aot eligible to acquire a civil service status, that the individual
simply loses out on any possibility of traasferring to az alternative
position. We believe this provision is patently unfair sad urge that
you streggthen the learns to extend full remployment protection to
all federal employees on an equal footing.

=MI 4325
Under Section 4325, AIM addresses Seniority, Insurance, and

other employment rishts and benefits, the provision which forbids
health plan carriers from imposing an exclusion or waiting period In
connection with resumption of coverage is very important. This
provision addresses one of the major problem mess that historically
has been a thorn in the side of persons who have served for varying
periods In the uniformed serviess, that of getting their employer
sponsored insurance coverage reetored quickly and without too much

confuelon. We believe this provision will go far toward
accomplishing that end.

Mt. Chairman, we do have some concern ragardinj subsection (c)
(1) of Section 4325. This provides. That a person whom civilian
employment is interrupted due to s call-up, mmy upon request, have
his company-sponsored health insurance coverage continue in force for
ur to 18 months. Our cancer@ Is that this may te a very costly
provision for many small business outcome, particularly those with
15 or fewer employees which ars least able to afford a health plan in
the first place.

We note also that the providing of health cars coverage to a
person called to duty in the uniformed services has traditionally
been borne by histbsr branch of service; i.e. the Federal
Government. Ws believe that providing health care coverage for
activated member& of the uniformed services should continue to be the
primary responsibility of the Federal Goverment when dieting with
the Small Business community.

AMEMEMENTS 10 1101 VITERAMS' JUDICIAL RAMA=

The letter of invitation requested VFW comments on bill H.R. 153, the

'Veterans Judicial Review Mendsmote of 1991" which was introduced ie the

Houma of Representatives by Mt. Montgmery, tor himself and Mr. Stusp. This

bill passed the House on February 20, 1991. Tbe VPW concurs with all but
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three of the proposed technical amendments. V. proposet

o retainiqg subsection (b) of section 4067;

o retaining subsections WM) and (2) of section 4067; and

o expanding section 4086.

From a veterans' point of view wa straggly recommend that subsection Cb) of

4067 retells the eptde, "The Court shall leclude in its decision a statement of

its coeclusices of Law.' The remsining portion *...and determinatioos as to

factual setters' could be deleted. in our judgment both the claimaet and the

Department of Veterans Affairs (V4) should be given the professiosal courtesy

of knowing why the appeal was denied. Thie is also necessary fres a

claimant's position So that ha can perfect an appeal to the oesthieber

judicial authority. We believe the VA can also benefit free the same

statesent la order to reevaluate their
ovn decision-makieg process throughout

the Regional Office system and their centralised Board of Veteran. Appeals.

Again, froa a veteran's point of view we ask that subsectices (d)(l) and

(2) ef section 4067 be retained. The present languase allows a claimant who

has bad hie ease decided by single judge the opportuaity to request a review

within 30 days of decision by an empanded panel of the court. In essence, re

favor the option of cootinuing with both
the single judge end the penal of

judges to review and decide casee. This has the distinct advantage of, in

fact, allowing a veteran to receive a reconeideration of an unfavorable

decision within the Court of Veterans Appeals (COVA).

Regarding the added new section 4086 *Judicial Conference of the Court of

Veterans Appeals, the VFW suggests that the lansmage in line 15 be expanded

25i
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to include officials of the National Veterans Organisatime as well as those

veteran representatives already admitted to practice before the Court. This

proposal has the distinct advantase of keeping the veteran community,

particularly that lement of the comemity that counsels, advises, amd

presents veterans' appeals before COVA to be kept better informed on a

professional basis regarding changing standards or parameters. We believe

that the above motioned officials and representatives of these veterans

service organisations can certainly play a meaningful role by Ohapins and

discussing means of isproving the adsdniatration within the court's

jurisdiction.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes the VFW stateeent. I am prepared to answer

any questions you or any comaittee member may have. Thank You.
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STATEMENT OF

LENNOX E. GILMER

ASSOCIATE NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT DIRECTOR

DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS

MORK TOE
COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

UNITED STATES SENATE

MAY 23, 1991

MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMVITEE:

On behalf of the more than 1.4 million members of the

Disibled American Veterans and ite Ladies' Auxiliary, I am

pleased to appear before you today to present our views on

Chapter 43, Title 38, United States code, relative to Veterans'

Reemployment Rights (VRR) and the Veterans' Judiciary Review

Amendments Act of 1991.

Mr. Chairman, we want to thank you and the other members of

this Committee for your continuing concern over the employment

rights of our nation's veterans.

Approximately three years ago, former Assistant Secretary

of LSbor for Veterans' Employment and Training (ASVET) Don

Shasteen announced his office was working on a comprehensive

rewrite of the veterans' reemployment rights statute. The

current Assistant Secretary Tom Collins stated he was co.stinuinq

that effort. However, it wasn't until the eve of the hearing

held by the Rouse Veterans Affairs Committee on March 7, 1991,

that the executive branch submitted its draft legislation.

In the past 15 years, no Administration, to our knowledge,

has proposed any meaningful legislation to address the

employment concerns and needs of our nation's veterans until

now. Instead, with minor exceptions, every Administration since
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President Nixln has actually opposed employment initiatives for

our nation's veterans.

Mr. Chairman, before I address the issue of reemployment

rights, permit ma to offer an observation that may be more

appropriate for a later oversight hearing. A. we are all aware,

a cease-fire has been declared in the Persian Gulf, Assistant

Secretary Collins' office is providing public information and

assistance to reservists and employers on the reemployment

rights program. This in good. However, they apparently have

taken no action to review the needs of the thousands of troops

who will return from the Persian Gulf without reemployment

rights and who will be in need of employment services. Because

of our concern, we sent Mr. Collins a letter on March 2, 1991,

asking for a detailed plan of action to address the employment

needs of these soon to be released veterans. A copy of that

letter is attached.

The attached April 15, 1991 response from the Assistant

Secretary for Veterans' Employment and Training did not address

the continuing decline of the Employment Security staff.

including Local Veterans' Employment Representatives. Also,

this letter did not acknowledge the Administration's proposed

decimation of the Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program (DVOP).

All of this is going on at the same time Employment Service

personnel are being taken out of their offices to support the

much needed Transition Assistance Program (TAP) for separating

military personnel. In fact, the Administration's 1992 budget

request proposes reducing by over 75 percent the DVOP program

staffing levels establiehed by statutory formula from 1,885

staff to 438 staff beginning January, 1992. The DVOP personnel

are the primary source of staff for the recently initiated TAP

program.

An additional concern, Mr. Chairman, is that many

reservists and National Guardsmen called up to serve in the

2.ri 44.
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Persian Gulf will not be entitled to be served as veterans

through the nationwide network of job service offices because

they do not meet the required period of service. We believe

these individuals 'Should be accorded veteran status for benefits

provided through Chapter 41 of Title 38, USC.

Accordingly, we request you amend Section 2011(4) of Title

38, USC, by adding a new subsection (C) as follow*: "(C)

Reservists or Nat nal Guard personnel who perform active duty

for other than training purposes, during war or in a campaign

or expedition for which a campaign badge is authorized, and

serve continuously for 24 months, or the full period for which

tbey are called or ordered to active duty."

Reservists and National Guardsmen awarded the Southwest

Asia Service Medal are currently entitled to veterans'

preference in federal employment and we would urge they also be

entitled to priority employment services.

We also suggest you amend Section 2010A, Title 38, USC.

That Section currently provides for "studies of unemployment

among epecial disabled veterans and among veterans who served in

the Vietnam theater of operations during the Vietnam era ...."

We suggest a new sUbparagraph (c) be added as follows: "On an

annual basis, a study will be conducted of unemployment among

special disabled veterans and veterans who served in the Persian

GUlf theater of operations."

Historically, military personnel, including reservists and

guardsmen with reemployment rights, have had little difficulty

in exercising those rights. Currently, employers have been very

receptive and responsive to their obligations according to most

news accounts.

Reportedly, many employers have gone beyond statutory

requirements to assure their valued employees who have made the

2 45 5
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commitment to serve our country are cared for. This includes

actions by Constance Newman, Director of the Office of Pereonnel

Management. Some of those actions follows

o OPM issued a reminder to federal agencies that certain

reservists are eligible for veterans' preference.

o OPM issued a Federal Personnel Manual letter

reminding departments and agencies of health benefits

continuation for reservists on active duty.

o OPM issued a memorandum that in the event budgetary

requirements necessitated the furloughs of civilian

employees encouraging " ... each federal agency to

make exceptions from furloughs for any civilian

employee who performs active military duty during the

crisis in the Middle East."

o OPM issued a memorandum reminding agencies of the

following:

(1) Retain employees who perform active military

duty on the agency's employment rolls in the

same position held before their departure.

(2) Pay the employee's share of health benefits

premiums while in a leave without pay status

during this crisis.

(3) Use Employee Assistance Programs (EAP) to provide

counseling and referral services for affected

employees and family members.

o One law firm in New York prepared a memorandum

directed to employers outlining their obligations to

activated reservists in the work force.
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o Other private employers took additional steps much as:

(1) Providing company newsletters to activated

reservists.

(2) Extending health and life insurance.

(3) Inviting dependents to join wellness and

recreation programs.

(4) Written and verbal communications to dependents

to make sure they understand insurance options.

(5) Extend pay and benefits 90 days beyond that

required.

Mr. Chairman, based on the aforementioned, we believe that

most employers want to do what is right and what is required by

law. Some employers, as indicated, have already gone beyond

that required by law. Accordingly, we believe that employacs

will generally adhere to the law. We do, however, anticipate

th;,re will be many inquiries from reservists and others,

including employers asking what their rights and obligations

are. In that regard, we commend Mr. Collins and his staff for

preparing public service announcements, starting a phone hot

line and developing other information in response to that need.

However, we remain critical of the Administration's lack of

support for programs which will provide services to those who

need help beyond reemployment rights.

I would now like to discuss S. 1095, *The Uniformed

Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991,"

proposing to completely rewrite Chapter 43 of Title 38, USC.

Atthe outset, Mr. Chairman, you should be aware that the

provisions and intent of S. 1095 are generally supported by the

53-055 0 - 92 - 9 2.54__
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DAV and our testimony contains certain recommendations that, in

our view, serve to further strengthen the proposed intent of the

bill. Mr. Chairman, the proposed Section 4301, Title 38, USC,

among other things, states "It is the sense of Congress that the

Federal Government should be a model employer in carrying out

the reemployment practices provided for in this Chapter." We

fully support that statement and urge its retention in the final

bill.

We also support and urge the retention of the provision

that includes, under the definition of "employer," "any

successor in interest to a person, institution, organization, or

other entity ...."

We are pleased to see the inclusion of the Postal Service,

Postal Rate Commission and nonappropriated fund instrumental-

ities as employers.

We also appreciate the many references to the Americans

with Disabilities.Act of 1990 (ADA) -- P.L. 101-336 -- am we

believe disabled veterans will avail themselves of the many

protections flowing from the ADA.

Reference is made to the terms "reasonable accommodation"

and "undue hardship" and rfers to the definitions contained in

the ADA. We believe this is very beneficial for those employers

who suet comply with the ADA and who should not have to meet

different standards for accommodating the disabilities of

disabled veterans.

Mr. Chairman, this measur, Section 4321, would provide

protection &vainst discrimination to "a parson who performs, has

performed. IPPlies to perform ... in a uniform service ...." It

is not clear to us if "applies to perform" means an application

to enter the reserves or is currently in the reserves and

applies to go on active duty. We urge clarification of the

2
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intent of this language so as to avoid confusion at some later

date.

Section 4322(c) provides exceptions to the requirement of

not more then five years of service to be eligible for

reemployment rights. We urge an amendment to subparagraph (2)

as follows: after the word "person," add "including a

disability, injury or disease incurred while serving on active

duty."

Mr. Chairman, Section 4322(d)(2) provides additional time

for certain disabled veterans to report Llick to that person's

employer. This is vary important and has the full support of

the DAV.

In addition, the following process ihould be incorporated

into the intent of the bill. In the case of the most severely

disabled veterans, we believe the veteran must not/1y the

employer within a reasonable time frame that he or ahe is

interested in returning to work. Thia puts the employer on

notice that upon compltion of hospitalization, convalescence

and/or retraining, the employer will have to provide the

original job or a comparable one.

The Department of Labor should continue to be responsible

for any investigatory/enforcement function. A process could be

established through a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between

the VA and DOL regarding the responsibility of assisting the

veteran in notifying the employer.

The Vocational Rehabilitation Specialist (VRS) or

Counseling Psychologist (CP) with VA's Vocational Rehabilitation

Service thould be assigned the responsibility of case manager

and be an intricate component of the rehabilitation plan. At

the earliest possible date, the VA and a representative of the

employer should meet with the veteran to determine:

25! ,
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(1) That the job in still availdble.

(2) That the veteran can return to his or her previous JO),

with or without job modifications or accommodations.

(3) If the veteran will need any retraining or special

equipment to facilitate a return to the job.

(4) If it is otherwise medically unfeasible or if another

job of comparable status le offered, what, if any,

accommodations, equipment or training will be needed.

As soon as those questions are answered, the Vocational

Rehabilitation staff should develop a comprehensive Individual

Employment Assistance Plan (IEAP) and initiate any necessary

retraining at the earliest possible date.

During these discussions, determination should be made,

as quickly as possible, as to when the veteran may return to

vork. We beliew that by making the employer an integral part

of the rehabilitatior plan and process, the adverse impact on

the employer can be minimised. We believe this is necessary to

assure that those veterans who receive the most severe

disablIttles while serving on active duty can return to a

fruitful, productive career.

In the event the disabled veteran makes a decision not to

return to the former employer, the employer should be so

notified at a reasonable time and the Disibled Veterans'

Outreach Program (DVOP) Specialist dhould be made part of the

overall planning process and development of an IMP. We believe

this approach is totally consistent with existing law, including

the responsibilities of DVOP Specialists under Section 2003(A),

Title 38, USC.

21;t.
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Section 4323 appears to allow an employer to make a

determination about the qualifications of an individual to be

reemployed. Section (e)(l)(B) states in part, "if not qualified

to perform the duties of a position ...." This apparently

allows the employer to make that determination. We believe

clarification is needed to guard against any employer abuse and

suggest report language be included to emphasize that the DOL

retain authority to determine qualification for reemployment.

Mr. Chairman, we support Section 4324, which establishes

"special rules for reemployment by the federal government." We

believe strongly that all veterans dhould be entitled to similar

reemployment rights whether they be federal, state or local

government or private sector employees. To do otherwise would

constitute a different benefit for the same service. However, a

clarification or amendment should provide that the veteran is a

federal employee and due all rights and benefits including pay

while the federal agency and OPM are making determination

regarding feasibility or placement in a comparable job.

We are extremely appreciative and supportive of your

proviOen that would give federal employees the right to appeal

Merit Sp'eme Protection Board (MSPB) decisions denying

retwleyreit in the federal government. We believe very

strongIl tk.t veteran], who are employed with the federal

goy( rnmen] prior to entry on active duty, should enjoy similar

righte and benefit:* prr qied to those who are employed in the

private sector.

We have long had a concern about the difference in legal

assistance provided former federal employees seeking

reemployment rights compared to private sector employees seeking

the same benefit.

In the case of an employee in the private sector who has a

complaint, the individual receives assistance and

261
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representation, including court action initiated by the

Department of Justice on his or her behalf. By contrast, a

former federal employee trying to exercise reemployment rights,

will be told to file with MSPB.

Under the current system, private sector employees seeking

redress have full representation throughout the court system if

it is determined by the Department of Labor and the Department

of Justice that court action is warranted. Wg stKongly believe

that federal employees elruld be granted no fever rlghts than

privete esstpr emplpiffee.

As an aside to that issue, I would like to point out that

OPM officials have been very responsive to the issue of assuring

returning Persian Gulf veterans their reemployment rights an

intended by law. At a meeting of the Secretary's Committee on

Veterans' Employment (SCOVE) at the Department of Labor, Deputy

Director of OPM, Bill Phillips. indicated that he and Director

Newman would be willing to take any case where a federal agency

declined to comply with the law, if necessary, "to the Oval

Office." Mts. Newman and Mt. Phillips have been unwavering in

their wupport for providing everything possible to those federal

employees who have been called up to active duty during the

Persian Gulf crisis. We are vary appreciative of that and would

be remiss if we did not acknowledge their extraordinary efforta.

Mt. Chairman, absent from your bill is any reference to

civil penalties. We testified on March 7, 1991, before the

Subcommittee on Education, Training and Employment of the House

Veterans Affairs Committee in support of the provision that would

provide a " civil penalty of not more than (125,000 for each

such failure or refusal ... to reemploy an eligible veteran.

There may be recalcitrant employers who would be more amenable

to compliance with the law if they knew they were faced with not

only back pay expenses, but also a substantial civil penalty.
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A.t. 153

Mr. Chairman, the measure A.R. 153, the Veterans Judiciary

Review Amendments Act of 1991, was approved earlier this year by

the full House of Representatives and referred to the Senate.

The bill is virtually identical to legislation that was

introduced last year in the 101st Congress at the request of

Court of Veterans Appeals (COVA) Chief Judge Frank Nebekar.

The DAV has no objection to favorable consideration of H.R.

153 by the Committee, however, we do have one suagested language

change as follows:

Section 3 of the bill would extend COVA the annual

authority to establish a "Judicial Conference" composed of COVA

judges themselves, with the active participation of "... persons

admitted to practice before the Court and ... other persons

active in'the legal profession."

Mr. Chairman, we recommend the addition of the phrase "and

Veterans Affairs claims representation" after the word

"profession" in Section 3 of the bill.

Such a language change would ensure that nonattorney

representatives, who do provide significant representation

before COVA's bar, would indeed have an active role in the

Judicial Conference. We note for the record, Mr. Chairman, that

Chief Judge Nebeker nap stated that he envisions the proposed

Judicial Conference "... would focus on the specialty of

veterans law and_Weuld take into Particular account the needs

of a liras number of nonattornev representatives wbo practice

before our Court ...." (June 130 1990 letter from Judge

Nabaker to Houae Speaker Foley EMPHASIS ADDED.)

Mr. Chairman, our suggested language modification would

indeed give real meaning to Judge Nebekeen stated desire that
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the proposed Judicial Conference serve the needs of nonattorney

representatives. We urge the Committee to amend H.R. 153

accordingly.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to again thank you for the

opportunity to appear before you today and I would be happy to

answer any questions.
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March 1, 1991

Mr. Thema. E. Collins III
Assistant Secretary for
Veterans' Employment and Training

U.S. Department of Labor
Room $1313
200 Conetitution Avenue, NW
Wsehington, DC 20210

Dear Mr. Conine:

I recently received a copy of "The Labor Exchange" dated
February, 1991. One of the headline articles is "VETS bracee
for war's end.° In this brief article. EXecutiva Assistant
Leslie Elliott indicates "... her office is preparing a public
service announcement and printed information to inform employers
and returning reservists of their re-entry employment rights.-

We are eppreciative of your office's efforts to provide
meaningful information and services to those with reemployment
right.. However, we are concerned that nothing is being done to
prepare for the onslaught of troops serving in the Persian Gulf
or in other parts of the world providing !Ruppert who will need
employment services.

It has been estimated that as many as 200.000 troops
returning from the Gulf will be discharged after the war Is
over. Our concern ie compounded when you look at the profile of
those serving in the Gulf. Information indicates that the
average ago of those serving is 27. However, the average age in
the infantry is 20. Reservists make up approximately one third
of the troops while nonreserviete mike up two-thirds. It is rho
two-thirds of ti.ose in the infantry ranks we are moat concerned
about. Many of them may come home disabled and will need
training or retraining and, perhaps most appropriate, services
through the VA's Vocational Rehabilitation Program. Those not
disabled are going to need not only transition services as may
be provided through the Transition Assistence Program (TAP) but
also one-on-one employment assistance and referrals throuqh the
existing network of LVERs and 13V0Ps. TAP is not designed to do
that.
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Mr. Thomas S. Collins III
March 1, 1991
Page 2

There is goof reason to believe that you will not he able
to adequately mime these newest veterans. In the 12-month
periongJUne30.1990.morethonemi/lionveterane

We would appreciate it if you would provide us a detailed
outline of the steps being plonned by your offic to assure not
only reservists receive timely and adequate information and
assistance, but also those who do not have reserve status. the
bulk of whom fall in the latter category.

We very much appreciate your interest in this matter and
look forward to your response.

RWD3d1w

4RONALD W:44t44114144. DRACR
National employment Director

2f;t;
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Mr. Ronald W. Drach
National Employment Director
Disabled American Veterans
807 Maine Avenue, S.W.
Washington D.C. 20024

Dear Ssit4his

This is in response to the concerns expressed in your letter
dated March 1 regarding our plans for serving the veterans
returning from Operation Desert Storm, particularly those who
return with disabilities. You, of courser realize that the care
given to our Nation's veterans is of mutual concern, in reality,
we share similar, if not the same, views in this area.

The public information campaign that we have launched is not
geared exclusively to reservists and National Guard members, but
to veterans, reservists and National Guard members. This
campaign did indeed start off with the production of fact sheets
for returning reservists and National Guard members in reaction
to the ambiguity in the applicable statute as to the number of
days by which they must report back to work. Once that was
clarified, efforts concentrated on all Desert Storm participants,
regardless of their geographical assignment. As you know the
VETS information hotline at 800-4422-VET is available for ALL
returning troops.

We are mindful that the wave of veterans being released after
Desert Storm may be followed by annual crests of veterans
released as part of the downsizing of the military. WO also know
that those staff positions funded under the Disabled Veterans'
Outreach Program (DV0P)/Local Veterans' Employment
Representatives (LIFER) were not designed to stand alone or
supplant tho priority services available by all staff of the
public employment and training system. For these reasons, we
rely upon our Federal-State partnership and will draw support
from the resources of all Job Service staff to provide direct
labor exchange services to returning Desert Storm veterans,
whether or not they served in the Persian Gulf area.

Our plans include massive numbers of briefings to all separating
veterans, reservists and National Guard members at demobilization
points, separation centers, and Transition Assistance Program
centers on their rights under the Veterans' Reemployment Rights
Act, as revised by Public Law 102-12, as well as briefings for
employer organizations as to their obligations under the sti..tute.

6
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At these briefings, those veterans not covered under the Act or
with no employment to which to return learn of the assistance
available to them by both the Job Service staff and the
individuals funded by our grants.

In your letter you raised doubtm an to the ability of these State
staff to provide positive results based upon your analysis of
Program Tear 1990 data. $y looking at the reports filed by the
Employment and Training Administration for the period which ended
June 30, 1990, I see how the over one million veterans not
counted in the *received sone service* item, were assumed by you
to have received no service. A closer look at the data, with the
cell definitions in mind indicates that of the 2,374,565 veterans
registered during that tvelve-month period, 577,512 ware placed
or obtained employment, 20,223 were placed in training and
1,307,313 received sous other reportable service: individuals
placed in jobs or training, or who obtained employment, are not
included in the *some reportable service* category. One can then
conclude that 369,517 individuals who were registered es veterans
did not receive services beyond application. This is not a large
number nationally, given the number of veterans who apply for
unemployment compensation and must be registered, but who
actually will return to union jobs or seasonal employment, and do
not accept the offer of service every year.

We agree, however, that the assurance of adequate employment and
training service delivery relies heavily on a concerted effort by
dedicated staff with the full support of related agencies. We
now enjoy a very good working relationship with several agencies
within the Departeent of Labor and have affective Memoranda of
Understanding signed by key officials within the Departments of
Veterans Affairs end Defense, and the Office of Personnel
Management. I am confident that with the support of the major
veterans* organizations this team can rise to the challenges that
lie ahead.

I hope you share my confidence and I thank you for your interest
and input on behalf of our Nation's veterans, and your continued
support.
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STATEMENT OF

JONATHAN GAFFNEY
AMVETS NATIONAL LEGISIATIVE DIRECTOR

Moe the

commurn ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS

UNriva STATES SENATE

On

VETERANS REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS AND
EDUCATION ASSISTANCE BENEFITS

FOR ACTIVE DUTV AND RESERVE MIUTARY MEMBERS
WHO PARTICIPATED IN OPERATIONS

'DESERT SHIELD' AND "DESERT STORM'

MAY 23, 1991
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Mr. Chairman, AMVETS is grateful to you and Members of the Senate Committee

on Veterans Affairs for giving our organization the opportunity to provide our insights into

two distinct areas this morninv (1) Proposed legislation which would restore educational

assistance entitlements to those members of the military both active and reserve who

could not complete educational courses or programs utilizing these programs due. to

activation or transfer in support of Operations "Desert Shield" and "Desert Storm; and (2)

Legislation which would update Chapter 43 of Title 38, United States Code, Veterans

Reemployment Rights.

With regards to the provision of educational entitlements, AMVETS sees no reason

wk legislation which would reinstate educational amistance entitlements to Operation

"Desert Storm" and "Desert Shield" participants in the programs under Chapters 30, 32, and

35 of Title 10 of the United States Code and Chapter 106 of Title 10 should ma be passed.

As Senator Cranston mentioned in his remarks accompanying S.868, Section 1 would

do little more than restore educational assistance entitlements for active duty service

members, dependents and survivors, and reservists who had received payment of VA-

administered educational benefits but were unable to complete their courses as a result of

the change in their duties, or of their activation, in connection with the Persian Gulf

conflict. Section 2 of S. 868 would likewise extend the delimiting date for utilization of VA-

administered educational benefits by such a period that equals the length of activation or

mobilization.

AMVETS feels that neither one of these requests is excessive in either their cost or

scope. It is our understanding that the financial axis involved with passage of this

legislation would be $10 million in 1995 and $40 million in 1996. The administrative

27i i
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burden of adjusting such benefits while not even known by the VA would not be

excessive.

As an individual who benefitted greatly from VA-administered educational benefits

in the late 1980s -- while concurrently serving as an officer in the Naval ROZI'Ves 1

couldn't fathom having my hard-earned educational benefits penalized in the event of recall.

Furthermore, as a recently de-mobilized Medical Service Corps Officer, I know first-hand

numerous young men and women who were recalled in support of Operations 'Desert

Storm" and "Desen Shield. Individuals who due to reasons ranging from transfer to the

Kuwait Theatre of Operations, transfers to Naval Hospitals in other parts of the United

States, or simply rotating 12-hour shifts out at Bethesda had to withdraw from higher-

education programs in which they were enrolled. For many of them, the recall period

(which for some still exists), started at the beginniag or during the Fall 1990 Semester

and continued through the now-ending Spring 1991 Semester. I read recently that it is the

Department of Defense's inteut to have the majority of Guard and Reservists home and

demobilized by July almost a year after some of them were called up. In light of these

aspects, this education re-instatement package is not a lot to ask and certainly will send the

right message to current members of the military as well as those considering joining.

The Veterans Reemployment Rights agenda of this hearing is an extremely

important issue to AMVETS membership, and we are pleased that the Committee saw fit

to finally address some of the more dated provisions of this law. As you know. AMVETS

last year opened up membership in our ranks to members of the guard and reserve.

After careful review of the proposed changes to Chapter 43, Tide 38, including

review of H.R. 1578 AMVETS is pleased with some of the proposed revisions that have

i i
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been made. First of all, we appreciate the dear delineation of the types of discrimination

prohibited by the legislation as dermed in Section 4321, particularly the inclusion of such

employment areas as promotion, retention, or reemploymem. Second, the extension of the

reemployment rights from a period of four years to five years as well as the standardization

of the ''return period- for a service member ID an employer will help to not only make it

easier for an individual to serve in the military, but will make the laws governing that

service dearer and easier to understand. Third we strongly endorse the inclusion of the

provisions which grant a two-year interval for return to an employer of a service member

who was hospitalized dut to a service-connected illness or injury. The current law is clearly

and blatantly unreasonable.

AMVETS supports the language in this legislation which provides that

entitlement to reemployment rights does not depend on liming frequency, duration, or

nature of service, AMVETS has long been an opponent of those rare cases of

*reasonableness tests in determining a service member's rights and ben fits.

While we have briefly touched upon some of the more pertinent provisions of this

legislation (to AMVETS' membership), we want to go on the record again as supporting

this entire piece of legislation and the efforts of this Commmee and the House Committee

on Veterans Affairs to bring this re-write about. We consider it fare, timely, and truly

reflective of the 'nature of the business '. of serving in tbc United States military in the

1990s.

While not directly related to the intent or provisions of veterans reemployment,

AmvErs wishes to bring forth two concerns related to military service and readjustment

to civilian society. First, is the area of discrimination as it relates to the application of

1 1



credit. Although this legislation prohibits an employer from discriminating against an

employee who also is a service member in the areas of initial employment,

reemployment, retention in employment, or promotion based on that individuals military

affiliation, we are concerned that the same protection does not adequately extend to these

same individuals in the granting of credit. The recently.amended version of the Soldiers

and Sailors Civil Relief Act of 1940 did not contain adequate provisions to protect members

of the Guard and Reserve from discrimination in the application for credit. As we know,

the Soldiers and Sailors Act allows for an interest-rate reduction for many types of

consumer debt ineluding home and auto loans. Since, under current market condidoes,

this interest rate reduction is significant, it is our concern that any member of the Guard

and Reserve who applies for credit may be denied by a knding institution due to the

possibility of a rate reduction.

Our second concern is with Chapter 42 of Title 38 of the United States Code,

*Employment and Training of Disabled and Vietnam Era Veterans.* While we applaud the

current legislative initiative to redefine eligiNity for job waffling and assistance from the

established 180.day SerViCe period to 90 days we are nrt convinced that this new service

period is adequate in addressing the rightful definition of a veteran in light of the United

States' recent involvement in Operations "Desert Storm* and *Desert Shield.*

Leading up to this conflict particularly in the weeks jist prior to commencement

of hostilities on January 16, thousanik of Guard and Reserve personnel were recalled to

active duty and sent to the Persian Guff theatre. On February 27 just 42 days later and

after 100 hours of a land battle the war was completed. Within a week of cessation of

hostilities, military members were returning to the United States and certain reservists were

iv
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being demobilized. In light of the exceptionally large reserve activation (including members

recalled and sent to the Persian Gulf leading up to February 27). the extremely short

duration of the war, and the almost irmtantaneous demobilization upon cessation of

hostilities. AMVETS is concerned that a 90-day provision will not encompass all deserving

veterans who participated in the war. If this proposal (90 days) is enacted, it is conceivable

that a member of the Ready Reserve serving in a combat MOS may qualify for a Combat

Infantry Badge or Combat Medic Badge (30 days) hut not qualify for professional education

and training services.

What we are proposing is language which would tie definition of veteran for

employment and counseling programs to the awarding of campaign ribbon or expeditionary

medal consistent with service in a combat theatre. W., feel that this type of provision will

more accurately reflect an individual's contribution to military service during recall granted

that the provisions for the awarding of a campaign or expeditionary medal are appropriate.

Again. AMVETS wishes to express our sincere appreciation to the Committee for

allowing us to provide our thoughts and concerns to yot: in these areas. We stand by to

provide you with any further information or support.

2'
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PARALYZED VETERANS
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STATEMENT OF

CLIFTON E. DUPREE, ASSOCIATE LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR

PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA

BEFORE THE

SENATE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

-CONCERNING

S. 068

"PERSIAN GULF VETERANS EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE AMENDMENTS'

S. 1095

"UNIFfinalEn SERVICES "a4PLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT
RIGHTS ACT OF 1991'

AND

H.R. 153, -VETERANS' JUDICIAL R.:VIEW ArT "

AND

S. 1050, U. COURT OF VETERANS AIPEALS AMEhOMENTS"

MAY 23, 1991

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, it is a pleasure and

personal privilege to appear here, today, on behalf of Paralyzed

Vetnrans of America (PVA). Thank you for inviting us to testify

001 Eicittteenth Wet. N.W.. Washington D.C. 20(06 (202) US41300 Fat 1202) 9854452
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and present our views regarding certain needed changes and

improvements in veterans education and employment benefits and

judicial review issues.

Since 1944, over 20 million men and women have trained under the

various education programs administered by VA. It has been

estimated that these veterans will pay up to eight times the Costs

of their education in federal income taxes based on :lie added

lifetime income their education made possible.

Mr. Chairman, PVA encourages you to engage in aggressive oversight

of these programs and to continue to consider legislative

initiatives such as those you are considering today. By so doing,

you will ensure that the Nation's investment in the benefits being

made available to our veterans and service personnel will remain

strong.

5Lf 868. ENTJTLENENTODUCATIONAL AS$ISTANCE

Mr. Chairman, PVA supports this legislation which is intended to

provide educational assistance program enhancements through the

cancellation of a portion of the direct student loans to members of

the Armed Forces who served in a combat zone in connection with the

Persian Gulf conflict. The bill would also require the restoration

of educational benefits and tuition reimbursement for those members

of the Armed Forces who were unable to pursue studies because of

military commitments. In additions the bill extends the delimiting

2
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date for reservists' education entitlement by the length of their

periods of active duty, and provides that reservists are not to be

considered to have been separated from the Selected Reserve for

education benefit purposes by reason of their active-duty service.

This provision proposes to restore educational assistance

entitlement to participants in the pursuit of courses which they

were unable to complete because either they were reservists who

were called to active duty, or, in the case of active-duty

servicemembers, they were assigned duties that prevente0 them from

completing their courses.

Mr. Chairman, PVA supports this legislation which would further

define VA educational entitlements by making several appropriate

amendments to Chapter 30, title 38, United States Code, and Chapter

106, title 10, United States Code. In addition, the bill addresses

several features of Chapters 32 and 35 of title 38, United States

Code, which would result in the improvement and standardization of

several aspects of these programs.

The legislation, as a whole, will assist young men and women in

obtaining an education they might not otherwise be able to afford.

It also promotes and assists the all volunteer military of the

United States by attracting qualified men and women to serve in the

active duty Armed Foces and the Select Reserves.

3
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THE SURVIVORS' AND DEPENDENTS: EDUcATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
AMENDMENTS.

Programs authorized by Chapter 35 have great significance for the

members of PVA and their families. Through these programa, the

dependents and spouses of a severely disabled veteran can pursue an

education without depleting the family's savings or without

accamulating significant debt.

For the purposes of maintaining continuity and equality in the

program, PVA opposes VA's legislative proposal to eliminate

eligibility of stepchildren for Chapter 35 Survivors' and

Dependents Educational Assistance.

S, 1095, UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT and REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS
ACT_QX. 1991

Mr. Chairman, we want to thank you and the other members of this

Committee for your continuing concern over the employment rights

(..J our Nation's veterans. The Veterans' Reemployment Rights (VRR)

provisions of Federal law, which safeguard employment and

reemploymeat rights in civilian employment of members of the

unAformed services, have been in effect for over fifty years.

Although the law has effectively served the interests of veterans,

members of the Reserve Components, the Armed Forces and employers,

the current statue is complex, at times ambiguous, and, in some

instances, does not reflect court interpretations made through the

years. Members of the uniformed services and employers have, on

4
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occasion, expressed confusion and uncertainty regarding their

rights and responsibilities under current Chapter 43, title 38,

United States Code.

The reemployment rights program is certainly due for a complete

review, providing assessment of the needs and experiences of

returning Operation Desert Storm Reservists and National Guard

members.

?Ir. Chairman, we are very appreciative of the action taken in the

legislation to provide employment to those reservists who incur a

disability while serving on active duty. We strongly support the

provision contained in the bill which would allow a disabled

individual up to two years hospitalization and convalescence before

exercising his or her reemployment right options.

We do see circumstances when the disability, such as a spinal cord

injury, could be so severe as to necessitate extensive training or

vocational rehabilitation efforts necessary to returh to

employment. Under this arrangement the disabled veteran would have

an obliyation to notify the employer of the intent and ability to

resume work. After that, the employer, the disabled veteran and

the VA's vocational rehabilitation division, would work together in

formulating a rehabilitation plan in a case management concept that

would be compatible with the disabled veteran's needs as well as

the needs of the employer.

5
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PVA strongly supports youi provision of accommodation which

certainly should be no less than tliat piree.ded under current law

contained in the -Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990." We

also support your provision which clarifies that all persons,

including disabled persons, generally must be restored in positions

for which they are qualified and which they would have attained had

they never left tor military sfrvit7e

PVA svpports the continued coverage by an employer-offered health

insurance program, at the employee's request. Coverage would not

exceed eighteen months after the commencement of such servi,e.

PVA supports the provision which would provide a federal government

employee the same representation by the Office of Special Counsel

before the Merit Systems Protection Board and in judicial review of

Board decisions as these p-rlded personE employed by state and

private employesi,.

H.R. 153._ "VETERANS' ,IUDICIAL REVIEW AcT"

PVA opposes the provisions contained in H.R. 153 which would strike

subsection (b) of Titie ;t4, S.C., section 4067. That Section

provides that rhe Court shall include in its decision a statement

of its conclusions of law and determinations as to tactual

matters.' This is an important rAqht tor veterans and

preserved in the law.

h
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Quite simply, when a veteran seeks review from the Court, the

veteran is entitled to be informed, in language he or she can

understand, the findings made by the court and the reasons for

those findings.

Wale this information is naturally important to the veteran, it

is, in the infancy of judicial review, important for advocates of

veterans. Veterans' advocates will be severely hampered in their

representational efforts if they cannot discern the reasons tor

past Court decisions. The development of the law by the Court is

an important new phase in the law of veterans benefits. If the

Court is not required to give reasons and legal bases for its

decisions it will be difficult to use its decisions for legal

precedent and to predict how the Court would rule in future cases--

a matter of extreme importance for organizations representing

veterans in administrative and judicial proceedings.

It is also important to note that while the Court, in general

terms, acts as an appellate body, it is the first stage of judicial

review. The BVA is constrained by statute to follow VA regulations

and legal opinions of the VA General Counsel. The Court must pass,

for the first time on the legality of both of these. To permit the

Court to pews on questions such as this without opinion, would

severely hamper ,he advancement of the law of veterans benefits.

The Court has already rendered a decision under which it issues

7
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summary dispositions of certain cases. See Frankel v. Derwinskk,

U.S. Vet. App. No. 89-167 (Aug. 17, 1990). Attached to our

testimony is a decision in Derry_ v. Derwinkski which was issued

under the Frankel criteria. FVA has received complaints from

veterans who have received such dec sions in their cases. The

veterans simply cannot underst..nd rhlt the Court has decided in

their case. The Court's iecisions are not widely distributed.

Consequently the revitation of a case name as a substitute for the

legal bases upon which a case is dacided does not truly inform the

veteran why the Court ruled as it did in the veteran's case. The

proposed legislation would permit the Court to do away with even

this limited explanation of its decisions. PVA believes our

nation's veterans are entitled to more.

The Committee should make no mistake, however, by believing that

the repeal of this provision is a mere technical amendment. It

will remove a significant right and due process protection

currently enjoyed by all veterans applying to the Court for relief.

Perhaps the repeal of 38 U.S.0 S 4067(b) would be appropriate some

years from now when an adequate body of law is built by the Court

and when the Court has devised a way to make its decisions

available to the general public. It's passage at this time is, in

our judgement, premature.

H.R. 153 also proposes a new statutory provis )n, 38 U.S.C. S 4086,

that would authorize a Judicial Conference of the Court of Veterans

8
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Appeals. We oppose this provision as premature.

Despite clear legislative history that Congress intended that non-

lawyer practitioners be permitted to practice before the Court, the

Court is now wrestlin.- with under what circumstances such

individuals should be permitted to practice before the Court. In

fact, the Court issued a preliminary rule that would severely

restrict the practice of non-attorney practitioners before the

Court. Until such time as the issue of who will represent veterans

and how representation before the Court will be conducted is

finally settled by the Court, the scope or need for any Judicial

Conference focused solely on the Court of Veterans Appeals has not

yet been demonstrated.

This is especially true because attorneys who practice before the

Court already have a voice in the Court's business. Currently the

Court participates in the Judicial Conference for the United States

Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. This gives attorney

practitioners sufficient opportunity, at this early stage in the

Court's practice, to receive and dispenee information regarding

improving the administration of justice within the Court's

jurisdiction. Attached to our testimony, as well, is a copy of

this year's schedule of the Federal Circuit Judicial Conference

including the 'breakout session" program given by the Court of

Veterans Appeals.

9
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PVA has no objections to the modifications of the redesignated S

(c) of 38 U.S.C. S 4067, to the repeal of the current $ (d) of that

statute nor to the prvosed modifications of 38 U.S.C. S 4068(b)(2)

and 38 U.S.C. $ 4054.

§.1050

PVA has no objection to this legislation which would allow the U.S.

Court of Veterans Appeals to accept voluntary services, gifts and

bequests.

Mr. Chairman, I woulc like to thank you again on behalf of the

members of the Paralyzed Veterans of America for holding this

hearing on these most important and timely matters. This concludes

my testimony, and I will be happy to answer any questions you may

have.

10



281

/*tic Feraseni e $i U.S.G 5 afMUMUMI)
dreision mei bears ctie *arks

of the Gum dim aleyi pm ate das 4090

w maw
IUD

OCr 23 NO

°FRCS 47F Mg (22RK.

UNITED STATES COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS

No. 90-97
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On Appeal from the Board of Veterans ' Appeals

(Submitted July 5, 1990 Decided October 23, 1990)

William R Deny, pm se.

Raoul L. Caniall, General Counsel,y M. Tapp, Assistant General Counsel,
Andrew 1. Mullen, Deputy Assistant General Cunsend R. Randall Campbell were on the
brief for appellee.

MEMORANDUM DECISION

Before FARLEY, Associate Judge.

FARLEY, Assor.die Judge: ID its decision of January 22, 1990, the Board of

Veterans' Appeals concluded that service connection for a seizure disorder and service

;).
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connection for a sleep disorder were not demonstrated by the evidence presented. The
Board denied the veteran's claim and this appeal followed.

Upon consideration of the record and the briefs of the parties. lt is the holding of the
Court that appellant has not demonstrated that the Board of Veterans Appeals committed
either factual or legal error which would warrant reversal. See Gilbert v. Denvinslid, U.S.
Vet, App. No. 89-53 (Ott. 12, 1990); see aim Anderson v. City of &Ironer City, 470 U.S. 564
(1985); Danville Plywood Corp. v. United Stales. 899 F.24 3 (Fed. 01. 1990). Summary
disposition is appropriate. See Frankel v, Derwinda, U.S. Vet. App. No, 29487 (Aug. 17,
1990).

Therefore, the decision of the Board of Veterans Appeals is AFFIRMED.

Copies to;

2 S )
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Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, I am Allan Ostar, President of the American

Association of State Colleges and Universities (AASCU). I appreciate this opportunity to

present testimony in support of S. 868, a hill to improve educational assistance benefits for

members of the Selected Reserve of the Armed Forces who served on active duty during

the Persian Gulf War.

AASCU represents over 370 public colleges and universities and 30 state university systems

across the nation enrolling more than 2.5 million students. AASCU campus locations range

from small rural communities to large urban centers, and our student population is truly

representative of our nation's diverse citizenry.

AASCU houses the Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges (SOC), an organization that was

created in Ig73 by the higher education community with the objective to expand and

improve postsecondary educational opportunities for military personnel and veterans.

AASCU has long been an advocate of establishing partnerships between the military and the

higher education community. Ceneinly we support legislation that reinforces these

partnerships by guarameeing that there are no penalties in terms of educational entitlements

for those who served in Desert Shield and Desert Storm.

The nation rallied behind our troops during the Persian Gulf conflict, and we must continue

to show our support for the men and women that risked their lives in the line of duty now

that thc conflict has ended. It would be a disgrace if we did not restore all education

entitlements that were used for course work that could not be completed because of service

in the Persian Gulf War, and extend the delimiting date for reservists' education entitlements

by the period of time they served on active duty.

In fact, the education entitlement provided for in Chapters 30, 32, and 35 of Title 38, and

Chapter 106 of Title IO, are sparse enough as they now stand. It would be a severe injustice

to permit these entitlements to be eroded by precisely the kind of service that was their

justification in the first place.

2! t
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In addition to ensuring that there are no penahies for service when called, we rrlY5lsio more

to eacouriv serviccmembers and veterans to use their benefits to get a college educatam,

History suggests that it is in the national interest to do so.

More attention must be paid to making veteran's education entitlements attractive and

relevant to the needs of the modern veteran, who is an adult student in a changing
educational environment. We tmgd to place rripre emphasis on vocational education and

jots training. as well as encouraging the increasingnumbers of veteranlwith tolergraguatc

;levees to use 011.4 education benefits towards a_graduate ftree. Benefits must also be

increased. Veterans education benefitsilave noi bcc.n adjusted for inflation in six yeam

In addition to the proposals set forth in S.868, I suggest that Congress begin a more

comprehensive review of veterans' educational entitlements with an eye toward strengthening

them and tailoring them for the 1990's. Ideas that should be considered are:

Create an aggressive, multi-Departmental program to facilitate the educational

aspects of transition from military to civilian life. ( Current efforts are not yielding the

level of participation that the country needs.)

Consider making Chapter 30 benefits available to Reservists and National Guard

members called up for more than 180 days and who served in the combat zone for

more than 90 days.

Establish an active effort to encourage veterans not oriented toward an academic

degree program to participate in occupational instruction offered by junior colleges

and in apprenticeship / on-the-job training programs.

Do not permit Montgomery GI Bill benefits to be considered as "income" in the

means test for determining student financial aid. Veterans should be rewarded for

tt!eir service. They should not be penalized because they are receiving entitlement

29 1
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as a result of that service (Especially since they contributed SI200 to the fund in

order to receive benefits.)

Consider extending the time limits for eligibility to receive education benefits as an

adjustment to changing practice in academe.

Adjust GI Bill benefits for past inflation and consider some kind of indexing for the

future.

Make all the nation's servicemembers, including the Reserves and the National

Guard, eligible to pursue graduate programs with the aid of their benefits.

Pr,mote programs to encourage veterans to use their benefits to help fill critical

skills needed in the nation's schools and workplaces. ( Servicemembers have skills

that, combined with education in the civil sector, can help to addiess teacher

shortages. nursing and allied health needs. etc.)

Mr. Chairman, AASCU supports S. 868, and looks forward to working with you to pass S.

868. But the passage of S. 868 cannot tie our ultimate goal. We must build upon S. 868,

and make our veteran's education prugrams more responsive to the needs of today's

servicemembers. Providing postsecondary opportunities for the senicemembers and

veterans of our armed forces not only benefits those individuals involved but helps to

strengthen the economic well 'ming of the nation.
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A Statement to the Senate Committee

oo

Veterans' Affairs

United States Senate

23 Mgy 1991

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

It is a pleasure for me to provide you with the legislative position

held by the Association of the United States Army on two bills before you

today: "S. 868, a bill to amend title 10. United States Code. and title

38, United States Code, to improve educational assistance benefits for mem-

bers of the Selected Reserve of the Armed Forces who served on active duty

during the Persian Cult War, and for other purposes". and "S. 1095. a bill

to amend title 38, United States Code, to improve reemployment rights and

benefits of veterans and other benefits of employment of certain members of

the uniformed services."

S. 868

Once again the Senate Committee on Veterans' Affairs has moved swiftly

to provide relief for members of the Active and Reserve Components who may

be in danger of losing a portion of their educational benefits provided by

titles 10 and 38. You are to be commended for your recognition of and solu-

tions for what could become inequities in the rights of our service person-

nel to pursue their educational assistance entitlements.
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It is not clear to our Association how the rights of retirees who were

recalled to active duty would have their benefits protected. Since they

are not referred to specifically, are they protected in the same manner as

active duty personnel and members of the selected reserve? If there is an

oversight in this regard, we recommend that retirees recalled to active du-

y receive the same consideration as any other participant In the education

assistance program of the Department of Veterans' Affairs.

Additionally. some course curricula are designed sequentially and must

be followed coarse by course. It may be that a student would have to wait

for an entire academic year before enrolling in another course because of

having withdrawn from a previous prerequisite in the major course of

study. The law must be responsive to a situation s..ich as this and provide

additional time beyond what the amendment has intended. Although this

would be an unusual circumstance it must be recognized as a potential prob-

lem area for our veterans.

Operations Desert Shield and Desert Storm provided a massive test of

this nation's commitment to reemployment rights of reservists. While the

current low has been adequate in solving most of the reemployment problems

associated with inactive duty training, annual training and active duty for

training, it did not pass the litmus test of understanding during the re-

cent mobilization for the Persian Gulf crisis.

2 '1'7
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Masbate of the reserve need a law that they CAM read and easily under-

stand We think you are on the correct azimuth with your changes and addi-

tions vo the current law but still lack some elements of simplicity.

Tbe die hes been cast on the use of reserve component forces in contin-

gency operations. Fiscal realities have already caused the Department of

Defense to begin moving toward a regular force that will be about twenty

percent =valet by 1995. The end strength of the Guard and Reserve may al-

so be reduced proportionately. Future contingencies on the scale of our op-

erations in the Persian Gulf will surely see commitment of reserve forces

on a grand scale.

We agree with the provisions of the bill that would extend reemploy-

ment rights for one additional year thereby providing job protection for up

to five years. This change would seem to be responsive to the most demand-

ing call to active duty and training requirements that could confront our

cititen soldiers.

Our Association received many inquiries during Desert Shield/Storm con-

cerning reemployment rights of reservists. The most frequently asked ques-

tion concerned the time frame in which the reservist must return to work af-

ter leaving active duty. You have defined that and put it in language that

our men and women can clearly understand. There should be no misunderstand-

ing now between the employer and the employee as to when the reservist is

available to resume employment.

Raving said that, there is a need to understand the problems of the em-

ployer. Should employees who have been on duty for any period of time lees

2 H t
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than 48 months have uniform time applied to their tenure in returning to

their job? We need to ensure that involuntary removal from a position does

not take place before a reasonable amount of time has transpired, but co

give the same rights for one week or two-hundred weeks may be beyond reason-

ableness. Perhaps we ehould hear more from employers on this subject. The

last thing we want to do le to alienate the business community in hiring

members of the reserve component.

Accrual of annual leave with pay during periods of service is a worthy

benefit for our reservists and we would hope that employers would willingly

adhere to the practice. But, could it be an ecc.nomic issue which may cause

employers to overlook reservists in their workforce. The bill's require-

ment to treat reservists the same as any other employee is the right answer

to this problem.

Ancillary to this issue of equal treatment is the bill's requirement

regarding notificaticn for use of annual leave. Unfortunately, mobiliza-

tion does not always provide adequate lead time for written notification or

request for leave to the employer. The law should recognize time and cir-

cumstance and allow for reasonable reaction by both employer and employee.

Overall, the proposed legislation recognizes the problems of reemploy-

ment rights for reservists. Further care should be exercised in crafting

the final language of this bill or the amendments thereto.

We have a divided interest in this legislation because we have both em-

ployee and employer interests 'n mind. In the area of litigation the em-

ployee's interest is well served by offering special counsel through the ap-

2f17
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peat process for government employees. It is fair end equitable and treats

government employees th, am way 28 those In the orivate sector.

Our Nation's activation of more than 200,000 reservists for the Per-

sian Gulf war hes made the isoue of reserve mobilization a clear reminder

that the Total Force is just that. A mobilisation call could come in the

middle of the night with deployment soon after. Today we have an opportuni-

ty to craft an easily understood law protecting the employment interests of

those called to duty in defense of this Nation.

once the veterans' Reemployment Rights Amendments are accepted as addi-

tions to the current law ww must make sure that veterans are informed of

their reemployment rights. At the same time employers should be informed

of their responsibilities included under chapter 43 of title 39. United

States Code. Your provisions for establishment of such a program will fa-

cilitate improvement of veterans' reemployment rights.

The Association of the United States Army is appreciative of the Com-

mittes's efforts in behalf of the Guard, Reserve and local business profes-

sionals.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify in behalf of this proposed

legislation.

13( 1
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Hr. Chairman and distinguished Senators of Cse Committees

I am very pleased to have been asked to present testimony to the

Senate Committee on Veterans' Affairs. The purpose of this

testimony is two-fold, as per your request. I will give the

opinion of the Enlisted Association of the National Guard of the

United States (EANGUS) with regards to S. 868 and proposed

legislation concerning Veterans Reemployment Rights.

The Enlisted Association of the National Guard has a membership

over 600000 strong. We are the only Aasociation working directly

for the Enlisted men and women who serve in the Army and Air

National Guard. We appreciate being asked to suomit our testimony

to your committee and do so with hopes of seeing legislation such

as this become public law.

5. 866

We at EANGUS begun our statement by offering our support to this

legislation. Since the beginning of Operation Desert Shield, the

House of Representatives and the Senate have drafted legislation

that makes the lives or any soldier who served more comfortable.

S. 868 is another piece of legislation that counteracts many

inconveniences that an individual who served might encounter. We

applaud these efforts and will do all we can to promote this type

of legislation.

The provisions included in S. 868 are another key to solidifying a

complete benefits package for a vital part of our Nation's Armed

Forces. The Selected Reserve forces have once again proven their

importance within the Total Force. This statement in no way
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undermines any activity of the Active Component, but there is no

question that tht4ae troops executed their duties in the best

possible manner. In many respects, Operation Desert Storm was a

"textbook" militaey operation. Never before has our military

enjoyed such an overwhelming success. The troops who were called

to serve and their leaders are almost solely responsible for this

great triumph, but there is one facet within these forces that we

feel needs to be included with regards to this benefit. This would

be those individuals who volunteered for service in the Persian

Gulf war. AB we understand the amendments to read, the persons who

benefit from this legislation ars the members of the Selected

Reserve who "had to discontinue such educational pursuit as a

result of being ordered, in connection with the Persitin Gulf War,

to serve on active duty..." We would like to suggest that the

amendment reads 4... as a result of being ordered, or as a result

of volunteering for service, in connection with the Persian Gulf

War, to serve on active duty...". Although these individuals may

nave willingly discontinued there education to s, ,e in Operation

Desert Storm, we feel that their involvement in the war is valuable

enough to have any lost education benefits restored to them.

Volunteerism and a willingness to unselfishly fight for one's

country are principles that should be rewarded. The first C-141

Starlffter loaded with man and equipment, headed for Saudi Arabia,

was flown by a volunteer force from the Mississippi Air National

Guard. This kind of dedication is the priciple on which our

Nation's first volunteer Militia was founded on. We at EANGUS feel

that the dedicated men and women who make that principle a reality

today should be included in the list of personnel eligible for

benefits under S.868.

3 1
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The second issue we would like to address concerns the unused

amounts of monies remaining in the Department of Veterans Affairs

Educational Assistance Fund. According to a briefing given by the

DVA in Parch, there is approximately 745 million dollars lying

unutilized in the education fund. These funds are collected solely

for the purpose of helping deserving servicemen and women receive

a higher education. We would llke to suggest the possible

expansion of the program to include Graduate level studies.

Educational requirements for both the Enlisted and Officer ranks

within the Armed Forces are continuously on the rise, threrfore,

the education of today's modern soldier is critical to the success

of our Nation's military. Today, the high tech world of computers,

satellites and lasers dominate both the training field and the

battlefield. In order for our soldiers to keep up with the

advancement of technology, we feel that any opportunity to further

enahnce one's level of education would be beneficial not only to

our Armed Forces, but to the Nation as a whole. Allowing for these

funds to be utilized for Graduate level programs will help to keep

our Armed Forces highly educated and better prepared to handle

their responsibilities while serving in the world's finest

military.

VETERANS AEWLOYMENT RIGHTS LEGISLATION

Improving the quality of life of our Nation's National Guard will

always be a top priority for EANGUS. The issue of Reemployment

Rights for Veterans is of special interest to our Association,

because many of our members have been and will be directly affected

by issues of this kind. we appluad the efforts set forth by

Senator Cranston and this Committee with regards to Veterans

Reemployment Rights.
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The Enlisted members of EANGUs ars the hometown shopkeeper, or the

farmer, truck driver, or the factory worker who belongs to either

the Army or Air National Guard. These people have an annual

average salary base of between twenty and twenty-two thousnad

dollal-s per year. They have families to support and bills to pay.

These are the dedicated men and women who have become the backbone

of our society. Not only are these people the backbone of

country, but they are also the backbone of the National Guard.

the 567,000 menbers of the National Guard approximately 490,000

Enlisted personnel. These working class people represent

majority of a vital part of our Total Force Structure. Due to

our

Of

are

the

the

demographics of our membership, we are compelled to work intensely

on securing benefits

represent.

for the individual Soldier or Airman we

This draft legislation has brought to light many of the questions

that have been

Critical areas

guidelines have

asked concerning Veterans Reemployment Rights.

of ambiguity have been addressed, and strict

been proposed. Such specific guidelines are a

positive step towards better management of the law as it now

stands.

Enforcement of the statute has been broadened. We feel that the

affects of this will be manyfold. One positive affect of the added

language concerning enforcement of violations is that it

individualizes each case. This gives both the employee and the

employer the individual ability to prove their respective

grievances. The penalties levelled against a violating employer

will also make fair the amount of restitution any given company

will have to pay back to a former employee. Hopefully this will be

decided based upon the severity of each specific violation. A
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possible enhancenent of these enforcement guidelenes would be to

include a manditory fine for flagrant repeat violators of the

statute. We wish to protect a large number of people in one area

from being affected by one large employer. We do not propose

manditory fines for every violation, because we realize that every

case Will need to be dealt on an individual basis before any

determinations about penalties can be considered. But we might

suggest that a manditory fine be leveed against an employer who has

violated the statute three or more times within a tweleve month

period. We feel this would act as a further deterent to large

corporations who would continue to abuse their rights as an

employer even after one or two violations. As we are to

understand, an employer upon being found guilty of denying

reemployment under this staute would only have to pay restitution

back to the employee "to compensate the person for any loss of

wages or benefits suffered by reason of such employer's wrongful

personnel action." For the individual this is fine, but to the

conglomerate who has vast financial resources available to it, a

few months lost wages might not be enough to keep that company from

violating the law repeatedly. Given the diverse nature of American

business, it would nut be fair to set one standard fee that would

be applicable to all violators. These flagrant violators would

have to dealt with on an individual basis and fined according to

the frequency and severity of the actions. Therefore, in order for

all types of businesses to be treated equally with regards to

penalties for violations, the penalty itself must be applied to

each company on a regulated, proportional scale. This type of

action, if set forth into public law, would make all companies,

large and small, think twice before denying any member of our Armed

Forces reemployment.
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We would also applaud the addition of initial employment language

into the draft bill. Not only has the Reemployment Rights issue

been expanded upon, but initial employment issues have been

included to further protect the zen and women of our Armed Forces.

With the passage of this draft legislation, it would then be

enlwaful to deny employment to any "... person who performs, has

performed, applies to perform, or has an obligation to perform..."

in the Uniformed Services. With this language written into the

bill, prospective candidates for enlistment in the Selected Reserve

can enlist without fear of any negative affects on their ability to

find or retain employment in the private sector. Not only does

this add stability to lives of these individuals, but it further

encourages enlistment into our Armed Forces. Higher recruiting

figures help to solidify each individull force, thus ensuring the

stability of our Total Force Structuve.

We again would like to thank Senator Cranston and the distinguished

Committee Members for inviting our opin.Lon concerning both of the

pieces of proposed legislation. We wodld like to see more positive

steps such as these being made in the future.

3
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May 23, 1991

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity today to

comment on provisions included in the Uniformed Services

Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (S.1095). I am

specifically concerned about the rights of service personnel

to buy back into employee pension benefit plans upon

returning from active duty.

Earlier this year, it was brought to my attention that

returning personnel from Operation Desert Storm may not

necessarily have the right to buy back into their pension

programs for the period served in active duty at the usual

rate of contribution. During floor debate on Desert Storm

Supplemental Authorization legislation, I submitted a

colloquy between myself and the distinguished Chair of the

Senate Veterans Affairs Committee, Senator Alan Cranston.

The colloquy sought to clarify the ambiguity in existing law

regarding buy hack rights.

LW PAWN AT coy-m.041kt tvikei,
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Existing law states that a veteran or reservist

returning from service in the Armed Forces is entitled to

the same status of employment had he or she continued in

such employment uninterrupted. However, in a recent case in

the federal district court in Denver, the Department of

Labor argued that pension buy back rights should apply to

defined cont:ibution plans in addition to defined benefit

plans. The court decided against this position and held

that current law limits buy back rights solely to defined

benefit plans.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that specifies

the benefits received under the plan but does not specify

the rate oi contribution. An employer, for example, can

define the benefit under this type of pension plan for an

employee in a variety of ways: from paying a specified

amount each month payable at retirement, to paying a set

percentage of compensaion for each year the employee

service. Under a defined benefit plan, the employer must

advance fund the plan's liability and bears the risk of

investment performance.

Defined contribution plans specify the contributions to

the plan, but not the benefits. This type of pension plan

provides for an individual account for each employee. Both

3r/
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the employer and employee make contributions to this account

and benefits are restricted solely to the amount contributed

and the investment earnings of the account.

have introduced legislation ($.1255) Nhich would

guarantee that upon reemployment, service persog.ael could

buy back into either a defined benefit plan or defined

contribution plan. This bill stipulates that the

contribution ratio between employer and employee for certain

benefit plans would remain the same as when the employee

left for active duty. On both of these points, the language

of this legislation is more specific than 8.1095. This

legislation has an effective date of August 2, 1990

thereby applying to those who were covered by the Desert

Storm call-up, as well as those in the future who are called

up for more than 45 days.

I appreciate the willingness of the Senate Veterans

Affairs Committee to incorporate the idea of ensuring that

both types of pension plans are covered as reemployment

rights for veterans into S.1095. I am aware that some

fine-tuning may be needed in addition to the language in

8.1095 and the legislation which I nave introduced to

clarify technical questions regarding the calculation of

missed benefits. I am confident that the Veterans Affairs
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Committee will address these concerns as it deliberates the

Veterans Reemployment Rights legislation.

Mr. Chairman, I believe that the men and women who

served our country so nobly in Operation Desert Storm should

be able to get on with their livelihood once they return

home. As part of that goal, it is important that service

personnel be given the opportunity to put themselves back in

the position that they would otherwise have been in with

respect to their pension benefits. Returning personnel

should not have to worry about any kind of ambiguity in the

law regarding these rights. I applaud the Veterans Affairs

Committee for its hard work in seeking to rework and

strengthen the rights our veterans and reservists can expect

when returning from active duty, and look forward to passage

of legislation which will ensure complete buY back rights.
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We appreciate the opportunity to participate in the
process of reviewing the benefits and protections available
to veterans.

Ths Xerit Systems Protection Laard was established by
the Civil Service Reform Act of 1978 as an independent,
quasi-judicial agency with responsibility to protect the
integrity of the Federal merit systems and ensure that
Federal employees are protected ageinst abuses by agency
management. The Board is charged with responsibility to
adjudicate appeals from personnel actions taken by the
Federal government.

Among the cases the Board decides are those involving
reemployment of Federal civilian employees following call up
to military duty. P. Federal employee who is not restored to
,his or her position, or an equivalent position, upon return
from military servics may appeal that failure to the Board.
Although most agenc4es undoubtedly try to settle any
reemployment issues amicably, in those instances where an
employee contests an agency action, the Board serves as an
independent forum to decide such disputes.

The Board's experience as the adjudicator of
restoration actions involving Federal employees bears out
the stated intent of the bill --that if', that the Federal
government serve as a model employer in its reemployment
practices. In over 10 years, the Board has issued decisions
in only a handful of cases involving restoration to duty.
The paucity of decisions suggests that Federal agencies
restore most employees to their former positions voluntarily
and work out any differences cooperatively. At the same
time, the Board believes that the availability of an
enforcement mechanism servos as the foundation for fostering
amicable settlement of any disputes.

To facilitate the business before the Committee--S.
1095, the Uniformed Services and Reemployment Act of 1991--
the Board will focus on the provisions of the bill that
would establish procedures for Federal employees to obtain
Board review of agency restoration actions. As the agency
that would adjudicate the merits of any appeals that might
arise under this legislation, the Board will not comment on
the substantive provisions of the bill.

S. 2095 would amend Chapter 43 of Title 38 of the U.S.
Code to clarify the enforcement mechanism for Federal
employees challenging agency restoration actions following
military service. The bill would givo the Board statutory
authority t2 decide disputes between a veteran and the
employing agency. Currently, the Board decides such cases

3 1



308

3

pursuant to regulations issued by the Office of Personnel
Management (5 C.F.R. 353.401(a)).

TO put B. 1095 in context, it is useful to be aware of
the Board's existing practice in handling appeals of
personnel actions, including restoration cases. An
individual contesting an agency action may file an appeal
with one of the Board's 11 regional offices. Board
regulations require that appeals be filed, in driting, With
the regional office serving the area where the enployee's
duty station is located within 20 days of the effective date
of the agency action. The agency has the right to respond
to an appeal.

After an appeal has been received in a regional office,
it is assigned to an administrative judge. An appellant may
request a hearing if the appeal is timely filed aad the
Board has jurisdiction. An individual has a right under
Title 5 to have an attorney or other representative in the
appeal. The Board regulations make clear that a party Aay
appear nra_ag or may choose any represAntative as long as
that person is willing and available to serve.

As pert of a Board-wide effort to promote equitable and
efficient resolution of disputes without litigation,
administrative judges may initiate attenpts to settle an
appeal informally at any time. The board's adm' .strative
judges use the full range of alternative dispute resolution
techniques. For exasple, the administrative judges
facilitate exchanges between the parties, suggest possible
compromises, and assist in narrowing issues and reaching
stipulations. They hold prehearing conferences in virtually
every case. In Fiscal Year 1990, 49 percent of the appeals
to Um. Board that were not dismissed for lack of
jurisdiction or timeliness were settled.

The decisions issued by the administrative judges
become final 35 days after issuance, unless any party files
a petition for review at the Board level of the RSPB or the
Board reopens a case on its own motion. The Board's
decision is the final decision and represents the last
administrative remedy in most personnel disputes. Judicial
review of a final Board order lies generally in the United
States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. The Board
handles requests for attorneys fees and other costs under 5
U.B.C. 1221(g) or 5 U.B.C. 7701(g) in separate proceedings.

From the Board's perspective as an adjudicative agency,
the primary change B. 1095 would make in the enforcement
mechanism* available to Federal employees challenging agency
restoration actions lies in the grant of authority to the



309

4

Secretary of Labor to investigate claims and the Office of
Special Counsel to represent claimants before the Board.
The bill would retain, however, the right that an individual
now hes to appeal directly to the Board as soon as the
action is effected. The bill would also provide an option
for tbs individual to appeal to the Board at later stages of
the process if th individual so chooses.

Although B. 1095 would provide new protections for the
individual in a restoration action, it does not establish a
new role for the Board. The Board's fundamental role--
whether the claim of improper restoration to duty is brought
by the Special Counsel or by the individual directly --would
still be to act as adjudicator, just as it now serves in
deciding restoration cases and as it generally serves in
appeals of agency personnel actions.

Nor wmuld the bill's grant of authority to the Board to
decide cases litigated by the Special Counsel be entirely
novel. The Board presently has jurisdiction over certain
actions--for example, Hatch Act cases --that the Special
Counsel prosecutes hifore the Board, and, in such cases, the
Board acts as a specialized civil service tribunal. Under
the bill, the relationship of the Special Counsel to the
Board would be like it is in other cases --essentially that
of a prosecutor to a judge.

TUrning to the process of Board review of restoration
cases contemplated by S. 1095, we note an important feature
of the legislation. Although the bill would mandate certain
basic procedural rights, it does not address the details of
case processing before the Board. We believe that it is
generally appropriate to leave such matters to the agency
that is delegated the overall responsibility for carrying
out the particular function. For that reason, however, it
is important that there be no question of the Board's
authority to issue implementing regulations.

As drefted, S. 1095 would not give the Board explicit
regulatory power under Chapter 43 of Title 38, U.S. code.
The bill does not appear to preclude the Board fron issuing
regulations, and, there is a strong argument that the
Board's general regulatory power set forth in Title 5 is
sufficiently broad to allow it to implement supplementary
procedures. However, because of the importance of this
authority in the case handling process, we urge the
Comaittes to consider adopting a pmovision granting the
Board explicit regulatory power to carry out its functions
under this Chapter. Making the Board's regulatory power
explicit for Chapter 43 purposes would assure that the Board
could issue regulations tailored to the requirements of
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restoration cases without risk that case processing would be

delayed /Ammo. of challenges to its regulatory authority.
B.S. 2579, which passed the Rouse on May 26, 1991, included
such a provision.

It seems likely that regulations to handle restoration
cases will have to be issued if S. 1095 becomes law.
Although it may be that many of the Board's existing
procedures can be applied to restoration cases, the
regulations, as presently written, probably would have to be
revised to accomplish that. Moreover, it cannot be assumed
that the Board's existing procedures will cover all aspects
of the appeals brought under Chapter 43. Par example, if an
individual seeks the assistance of the Secretary of Labor or
the Special Counsel, notice of the exhaustion of those steps
is prerequisite to filing an appeal with the Board. Since
no other Board appeal coxes to the Board in precisely that
way, the Board might well find that it would be useful to
claimants and to the Board itself to spell out through
regulation the procedures to meet such filing requirements.

The affirmative grant of express regulatory power to
the Office of Personnel Management (OPM)--and the concurrent
prohibition on OPM's issuance of regulations relating to
Board activities under Chapter 43--makes the need for
clarification of the Board's regulatory authority under
Chapter 43 all the more acute. The bill's language on its
face could create doubt as to where the affirmative grant of
regulatory power lies. If the intent of the regulatory
provision is not to bar tha Board from issuing regulations
but simply to ensure that the statutory grant of authority
to the Board is not limited through OPM's regulatory power,
adding a provision giving express regulatory authority to
the Board would meet this concern and, at the same time,
expressly permit creation of procedures to meet the special
requirements of restoration cases.

An explicit grant of regulatory authority to the Board
in Chapter 43 may also servo the interests of potential
appellants, as a flag to use the facilities of the Board in
filing appeals. Board regulations have recently been
revised to be easier for appellants to understand and are
uesigned to assist appellants in filing appeals. For
exaeple, the Board's current regulations include a list of
the addresses and fax nuMbers of the Board's regional
offices and an appeal form that the Board offers to ease an
appellant's task of determining what information is critical
to filing an appeal.

3
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Finally, we point to some specific provisions of S.
2095 that may be usefully viewed in the context of existing
Board practice.

--The right to representation: Section 4333(b)(1) would
grant an appellant the right to bs represented by an
attorney or other representative. That provision is
expressly keyed to the Board's current practice. Am
drafted, the provision should not require a change in Board
procedures but simply provide an express reminder in Title
38 of the right of Federal employees to representation in
pursuing a restoration appeal to the Board.

--The Board's remedial authority: To the extent that
Section 433304(2) of the bill would grant the Board general
authority to order compliance with Chapter 43 and
compensatory relief for an individual upon a finding of a
violation of Chapter 43, it is consistent with the kind of
relief authorized by Title 5.

The bill would, however, define the scope of the
Board's authority te order compliance and compensatory
relief differently from the Board's authority under Title 5.
Specifically, the bill would authorize the Board only to
order an °officer to comply and grant relief to the
claimant. In contrast, the Board's authorizing statute, 5
V.S.C. 1204(a)(2), grant* the Board the power to order
Federal agency or employee° to comply with a final Board
order. It is traditional to look to Title 5 for definitions
of such terms (See 5 V.S.C. 2204-2205. See also 5 U.S.C.
105, defining the term Executive agency). By .pecifying
that an order may be entered against an N2fficer, the bill
appears to create differences in the remedy available to
Federal employees pursuing relief in reemployment actions
under Chapter 43 and those pureuing relief from other
personnel actions.

--Attorney fees: Section 4333(c) (4) would expressly
authorize the Borrd to award attorney fees, expert witness
fees, and other 1-tigetion expenses in an appropriate case.
Other appellants are given similar special protection in
certain appeals (See 5 V.S.C. 2221(g) and 5 U.S.C. 7701(9)).

-.4adic!a1 reviews Section 4333(d) would make the United
States Court of Appeals tbr the Federal Circuit the
reviewing court for Board decisions. This ix consistent
with the present structure for judicial review of Board
decisions. Before the Civil Service Reform Act, the
decisions of the Civil Service Commission could be appealed
to a Federal distrilt court and then to the appropriate
Uhited States Court of Appeals. Under present law, however,

3 l 5
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the Federal Circuit is the primary reviewing court for Board

decisions. This structure for judicial review of Board

decisions has been important to the development of a body of

consistent and predictable civil service law. The express

provision that the decisions in restoration cases would be

reviewed by the Federal Circuit eliminates any question

about the reviewing entity and also notifies the individual

that review of the administrative decision is available.

As we read it, however, S. 1093 would not allow the

same scope of judicial review as is provided under 5 U.S.C.

7703. Although the bill generally states that judicial

review accords with the procedures set forth in Section

7703, the express language of the provision limits judicial

review to only an order that "denies" the relief sought.

Section 7703(0(1) is not so limited. It provides that an

appellant who is "adversely affected or aggrieved" by a

final order of the Board may obtain judicial review. A

change making the provisions congruent would eliminate an

apparent basis for litigation over the scope of judicial

review.

Thank you again for the opportunity to present our

views. We would be pleased to work with the Committee and

the staff in addressing these or other matters and in

formulating review procedures that will protect the rights

of Federal employees and agencies.

3
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NATIONAL ASSOCNIAMIAIG AGENCIES, INC.

May 10, 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Senate Committee on Veterans Affairs
United States Sends
414 Senate Russell Office Building
Washington, OC 20510-6375

Dear Senator Cranston:

On behalf of the Nationel Association of State
Approving Agencies, 1 an very pleased to extend our
support for 5.868, a bill to improve educational
assistance benefits for webers of the Selected
Reserve of the Armed Forces who served on active duty
during the Persian Gulf War, and for other purposes.

We believe that the members of our Armed Services
who served during this period of time deserve fair and
equitable treatment, certainly equal to tht support
that they gave to their nation during a time of
international crisis. The prtvisions of S.868 provide
one way for our Nation to express its appreciation for
tha dedication and untiring efforts of those who
served in Operation Desert Stone. Restoring
entitlement to educational assistance programs, in
odlich many of our Desert Storm servicesumbers were
participating prior to being celled to activ duty,
also will be demonstrative of our Nation's support for
increased and continuing educational achievement.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on 5.848
and for your support of our Nation's military
personnel, veterans and their dependents.

ht

c Dr. Paul Gulyas

Sincere

C. nald Sweeney 00,'
Legislative Directo

3 1 7
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Hr. Chairman and members of this committee, on behalf of

the National Association of Veterans Program Administrators

(SAWA), I wish to thank you for the opportunity to present

our views concerning Senate bill S. 868.

We in NAVPA are very concerned with ensuring that

educational benefits, and other forms of financial aid, for

individuals who participated in the Persian Gulf War are

protected. we also are extremely interested in assuring that

the interruption to the individuals' education is minimized to

the greatest extent possible.

S. 868 addresses one of the most important issues to the

returning students who participated in the Persian Gulf War.

Tbe students are very concerned about the lost benefits and

the amount of remaining Veterans education entitlement. The

veterans and reservists are also very concerned about the

length of time remaining on their entitlement.

SAWA fully supports all efforts to restore education

entitlements for those students who were called to active duty

for the Persian Gulf war. A significant number of students

from schools across the nation were called to active duty.

Tbese students interrupted their education for service to

their country, and in the process lost entitlement. We are

very pleased to see that these provisions would apply to all

education chapters (30, 32, 35, and 106), as well as all

members of the military service (active duty, Guard and

Reserve members). We would also strongly recommend that these

provisions be applied to all individuals who served,

regardless of their assignment location.

Our only concern is how these prwisions will be applied.

Under guidelines established by the DVA, activation was

considered mitigating circumstances and repayment of education

benefits for the period before the last date of attendance was

not required. We feel that even though benefits payeents were

1
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received the benefit entitlement should be restored. Even if

full tuition refunds are given, the individual had still

incurred out of pocket expenses. For that reason NAVPA

believes that bsaefits should be restored regardless of the

institution's refund policy. Only in those cases where the

student was allowed to complete some or all of the courses

should reinstatement of lost benefits be prohibited, and then

only for that portion which was completed and credit awarded.

NAVPA also supports the provisions of S. 868 that would

automatically extend the individual's delimiting date for a

period equal to their active duty service during the Persian

Gulf War. Although current Department of Veterans' Affairs

regulations recognize military service as justification for

extension of deliTiting date, we feel that there is a need to

mandate the provision. By doing so there can be little

misinterpretation of what constitutes justification for an

extension under these circumstances. Further, NAVPA feels

very strongly that this provision should be applied to all

chapters (30, 32, 35 and 106), as well as all members of the

military service (active duty, Guard and Reserve members).

NAVPA does suggest one clarification. The bill

specificall, addresses the extension of delimiting date for

Guard and Reserve personnel participating in Chapter 106 of

title 10. As presented this would omit the many Persian Gulf

War participants who were Guard and Reserve members, including

Inactive Ready Reserves (IRR), but were receiving benefits

under chapters 30, 32, or 35 of title 38. These individuals

also had their education interrupted and we strongly recommend

that their 10 year delimiting period be extended for the

amount of time equal to the interruption of training. Which

brings up an additional point: It is important to note that

the number of months an individual spent on active duty is not

necessarily equal to the amount of educational opportunity

2
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lost because of this service. For example, a student who was

activated on September 15, 1990 and released on April 15, 2992

served at total of eight months. Under the provisions of this

bill, an extension to the delimiting date of eight months,

equal to the time of active duty, would be granted. However,

in reality this student might have lost two semesters (nine

months) or three quarters (ten months) of the academic year.

We therefore propose that a different methyd h empl,,yed for

those individuals who were using their sducation benefits when

called to active duty. Instead of using the active duty

period to determine the amount of the extension, the number of

actual academic terms lost would be used to calculate the

number of months to be added to the delimiting date. In no

case should the extension period be less than the actual time

served on active duty. We understand that this would place an

additional burden upon the Department of Veterans Affair end

possibly schools, to make this computation. However, for this

bill to truly protect the educational entitlement of the

Persian Gulf War participant this provision is necessary.

I thank you very much for the opportunity to testify

before the Senate Committee on Veterans' Affairs. My

colleagues and I commend the work that has been done by this

committee to improve and ensure the success of Veterans

Educational Assistance programs.

3 2 1
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INTRODUCTION

It is a pleasure for the National Guard Association of

the United States to represent the views of the officers and

warrant officers of the National Guard before this Committee.

He view the issues being considered today as very important

to the writing of the closing chapters of Operation DESERT

SHIELD/DESERT STORM. The first chapters are a clear

validation of the success of the Total Force Policy.

The Selected Reserve GI Bill has been an extremely

valuable benefit in developing and sustaining the high

quality of the National Guard force. Equally essential to

maintaining a quality force, is the ability to balance the

demands of National Guard service with maintaining a secure

civilian occupation.

Your committee is considering legislation that will

make education benefits and reemployment rights programs more

responsive to the current world situation and more valuable

to National Guard and Reserve personnel. The National Guard

Association applauds the Committee's efforts.

EDUCATION BENEFITS

The Selected Reserve GI Bill has been an important

factor in attracting and retaining quality, dedicated

personnel for the Army and Air National Guard. The program

3)fl.,. tI
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has supported National Guard officer and warrant officer

personnel in achieving the required civilian education levels

and enlisted personnel in meeting desired education goals.

Over the course of the six years of the program, the

levels of participation have steadily increased. The

activation and deployment of over 220,000 members of the

Nacional Guard and Reserve had an immediate and adverse

impact on continuation of college course work. The major

portion of the activations took place during the heart of the

school semester, requiring individuals to leave school. A

small number of members were within days of having started

courses, while a significant number of those activated were

well into the semester or, even worse, within days of

finishing.

The House and Senate versions of the Persian Gulf War

Veterans Benefits Act, H.R.1175 and S.578, took steps toward

returning lost benefits to affected personnel and

stre:r:thening the program in general with increased monthly

rates. P.L. 102-25 is the agreed upon compromise. It

addresses payment increases, but does not give back credit

for the lost months of eligibility. The proposed

legislation, S. 868, under consideration by this Committee,

would return the precious time that was lost. Further, it
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would extend eligibility to use the benefit with a period

equal to the number of months of active duty service.

Of equal importance for the National Guard, is the

third provision of the bill. Unlike the active duty

education benefits, eligibility for the Selected Reserve

program terminates if the individual separates from National

Guard or Reserve service. Section 2 of S. 868 specifies that

the active duty service performed in support of the Persian

Gulf conflict will not be considered separation from the

Selected Reserve for the purposes of this benefit.

REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS

Families and employers play a critical role in the

decisions of members of the National Guard and Reserve to

serve. Their support is based on the member's ability to

balance both civilian career and military service without

short changing either. The underpinning of reemployment

rights policy is important in building the necessary sense of

job security.

Employers have a need and a right to know their

obligations and protections when they hire citizen-soldiers.

The current laws have provided a good foundation but require

clarification. The demands of National Guard service under

the Total Force Policy have greatly expanded over the past

decade requiring increased amounts of training time.

3 ::
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The experience of Operation DEsERT SHIELD/DESERT STORM,

particularly occurring during an economic recession, have

pointed out some problem areas that need to be resolved. Job

security is essential to retention. For most members of the

National Guard, their military service is an avocation, an

expression of patriotism. At the same time, they have a

vocation or career. They also have a need to know very

clearly their obligations and protections under the law.

The National Guard Association was highly pleased with

the overall response of employers during the Desert

Shield/Desert Storm operation. Many went well past the legal

requirements to ensure their employees were covered, to the

extent possible, with continued benefits and even income

during their military service. while there are always some

exceptions, the employers appear to have at least complied

with the current law.

The Bill under consideration today, S. 1095, would help

to clarify some of the confusing provisions in current law.

Although we have not had an opportunity to make a detailed

review of all provisions in the Bill, we support the

provisions which will spell out federal government

responsibilities, including establishment of an outreach

information program. We also support the efforts to simplify

various provisions such as length of service limitations,

3:t;
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time periods for returning to work and requirements for

attempting to place disabled members in available positions.

We remain concerned, however, that we not overburden

the employer in an attempt to greatly strengthen protections

for the military member. The day-to-day relationship between

employer and member of the Guard depends to a great extent on

continued strong support of the members military career.

That support cannot be entirely dependent on provisions of

law. It is a relationship that is nurtured on a continuous

basis.

We encourage the committee to continue to incorporate

the concept of reasonableness in the reemployment rights

legislation. We believe the Bill under consideration will

help to clarify responsibilities, however, we need some

additional time to review several provisions such as the

revised treatment of temporary employees. The result of

assuming continuous employment for up to five years for a

temporary employee is not very clear. The majority of the

provisions in the Bill are certainly clear, and the National

Guard supports the attempt to clarify and improve

reemployment rights for National Guard members.

SUMMARY

The Persian Gulf War has fully validated the wisdom and

capability provided by the Total Force Policy. The National

3 ,...
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Guard has proven its readiness and the willingness of its

personnel to fulfill their commitment. They willingly

stepped up to the sacrifices that were required of them.

The final chapter of the War is being written now and

over the next few months. History has shown that the

homecoming process is an extremely impertant one. The future

of the Total Force will be materially affected by the way

military peKsonnel are helped to reestablish the normalcy of

their lives. Restoration of education benefits shows an

appreciation of the sacrifices and a recognition of the

importance of a quality force.

From a recruiting and retention standpoint education

benefits are essential. Another criticai element in the

willingness of the citizen-soldier to be ever ready to step

into the military role is the confidence that his or her

civilian career is safe. The balance between livelihood and

duty to nation is a delicate one. Clear and responsive

reemployment rights policies tip the balance in favor of

continued service to both.

The efforts of this committee will have a lasting

affect on the last chapter of the Persian Gulf War. They

will also influence the quality of the Total Force of the

future.

On behalf of the men and women of the National Guard,

we want to thank you for your support.
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Mr. Chairman, distinguished members of the Committee, it is indeed a

privilege to have this opportunity to present the viws of the Naval Reserve

Association to the Committee for your consideration.

5-868, a bill to improve educational assistance benefits tor certain

servicemen and reservists who served during the Persian Gulf conflict, restores

interrupted educational entitlement and xtends time limits for educational

benefits purposes. This bill embodies most of the pertinent provisions of H.R.

1175 that were not included in Public Law 102-25, and appears to adequately

address the Restoration of Educational Assistance and Delimiting Entitlement

Date problems of recalled reservists. The Navel Reserve Association has no

specific recommendations for 5-868.

The current Veterans Reemployment Rights statute needs revision because the

law is, in its present form, difficult to to understand and administer. and

needs to be strengthened to prohibit discrimination or reprisals against

veterans and reservists.

This hearing is particularly timely since the Department of Defense has

recently activated over 220,000 reservists and members of the National Guard to

support Operation Desert Shield/Storm, including over 60,000 who served in the

Persian Gulf Over 20.000 Naval Reservists answered the call, with a

substantial number being medical professionals serving in Navy Field Hospitals

supporting the combat Marines in the Persian Gulf War. An interagency Task

Force recently completed and forwarded to Congress their revised VRR law

entitles "Uniformed Services Employment R

1
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by the House of Representatives, is similar to the Task Force draft VRR Act in

many respects but strengthens and extends reemployment rights. Both proposals

continue the basic substantive rights of the VRR law, and make is more easily

understood and enforced. In lieu of a section by section examination of the

S-1095 revision of Chapter 43, Title 38, U.S. Code, I would like to key on a few

salient features of special Interest to our reservist members.

The unnecessary distinctions between types of military training and service

have been eliminated.in both the HR-1578 and the S-1095 revision of Chapter 43,

Title 38, U.S. Code. This greatly simplifies the Act and promotes better

understanding and enforcement.

The current VRR law lacks subpoena authority to assist and speed up the

investigative process by the Department of Labor. Both proposed revisions of

the act now contain this subpoena authority which has long been needed to assist

the investigations on behalf of the veteran/reservist.

When reservists ask their employer for time off to attend military training

or active duty and the employer says no, threatening to fire the reservists if

they comply with their military orders, the reservists should not be required to

report for military duty --I the bet that they will win their reemployment case

after they return from duty. Declaratory or injunctive relief should be

available to the reservist in such a situation, before they leave their job for
. _

military service. At least one draft bill proposal providad for such injunct-

ive/declaratory relief for threatened violations, while the this Committee's

S-1095 and the final form of H.R. 1578 do not In the view of the Naval Reserve

2
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Association, injunctive relief is a very important feature for protection of the

veteran/reservist.

From our membership there have been some reports of delays in the investi-

gative process by the Department of Labor, reportedly as a result of a limited

number of Investigators. Also, District Attorneye and their staffs have heavy

case loads of major drug case', etc. so that a few hundred or even a few

thousand dollars in back pay for a reservist may not be considered a very high

priority case. Hence, resort to private counsel may become an imperative In

some instances to enforce rights under the VRR law. A majority of the veteran/

reservist claimants are middle or lower income persons with Hrnited means to pay

legal and investigative fees, and the sums normally involved ere often not

attractive for contingent fee arrangements, The Naval Reserve Association Is

pleased that this Committee provides for the discretionary award of reasonable

attorney fees, expert witness fees and other litigation expenses to a prevailing

complaintant. However, in this Committee's draft bill the complaintants could

not avail themselves of private counsel until the Attorney General refused to

commence an action. Hence undue delays could be occasioned awaiting such

-refusal." The revised Section 4334 contained in S1095 corrects this problem

and provides for alternate representation without conditioning the recourse upon

Attorney General action.

Historically, a disproportionate number of complaints have been tiled by

Guard/Reserve personnel who are Federal employees. The federal government

should be a model employer with respect to "Prnp lnyer support of the Guard and

Reserve" and set an example for the private employer. Both acts have improved

3,3
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the enforcement procedures for Federal employees and provide for representation

of the Federal employee by the Office 01 the Special Counsel in appeals to the

Merit Systems Protection Board. This Committee's 5-1095 bill provides for

representation by the Special Counsel for review of a final order or decision of

the Merit System Protection Board while HR-1578 does not. This provision Is

more consistent with the Who Recorded non-Federal employees.

Both acts have adequate and similar provisions preserving Insurance, pension

and fringe benefits for the rturningweteran/reservist.

H.R. 1578 provides for a civil perty of $25,000 for an employer who

willfully falls or refuses to comply with the provIsiois of the Act. NRA has

concerns that this could have a negative impact on the hiring of reservists,

guardsmen. S-1095 contains no such punitive enforcement provision and provides

remedial relief instead.

This Act amending Title 38 United States Code, Chapter 43, and the Uniformed

Services Employment Rights provisions of H.R. 1578 and Persian Gulf Personnel

Benefits bills are evidence of the great progress made in providing Job

protection for our reservists this year. Thank you for your continued attention

to this serious problem for Reserve Component readiness, and thank you for

giving me the opportunity to testify here today.

If you have any questions, I will be happy to try to answer them.

4
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Mr. t.ilairman, the Non Commissioned Officers Association of

the USA (NCOA) sincerely appreciates this opportunity to share

with the committee its views on proposed improvements in veterans

education and reemployment rights benefits. Additionally, the

association commends the committee for conducting hearings on

these most important issues.

VETERANS REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS

The recent activation and deployment of a significant number

of military reservists and guardsmen has demonstrated substantial

deficiencies in public law regarding the reemployment rights of

such personnel. Issues such as the reemployment of those who

were disabled by service, the continuation of employer sponsored

benefits during service, the obligation of employers to protect

reemployed veterans against lay-offs and dismissal, and the court

drawn doctrine of "reasonableness" in the application of

reemployment claims have all served to confuse the employment

community. Further, they have worked to the disservice of

veterans.

On Thursday, May 16, Chairman Cranston introduced the

Uniformed services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of

1991, a bill that would modernize and overhaul the reemployment

rights provisions of law. This measure, S. 1095, is a very

thoughtful and comprehensive proposal that addresses all the

currently identifiable concerns existing in this area. NCOA also

1
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notes however, that the bill is similar to the House proposal on

this issue but not exactly the same in its language. For

example, the House bill would extend reemployment protections to

merchant mariners and members of the National Oceanographic and

Atmospheric Administration, a provision NCOA is not convinced is

justified. Meanwhile, the Senate bill is more generous in

allowing veterans who have been activated for 31 to 180 days a

full 31 days to apply for reemployment instead of the 14 days

suggested in the House bill, a Senate provision NCOA would

certainly support. The association is also compelled to note that

the Administration has endorsed the House bill, notwithstanding

its shortfalls. Yet NCOA does not find the provisions of either

bill in any respect totally unacceptable.

Accordingly, NCOA urges this committee to advance the

Chairman's prcposal and encourages this committee to move swiftly

towards reaching resolution with the House on the issues in

disagreement.

EDUCATION BENEFITS RESTORATION

In so far as it goes, S. 868, a bill that would restore

education benefits to servicemembers who lost entitlements during

deployment during the Persian Gulf war, is also quite

supportable. Again, while not exactly the same as the House

proposal, the bill seeks to make-whole those who suffered a

personal loss as a result of service in the armed forces

2

3 ,? t



Mr. Chairman, focus was drawn to this issue during the

recent, massive deployment of servicemembers in connection with

Operation Desert Storm. However, NCOA asserts that the need for

the relief proposed in S. 868 is more than transitory. Certainly

participants in major operations in Panama, Grenada, Nicaragua

and elsewhere would have benefited from this type of relief if it

had been available previously. Moreover, on a smaller scale, the

need for such permanent authorization is demonstrated daily by

the unexpected deployments of units and individuals to satisfy

military, diplamatic and humanitarian missions. Accordingl: NCOA

urges this panel to take the lead in providing permanent,

prospective relief to veterans in this area.

EDUCATION PROGRAM IMPROVEMENTS

Mr. Chairman, NCOA continues to be deeply disappointed that

neither Congress nor the administration has proposed the creation

of a G.I. Bill for persons serving in the armed forces during the

Persian Gulf war. G. I. education benefits have been a staple of

wartime service in the armed forces since World War II, but there

has been no discussion of creating such benefits during this

period of conflict. Parenthetically, we might add that there has

been no discussion of providing any of the traditional wartime

benefits (i.e. free home loans) to Persian Gulf veterans.

Shamefully, many Persian Gulf veterans will have no G.I.

Bill st all. For those who enlisted between January 1977 and

3
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June 1985, a G.I. Rill does not exist. And, many of those who

enlisted since July 1985 could not enroll in tho Montgomery G.I.

Bill because of financial obligations to family and others.

Some are willing to justify this slight of Persian Gulf

veterans by suggesting that this was an all volunteer force.

This is simply not true. More than 90,000 regular servicemembers

were, if not conscripted, at least impressed into additional

service by militan "stop-loss" policies which prohibited the

discharge or retirement of servicemembers, who had completed

theior obligated service, during the Persian Gulf campaign.

As a matter of equity NCOA urges this committee to establish

a non-contributory, Vietnam era type G.I. Bill for Persian Gulf

veterans. Such a bill should also benefit those reservists who

were activated for a qualifying period of service during the

Persian Gulf "era".

In the event the committee finds our argument tor a new G.I.

Bill unconvincing, NCOA offers the following recommendations for

improvements in the Montgomery G.I. Bill.

o Authorize refunds of pay forfeitures made for MGIB

participation by veterans who die from service connected causes

after leaving service. Such refunds are already authorized on

the basis of in-service deaths.

4
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o Open enrollment in the Montgomery G.I. Bill for

servicemembers who initially enlisted in the armed forces between

January 1, 1977 and June 30, 1965. It would only be fair to make

all Persian Gulf veterans eligible for the same education

benefits.

o Increase benefits under the Montgomery G.I. Bill to at

least $468 per month and index those benefits to increases in

education costs. This figure represents the indexed payments

currently authorized in the education test program created in

1984 [10 USC 2141 et seg] as a precursor to enactment of the

Montgomery G.I. Bill.

o Open enrollment at reenlistment to those who previously

declined participation in the Montgomery G.I. Bill.

CONCLUSION

Mr. Chairman, once again, NCOA expresses to the committee

its sincere appreciation for holding these hearings and for

inviting the association's participation. Hopefully the

committee will find our recommendations useful in their

deliberations,

5
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vernmeterarre

OFFICE Of Pensormu. MANACIIMI6NT

urAmmesocrnan. P.C. so410

MAY 3 iggf

Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee on Veterans Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, DC 20$10

Dear Mr. Chairnan:

I thought you would like a summary of the Federal employment
policy actions taken to help the men and women of the United

States Armed Forces since the start of Operation Desert Storm/

Desert Shield.

On August 23, 1990. the day after President !Wish authorized
calling the Selected Reserve tO active duty, we issued a

special directive reminding all agency heads and personnel

directors that every permanent employee called te active duty

has a right to reemployment. We encouraged agencies to place
those employees on leave without pay, rather then separating

them, to protect and continue health and life insurance coverage

for them and their families. In September, we issued regulations
formally waiving the employee share of health insurance premiums.

Following the success of allied military operations in the

Persian Gulf region, the President instructed agencies on

march S, 1991, that members of the Armed Forces Reserve and of

the Army and Air National Guard returning to Federal civilian
employment should be restored to the ame jobs they left, and

the agency option of placement in egerriTent jobs should be

used only when absolutely necessary. The President also
announced that returning employees should receive 5 days off.

without charge to leave.

Keeping in mind the regular members of tie armed Forces who

may be seeking civilian jobs after they templets their military
service, the President at the same time instructed OPM to work

with agencies to ensure that Federal civil service opportunities

are made available to the greatest extent possible to these
veterans, particularly those who have become disabled through

military service.

To recognize the special sacrifices and outstanding perform-

ance of the Armed Forces, President Bush issued Executive

Order 127'54 on March 12 creating the Southwest Asia Service

Medal for active duty personnel serving in military operations

in Southwest Asia on or after August 2, 1990.

3 1'
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The award of a campaign medal is a basis under civil rervice
law for receiving veteran preference in Federal employment.
OPM spread the word about this new veterans benefit thrOugh
a March 14 nationwide news release sent to the media,
congressional committees, veterans organizations. military
activities, agencies, and the public.

On April 6, 1991, the President signed legislation establishing a
Governeentwide leave bank program for Federal employees who served

. in the Gulf'. This program will enable Federal employees to
tontribute unused annual Leave to a leave bank that will be
divided equally_lessam-all-zateening Federai employee reservists
who served,during the Persian Gulf-MS*-

0PM has met. and will continue to meet, with veterans groups and
agency officials to keep them fully informed. We are preparing
more detailed instructions for agency personnel directors and OPe
region'l and local area offices to help assure that veterans
receive up-to-date information and a helping hand as they make
their way back to civilian life. To this end, we will designate
a staff member in every local OPM office as the principal contact
for veterans inquiries.

In addition to assisting Gulf War participants, we also are
supporting agencies with Desert Shield/Desert Storm
respoesibilities in many wayst

- Delegated authority to the DepartMent of Veterans Affairs,
as requested, to waive reduction in salary or retirement pay
requirements for the temporary reemployment of retired
annuitants needed to perform direct patient care, related
medical servicee, or claire; adjudication.

- Authorized the Department of Defense to make special
emergency-indefinite appointments.

- Delegated authority to the Department of the Air Force
and the Defense Logistics Agency to extend the services of
temporary employees beyond normal time limits, when necessary
to support Desert Shield/Desert Storm workloads.

- Authorized the Department of the Army to extend temporary
promotions of employees deployed to Southwest Asia in support
of Desert Shield/Desert Storm.

- Participated in ombudsmen training workshops sponsored by
the National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and
Reserve.

- Improved Federal 300 placement opportunities the
family mertrs of TInited States military and civ ^ian personnel
relocated to the OnittO States tram overseas as t result mt
the G,ilf .zonf11.-n.
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- Awthorized an exception to the limitation on premium pay
that may be paid durtng any one pay period for employees
performing overtime work in connection with Operation Desert
Storm. This exception was authorized for work performed after
mad-March under a new provision of law enacted as part of the
Federal Employees Pay Comparability Act of 1ee0.

On March 22, President Bush approved Public Law 102-16, which
includes major improvements in the Veterans Readjustment
Appointment program for Vietnam and post-Vietnam era veterans
seeking Federal employment. Those changes should increase the
opportunities of qualified veterans for quick, direct hiring
by agencies, rithout having to compete in civil service
examinatiOns. I know the Committee on Veterans' Affairs was
responsible for the development of that legislation. This new
law is also a timely reminder to all that there are needs of the
Vietnam era veteran which remain to be filled. While immediate
attention is focused on veterans of the Persian Gulf, we will be
asking agencies to keep in view the concerns and rights of
veterans of earlier conflicts, especially those who nerved
during the Vietnam era or were disabled by military service.

Responses to these actions have been most favorable. 1

particularly was pleased and moved by the enclosed letter
from Mr. Joseph E. Andry. National Commander, Disabled American
veterans.

Copies of issuances to agencies are enclosed for your reference,

Sinceiely,

Constance Berry Newman
Director

e Enclosures
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Statement of Major General Evan L. HUltman, AUS (Ret.), Executive
Director, Reserve Officers Association of the United States before
the Senate Committee on Veterans Affairs regarding education and
employment legislation --23 May 1991.

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

On behalf of the 115,000 Reserve Officers Association members

from each of the uniformed services, I appreciate the opportunity

to present to the committee the association's views on the "Persian

Gulf Veterans Education Assistance Amendments" and the "Uniformed

Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991".

First, I want to commend the committee for responding to the

needs of Reservists who have been called to active duty and would

benefit from the provision or restoration of educational assistance

and those who are now concerned as to whether or not their jobs

will be waiting for them when they are released from lctive duty.

Educational assistance has always been and continues to be an

important incentive in attracting and retaining qualified personnel

in the Guard and Reserve. Reemployment rights, or the ability of

an individual Reservist to continue his or her employment with a

civilian or governmental employer, are critical to retention in the

Reserve components and thereby are essential to the success of the

Total Force. But before focusing on the needs of Reservists and

the adequacies of the law, I would like to comment briefly on the

call-up of members of the Reserve components in support of

Operations DESERT SHIELD and DESERT srom.

When the ground war began on 26 January, there were roughly

540,000 military personnel in the Persian Gulf. Nearly 106,000 of

1
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those deployed to the gulf area were members of the National Guard

and Reserve, about one fifth of the forces deployed. In addition,

a total of roughly 228,000 Reservists were ultimately activated in

support of Operation DESERT STORM. The Chairman of the joint

Chiefs of Staff used the word mmagnificent" in describing the

contributions of these Reservists.

Reserve forces involvement in Operation DESERT STORM confirms

the critical importance of Reserve components as integral parts of

the Total Force. Reservists have every reason to be proud of their

contribution, but the contributions made by Reservists were not

without hardship.

ROA applauds this Committee for its recognition of those whose

educational programs were interrupted by their activation and

commends this effort to restore the educations benefits which would

otherwise be lost. We believe the Persian Gulf Veterans Educa-

tional Assistance Amendments are needed and well deserved.

The size of t Reserve component contribution to Operation

DESERT STORM suggests that there are and will be a great many

Reservists needing reemployment following their release from active

duty. It has to be assumed that, unless these Reservists have jobs

to return to, many will opt out of the Guard and Reserve. Related

to a basic right of reemployment are protections for seniority,

status, and the employee's pay rate that could be affected by a

call-up. Reservists routinely make sacrifices as a part of their

service, and left without strong employment and reemployment

protection, few would be able to continue to serve.

2
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The importance of employment protection is reflected in the

great number of calls ROA received from Reservists who were ordered

to active duty and from Reservists who anticipated being activated.

Reservists had a lot of questions relating to the call-up, but many

of their questions related specifically to reemployment rights.

Calling the association were also employers, the press, and many

personnel consulting firms who had questions regarding the lay.

Statutory employment or reemployment protection is crucial to

the ability of the Reserve coeponents to attract and retain quali-

fied personnel. In order to protect the rights of the Reservist

--and the rights of the employer--the statues must be easily

interpreted and understood. The proposed legislation goes a long

way in eliminating many existing ambiguities in the law.

Having emphasized the ieportance of clear and unambiguous

statutory employment protection, I would caution that legislation

has its limits. It would be unwise and impractical to try to

anticipate every circumstance and provide a legislative solution

in each case. Laws that go too far in protecting the rights of the

employee may in the end be counterproductive. Statutory protec-

tions provide a foundation for the necessary cooperation of employ-

ers, but statues are no substitute for goodwill. The proposed

legislation appears to be cognizant of that fact. We believe that

legislative initiatives should foster the enthusiastic voluntary

cooperation and support from eeployers.

The exclusion of "temporary* employment by currant law has

created ambiguities and has denied protection to some employe

3
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who should probably have been protected. The inclusion of tem-

porary employment in S. 1095 will significantly improve the law.

There has been the concern that there is no one agency respon-

sible for the administration and enforcement of reemployment laws.

The responsibility for reemployment rights of federal workers has

particularly been lacking. The division of responsibilities often

frustrates and delays compliance and the resolution of infractions

of the law. It further makes it very difficult to fix responsi-

bility for enforcement. While the proposed legislation promises

to improve compliance through clarification and a better under-

standing, the responsibility for enforcement remains divided and

continues to be a concern.

While the responsibility for enforcement remains divided,

which may be unavoidable, S. 1095 does provide the Secretary of

Labor subpoena authority needed to insure that complaint invest-

igations are adequate and timely. This is a much needed provision.

Current law provides different time periods given to an

employee to report to an employer for reemployment following

military service. The different time periods are governed by the

type of call-up or duty and not by the length of service, per se.

The type of call-up of duty performed is not important to the

employer, but the length of service is important and should be the

only governing factor. The proposed legislation appears to correct

this deficiency.

The employment rights bill addresses periods of time during

which a person who is reemployed by at, employer cannot be dis-
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charged from employment, except for cause. While the proposed

language may appear to provide eAditional protection, by providing

statutory periods, the proposal implies that after these time

periods an employer is free to discharge the individual following

active duty service in the uniformed services. The implication may

actually cause employers to discharge more personnel who are par-

ticipating in Reserve programs at the end of the statutory periods

and thus effectively reduce protection rather than add to it. The

discharge provision seems to be in contradiction to the intent of

the legislation.

While members of the Guard and Reserve were probably incon-

venienced in same instances by the necessity of shifting from their

employer sponsored health care plans to CHASMS, the association

is not aware of Reservists who were unable to satisfy family health

care needs through the authorised CHAMPUS program. Having noted

that we are not aware of a problem, we would not fault tt provi-

sion in S. 1095 that would give a Reservist the option of contin-

uing his employer provided health insurance at his own expense.

Finally, we note that S. 1095 would provide an outreach

program to provide employers and employees with accurate

information regarding their rights. The National Committee for

Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve has as its goal the

development and promotion of public understanding of the National

Guard and Reserve, and it is very helpful in resolving many of the

reemployment questions which arise. In spite of the Committee's

outstanding contributions, the DESERT SHIELD/DESERT STORM

5
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experience would suggest that more could be done to further the

awareness of reemployment rights. The outreach program could

Contribute greatly to this needed awareness.

Thank you for the opportunity to present ROA's views on Vet-

erans' Reemployment Rights legislation and the proposed changes

thereto. The committee is to be commended for its efforts to

restore educational assistance and to clarify and strengthen

employment protections for members of the Reserve components.

will now be happy to respond to any questions that you might have.

6
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May 30, 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, United States Senate

Committee on Veterans Affairs
414 Russell Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510-6375

Dear Senator Cranston;

Upon review of S. 1095 and H.R. 15780 I would like
to return to you ARVETS' preferences of some of the
main provisions of both.

Beeves (Support provision of H.R. 1578) While

&am;not in the highest risk services during the Persian
memberm AAof NO or the Merchant Marines were certainly

Gulf War (particularly in the case of the Merchant
WITH Marines -- we don't have much of a Merchant Marine

PRIDE anymore), we do support their inclusion in this

legislation. In future warm specialties which can be
provided by organizations such as NOAA might very well
be crucial to U.S. military success.

Temporary Positions, (Support S. 1095) AMVETS
has no objection to excluding temporary employees from
this legislation.

AMVETS
NATIONAL
KEADQUARTERS
4/347 Fates Bail lewd
Lanham 114fy land

207064961
itttPFAAt 301.459-9600
FIX 301-49-7924
rrs 8-344-3551

Return to Works (Support S. 1095) We consider
the "Return to Work" provisions of the Senate bill to
be somewhat more flexible to the military member.

Return to Work After Disability (Support H.R.

1578) The obvious clause in the House legislation that
compels AMVETS to support it is "..tha minieum time
required to accommodate the nircumstances beyond the
individual's control." There are cases in which
rehabilitation can take longer than two years, and in
these rare cases we feel that it is not unreasonable to
reserve an injured or disabled veteran's job.

°cementation Upon Returns (Support H.R. 1578)

Continuation of Insurance Coverages (Support S.

1095) The Senate provision puts a cap of the maximum
of what a premium could cost.
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Retention: (Support H.R. 1578) The House bill allows a
greater time period of protection.

Enforcement -- Pederal Government Employees: (Support S.
1095)

Enforcement -- State and Private Employees: (Support S.
1095)

Subpoenas; (Support S. 1095) We greatly favor inclusion of
federal employees in this legislation.

Regulations: .Support H.R. 1578) We feel that the House
legislation is more extensive in its coverage.

Outreach Programs (Support S. 1095) Few programs as
complex as VRR are useful unless those eligible ate educated,
etc.

Please accept our sincere appreciation for requesting our
views on these two pieces of legislation. I hope our somewhat
abbrnviated response is useful to the Committee as they go
forward with this legislation.

2
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Jona ney
Ha onal Legislative Director
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ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES ARMY

VW WILSON SOOLIVANO, MILisOTON, VINO3NA 22101 SUS 110844443330

June 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee on Veterans' Affairs
414 Senete Russell Office Bldg.
Washington, DC 20510-6375

Dear Senator Cranston:

Reternece your letter dated May 29, 1991, asking the Association of the
United States Army (AUSA) to comment on the substantive differences between

H.R. 1578 and S. 1095, the two veterans' reemployment rights bills.

Upon review of the twe bills, AUSA endorsee the following sections:

a. SCOPE: The House bill is preferred because it provides for unfore-

seen contingencies which might require conferring reemployment rights upon

those serving in the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)

and the Merchant Marine. We agree that the Secretary of Defense should ask
that these persons be covered by reemployment rights when the President
has celled them to duty in time of war or national emergency.

b. TEMPORARY POSITIONS; AUSA recommend. that the House bill be

followed since it excludes temporary positions from reemployment rights.
This agrees with our position concerning rights of permanent employees as
contrasted with Chose serving in a temporary classification.

c. RETURN TO WORE: The Senate bill language is preferred because

It follows closely with present law requiring an application for reemployment.

An application for reemployment ensures compliance in the reemployment pro-

cess by both the employee and the employer,

d. RETUEN TO WORK AFTER DISABILITY; MA supports the Senate require-
ment for a blanket two years extension for tbose hospitalized or convalescing

from Illness or Injury incurred In or aggravated by service. One period of

extension Is such easier for the veteran to uederstand aud makes it clear to

all concerned in the reemployment process.

e. CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE COVERAGE: Our Association supports the

Senate bill which sets the individual's premium payment st no more then

102Z. This is A fair and equitable method of tresteent for both employee
snd employer and does not transfer costs to others participating in a group

health plan.

f. ENFORCEMENT -- FEDERAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES; AUSA supports the Senate

bill because it provides more protection snd counsel for federal govern-

Sent employees throughout the claim process.

35 1.
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g. SUBPOENAS: We support the Senate bill because of its treatment of

federal employees on the same basis as all other employees. Federal ?loyees

should be accorded the same protections as those employed by state, local

or private employers when seeking compliance of witnesses.

h. OUTREACH PROGRAM: The Senate bill would provide a necessary ser-

vice to our veterans seeking reemployment rights information. The Asso-

ciation supports this important contribution to the VA outreach program.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this important veterans'

reemployment rights legislation.

Sincerely,

C. oN. JR.

Colonel, USA kal4e4
Director of Leg etive Affairs
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June 11, 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman
Committee on Veterans' Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This is to present the Administration's request that the
enclosed subsection be added to S. 1095, the proposed
"Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of
1991." In addition to addressing other concerns raised by the
Departments of Labor and Justice and the Office of Personnel
Management in their recent testimony, the Administration
requests that the Committee consider an issue of particular
concern to certain Intelligence Community (IC) agencies, i.e.,
the CIA, the FBI, the National Spcurity Agency (NSA), and
Defense Intelligence Agency (DIA), and that appropriate changes
in the bill be made.

The CIA and other IC agencies are generally supportive of
congressional efforts in the area of veterans' reemployment
rights, but we believe that S. 1095 could be read to have
serious, unintended consequences with respect to employment
matters in the national security contest, The IC agencies do
not discriminate against veterans/reservists and frequently
hire individuals with military experience because such
background often serves the needs of the IC. In fact, if the
recent experience of Desert Storm is any indication, IC
agencies sometimes confer benefits upon returning reservists
beyond those that would be mandated by the proposed legislation.

However, S. 1095 provides for enforcement of the statute
with respect to Federal agencies by the Merit Systems
Protection Board with the assistance of the Office of The
Special Counsel, the Department of Labor, and the Office of
Personnel Management. While thP IC agencies concur that
enactment of the substantive provisions of S. 1095 will be
beneficial to veterans and reservists, we must object to the
procedural rights the legislation could be read to create Yil
via the IC agencies. S. 1095's enforcement provisions are
inconsistent with the current legal framework, which protects

r4 ri r
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The Honorable Alan Cranston

from outside review the hiring and firing decisions in the
national security context and existing IC agency personnel
practices and procedures in national security matters. These
proposed enforcement mechanisms therefore pose CIA and the
other IC agencies significant national security concerns.

We urge that the enclosed provision be incorporated into
S. 1095 in order to address the national security concerns of
the IC agencies. The proposed provision continues to protect
the reemployment rights of these Federal employees. The FBI,
NSA, and DIA, as well as the MSC. the Department of Defense.
and the Department of Justice all have been supportive of CIA's
efforts in developing this proposal, and the Department of
Labor assisted in drafting the proposed Statutory language. If

your staff wishes further information on this proposal. Please
have them contact Vicki Pepper, an attorney on my staff, at
(703) 482-6126. A similar letter is being sent to the Ranking
Minority Member.

The Office of Management and Budget advises that there is
no objection to the presentation of this amendment to Congress
from the standpoint of the Administration's program.

Enclosure

Sincerely,

twL.., 6114L----
William H. Webster

Director of Central Intelligence

2
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ReC4MMendatien:

Proposed new subsection 4333A of 5. 1095:

§ 4333A. Modified procedural rights with respect to certain
federal employers.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter,
sections 4324(a) and (b), 4332, 4333, and 4341 shall not apply to
an agency of the Executive branch that is listed in section
2302(a)(2)(C)(ii) of title 5 of the United States Code and that
therefore is not an agency within the meaning of secticn 2302 of
title 5 of the United States code. Nothing in this subsection
shall be construed, however, to relieve any such agency from
compliance with the substantive provisions of this chapter.
Nothing in this subsection is intended to prohibit employees of
such agencies from seeking information from the Department of
Labor regarding any matter under this chapter or assistance in
requesting reemployment or alternative employment. If an
employee of an agency that is listed in section 2302(a)(2)(C)(ii)
of title 5 of the United Sta,es Code is not reemployed and can
qualify for an alternative position in another part of the
Executive Branch, such person may apply to the Director of the
Office of Personnel Management. Unless the Director has evidence
of the unsuitability of such person for reemployment, the
Director shall cause employment to be offered to such person by
an agency other than one lis_ed in section 2302(a)(2)(C)(ii) of
title 5 of the United States Code in an alternative position that
provides seniority, status, and pay equivalent to that of the
position that such person would have attained if such person had
been continuously employed during such person's period of service
in the uniformed services. Finally, nothing in this subsection
is intended to prohibit such agencies from voluntarily
cooperating with the Department of Labor or Office of Personnel
Management in any matter ariAing under this chapter.

Rationale:

S. 1095 could be interpreted to create a significant,
unintended disruption of the existing procedural framework for
handling hiring/firing decisions in the national security
context. A situation could arise in which national security
considerations make it necessary to terminate/not hire an
individual who also is a veteran/returning reservist--for
cxample, unexplained contacts with a foreign intelligence service
could present counterintelligence concerns requiring termination
of any employee. Under S, l09, by simply alleging "veteran
discrimination, a veteran/reservist arguably could call such
decision into gnestion.

Under current law, the Director of Central Intelligence has
the authority to hire and file employees of the CIA without
outside review where breaches of national security may be
involved. Other Intelligence Community agencies have similor
authorities. See, e,g section 102(c) of the Notiorrai



Security Act, 50 U.S.C. S 403(c), and 5 U.S.C. SS 2302 and

2305. It is important that the IC agencies maintain necessary
flexibility in hiring/firing decisions made in the interest of

national security. Moreover, external review of such claims

would conflict with the statutory obligation of the Director of
Central Intelligence (DCI) to protect intelligence sources and

methods from unauthorized disclosure.

Notwithstanding the discretion of the DC1 in hiring/firing
decisions, a system of internal procedural safeguards is
provided to CIA employees that would enable veterans/reservists
to file grievances with the Agency, and an independent
statutory Inspector General exists who could investigate
allegations of violation of the statute. The other IC agencies
have similar mechanisms in place. Therefore, the proposed
soction 4333A would not relieve CIA, NSA, FBI, DIA. or other
intelligence/counterintelligence organizations designated by
the President from any of the substantive obligations under the
new legisIation--it is intended only to relieve them from the
law's external enforcement mechanisms, which would interfere
with the existing framework for handling hiring/firing
decisions in the national security context.

Moreover, under the proposed amendment, employees of the
procedurally exempted agencies would be free to request
information and assistance from the Department of Labor on
matters arising under the new chapter. Such assistance by the
Department of Labor could include contacting the employing
agency to explain the Act and to request that the agency
reconsider its decision not to reemploy the person requesting
assistance if it appears to the Department of Labor that the
irdividual may be eligible for reemployment under this Act.
These agencies would cooperate voluntarily with the Department
of Latu'r or the Office of Personnel Management (OPM), as
appropriate, in matters arising under this chapter, if and to

the extent that the agencies determined such cooperation could
be provided consistent with national security interests. OPM
would find alternative employment in an agency that is not part

of the Intelligence Community for individuals who are not
reemployed by the IC agency unless OPM has evidence that the
individual is unsuitable for reemployment.
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22 June 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee on Veterans' Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D C. 205100501

Dear Mr Chairman

As your committee prepares to take up the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act of 1991, 5 1095, i would like to convey our strong support
for the rnclusion of language granting reemployment rights to merchant mariners
who volunteer to support our national defense.

The U.S. merchant marine, long considered the fourth arm of defense, has a
distinguished history of support to the defense of our great nation. They have
voluntarily sailed in every overseas deployment of U.S. combat power, from the
Spanish-American War in 1898 through both World Wars, Korea, Vietnam, and now
DESERT SHIELD/STORM. The role of the merchant marine in defense has been
codified by the Merchant Marine Act of 1936 which established the requirement for
a merchant marine capable of serving as a 'military and naval auxiliary,' and the
LI S. merchant marine has risen to that challenge. In World War 8 more than 270,000
merchant manners sailed in support of our national defense 6,632 were killed and
609 taken prisoner of war. Our merchant mariners experienced a casualty rate only
one-tenth of one percent lower than the Marine Corps, which experienced the
highest casualty rate of any branch of the Armed Forces.

Unfortunately today our ability to rely on the merchant marine to meet national
defense sealift requirements is eroding The U.S. merchant fleet has declined rapidly
over the past 20 years, from 588 militarily useful dry cargo ships in 1970 to only 168
in 1990. While it is possible to replace needed shipping capability through various
acquisition means, we cannot so easily replace the experienced mariners this decline
has displaced. All of the organic sealift assets which performed so well in Operation
DESERT SHIELD/5TORM; the Fast Sealift Ships, Afloat and Maritime Prepositioning
Ships, and the Ready Reserve Force (RRF) are manned exclusively by civilian merchant
manners who volunteer for duty By the late 1990s it is estimated our manning
shortfall, in the event of full mobilization, will be 7000 to 8000 mariners.

Our recent experience in Operation DESERT SHIELDiSTORM has validated our
concerns Ovilf our ability to man organic sealift assets, the largest source of U.S
flaKied, rn, *my unit equipment capable, shipping Under the current program the
Maritn.. Ad iinistrOtIOn (MARAD) hires ship managers who are responsible for
main wnanci , activation, and crewing of RRF vessels. These ship managers work
through the maritime labor unions to acquire manning from active mariners on
union rolls. Unfonunately, even with only 80 pcetent of the reserve fleet activated
incrementally over the 6 months of Operation DESERT SHIELDiSTORM, ship
managers and labor unions experienced crewing shortfalls. There simply are not
enough active mariners sailing today to simultaneously meet both economic and
defense needs The impact of these crewing problems would have been greatly
amplified if not for our ability to call on foreign flagged shipping to meet a portion
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of our deployment needs, and this shortfall will only be exacerbated as our reserve
fleet grows over the next several years. We need to find a workable, cost effective
way to bridge the widening gap between the manning required to sail our organic
assets and the shrinking pool of active merchant manners

The United States Transportation Command (USTRANSCOM), MARAD, and the
Navy are working together to find a straightforward solution to this growing
manpower shortage. Our approach focuses on tapping into the pool of inactive
manners who have sailing experience but have elected to pursue other than sailing
careers. Since these mariners now rely on other than active sailing jobs for their
livelihood, reemployment rights similar to those ereciyed by the Guard and Reserves
become critical to acquiring volunteers to support our national defense sealift
needs.

The merchant mariner reemployment rights language submitted by the
Administration and adopted by the House seeks a very narrowly defined privilege, to
be utilized only during national emergency or war. While granting this privilege will
have no impact on the budget nor any other veteran entitlement program,
precluding merchant mariners from reemployment rights will force us to look to
other, more costly proposals to ensure adequate merchant mariner manning Is
available to operate our current and future sealift assets

I strongly urge you to intercede in this matter and ensure language granting
reemployment rights for merchant mariners is included in 5 1095, the Uniformed
Service Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991. Your efforts can ensure
we are able to pursue the most cost effective solutrun to our growing merchant
mariner shortfall

Sincerely

/-1 a.--5/vs-1 2
HANSFORD T JOHNS
General, USAF
Commander in Chief

35

cc Members, Veterans' Affairs
Committee
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

SECRETARY Of LABOR
WASHINGTON. D C

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee on
Veterans' Affairs

United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

In recent testimony before your committee, we offel.A1 to
provide the Administration's position on issues of concern raised
by S. 1095, which would amend Title 38 of the United States code
with respect to employment ari reemployment rights of veterans
and other members of the uniformed services.

The bill would amend the veterans' reemployment rights (VRR)
law (Sections 2021-2026 of Title 38, United States Code) to
provide a basic reorganization of the VRR law, and to assure that
returning servicemembers are protected in all aspects of their
employment (except for pay and work performed) as if they had
been continuously employed during such period of service.

We are pleased to have this opportunity to express our views
regarding S. 1095, which has several substantive differences from
the House-passed Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment
Rights Act of 1991 (USERRA), which the Administration
substantially supports. The enclosures reflect the
Administration's positions regarding S. 1095. In addition, we
concur in the recommendations to amend S. 1095 presented by the
Department of Justice in its testimony before your committee on
May 23, 1991 concerning representation of Federal employees on
appeal, and attorney fees. We look forward to working directly
with your staff to remedy these differences so that the
Administration can support your bill.

The Office of Management and Budget advises that there is no
objection to the transmittal of this letter from the standpoint
of the Administration's program.

Sincerel ,

4TH/X
LYNN MARTIN

Enclosures
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Coverage of nRegulee Military Service

Location: Section 4301(a) (1) of S. 1095.

Ruggeated Alternative Language:

Delete nnonregular andn from line 5, page 3 of S. 1095, or expand

preamble in manner similar to Administration bill at section

2021.

Rationale for Suagested_Alternative Language:

The existing reemployment statute applies to persons serving in

the regular Armed Forces as well as the Reserve Components. We

are concerned that the use of the term "nonregular,n without

more, could be construed to mean that the proposed statute does
not apply to persons serving in the regular Armed Forces to the

same extent, if at all, as those serving in the Reserve

Components.

Liberal Construction Requirod

Location: Section 4301 of S. 1095.

Suggested Additional Language:

Add a new section 4301(c), as follows:

(c) It is the sense of Congress that the pro-
visions of this chapter should be liberally
construed in favor of persons with entitle-
ments under this chapter.

Rource ofAdditional language:

Section 2022(a) of the Administration's bill.

Rationale _fv.e_Additionel Languegg:

This language is intended to codify the statement of the Supreme
Court that the VRR statute should be "liberally construed for the
benefit of those who left private life to serve their country."

Rishgold v. lunimatuNagQ21LAnstjaggairisgm., 328 U,S. 275, 285

(1946). This has been a keystone of judicial interpretations of

the statute and has served protected persons well. This language
will help ensure the favorable outcome of litigation with respect
to issues that have not been and cannot be specifically
anticipated by the Congress.

31;J
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Definition of "uniformed services* -
Coverage of USERRA

LOcatign: Section 4303(9) of S. 1095.

figgnigliteSLAUteMitile_LA:
The term "uniformed services" means the United States Army, Navy,
Air Force, Marine Corps, and Coast Guard, including the reserve
components thereof as defined in section 101(27) of this title,
the Army National Guard and Air National Guard when engaged in
active duty for training as defined in section 101(22) of thin
title or in inactive duty training as defined in section 101(23)
of this title, the commissioned corps of the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration, the commissioned corps of the Public
Health Service, the Merchant Marine during time of war, national
emergency, or when deemed necessary by the Secretary of Defense
in the interest of national defense, and any other category of
persons so designated by the President in time of war or national
emergency.

Source of alternatiVe_Ianeuage: Section 2023(11) of the
Administration's bill.

pifferencee Between the Suegeste0A11eragtAXV_IAUM.WISea_001....S.
1995:

a. S. 1095 applies to the five Armed Forces (Army, Navy, Air
Force, Marine Corps, and Coast Guard) as well as the
commissioned corps of the Public Health Service (PHS). The
suggested language would make the law apply to all of those
entities plus the commissioned corps of the National Oceanic
and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA).

b. The suggested language would make the law apply as well to
the Merchant Marine during time of war or national emergency
or "when deemed neceesary by the Secretary of Defense in the
interest of national defense."

C. The suggested language would give the President the
authority to designate any other category of persons a
"uniformed service" and thus accord such persons rights
under this law. This Presidential authority only applies
"in time of war or national emergency."

3 6
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laNtienals_LDE_AltieznatlEs.-14DEmage:

a. The NOAA commissioned corps is a uniformed service. Members

of that corps perform service which Ls just as deserving of
reemployment protection as the service performed by members

of other uniformed services. In addition, they receive some
other benefits provided to military service members. This

is not a major burden on employers because there are only
approximately 400 members of that corps and most of them are
recruited directly out of college and have no civilian jobs

to which to return.

b. Especially in times of emergency, the Merchant Marine
performs an essential function for national defense.
Personnel can be transported by air, but military cargo must
be transported by 'ship. During the build-up for Operation
Desert Storm, it was necessary to recruit experienced
mariners from other lines of work to operate the vessels
carrying military cargo to the Persian Gulf region. Under
current law, those persons do not have reemployment rights.
The Department of Defense and the Department of
Transportation (Maritime Administration) have informed us
that according reemployment rights to such persons in such
situations will help ensure their availability if they are
needed again.

c. During World War II, particularly, certain categories of

persons (e.46_, Woments Air Service Pilots) who were
considered civilians at the time performed important,
arduous, and sometimes dangerous service that should be

recognized in law. The proposed language will give the
President the authority to respond to these circumstances as
they arise without having to ask Congress for special
legislation.

3t;
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Only Persons Holding 'Other Than Temporary'
Civilian Jobs Should Rave Reemployment Rights

Locatioe: Section 4322 of S. 1095.

Suggested_paternative Language:

Delete 'a" from section 4322(a) at page 9, line 14.

Add: "an other than temporary" in its place.

Source of Alternative Language:

Administration bill, section 2025(a). Existing reemployment
statute, 38 U.S.C. 2021(a).

pationale for AlternativeLanguaew

Since 1940, the Veterans/ Reemployment Rights (VRR) law has given
rights to "any person . . . who leaves a position (other than 4
temeerery position) in the employ of any employer in order to
perform . . training or service (in the Armed Forces)." 38
U.S.C. f 2021(a) (emphasis supplied).

In its first case under the VRR law, the Supreme Court emphasized
that, "This legislation is to be liberally construed for the
benefit of those who left private life to aerve their country."
Fishaold v. Sullivan Drydock & Repair_eoro., 328 U.S. 275, 285
(1946). This liberal construction also has been applied to the
requirement that the veteran's preservice job have been "other
than temporary." For example, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Sixth Circuit recognized that a position was "other than
temporary" where the veteran had a reasonable expectation, prior
to military service, of continuing to work several more years but
not necessarily for an indefinite duration. See Stevens v.
Tennesgee Valley Authority, 687 F.2d 158, 160-61 (6th Cir. 1982).

It also has been held that a probationary job is not "temporary"
for purposes of the VRR law. $eg Colllne v. Weirton Steel Co.,
398 F.2d 305 (4th Cir. 1968). Even a seasonal job can be "other
than temporary" if the veteran had a reasonable expectation,
prior to military service, that job would recur at the next
season. leg United_States v. Wimbieh, 154 F.2d 773 (4th Cir.
1946); United Statee v. North ftericae ereameries..._Ine:, 70 F.
Supp. 3s (D.N.D. 1947). Recently the U.S. Court of Appeals for
the Ninth Circuit upheld the VNR rights of a construction
industry laborer working a short-term job assignment at the time
of his entry into military service, holding that he held an
"other than temporary" employment relationship with the industry
as a whole and the hiring hall. $ee InAl v. Leherers' Pension

forJtorthern 904 F.2d 1327, 1334 (9th Cir.
1990), cart, denied, 111 S.Ct. 343 (1990).

In sumeary, the requirement of an "other than temporary"
preservice position has not been a major impediment for service
members. Changes to the reemployment statute should be made only
with good reason. At least in this respect, the languege of the
current law has served members of the uniformed services well and
need not be changed.
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Impossible or Unreasondble to Notify
an EMployer Prior to Service

LOS/AA= Section 4322(b) of S. 1095.

Suggested Alternative Language:

Delete sentence starting with "A determination. . ." beginning on

line 10 page 10.

Substitute:

Whether military necessity precluded
notification will be determined by the
concerned uniformed service authority and
shall not be subject to judicial review.

source of Alternative Language: Section 2027(d) (2) of the

Administration's bill.

Difference, Between Suagestes1 Alternative Lanuuage and a. 1095:

The language of S. 1095 implies that "the Secretary concerned"
(g.g., the Secretary of the Army) will make the "impossible or
unreasonable" determination regardless of the reason prior notice
is asserted to have been impossible or unreasonable. Under the

suggested alternative language, the "concerned uniformed service
authority" will make this determination only if "military
necessity" is the asserted basis for the "impossible or

unreasonable" determination.

Rationale for Suggested Alternative Language:

a. The determination that prior notice is precluded by military
necessity is likely to be made by an officer of the
"concerned uniformed service" to which a member is being
recalled to active duty on short notice. We are concerned
that the language of S. 1095 may invite litigation as to
whether the "Secretary concerned" had properly delegated
authority to such officer.

b. Military necessity is only gaa possible basis for a finding
that providing prior notice was impossible or unreasonable.
The unavailability or failure of the telephone system could

be another possible reason. If military necessity is the
basis for the determination, such a decision should be made
by the member's commanding officer or other proper military
authorities and should not be subject to judicial review.
If some other basis is asserted, such a determination should
be made by the court or by the Merit systems Protection
Board (for Federal employee cases).
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Adequacy of Documentation - Who Determines?

1,0Cation: Section 4322(e) (2) of S. 1095.

Euggestei PA,lternkttyg _language:

Substitute "of Labor" for "concerned" in line 3 of page 15.

Estionale far Suggested Altarnativelangmacm:
The language of S. 1095 seems to imply that each service
secretary (e.g.., the Secretary of the Navy) will be issuing
regulations specifying the kind of documentation that will be
sufficient to secure timely reemployment. A multiplicity of
perhaps conflicting regulations could be confusing for employers
and the courts. We suggest that, consistent with the
Administration bill, the regulations be promulgated by the
Secretary of Labor and, insofar as possible, should be uniform
for all seven uniformed services.

Reemploy First, Then Obtain Documentation

Location: Section 4322(e) (3) of S. 1095

Suggested Alternative Language:

Section 4322(e)(3) of S. 1095, substitute the following:

If the employer is not satisfied with the
documentation that the applicant has
provided, the employer may make further
inquiries after reinstating the applicant. If
as a result of such further inquiries by the
employer it is established that the employee
does not meet one or more of the eligibility
criteria, such employee's employment and
rights and benefits under this chapter may be
terminated.

NaZipnale for Alterrsative languAge

This language from the Administration's bill states more
explicitly that the employer's duty is first to reinstate the
employee and only thereafter to investigate in the event
documentation is lacking. Timely reinstatement is an essential
need of those returning, and the reemployment statute, while
giving consideration to an employer's interest, should give an
employer little basis to delay or attempt to defeat the
obligation to reinstate promptly.

3
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Person Returning from Short Tour Should
Se Entitled to Return to Exact Position

Lliti211: Section 4323(a) (1) of S. 2095.

Suggested Alternativgynnguage:

(1) In the case of a person who is not disabled, a person
returning from service in the uniformed services as providel in

section 4322 of this chapter shall ---

(A) if such person's period of service was fewer than 281 days
and such person is still qualified to be employed in the position
which such person left for service in the uniformed services, be
employed in the same position, within tine limits to be
established by the Secretary in regulations to be promulgated
pursuant to section 4351 of this chapter;

(8) if such person's period of service was 181 days or more and
such person is still qualified to be employed in the position
which such person left for service in the uniformed service, be
employed within time limits to be established by the Secretary in

regulations to be promulgated pursuant to section 4351 of this
chapter, in the same position or in a position of like seniority,
status, and pay;

Source of Alternative LanquAgg:

Section 2026(a)(1)-(2) of the Administration's bill.

SAtionele for Suggested Alternative Languaag:

Under section 4323(a) (1) of S. 1095, an employer is given the
option to reemploy the returnee in the same position or in a
similar one. Under the Administration's bill and H.R. 1578,
persons returning from short tours (up to 180 days) of training
or service are entitled to return to their exact lobe, with the
perquisites of seniority that they would have received if
continuously employed. This is consistent with the current
reemployment statute's treatment of active duty for training or
inactive duty training. agg 38 U.S.C. S 2024(d). While an
employer needs flexibility In reemploying employees returning
from long tours, no such need applies in the case of short tours.
A reservist should not have to be concerned about moves from his

or her civilian job each time he or she performs two days of
inactive duty training.
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Aecrual of Vacation and Other Short-ters Benefits
during Short Tours of service

LSSAII2D: Section 4325(a) of S. 1095.

AsigsmatELAIsliti2naLleansaango:
Add a second sentence to Section 4325(a) of S. 1095, as follows:

If the person's absence for service in the
uniformed services was for a period of fewer than
31 days, the person shall be entitled to all
benefits (other than the accrual of annual or sick
leave in the case of a person eligible to receive
military leave under section 6323 of title 5,
United States Code), whether or not related to
seniority, but not including pay for work not
performed, as if the person's employment had not
been interrupted by service in the uniformed
services.

Rourge of Additional Languaag:

Section 2027(8)(1) of the Administration's bill.

Rationale ter hOditional Language:

The purpose of this additional language is to ensure that persons
serving short terms of military training or service (up to 30
days) will continue to accrue vacation or annual leave during
those tours and that they otherwise will be treated as if
continuously employed for all purposes, except that employers are
not required to pay them for work they have not performed. This
concept was included in Section 2027(a) (1) of the
Administration's bill but was perhaps inadvertently omitted from
S. 1095 and H.R. 1578.

Persona serving in military service earn leave from the military
at the rate of 2 1/2 days per month, but not for tours of fewer
than 30 consecutive days. ,age 10 U.S.C. § 701(a). A Reserve
Component member should not forfeit a part of his or her annual
vacation simply because he or she performed annual military
training during the year. The suggested additional language will
avoid such an unjust result and will otherwise ensure that such a
member be treated as if continuously employed.

The parenthetical clause of the suggested additional language
exempts the Federal Government, as an employer, from this
requirement because the Federal Government already provides very
generous benefits, including 15 days of paid military leave, for
its employees who are Reserve Component members. 2eg 5 U.S.C.6323. This clause would also protect the Federal government from
being required to credit annual or sick leave during repeated
short toura, thus keeping this section budget neutral.
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Amount of Premium Required for the Continuation
of Civilian Health Insurance Coverage

Locatiqn: Section 4325(c) (1) of S. 1095.

auggested Alternative Language:

Redesignate paragraph (2) of section 4325(c) of S. 1095 as

paragraph (3).

Amend section 4325(c), relating to retention of employer-provided
insurance during absences for uniformed service, to insert the
following paragraphs (1) and (2) in lieu of paragraph (1).

(c)(1) A person whose civilian employment with an employer
is interrupted by a period of service in the uniformed services
shall, if such person requests with respect to the period, retain
existing coverage under any insurance policy or program provided
by such employer for its employees in accordance with conditions
generally applicable to employee participation during a furlough

or leave of absence and tho provisions of this subsection.

(2) On the date that a person's employer-provided
insurance coverage would otherwise terminate due to an extended
absence from employment for purposes of performing service in the
uniformed services, the employer shall give such person an
opportunity to elect to continue temporarily insurance coverage
acquired through civilian employment in accordance with this
paragraph so that such insurance continues for a minimum of 18
months after such date. Such temporary continuation of employer-
provided insurance shall be in lieu of, to the extent it would
duplicate, any insurance the person is entitled to elect pursuant
to section 49809 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, section
8905a of title 5, United States Code, or other similar law of the
United States or any State. A person who elects to continue
temporarily insurance coverage under this paragraph may be
required to pay not more than 102 percent of the full premium
associated with such coverage for the employer's other employees,
except that in the case of a person who performs service in the
uniformed services for periods of fewer than 31 consecutive days,
such person may not be required to pay more than the employee
share, if any, for any such coverage.

Rationale for Alternative Lanauaag:

S. 1095 would entitle any person whose civilian employment is
interrupted by active military service to request continuation of
all employer-provided insurance plans during such absence for at
least le monthg after commencement of such service. In this
regard, the employee could be required to pay no more than 102
percent of any premium required of other employees, or to pay the
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same required of other insured employees when military service is
leas than 31 days. H.R. 1578 would provide a similar 18-month
continuation of insurance for absent reservists but would allow
employers to charye such employees the full cost associated with
benefit continuat on (consistent with current laws on temporary
continuation of health insurance on termination of private
employment, 26 U.S.C. 49808, and Federal employment, 5 U.S.C.
8905a).

We aro concerned with the language of S. 1095 stating that a
person in the service who requests insurance coverage emay be
required to pity not more than 102 percent of any premium required
of other employees tor the continuation of any insurance coverage

. .0 This language is susceptible to an interpretation that
the employee serving in military service would only be required
to pay 102% IL Pt S.. - - . If
S. 1095 were to be enacted in its present form, and if such an
interpretation were to be adopted, significant new costs would be
imposed upon employers, ingliittag. Under
the "pay as you go, requirement of the most recent Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act, it would then be necessary for the Congress
to enact corresponding savings or revenue enhancements to make up
for this new Federal cost. The alternative language, adopted
from the Administration bill, would clarify that an employer is
not required to finance the continuation of health insurance
coverage for up to 28 months and would make S. 1095 budget-
neutral. Any provision which fails to ensure that an employee
may be required to pay the cost of the insurance presium is
problematic.

Currently, Federal employees ars entitled to continue Federal
Employee Health Benefits (FEBB) and rederal Employee Group Life
Insurance (FEGLI) coverages for up to 12 months in a leave
without pay (LWOP) status. While no FEGLI contributions are
required for continued coverage during LWOP, employees nornally
must continue the employee share of FEHB premiune. [However, OPM
exercised its regulatory discretion and waived FEHB contributions
while employees are in LIMP status for military service related
to the Persian Gulf conflict.] If LWOP status continues beyond
22 months, both FEHB and FEGLI terminate subject to a 31-day
temporary extension at no cost during which the employee may
exercise the right to convert to nongroup insurance coverage
without providing nedical evidence of insurability.
Alternatively, insured employees who separate from civilian
service may elect to continue temporarily regular FEHB coverage
for up to 18 months after the separation, but in such case the
employee must pay both the Government and the employee shares of
premiums, plus an extra 2 percent of premium to cover related
administrative expenses. Temporary continuation of coverage
begins on the day after the 31-day temporary extension of
coverage expires.

S. 1095 as introduced would require continuation of Federal
employees' health and life insurance with Government contribution
for 18 months in lieu of the 12 months currently available to
employees on leave without pay. The proposed amendment would
require employers, on the date insurance would otherwise
terminate, to offer employees at least an 18-month temporary
continuation of existing insurance on an employee-pay-all basis,
in lieu of any duplicative temporary coverage available under
other laws.

3
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Accrual of Annual Leave or Vacation During
Military Service or Training

Location; Section 4325(e) (2) of S. 1095.

Suggested Alternative leanauage:

Delete paragraph (2) of section 4325(e) and renumber paragraph

(3) as paragraph (2).

Swested

Without the suggested deletion, this subsection is susceptible to

an interpretation that an employer is required to allow an

employee to continue accruing vacation or annual leave benefits

vhile the employee is in military service or training. The

Supreme Court has held that, under the existing reemployment

statute, vacation or annual leave days are not perquisites of

seniority which a returning veteran ie entitled to claim under

the "escalator principle." laa yoster v. preye_Qm., 420 U.S.

92 (1975).

Overruling Foster would impose substantial new costs upon

employers, including the Federal Government. Like the provision

for health insurance, this provision could impose new costs upon

the Federal Government for which the Congress would be required

to find corresponding savings or revenue enhancements elsewhere.

The deletion of section 4325(e) (2) would make S. 1095 budget-

neutral.

It should also be noted that persons in military service earn
leave from the military, except for tours of fewer than 30

consecutive days, and, except during wartime, are allowed to use

that leave during or at the end of their active military service.

The suggested additional language for section 4325(a), supra,

will allow Reserve Component members to accrue vacation during

tours of up to 30 consecutive days.

If this section of S. 1095 is intended only to allow an employee

to use, during military service, annual leave or vacation which

had already been accrued, not to continue accruing such benefits

while in service, this intent is adequately expressed by section

4325(e) (1), which is consistent with current treatment of Federal

employees, thus making section 4325(e) (2) unnecessary.

If this section of S. 1095 is intended to require the employer to

grant annual leave or vacation similar to that granted to other
employees on other forms of leave, this intent is adequately

expressed in section 4325(b), thus again making section

4325(e) (2) unnecessary.
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Period of Special Protection Against Discharge

Leostion: Section 4325(d) of S. 1095.

nuggestori Alternative Language:

Delete subsection (d) of section 4325 and replace it with the
following language:

A person who is reemployed by an employer under this
chapter shall not be discharged from such employment,
except for cause-

(1) if such person's period of service in the uniformed
services was 181 Jays or more, within one year,

(2) if such person's period of service in the uniformed
services days or more but less than 181 days, within six
months; or

(3) if such person's period of service in the uniformed
services was less than 31 days, within a period of time that is
equal to the period of service concerned.

Source:

Section 2034(e) of H.R. 1578; ser also Section 2027(e) of the
Administration's bill.

Efitionale for Altetnelle_Languags

Under Section 4325id), tne duration of the oeriod of special
protection would depend upon the duration o. the returnee's prior
tap1oyment by tbat employer, including the period or period5 of
ge.1*.tary trainin4 or service that may have int_rrupted that
employment.

Under t!'.' exlsting reemnlo;ment statute, the duration of the
special protection againet diicharge except far cause depends
upon yhe rr-Ltegory of military duty or training. The protection
hes Um purposes (1) to "live the returnln7 veteran a reasonable
time to regain civilian aktlls; and (.1) to pra,ect thn veteran
from d bad faith reiostat2ment.

Under :.gma Administrgt!on's bill and H.R. 1578, tiaa duration of
paric, of speciel protection woula .!.--Fend upon the duration

of tbe ailitary service or training. Withcut the suggested
change, the provisims of section 4325(d) would expand the
protection against .ayoff well beyoni tbat provided by current
law or proposed by the Administration (section 2027(0)). The
Administration proposal relates this special protection to the
length of absence from the job which is reasonable in light of
the intent of the special protection. To relate the period of
special protection to the length of time the individual has been
in the employ of the employer is essentially irrevelant to the
purpose of the special protection and is not warranted.

3 7
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Replays* Contributions to Individual hemount plans

Location:

Section 4326 of S. 1095

Euggested Alternative Language:

Insert 011 page 26, at line IS, of S. 1095, new paragraph (b)(31

as follows:

(3) A persun reemployed under this chapter shall

be entitled to accrued benefits that ar derived from

employe contributions in an individual account plan as

defined in section 3(34) of the Employee Retirement

Income Security Act of 1974, 29 U.S.C. 51002(34), only

to the extent the permon makes payment to the plan in

respect of such contributions. No such payment may

exceed the amount the person would have been permitted

or required to contribute had the person remained

continuously employed by the seployer throughout the

period of deemed service described in section

(s)(2)(13). However, nothing in this paragraph shall

impose any liability on the employer or the plan to

maks any matching or other contributions, or to make

any allocation from other participants' accounts, to

any account of a person reemployed under this chapter.

Ealassa_sajt_usautitAltamardyajdusigans

This is language parallel to Section 2027(41)(2) of the

Adeinistrationis

Rationale for Sum:tailed Pardsragtiya_rdsnaum:

In the case of individual account plans or defined contributicn
plans, reemployed veterans could make °catch-up* employee
contributions to such plans. Because employer contributions to
individual account plans are more properly characterized as

.wm current compensation than as perquisites of seniority, employers
would hrve no obligation to mak any matchimi or other
contributions to such plans and the plans would not be required
to reallocate money that has previously been allocated to other

participants' accounts.

Any provision permitting "catch-up" employee contributions to

individual account plans may rsquire conforming amendments to the

Internal Revenue Code.

3.41'
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Entitlement to Accrued Benefits

LaSaian:

Section 4326 of S. 1095

Alaggledit-atinlbednLarigian:

On page 25, line 15, of S. 1095, delete the words "and for" and
delete lines 16 and 17. On line 15, after the wcrd "benefits"
insert the following:

*, provided: That such person meets the eligibility

criteria under this chapter and the regulations

promulgated under Section 4351 of thin chapterl and,

provided further, that: Any such dew:4m service shall

be taken into account in determining his or her right

to accrue benefits under the plan only in the case of a

defined benefit plan as defined in section 3(35) of the

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 29

U.S.C. f1002(35), or under a similar Federal or State

law governing pension benefits for governmental

employees.

Source_ofSurfactste&Alternative Lanauaaa:

Sections 2027(f)(2) and (g)(2) of the Administration's Bill

1. -LA, - I
The insert would maks clear that military service would be
credited as service with the employer for purposes of determining
accrued benefits only in the case of defined tenefit plans. The
Administration bill excepts defined contribution or individual
account plans from the obligation to provide benefit accruals
because such accruals represent contributions actually made to
the plan participants' individual accoants, and are more properly
characterized as current compensation than as perquisites of
seniority.

Imy
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Federal Retirement System

iqcation: Section 4326(b) (2) of S. 1095.

Suggelted Alternative Lanauaae:

Section 4326(b) (2) of S. 1095 should be rewritten as follows:

(2) A person reemployed under this chapter shall be entitled
to accrued benefits pursuant to subsection (a)(2)(B) that

are derived from employee contributions only to the extent
the person makes payment to the plan with respect to such
contributions. No such payment (gAramm_aummta_regmirgd_py
gecttons 8332(cl. or 8411(cl of title S. United States Code)
may exceed the amount the person would have been permitted
or required to contribute had the person remained
continuously employed by the employer throughout the period
of deemed service described in subsection (a)(2)(B)).

(Emphasis supplied.)

Iliffiergegeggested Alternative Lanouage an4 S. _1095

The suggested alternative language (highlighted parenthetical
clause) would exempt the Federal retirement systems from the
general provision regarding employee contributions upon returning
from military service, and also limit the costs involved with

such contributions.

Rationale for Suggested Alternative Lanouaae:

The Federal civilian retirement systems already give generous
credit for military service, not only for persons whose Federal
civil service careers are interrupted by military service but
also for persons whose military service preceded their initial
Federal civilian employment. As is the case regarding civilian
health insurance coverage and the accrual of amual leave,
disc, seed gunrg, S. 1095, without the suggested amendment, could
impose sdbstential new costs upon the Federal Government as an
employer, and under the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act the
Congress would be required to propose corresponding savings or
revenue enhancements elsewhere to make up for this new cost.

Without the suggested changes, in cases of civilian Federal
employees, most of whom are under either the Civil Service
Retirement System (CSRS) or the Federal Employees' Retirement
System (FERS), this subsection would exempt military service
which interrupts Federal civilian employment from the usual
military deposit requirementr in the retirement laws. Instead of

fl'ft, 4

41
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being required to deposit the prescribed percentage of military
base pay (3 percent for FERS or 7 percent for CSRS) as required
by title 5, United States Code, FERS participants and certain
CSRS participants who have concurrent social security coverage
(CSRS-offset employees) would be required to pay only an amount
equal to 0.8 percent of the basic pay of their civilian
positions, as is normally contributed by active employees with
these retirement coverages. Employees covered by CSRS alone
would continue to pay a deposit based on 7 percent of military
base pay under S. 1095, since regular CSRS contributions are 7
percent of civilian base pay.

S. 1095 would not affect deposit rates for purposes of crediting
military service performed before civilian Federal service
commences, so an individual with several periods of military
service, before and durine civilian service or before and after
S. 1095 becomes effective, would pay different deposit rates.
These inconsistencies would likely lead to pressures for
uniformly lowering all deposit rates for military service credit.
To the extent that employees contribute less toward funding
retirement benefits, Government costs under Federal retirement
systems will increase.

The suggested alternative language would exempt Federal
retirement systems from the deposit limitation in section
4326(b)(2). Unlike the retirement programs of private employers.
Federal defined-benefit retirement programs routinely allow
credit for military service, and already meet the need to provide
a comprehensive retlrement benefit package to the employee whose
employment career includes a mix of civilian and military
service.

3 7:5
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Enforcement Procedures for Intelligence
Community Agencies

RecomPendation:

Proposed new subsection on 4333(f) of S. 1095:

i 4333 * *

(f) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter.

this section aud section 4341 shall not apply to an agency

of the Executive Branch that is listed in section
2302(a)(2)(C)(ii) 3f title 5 of the United States Code and
that therefore is rot an agency within the meaning of
secti3n 2302 of title 5 of the U.S. Code. Nothing in this
subsection shall be construed, however, to relieve any such

agency from compliance with the substantive provisions of

this chapter. Nothing ill this subsection is intended to

prohibit employees of such agencies from seeking informetion

from the Department of Labor regarding any matter under *his

chapter or assistance in requesting reemployment or
alternative erployment. If an employee of an agency that is

listed in auction 2302(a)(2)(C)(ii) of title 5 of the United

States Code is not reemployed and can guelify for an
alternative position in another part ot the Executive
Branch, such person may apply to the Director of the Office

of Personnel Management. Unless the Director has evidence
of the unsuitability of such person for reernalteiment, the

Director shall cause employment to be offered to such person

by an agency other than one listed in section
2102(a)(2)(C)(ii) of title 5 of the United States coe- in an

alternatiee peeltion that provides seniority, status, Ind

pay equivalent to that of the position that such person
would have attained if such person had been cen*inuously
employed during such person's period of service in the

uniformed services. Finally, nothing in this subsection is

intended to prohibit such agencies from voluntarily
cooperating with the Department of Labor or Office of
Personnel Management in any matter arising under thie

chapter.

agiatgle:
S. 1095, like F.R. 1578, could be interpreted to create a
significant, unintended disruption of the existing procedural

framework for handling hiring/firing decisions in the national

security context. A situation could arise in .1hich national

security considerations made it necessary to te..:minate/nit hire

an individual who also is a veteran/returning reservist. For

example, unexplained contacts with a foreign intelligence serv

could present counterintelligence concerns requiring termination

at an employee. Under S. 1095 or H.R. 1575, by simply alleging

4
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"veteran discrimination," a veteran/reservist arguably could call
such decision into question.

Under current law, the Director of Central Intelligence and has
the authority to hire and fire employees of the CIA without
outside review where breaches of national security may be
involved. Other Intelligence Community (IC) agencies have
similar authorities. Imes e.a., section 102(c) of the National
Security Aet, 50 U.S.C. § 403(c) and 5 U.S.C. fi 2302 and 2305.
It is important that the IC agencies maintain necessary
flexibility in hiring/firing decisions made in the interest of
national security. Moreover, external review of such claims
would conflict with the statutory obligation of the Director of
Central Intelligence (DCI) to protect intelligence sources and
methods from unauthorized disclosure.

Notwithstanding the discretion of the DCI in hiring/firing
decisions, a system of internal procedural safeguards is provided
to CIA employees that would enable veterans/reservists to file
grievances with the Agency, and an independent statutory
Inspector General exists who could investigate allegations of
violation of the statute. The other IC agencies have similar
mechanisms in place. Therefore, the proposed subsection (f)
would not relieve CIA, NSA, FBI, DIA, or other
intelligence/counterintelligence organizations designated by the
President from any of the substantive obligations under the new
legislation. Subsection (f) ir intended only to relieve those
organizations from the law's external enforcement mechanisms,
which would interfere with the existing framework for handling
hiring/firing decisions in the national security context.

Moreover, under the proposed amendment, employees of the
procedurally exempted agencies would be free to request
information and assistance from the Department of Labor on
matters arising under the new chapter. Such assistance by the
Department of Labor could include contacting the employing agency
to explain the Act and to request that the agency reconsider its
decision not to reemploy the person requesting assistance if it
appears to the Department of Labor that the individual may be
eligible for reemployment under this Act. These agencies would
cooperate voluntarily with the Department of Labor or the Office
of Personnel Management (OPM), as appropriate, in matters arising
under this chapter, if and to the extent that the agencies
determined such cooperation could be provided consistent with
national security interests. OPM would find alternative
employment in an agency that is not part of the Intelligence
Community for individuals who are not reemployed by the IC agency
unless OPM has evidence that the individual Is unsuitable for
reemployment.

377
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Definition of Veteran"

Location: S. 1095, section 2(d)(2)(A).

ragigested A1ternativgjannnna.22:

Delete this subsection.

Ratiopa1e for .Ouggert,*4 Aaffirnative Language:

Many persons %Ow can rightfully claim benefits under S. 1095 do
not qualify z.s "veterans" under this definition. Any use of the
term "veteran" should be deleted and substituted with "member of
the uniformed services."

a I .
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1 1 JUN 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee on Veterans' Affaira
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

I am writing to urge that the Administration's proposal to
provide reemployment rights for United States merchant mariners
be included in the bill, S. 1095, to amend title 38, United
States Code, "to improve reemployment rights and benefits of
veterans and other benefits of epployment of certain members of
the uniformed services." The House-passed bill, H.R. 1578,
includes the "merchant marine" in the definition of "uniformed
services."

During Operation Desert Shield/Storm merehant marinerm performed
a vital role in manning the Ready Reserve Force (RR?) ships and
the U.S. Navy's Fast Sealift Ships and propositioned ships in the
military sealitt effort to supply the Armed Forces during the
Persian Gulf crisis. Many individuals were drawn from active or
retired seafaring personnel. Nearly 80 percent of total sealift
cargoes were carried by U.S.-flag ships with civilian crews.

Delays occurred in fulfilling the manning requirements for the
ships because & sufficient number of active qualified seagoing
personnel was not immediately available. Despite their
qualifications to do so, many potential mariners working in
shoreside jobs were unable to fill these jobs because there was
no guarantee that their private sector employment would be
available upon their return. Those who volunteered still man the
RRF ships that remain in operations status to assist in the
return of large vehicles, tanks, and equipment from the Middle
East.

3 7 :
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At Congressional hearings this year, the U.S. Transportation
Command (TRANSCOM) of the Department of Defense and the U.S. Navy
have supported the Administration's proposal to extend
reemploymint rights to these merchant mariners who crew the RRF
Ships in tine of war or national emergency.

We hope that Congress will act favorably on this proposal which
would enhance our ability to obtain additional civilian manpower
for the merchant marine to meet national requirements.

rely,

dat-sr'alf 1/1C7)-el*Cd
CAPTAIN WARREN O LEBACK
Maritime Administrator

cc: Members,. Committee on veterans' Affairs
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Au (7DG) 519.334

REMO= TO DrligaSOCES DMUS 1.1095 AND H.R. 15711

CifkuLtkancli..10.1Jusia....013L-1114-10.11-Uniant
The MLA difference that is noted by our association Is the
exclusion of the Arsy and Air National Guard in the Definitioas
Section of the Senate Sill. The House Sill includes service in the
National Guard as_ qualifying service. S. 1095 includes only the
mby the book* definition of service in the uniformed services. We
find these definitions set forth iniS.R. 157$ to be critical to our
aesbersbip, andwould like to see all National Guerd service deemed
as "qualifying service' =ler the provisions or h. 1095.

*4 4.1 I 0,` . -
livii&A2.9.1-attaMa

With regards to actually filing a complaint to the Secretary of
Labor, we feel that S. 1095 specifically spells out what steps need
to be taken by a'domplainant to ensure that bis/ber complaint is
takencare of as quickly as possible. H.R. 137$ licks specifies in
this area that could increase "red-taps" for a ceeplainant thus
inorOosinf the amount of ties it would take the Secretary of labor
to react and rectify the situation.

Rat

Regarding the retention clauses of both bills, vs prefer the
language included in the House bill. The extended tenure afforded
Guardsmen and Renservists under 9. 1093 may cause an employer to be
reluctant to biro someone involved in such service. We feel that
such discrimination by an employer would be difficult to prove in
court even though said discrimination is considered illegal. At
EANGOI we must not only strive for equitable representation of the
sacrifices of our meebers, but we must also be assured that these
provisions will effect all parties in a positive manner.

The rest of the provisions o: either bill ars ecceptable as ntated.
We appreciate the opportunity to express the opinion of our
membership.

ctfully,"

Iv` 11..,

Nic1iA1 P. Cline
EXecutive Director
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kAlth ItImiranceAssocauen of Atnet It A

June 5, 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman
Committee on Veterans' Affairs
U.S. Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Cranston:

The Health Insurance Association ot America would like to take
this opportunity to express its support for S. 1095, the
"Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of
1991", which contains language similar to P.L. 102-12 and H.R.
1578, recent/y passed in the House of Representatives, with
regard to health insurance.

Even though there had not bann explicit language cn the Veterans
Reemployment Rights Act requiring health insurers to accept
returning reservists back into the employer group without
imposing preexisting conditions, limitations or other waiting
periods, the industry has generally recognized that the law's
intent and legislative history was to prohibit discrimination by
employers against veterans returning to work, including non-
discrimination in health insurance benefits. Although HIAA
welcomes the clarification in P.L. 102-12, S. 1095 and H.R. 1578,
several questions have been raised by our member companies, some
of which have been addressed in the final legislative language of
H.R. 1578 and the House Committee Report (H. Rept. 102-56). HIAA
would hope that similar language would be included in either the
final Senate bill or report language. The most pressing
questions are as follows:

o What happens if the terms of the insurance contract change
during the course of the reservists' active duty?

HIAA interprets the law to require that returning employees
be treated as would a similarly situated employes returning
from a leave of absence. Therefore, if for some reason the
terms of the insurance contract changed during the course of
a reservist's active duty, the reservist would presumably be
entitled to coveraga under the existing group plan, versus
the prior plan, upon return. In other iords, military
personnel returning to the group would not receive
preferential treatme-r,

102S t ticut A kcnut., NW WA: hinAti in, IX: 29036 399 1 201- 22i '780 Tri op4e1 2t.: 223 78'r
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The Honorable Alan Cranston
June 5, 1991
Page 2

HIAA believes that this concern is generally addressed in
the House Report but could be made more clear in stronger
report language.

o What happens to reservists who return to an employer which is a
self-funded ERISA plan (non-insured) or an HKO?

The Veterans Reemployment Rights Act has always been
interpreted to apply to employers directly. P.L. 102-12
amended section 2021(b) of Title 38 by adding language with
regard to employer-offered health insurance. However, the
language in S. 1095 seems to leave open the question with
regard to reservists returning to employers who self-insure
because of the specific reference to health Insurance. More
than half (54%) of insurance company group coverage is
represented by Administrative Services Only (ASO)
arrangements for self-funded employer health plans. In
addition realth maintenance Organizations are not generally
considered insurance. If the intent is to truly make sure
that returning reservists are re-activated under their
employers health plan, then S. 1095 should be amended to
require employers to reinstate employees into their health
plans as well as to require insurance companies to reinstate
returning military personnel into insurance plans.

The House bill, as passed, does address this concern by
referring to esployer sponsored health bmigfiti and the
House Report (H. Rapt. 102-56) addresses thib issue at page
30 when it quotes H. Rept 101-862 from last ysar, by
stating that the term "haa,..' benefits* is used generically
in this section to include insurance plans, self-funded
employer health plans (often administered by insurance
cospanies), and health maintenance organizations, which
provide health care directly to employees." This language
should also be contained in either the Senate bill or its
report language.

4, Milers will the line be drawn with regard to preexisting
conditions which occur during active service but which are not
really "service-connected" (particularly for dependents)?

Although this is an area delegated to the Secretary to
determine, several companies have raised questions regarding
conditions which are not *service-connected" but which may
arise during the period of active duty. For example, if a
child is born with a handicap during the reservists' period
of active duty, would the insurer be able to ispose a
preexisting condition when the reservist and his/her
dependants are reactivated into the group plan?

3
sw,

0 .1



380

The Honorable Alan Cranston
June 5, 1991
Page 3

o S. 1095 allows for persons performing service in the uniformed
services at their request, and possibly at their expense, to
continue to be covered by insurance provided by such employer for
up to 18 months. Is this a reference to the continuation of
health care rules under the Internal Revenue Code Section 4980
(8) and ERISA Section 601?

H. Rept. 102-56 also addresses this issue by stating at
page 29 that "this protection is similar to the
continuation of health insurance under the so-called
COBRA provisions of [ERISA, 29 U.S.C. 1161, et seg.,]
but applies to all individuals entering the uniformed
services without limiting qualifications such as the
size of their employer. Similar Senate Report language
would be adequate.

o One last interesting question has been raised with regard to
dependents who are themselves the -eservists returning to the
employer plan of their parents. This situation has arisen with
college students who were called to active duty while hey were
in school and when they returned, found themselves unable to
return to school until the following semester. As a condition of
coverage as a dependent, the insurer often requires that the
dependent be a full time student if they are over a certain age.
This would mean that upon returning from active duty, the
student/dependent would be in "limbo" since they would not
technically be a student at the time they are returning to the
group. Since both the House and Senate bills do not address this
issue directly, it may be an area for new legislacive language.

Again, HIPLA appreciates the efforts of the Committee tc
strengthen the Veterans Reemployment Rights Act. Any assistance
you could provide the industry in clarifying the Act would be
greatly appreciated. If HIAA can be of any help to the
Committee, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

Anne Marie Walsh
Assistant Washington Counsel

AMW:jm

cc: Linda Jenckes

3 S
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The lionerable Alsts Cranston
Chairmen
Canniness, on Veer= Affairs
414 Russell Senate Office /lading
Wathington, D.C. 20510

Drar Smoot Cramer
On behalf of the more then 1543,000 men and women that the National
redemtk tof Federal Employees (l9FFS) would like to thmk
you foe introitig S. 1095. the Uniformed Services Reemployment Act of
1991. Many of WFEs members were mimed during Operation Desert
StialdiStoem md face many problem as they begin to tetum While current
law is designed co pima Federal employees resuming to their positions, your
bill brings salaa..al safeguanla to civilians manning from active duty

Them ate several pmvisiona of your bill which we filld pardadatly
commendeble. FliEl, you provide fot individuals to recover anotney's fees.
As you can hankie. we endorse such a provision because of die escalating
costa of litigating dames. It would be unfair to place the additional burden
of paying for counsel on an employee who aM righdhlly mein his OT her
job. .0 -nrn, your bill rovides reperainnuion thmugh empresentative"
of the employees choim. This will help Even costs by allowing shop
stewards or union i praernstives to provide the necessary smiles deflate the
Merit Systems hotection Board (MSFEl).

Your hill also pmvideu that individuals seeking meniployment rights may be
represented by the Office of Special COMMA (OSC) if their dent is found to
be valid. Whits the OSC lux improved thematically in recent yes, we still
believe that employees should ham the right to go to dr bF8 directly if
they so choose. Vie welcome the provision in your bill which allows this
direct appeal to the MM. Additinoally. the povision In yam bill which
requires Ow OSC to represent a Federal employee thromphout all court

is a positive change from te house hill. Walt this change.
WrealdIfieviratte:oyees will not be left hanging in Ihnho without adequate

should dry wish to appeal various decisions.

hiFF13 supposta S. 109S. Obviously we would prefer that =merit law, which
is ikaigird to potect civiliem in linear situations. could be used today.
Unfortunately. n seems that various civilian 'gentles will 004 uphold the spirit
of those 1BW9 as dedicated Americam return from the Persian Gulf
Therefore. we look forwnd to the enactment of the pa:merlons provided
hy S 1095

53-055 0 - 92 13

Sincerely.

Sheila K. %/Airco
National hesitant
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Non Commissioned Offices Association of the United States of America
225 N. Washineten Street Alexandria, Virginia 22314 Telephone f703) 5494311

June 3, 1991

Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman
Committee on Veterans Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D. C. 20510

Dear hr. Chairman:

Thank you for inviting additional comments from the Non
Commissioned Officers Association on the specific differences
between H.R. 1578 and S. 1095, both bills to improve veterans
reemployment rights. Our comments on major differences follow.

Scope

The House bill would extend reemployment righte coverage to NOAA
members, merchant mariners and others designated by the president
in time of war or national emergenzy. The Senate bill would not
expand the universe of people currently assured veterans
reemployment rights.

NCOA does not support VRR coverage for merchant mariners or
others designated by the president. NOAA however, is a uniformed
service of the United States and a federal entity. So too, is the
Public Health Service. Both are composed entirely of
commissioned officers. While not a military Barytes, NOAA
officers have been used in planning sone operations and in
evaluating tlie impact such operations would have on the
environment and conversely, the impact the environment might haveon the operation. Concurrently, eublic health officers can
augment or substitut for military needs. Accordingly NCOA
supports the Senate bill and would not object to an
amendeent extending VRR coverage to members of the uniformed
services.

Temporary Poeitions

H.R. 1578 would exclude temporary positions from VRR protections
while 8 1095 remains silent on the issue.

NCOA supports the House bill on this issue. Temporary employment
has a limited duration value accepted by the veteran prior to
activation or enlistment. The performance of military service

Cwt.:red by the Unita States Congress
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Honorable Alan Cranston
June 3, 1991

should not constitute a change in status. NCOA further believes
that failure to directly address this issue in legislation will
result in a patchwork of court decisions providing variable
treatment of veterans from state to state.

Return to Work

The House bill is somewhat less generous than the Senate bill in
providing grace periods between leaving military service and
returning to civilian employment. Obviously NCOA supports the
more generous provisions of the Senate bill.

Return to Work After Disability

The House bill in this instance is somewhat more generous and
flexible in its treatment of veterans than the Senate bill. On
this provision NCOA gives its nod to the House provisions.

Documentation Upon Return

H.R. 1578 regeires veterans to provide employers reasonable
documentation ittesting to eligibility for reemployment while
concurrently making it unlawful for employers to delay
reemployment by requesting documentation that does not exist or
is not readily available. The Senate bill on the other hand,
requires the veteran to provide similar evidence of reemployment
eligibility but requires the employer to reemploy the veteran in
the absence of such evidence. Concurrently it authorizes the
employer to terminate the employment of any veterans proven to be
unqualified by vi.rtue of service.

NCOA endorses the Senate provisions in this section because they
give a benefit-of-the-doubt advantage to the veteran while still
protecting the integrity of the program by allowing employers to
terminate those later disqualified.

Continuation of Insurance Coverage

Both the House and Senate bills allow for the continuation of
employer sponsored insurance benefits during military absence
but, the language of the House bill is sufficiently ambiguous as
to allow employers to charge individuals in military service
higher premiums than those paid by or on behalf of other
employees. The Senate bill, through more specific lan'uage,
would limit those additional charges to two percent of the
customary charges paid by other employees.

NCOA endorses the more specific language of the Senate bill.

2
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Retention

The House bill would make retention rights contingent on the
length of military absence while the Senate bill would link
retention rights to the combined length of prior employment and
military absence.

Under the House bill an individual with ten years of civilian
employment who is activated for two weeks would only have two
weeks of retention protection. Under the Senate bill the
individual would have six months retention protection.
Conversely, under the House bill an employee with 90 days of
Civilian employment who is activated to military service for
seven months would have a full year of job protection while the
Senate bill would protect the individual for only six months.

NCOA cannot in good conscience endorse any bill which gives less
than six months job protection to any veteran. Yet neither is
the association enthusiastic about reducing the protection given
in current law to those who have more than six months of military
service but less than fr.- years of combined military and
civilian service.

Given an either/or choice between the bills NCOA would have to
endorse the Senate provisions. However, the association would
rather see the Neuse provisions enacted with an amendment to set
the minimum retention protection at six months.

Enforcement -- Federal Government Employees

Both bills in tois case provide similar complaint and appeal
protections to veterans seeking redress within the federal
system, but the Senate bil; provides additional authorization
allowing for the award of legal expenses to veterans who appeal
reemployment decisions. NCOA supports the Senate provision.

Enforcement -- State and Private Employees

While the Senate bill contains no provisions allowing penalties
the House bill would allow federal courts to impose civil
penalties of up to $25,000 on individuals who willfully violate
VRR laws.

NCOA believes the penalty provision in the House bill provides a
positive incentive to compliance and endorses its enactment.

Subpoenas

Once again the Senate bill goes a step further than the House
bill in allowing for the subpoena o: federal employees in
addition to all others allowed in the douse bill. NCOA sees no

3 5
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Honorable Alan Cranston
June 1, 1991

reason to exclude federal employees from the subpoena provision
of the law.

NCOA endorses the Senate provision.

Regulations

H.R. 1578 assigns responsibility to the Secretary of Labor (in
consultation with the Secretary of Defense) for drafting
regulations pertaining to cospliance by state and local
governments and private employers. It directs the Office of
Personnel management to draft regulations pertaining to the
reemployment rights of federal employees, consistent with Labor
Department regulations for state and local government and private
employees. It would also allow OPH to assign greater or
additional rights to federal employees. The Senate bill would
not allow the assignment of greater or additional rights to
federal employees.

Since state and local governments and private employers are not
prohibited from extending additional rights to veterans, and
since many do in fact provide additional benefits, NCOA sees no
reason why OPH should be prevented from doing the same on behalf
of federal employees. The association endorses the House
provision.

Outreach Program

The House bill is silent but the Senate bill provides
authorization for the Secretary of Labor to conduct outreach
activities alerting employers and veterans to new provisions in
veterans reemployment rights laws. NCOA endorses the Senate
provision.

Thank you again Hr. Chairman, for allowing ACOA to contribute
this additional information. Hopefully it will be useful to the
committee during its deliberations.

,..Cbarles R. Ja son
Executive Vi.4 President

4
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C.S. OFFIM OP SPECIAL COLIVSEL
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May 22, 1991

Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman
Committee on Veteran's Affairs
Unitel States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510-6375

Dear Mr. Chairman:

The Committee on Veteran's Affairs has requested the views of the
Office of Special Counsel (05C) concerning S. 1095, the 'Uniformed
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991." This
legislation would amend title 38 of the United States Code to strength-
en and improve the reemployment rights and benefits of members of the
uniformed services.

The OSC strongly supports the purposes intended to be accomplished
through this and similar legislation. Since the establishment of this
agency in 1979, the OSC has not been involved in veteran's reemploy-
ment matters involving federal employees. Proposed section 4333 of
title 38 would authorize the OSC to provide legal representation to
federal employees concerning reemployment appeals before the Merit
Systems Protection Board (RSPB). Similar statutory authority is also
contained in H.R. 1578, recently passed by the House of Representa-
tives.

The OSC would undertake the representation contemplated by this
legislatioe after a federal employee had first sought the assistance of
the Secretary of Labor, who is required to conduct an investigation,
and to undertake efforts to resolve the matter if the employee's
allegations appear valid. Failing a resolution of the employee's
complaint, the Secretary of Labor is authorized, with the consent of
the employee, to refer the matter to the OSC. This agency could
conduct an inoependent review of the matter to determine whether the
employee's complaint is valid, and exercise its discretion in deciding
whether to initiate an action before the MSP8 on behalf of the
employee.

While the provision of legal representation to individual federal
employees is a departure from the historic role of the OSC in pnforcing
federal laws, we concur in the assumption of this new responsibility to
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represent employees before the MSPB. We are concerned, however, with
proposed section 4333(e) which would permit the OSC to represent these
employees before the federal courts in the event of an adverse decision
of the MSPB. This could create an anomalous and unacceptable conflict
of interest within the Executive Branch wherein this agency would be
representing an interest in court that is contrary to a position
advocated by the Department of Justice on behalf of another agency, and
ultimately the United States. Accordingly, we recommend deletion of
this provision.

Apart from this concern just expressed, we are confident that cur
legal staff is more than able to represent adequately the interests of
federal employee veterans and reservists. Although the OSC has no
basis to quantify the number of matters we mivit receive if this
legislation is enacted, we do not believe, at this time, that it w,ll

have a significant impact on the OSC's caseload.

I am pleased to have had the opportunity to express the views of
the OA concerning this important legislation. Whatever final form
this legislation may take through the efforts of the Congress and the
Administration, you may be assured that the OSC will endeavor te do
its part to protect the reemployment rights of federal employees who
have served, and are still serving, their country in the military
services.

Yoilrs truly,

2./zti
Mary F. Wieseman
Special Counsel

341
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Reserve Officers Association of the United States
The flainaundAranak*Roossesogr All Minn

June 7, 2991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Cheirwan. Vstsrans Affairs Committee
United States Senate
Washington D.C., 20510

Dear Senator Cranston:

The Reserve Officers Association greatly ppreciates your timely
consideration of veterans, ressployeent rights and the depth of
your efforts. WO are grateful for the opportunity you have
afforded us to comment on this isportant issue.

Enclosed are our comente on the substantive differences between
the House (Lit. 1575) and Senate (S. 1095) bills. On ems or the
differences we either lack the necessary experience or expertise
or otherwise have no position. we have provided consents on only
those issues we ware able to address.

ifel hope you will rind the comments helpful and we thank you again
for your consideration.

1'7

far."0" (3001-4-

1 1

/ Sincerely,

0- 1.-z4-."/ /AZ"17.4 1 In

Evan L. HU1aan
najor General, AUS (Ret.)

"e4.4447/rd ftecutive Director

IIHsdlb

Amp * Noy * Air Farr * M. Ca* * Cowl Gam, * PAW If ail1 Sew* 141:144
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COMMIS RIOARDIMO Dix71211imix
Between SLR. 1878 and X. 1059

Scope

The House bill confers reemployment rights upon those who
serve in the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
(NOAA), the Merchant Marine, as specified, and any other category
of persons designated by the President in time of war or national
emergency. Because NOAA has no reserve component, the need to
confer reemployment rights on those who serve with the agency lacks
some validity. Extending reemployment rights to the Merchant
Marine during times of war or national emergency could greatly add
to the availability of members of the Merchant Marine during
emergencies and thus be very important to national security. The
DESERT STORM experience suggests the importance in being able to
recruit members of the Merchant Marine and the importance of their
availability to the defense effort. This reasoning muld apply to
other categories, and we would thus urge that the House provision
be sustained.

Temporry Positions

The intent and spirit of law becomes as important as the
language and the provision of coverage for temporary positions may
be a case in point. Many "temporary° employees should probably be
excluded from the law, but by excluding temporary employees a
"loophole° is provided which some employers will try to use. ROA
is aware of college professor who has been with an institution for
more than four years, but because she is not a full-time professor,
she is considered a "temporary" employee. ROA believes a person
who has been employed more than a short time should be protected
by the law. Fearing that the exclusion of temporary employees
would exclude some who should be covered, we would favor the Senate
position.

Return to work After Disability

The senate provision does seem to best meet the needs of those
affected.

Retention

Both House and Senate bills address periods of time during
which a person who is reemployed by an employer cannot be dis-
charged from employnem., except for cause. While the proposed
language of both 1-ills may appear to provide additional protection,

a.1% *0
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by providing statutory time periods, the proposals imply that after
these specified time periods an esployer is tree to discharge the
individual following active duty service in the uniformed services.
The implication may actually cause employers to discharge more
personnel who are participating in Reserve programs at the end of

the statutory periods and thus effectively reduce protection rather

than add to it. The discharge "revisions sees to be in
contradiction to the intent of the leg lation. Thus, ROA Ooss not
support the adding of statutory perioue during which discaa..-ge is

prohibited.

Enforcement--Pederal Government Employees

Probably because a high percentage of Reservists are employed
by local, state and federal governments, many of those who have bad
difficulty with their employers have been employed by government.
While we do not strongly favor the language of one bill over the
other, the feeling is that the senate version might provide better

protection.

EnforcementState and Private Employees

ROA supports the Howie provision for a perm:ty for violators

of reemployment rights. While the provision is not intended to
create an adversarial relationship, the provision does put some
teeth into the law.

Subpoenas

ROA strongly supports the provision of subpoenas to assist in
the investigation of alleged violations. We feel that the Senate
provision which includes federal employees, is also important to
investigations and ultimately to insuring compliance.

outroa,h Program

The National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and
Reserve is to be commended for its accomplishments in promoting
public understanding of the National Guard and Reserve and is very
helpful in resolving many of the reemployeent questions which

arise. In spite of the Committee's outstanding contributions, the
DESERT SHIELD/DESERT STORM experience would suggest that more could
be done to further the awareness of reemployment rights. The
outreach program provision in the Senate bill could contribute
greatly to this needed awareness.
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WASPIINGTON OFFICE ma si STREET W WASHINGTON 0 C MOE *
1202)86T-2M *

May 10. 1991

Honorabk Abn Cramton
Otairman
Committee on Veterans Affairs
United Siva Senate
Washington. D.C. 205104,375

Dear Senator Cranston;

Enclitsed with tl s correspondence are comments by The American Legion on the
differences between S. 1075 and H.R. 157K. Also encksed is a copy of The American
Legion's survey of rmployers which you reguLsted during the hearing on May 23.

Thank you fur the rpponunity to offer our comments on the important issue of
reemployment rights for veterans. We look forward to working with you and the
Committee on passage of this important legislation.

Susi-rely,

012
B. Hubbard, Director

National Ecommuc Commission
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commorrs ON DIFFERENCES
BETWEEN

ILIL 157S AND S. 1055
BY

THE AMERICAN LEGION

Section 2023 of the House bill would include members of the merchant marine and

National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration and other unspecified groups in

the law provided the President designated them. The American Legion sees no reason to

include these groups. This organization opposed the granting of veteran status to

me:cItant mariners after WWII. One would he hard pressed to come up with any

circumstances under which a member of NOAA would qualify for reemployment rights

under any circumstances since, to our knowledge, no one has ever been conscripted for

duty in NOAA, and NOAA maintains no reserve force.

With respect to temporary positions, The American Legion prefers the Senate hill

which contains no exclusions for temporary positions.

Section 2032(c) of the Noise bill contains language preferable to that of the

Senate bill in our view, with the addition of the following language in (1). The words

"(with a reasonable extension if a delay is beyond the employee's contml)" should be

added after the phrase "place of employment". In our view, the House hill is preferable

since it grants an absolute right to reemployment in all cases rather than requiring an

employee to file a new application for employment if the service lmts longer than 31 days.

This requirement implies that the employer has no duty under law to reemploy the veteran.

Current law is more stringent than the Senate version.

Realizing that some employers may he harmed by any blanket provision granting

unrestricted right to reemployment to a disabled veteran. The American Legion prefers the

language contained in S. 1075 with regard to a return to work after disability situation.

There exists the possibility of abitse of the system under the blanket language contained in

the House version of the kgislation.



393

With regard to provisions requiring the returning service member to provide

documentation upon return to hisiber job language in S. 1075 seems to protect both the

employer and employee hum abuse. GivMg the employer the right to terminate if a failure

to meet eligibility requirements exists is a fair way of addressing this potential problem

aira of law.

The provisions for continuatiaa tir insurance coverage offer some interesting

cosensts. While H.R. 1578 seems to offer adectzwe protection, The American Legion

prefers the additional provision of limiting pmmiwn payment to 102% of the payment

required of other employees. Information revealed during our su:vey of employers and

their treatment of membas of the National Guard and Armed Forces Reserves showed

that some group health/life policies offered by some companies required the company to

drop the employee cP.tled to active duty from the group policy. When the employee is

dropped, the family is dropped also. In the case of a family who resides at some

amide:able distance from a military medical facility, great hardship could result. Thus,

protecting the employee called to active duty and his family by continuing coverage under

a group health/life policy while at the same time preventing a huge premium increase

seems to be a wise idea.

With regard to the retention provisions, tying a minimum period of employment to

seniority with the employer (including active duty time) makes a great deal of sense. The

Senate provision would help protect the right of a company to downsize while SOME of its

employees were on active duty, and at the same time grant employment to returning

service members so as to allow them a period of adjustment back intowidely.

Presumably, an employer who was in the process of downsizing would notify returning

veterans of their need to seek other employment since their tenure with the shrinking

company would be limited.

The Senate language, as contained in S. 1075, with regio'n to enforcement of

reemployment tights for federal employees is preferable to that of the House bit!. In our

397



394

testimony before the Veterans Affairs Committees of both bodies, we specifically

recommended the provision of attorney fees, and access to the courts. The American

Legion is pleased with the addition of these provisions.

On the other hand, The American Legion prefers the language contained in HR

1578 with regard to enforcement with state and private employers. In our view, a $25,0013

sanction is a means to deter a business from discriminating against a returning veteran.

There is some evidence which suggests that most returning reservists and members of the

National Guard worked for small businessai prior tn their call to active duty. A fine such

as that suggested in the House bill will prevent abuse, in our view.

With respect to subpoenas, the Senate bill, which includes federal employees, is

preferable.

In a similar vein, The American Legion agrees with the Senate provisions on

outreach, provided that Congress provides the funding necessary to carry out the outreach

tasks envisioned b, the legislation.

3Hw-
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VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED STAYES

OFFICEOF ME DIRECTOR

Nay 31, 1991

The SonorahLa Alan Cranston
Chairmen, Comittee on Veterans' Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20310-6375

Dear Nr. Chairman:

Attached 4TO the VFNrs comments reearding the
positions we favor between S.A. OM and S. 1095, the two
veterans' reemployment rights bilis.

This la the follow-on action mentioned at your bearimg
on Thursday, Piny 23, 1991, when hill S. 1093 was
ccmsidered.

Sincerely,

4,4,z4vf,zin_
DOI MANNAR, Special Assistant
National Legislative Service

Enclosure

*WARUNGIVINOYMCX*
%Mr le:MOILIAL WELDING C 200 114A1VIAND AVMS. XL WANDIGTON, ft C MOS 5714 ARIA QOM 1124114X0
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VIM POSITIONS ON Yammer asiorurniarr &VMS RIMS

SCOPI

S. 1095, new section 2023, la the cleaner/strooger veterans' bill
and is more closely related to existing law because it does not
include NOM, the Merchant Marines, or any of the other entities
specified later by the president.

TEMPORARY POSITIONS

H.R. 1578, new section 2032(a), which excludes temporary positions
from reemployment rights coverage is the sere reasonable approach,
from both the employee and employer's point of view.

REIM TO DURK

S. 1095, new section 4322(d), is favored primarily because of the
specific language that requires the returning employee to submit
an application for reemployment. This has the distinet advantage
of allowing the employer to make necessary arrangements,
particularly as it may effect new temporary hirees employed in the
absence of a Reservist or national guard person.

RETURN TO ODER AFTER DISABILITY

H.R. 1578, new section 2032(d), contains the requirement that the
disabled employee keep his former employer informed of intention
to return to work as well as rehabilitation progress. We feel
this is a necessary requirement for the employer to properly plan
for needed building/job modifications to better accomodate the
disabled employee at some agreed upon time in the future.

DOCUNKNIATION UPON REMBUI

H.R. 1578, new section 2032(f), which requires the employee to
provide certain military separation dlcumentation is a minimum
requirement any employer should expect to receive, This language
will favorably influence the separation processing for all
categories of reservists and national guard persons who serve only
a brief period of time on active duty; i.e. this language will
ensure that Department of Defense provides all separating military
personnel immediately with at least an abbreviated version of the
active duty discharge form DD-214.
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Page 2

conismasial or DIM= MUM
R.I. 1578, new section 2034(c), which would allow au employee
celled to active duty to continue the employer offered insurance
coveraee should be properly paid for one hundred percent by the
employee for any period of tine to exceed 31 days. The VFW
believes the conbination of active duty medical coverage and its
supplemental Civilian Health and Medical Proves of the Uniformed
Services (CRAMS) may provide for on-going medical care anywhere
in the United States. Therefore, it is unreasonahle to ask the
employer to continue to pry any portion of an unnecessary employee
benefit.

182811200

NAL 1578, new section 2034(e), establishes the more equitable,
overall periods of employment, except in those instances where an
employee is dtathargeed for cause, which te the amee as in the
senate bill.

IIMMVU.00WIMMIMMT

The VFW favors retaining all of s.a. 1578, new election 2043 40
adding a modified version of S. 1095, new section 2044, saying in
effecri

"The amard of reasonable attorney fees, expert witness
fees, and other litigation expemses are authorized only
eben the Office of Special &mesa cannot or will not
represent the employee.'

This recommendatios bas the distinct advantage of combining the
best of both bills amd thereby ensures that employees will be
properly and adequately represented by competent counsel at the
federal employment level.

=KS MAP !WAN INFLOIMS

1518, um section 2044, does have the advantage of providing
for a sienificeet fine in cases of 'willful violation of
reemployment rights....' Me strongly recommend the senate version

4 1 )
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Me 3

incorporate this philosophy and add the federal government aa
another employer subjected to the same level of

enforcement/punishment. This is simply a matter of employer

equity and an expansion of protection for veterans.

SUBPOENAS

S. 1095, new section 4341, is favored simply because it includes
federal employees. The VFW rationale here is the equitity

argument used for the enforcement issue, cited above.

=mamas

H.R. 1578, new section 2061, has the distinct advantage of
continuing the philosophy that the federal government should set a
positive example by requiring that federal government employees
may be given greater or additional reemployment rights than the

minimum regulations governing state and local governments and the
private sector employers.

WERFACN PROGBAP

S. 1095, new section 4351(d) is an absolute requirement, in the
judgment of the VFW, to publicize to all interested/concerned
employees and employers what their respective rights and
obligations are under any new reemployment rights law.

In aumnary, the above 12 comments all tend to expand the
reemployment rights for veterans and/or provide for meaningful
sanctions against erployers who discriminate against returning
veteran employees. The last trend we strongly support is to
require the federal government to be an active and positive
employer regarding veterans. This is more necessary as Department
of Defense incorporates Reservists and national guard units into
its total force concept to better respond to situations requiring
the projection of U.S. military strength as we end this century

and enter the next.
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June 19, 1991

Honorable Aaan Cranston, Chairman
Senate Committee on Veterans Affairs
SR-414 Russell Senate Office Bldg.
Washington, DC 20510

Dear Chairman Cranstona

This letter will respond to your May24, correspondence asking
for comment on the differences between pending House and Senate
veterans reemployment rights bills, S.1095 and HR.1570. Our

cassent will be limited to those matters on which we are

sufficiently competent to speak.

fismsea

The House bill, but not the Senate bill, would confer
reemployment rights on those who served in the National Oceanic and
atmospheric Admtnistration (MOW or the Merchant Marine during
time of war, national emergency or when deemed nocemmry by the
Secretary of Defense. Other categories of individuals too could
gain reemployment rights if designated by the President in time of

war or national emergency.

Without being sure of why reemployment rights would be
conferred on those having served with MORA or others, there seems
good season to confer reemployment rights on Merchant Mariners.
Those who have opposed veteran status for Morchont Mariners in the
past have typically pointed out that this type of service is
voluntary rather than involuntary and offers Merchant Mariners the
right to terminate employment at any time by contrast with regular
armed forces personnel who mey not simply quit the military when it

is found to involve dangerous duty.

This argument, however, fails the distinction between
voluntary and involuntary service when a crew of Merchant Mariners
reaches a foreign port. Amite understand it, Merchant Mariners may
not quit employment on a ship in a foreign port. Under the
circumstances, the contents of shipments such as war material or
other sensitive cargo can be unknown to the crew just as the
ultimate deetination of these shipments can beheld secret from the
crew. For example, cargo ehipments of this nature during the
Vietnam era were at time, scheduled for Vietnam via the Philippinee

A MX ports ratMonsi veterans PISMO. 0,9111, MKT
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without the crew knowing of the ultimate destination until after

reaching the Philippines. Since these crew members were unable to
quit the Merchant Marine in the Philippines, their service in
hasardous war zones such as Vietnam has to be seen as involuntary
in the same manner as for members of the regular armed services.

There maybe similar reasons for offering reemployment rights

to other groups. Without knowing what those similar reasons or
peculiar conditions of st.nrice might be it, is inappropriate for
VVA to offer guidance.

Temporary2m. Qpg

The Rouse bill, but not the Senate bill, would exclude
temporary positions from protection under the reesployment rights

legislation. Given the broad range of kinds of positim"! that
might be variously characterized as temporary, it seems wise to
undertake an effort in the legislation to define the term tsmpotcry
position in order to mske the obligations of employer
understandable and to offer clarity to the individuals engaged in
these positions as to what positions are intended to be protected.

Return to Work

Both Mouse and Senate bills make an assumption, depending on
length of active duty, about the tins needed to reasonably expect
a veteran to return to work at his or her old job. This assumption
may mat be appropriate if the nature of service in &combat theatre
was particulerly stressful and/or hazardous. A uniform period
itrespective of length of active duty seems a more appropriate
choice. The period within which a veteran must return to a
previously held job should be sufficiently generous to allow
ieacquaintance with a spouse or family as well an for readjustment
to a lass stressful civilian environment, perhaps 90 days.

Return to Work Atter Disability

The House and Senate bills each offer options governing the
period within which a disabled veteran is expected to return to
work at a previoualy held job. There are positive aspects in each
bill that are compatible and should be combined to offer the
greatest possible reasonable flexibility where veterans disabled in
service are concerned. The Senate bill's two year extension on
reporting to work should be coupled with the Rouse bills "or the
minimum time required to accommedate the circumstances beyond the
individual's control'.

Moreover, there are two policy issues of significance here
'hat are deserving of consideration. The first of these is the
extent to which employers should be expected to maintain an
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opening, perhaps unable to hire replacement, for an extended
period of time. This first issue has obvious relevancy to small
business employers. The second issue is the extent to which
disabled, particularly severely disabled, veterans should be in
j of losing a previously held position. It is unclear how
ego o these matters could be addressed legislatively without
working some type of potentially arbitrary hardship on either
employers or disabled veterans. Without being in a position to
offer any particular guidance to the committee, we raise these
police issues so that the committee night find a way to craft a
legislative solution.

2201111/11L41&121LIIKSLIfi&MLS

The House and Senate provisions on documentation ars aimilar
but the Senate's added provisions governing potential fraud by an
employee make the Senate version more balanced and, therefore,
preferable.

Mr. Chairman, the balance of the itemised differences between
the House and Senate reemployment rights bills outlined in your
letter are matters on which we are unprepared to offer comment. As
always, your interest in the views of VVA is appreciated.

:44:4174:" 5
Paul S. Egan
Legislative Director

4 5



Sloan ol
qpigit Bay Arab ff. lishatt

402

Unita *taus
Court of littera= Appeals

Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman
United States Senate
Committee on Veterans Affairs
Washington, D.C. 20510-8375

Dear Nr. Chairman:

Hay 28, 1991
LH Maw kwisse. NM. Soft 011

11=10141m sit. MOM
2112-511:141162

Enclosed is my response to your questions for the record of the May
23, 1991, hearing on H.R. 153 and S. 1050.

Sincerely,

4--- 1,
Frank Q. Nebeker
Chief Judge

EnclODUI0
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HEARING ON H.R. 153 AND S. 1050
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY SENATOR ALAN CRANSTON

TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS

1. A. What is the Court doing to ensure that its opinions are
published in a manner that is best adapted for public information
and use, as required under section 4069(a) of title 30? I

understand that the electronic legal research systees LEXIS and
WESTLAW, which are picking up the opinions, are relatively
expensive tools and not as accessible to many veterans and
potential appellants as are opinions published in the various legal
reporters and similar publications.

The Court's opinions are published pursuant to its order of
March 7, 1990 (enclosed). All opinions are sent to the
addressees on the mailing list (enclosed) of publishers and
certain veterans service organizations. The Washington Daily
Law Reporter prints all of the Court's opinions and, because
of their increasing number, recently announced that it would
print them in edited form. Othe- publishers and veterans
service organizations have always been free to print or report
the Court's opinion, and several have done no on a selective
basis. In addition, the Court has urged that the Department
of Veterans Affairs make these cpinions available to its
regional offices, where most appellants make direct contact
with the VA claims process. Of course, all opinions are
placed in the Court's press box and a set is maintained In the
Court's public reading room.

The Court also is advised that the West Publishing Compeny
anticipates reporting of the Court's opinions with the usual
key-numbered headnotes by August. West will print the
opinions in "advance-sheets" and send them to subscribers of
the opinions monthly; then as required those opinions will be
bound in a hard-back numbered volume, just as West does for
the Court of Military Appeals opinions. Of course, this will
be without printing costs to the Court.

B. Please provide for the record a paper describing the various
alternatives for publishing the Court's cases and opinions,
including the costs associated with those alternatives.

The Court has sought expressions of interest from several
legal publishing firms. Responses have been general in
nature, with estimated cost to the Court ranging from zero to
$50,000. The Court coald, at considerable public expense,
hire its own staff to print its opinions and distribute them
through a subscription service. Private publication based on
market expectation could accomplish this better and without
public expense; we are attempting to follow that approach, as
do other appellate courts.
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2. In order to provide the Committee with a better understanding
of what is involved in the proposed judicial conference that
section 2 of H.R. 153 would authorize, please explain how you
envision such a conference functioning: for example, what the
purpose would be, who would attend, what the format would be, what
kinds of subjects would be discussed or taught, what you expect to
accomplish at such an event, and what its likely cost would be.

As I mentioned in my testimony, the primary purpose of a
judicial conference is to provide a forum for direct
discussion of issues of concern to the Court and its

practitioners. While the judicial conference for the Federal
Circuit, of which this Court is a part, provides annually for
a two or three hour break-out session in May, that la r't
sufficient. In addition, non-attorney practitioners are not
invited to that conference in sufficient numbers. Although
judicial conferences of other courts normally are restricted
to attorneys, the Court will include our non-attorney
practitioners as regular participants and will invite
representatives of major veterans service organizations. The

educational program would consist of panel discussions,
seminars, and a distinguished guest speaker and would include
such topics as the art of appellate advocacy and the
application of the Court's Rules of Practice and Procedure.
Also many issues respecting Department of Veterans Affairs
record keeping and other internal matters need to be resolved
through exchange of views and consensus arrived at by action
of a judicial conference. Conference action traditionally
involves practice issues which have arisen during the previous
year.

The Court has requested $45,000 to support its first

conference in FY 1992. This would be a one or one-and-one
half day event, held in Washington, DC, to reduce travel ano
per diem costs for the majority of participants. To maximize
participation, we prefer Initially not to impose a

registration fee. While attendees would pay for meals, the
Court would absorb the normal costs of a conference facility,
audio visual support, coffee breaks, speake- fees and
expenses, and the printing of invitations, programs, and
packet materi,.1.
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UNITED STATES COURT OF VETERANS APPEALS

IN RE:

PUBLICATION OF DFCISION::.

Pi cruRTOVET(Rnr.AITEAtS
!AEC)

(

Before: Nebeker, chief .11,Jgc, Frarci dnd Farley. Aritc,
Judges.

p I P

It is the 7th day of March, 1990, ORDERED, pun ppppte,
pursuant to 38 U.s.C.A. § 4069 (West Supp. 1989), that upon the
filing by the Court with the Clerk ot any decision In any appeal
or other proceeding before the Court, the Clerk shall cause the
decision to be published by sending or releasing it to the parties
and releasing it to the public, including transmission by mail or
otherwise to any publisher who stands ready to provide it for
public information and use. The Court may make an exception to the
foregoing requirement of publication, on a case-by-case basis, as
may be required. The publication of a decision, as provided
herein, shall be deemed to be authorized under § 4069(b).

VTR CURIAM.

53-055 0 - 92 - 14
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OPINIONS MAILING DISTRIBUTION

West Publishing Company 1 copy

LEXIS 1 copy

Veterans Law Reporter 1 copy

The Washington Law Reporter Co. 2 copies

Bureau of National Affairs 1 copy

Veterans of Foreign Wars 1 copy

Tbe Washington Post 1 copy

Chairman, Senate Committee on Veterans' Affairs 2 copies

Chairman, House Committee on Veterans' Affairs 2 copies

Disabled American Veterans 1 copy

National Veterans Legal Services Project 1 copy

U.S. Court of Appeals for Fed Cir. 1 copy

Office of General Counsel,
Department of Veterans Affairs 1 copy

Paralyzed Veterans of America 1 copy

Board of Veterans° Appeals 1 copy
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Motttb Otero
Court of littera= Appalls

Hay 31, 1991

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee on Veterans' Affairs
United States Sonata
Washington, D.C. 2051D-6175

Deer Hr. Chairman:

in kr= Awn. MXONO MN
faseess. SAL MIN

1112413-5n2

I have your letter of May 23, 2991, and the attached pages
eleven and twelve of tbe hearing transcript of last Thursday. You
requested my view luz to the desirability of providing for
participation of persona active in veterans affairs claims
representation in the judicial conferences of the Court proposed to
be authorixed by section 3 of H.R. 153.

As 1 earlier testified, a major purpose of seeking
authorization for A court judicial conference is so that non-
lawyers involved in veterans claims representation can be included
in conference activity and action. Tha Court has no objection to
being authorized by law to do so.

FONseseg

4 1

SLoerely,

Frank O. Nabelier
Chitf JUdgs
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wurrEN QUESTIONS FROM CHAIRMAN CRANSTON

TO ME DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE AND ME RESPONSES

Senator Cranston: I compliment tho Department on the
excellent pamphlets entitled "Released from Active
Duty -- What Now?" and *Memorandum for Employers*. How
widely are these publications being distributed among
employers and members of the Selected Reserve and
Naticeal GUard?
Mt. Duncan: Some 250,000 copies of "Released from
Active Duty - What Now?* have been printed. Our objec-
tive was to get a copy to every National GUardsman and
Reservist who served on active duty in support cf the
Persian Gulf conflict and to the families of these
member,. The pamphlet was also distributed to employ-
ers and community leaders from all over the country at
the conference of the National COmmittee for Employer
Support of the GUard and Reserve which was held in
Saint Louis on April 18-20. As you know, the veter-
ans' benefits and protections which ware included in
the Soldiers' and Sailors' Civil Relief Act Amendments
of 1991 and the Persian Gulf Conflict Supplemental
Authorization and Personnel Benefits Act of 1991 are
covered in the pamphlet. We appreciate the support of
the Cemmittee in the enactment of these important
improvements.

The "Memorandum for Employers" has been
distributed to employers throughout the Nation by the
state committees for Employer Support of the Guard and
Reserve. In addition, the Society for Human Resource
Managers supported the distribution of 40,000 copies of
the Memorandum to their members nationwide. In all,
200,000 copies were printed for distribution.
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Senator Cranston: On page 2 of the Department's testi-
mony, the Deportment stated the importance of stand-by
provisions to provide employment protections to the
Merchant Marin* in certain emergency situations.

A. Please explain why you believe these
provisions ars important.

B. Would this same reasoning apply to employment
protections for the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration? Please explain.
Mr. Duncan: Especially in times of emergency, the
Merchant Marine performs an essential function for the
national defense. Personnel can be transported by air,
but much military cargo must be transported by ship.
During the buildup for Operation DESERT STORM, it was
necessary to recruit experience mariners from other
lines of work to operated the vessels carrying military
cargo to the Persian Gulf region. Under current law,
those persons do not have reemployment rights. A
statutory provision which provides ths flexibility to
accord reemployment rights to members of the Merchant
Marine in such emergency circumstances, as was done in
World War II, will help to ensure their availability
when they are needed.

The commissioned corps of the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) is one of the seven
uniformed services. While only about 400 strong, it is
important that the NOAA commissioned corps be included
in matters relating to all uniformed services. The
NOAA commissioned corps is, for example, represented in
the quadrennial reviews of military compensation which
are mandated by law. In addition, many rules of law
that apply to the Armed Forces apply also to the com-
missioned officers of NOAA, and active service of
commissioned officers of NOAA is deemed to be active
military service for the purposes of laws administered
by the Department of Veterans Affairs.

4 I
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U.S. Deportment or bidet

Office of 1....1ative Affitirs

Office a eke AMNON Atom Omni

Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman
Committee on Veterans Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mt. Chairman:

irmbgloa, DC 11DIO

July 5* 2991

Eaclosed please find the Department's responses to your
questions posed in connection with the Comeittoe's hearing held
on May 23, 1991, to consider S. 1095, the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1991.

please do not hesitate to contact me if we may be of further
assistance.

Sincerely,

W. Lee Rawls
Assistant Attorney General
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RESPONSES OF DEPARTMENT OF JVSTICE TO AIST-HEhRING QUESTIONS

1. On page 1 of the Department's testimony, it was noted
that °the Administration submitted to the Congress, in March
1991, a bill to amend the Veterans' Reemployment Rights° statute.
When and to whom was this bill submitted in the Senate and the
House and by what means?

Response: We have consulted with the Department of
Labor (IDOL') regarding this question, since DDL drafted the
Administration's bill and submitted it to the Congress after
review and clearance by the Office of Management and Budget.
DOL has informed us that its Office of Congressional and
Intergovernmental Affairs hand-delivered copies of the bill, on
or about March 7, 1991, to Senator Dole's Office and to staff
members of both the House and Senate Veterans' Affairs
Committees. DOL has advised us that it will provide the
Committee with any additional information desired in response
to this question.

2. On page 7, the Department urged the committee to include
in its definition of *uniformed services° the Merchant Marine,
the commissioned corps of the National Oceanic and Atmor,pheric
Administration (NOAA), and other categories of persons as
designated by the President in time of war or national emergency.

A. In terms of the basic purposes of the VRR
legislation to provide job protection for non-caree.
servicepersons and reservists, please provide a detailed
rationale for including the Merchant Marine and NOAA.

B. What groups does the Administration expect would be
included in the other category of persons to be designated by the
President and n what circumstances would such a designation be
made?

Response: We have consulted with the Department of Defense
("DM") regarding this question because of its expertise in this
arep and our response is based largely upon the information DOD
provided. In time of war or national emergency, the Merchant
Marine performs essential functions for the national defense.
For example, during Operations Desert Shield and Desert Storm,
the Merchant Marine transported substantial amounts of military
cargo to the Persian Gulf. In order to do so, it was necessary
for the Merchant Marine to recruit experienced mariners from
other employers. Under current law, such persons do not have
reemployment rights. Providing reemployment rights to those who
serve in the the Merchant Marine during time of war or national
emergency will help ensure the availability of experienced
mariners when they are needed and will recognize the essential
role the Merchant Marine plays in the national defense.

4U)
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The commissioned corps of NOAA ("NOAA corps"), which
presently consists of approxirately 400 members, is one of the
seven uniformed services. The NOAA corps operates and manages
NOAA's fleet of hydrographic, oceanographic, and fisheries
research ships and aircraft, and supports NOAA scientific
programs. Many of the provisions of titles 10 and 37, United
States Code, applicable to the Armed Forces also apply to the
NOAA corps, peg 10 U.S.C. § 101(43) and 37 U.S.C. § 101(3), and
service in the NOAA corps is deemed to be aetive duty military
service for the purposes of laws administered by the Department
of Veterans Affairs and the Soldiers' and Sailors' Civil Relief
Act of 1940. 33 U.S.C. § 857-3. In addition, under current law,
the President is aut!....rized to transfer the NOAA corps to the
service and jurisdiction of a military department in the event of
a national emerty.ncy. 33 U.S.C. § 855. The NOAA corps should be
afforded the protections of the VRR law because members of the
corps perform services for the Nation which are as important as
the services trerformed by members of the other uniformed
services. For example, some members of the NOAA corps recently
served in the Persian Gulf area during Operation Desert Storm.
Providing reemployment rights to the NOAA corps should not unduly
burden private employers since most members of the corps are
recruited directly out of college and remain with the corps on a
career basis.

Finally, while it is difficult to predict what other
categories of persons might be designated by the President as
a "uniformed service' for the purpose of the VRR law, the
Administration bill provides that such a designation would be
made only in time of war or national emergency. During World War
II, Women's Air Service Pilots (then commonly known as "WASPS")
performed important services in the interest of national defense
but were not covered by the VRR law. This provision of the
Administration's bill is intended to grant the President
authority to respond to such special circumstances as they arise
and to obviate the need for additional legislation.

3. Both the Administration draft of a Veterans Reemployment
Rights bill and H.R. 1578 would repeaJ subsection 631(j) of title
28, United States Cade, providing for the reinbtatement rights of
a magistrate ordered to active duty In the Armed Forces for more
than 30 days. However, revision- of chapter 43 of title 38
proposed therein call for Office of Personnel Management
reemployment assistance of judicial branch employees only if such
employees are qualified for competitive service under section
3304(d) of title 5. Please explain how deletion of section
631(j) of title 28 would affect magistrates who are not so
qualified at the time of entry on active duty.

Bespen22: First, we note that both the Administration
bill and H.R. 1578 provide for Office of Personnel Management
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reemployment assistance to judicial branch employees where such

employees are queified for the competitive service under section

3304(c), not 3304(d), of title 5, United States Code. Ana

section 2029(e) of the Administration bill; section 2042(d) of

H.R. 1578.

Construing both the Administration bill and H.R. 1578
liberally, a magistrate (or any other judicial branch employee)

is entitled to reinstatement unless his or her judicial branch
employer deternines that: (1) reinstatement is not feasible: And
(2) the magistrate is otherwise eligible to acquire a status for

transfer to a position in the competitive service in accordance
with section 3304(c) of title 5, United States Code (i.e., the
magistrate is qualified for the competitive service under section

3304(c)). Sep section 2029(a),(e), of the Administration bill:
section 2042(a),(d), of H.R. 1578. Under such a construction
of the Administration and House bills, a magistrate who is not
qualified to enter the competitive service pursuant to section
3304(c) of title 5 would be entitled to reinstatement by his
judicial branch employer, and repeal of section 631(j) of title
28 would have no effect on the reemployment rights of magistrates
who are not qualified for the competitive service. The sectional

analysis accompanying the Administration's bill supports this

interpretation. It states that section 631(j) of title 28 is
deemed redundant in view of the protections afforded magistrates

in the Administration bill.

It is possible, however, to construe the Administration bill
and H.,- 3518 as allowing a judicial branch employer to deny a
magistrate (or any other judicial branch employee) reinstatement
where the employer's circumstances have so changed as to make
reinstatement impossible or unreasonable, regardless of the
magistrate's qualifications for transfer to the competitive
service under section 3304(c) of title 5. ggg section 2025(a),
(i), of the Administration bill: section 2032(a) of H.R. 1578.

If the Administration and House bills were so construed, repeal
of section 631(j) of title 28 would leave a magistrate who was
not qualified for the competitive service with less protection
than that provided under current law.

417
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The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee OA
Veterans Affairs

United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

As requested, enclosed are our reopens.. to the questions
raised following the Nay 23 hearing on resits/ono to the
Veterans' Reemployment Rights Statute. I apologise for
the delay in forwarding then to you.

If you need additional information, please let ms know.

S merely,

Enclosures

4 .1, :-
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POW maw= 0212,2011
PROM

aeuate Veterans affairs Committee
(Hearings on S. 1095)

1. In IMO a profile of Itterars Reemployment Sights (VIR)
complaints presented at a Rouse Veterans affairs' COmmittee
hearing indicated that 341 pecout of all such complaints
considered by the Dsparent of labor involved reinstatements; 27
gement involved easiority, Status amd ; 20 percent involved
discharges; and the remaining 12 percent involved passions,
vacations, and other fringe beast to. the VIR complaint profile
also indicated that 01 parcel& of the cases involved reservists
or members of the national guard.

a. Do Van complaints continuo to follow the 195S profile?
if after reviewing your statistics you find the complaint profile
to be significantly different, plesse provide an updated
assessment for the record.

R. Do high volume activity areas is the VRR complaint
profile refloat an ambiguity in current law or natural points of
conflict in the reemployment area?

A. Our data on VRR complaints has been refined since then by

the addition of other issues. In 1989 we only had eight

categories of issues, a number that has been increased to 14

categories of issues for 1989 and 1990.

The essential difference is that in 1988 a large percentage,

38 percent of our complaints, involved reinstatement. This

percentage dropped to 24 percent in 1989 and 26.4 percent in

1990. Also, the percentage of discharge complaints dropped from

20 percent in 1988 to 13.6 percent in 1989 and 11.3 percent in

1990.

Those reduced percentages in reinstatement and discharge

complaints appear to be largely due to a new category: "Lost

4 I :9
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Waves," which accounted for 18.8 percent of our cases in 1989 and

18.3 percent in 1990.

Another new category, Discrimination, accounted for 2.4 percent

of complaints in 1989 and 2.2 percent in 1990.

A complete breakdown is provided below for your information.

Numbers do not telly to 100% due to rounding off:

1989 1990

Seniority 14.5% 11.4%

Discrimination 2.4% 2.2%

Discharge 13.0% 11.3%

Lost Wages 28.6% 18.3%

Pay Bate 4.7% 5.3%

Pension 2.7% 2.8%

Reinstatement 24.01 26.4*

Status 6.7% 8.0*

Vacation 6.0% 5.9*

Wealth Benefits 0.8% 0.2%

Layoffs 0.7% 0.8%

Other Benefits 0.2% 1.3%

Other 3.4% 3.8%
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B. we generally equate the high volume categories to natural

points of conflict and to nieunderstpAdings an to the

requirementa of the law. It is our estimate that

misunderstanding of the law ie the sost prevalent. It in

noteworthy that over nineteen out of every twenty complaints aro

resolved short of litigation, many on the basis of negotiated

settlements.

2. Both the Adsinietration draft of a VIZ bill and B.A. 1578
would repeal subsection 821(j) of title 28, limited Staten Code,
providing for the reinstatement rights of a magistrate ordered to
active duty in the armed Forces for sore than 30 days. Bowever,
revisions flf chapter 43 of title 28 proposed therein call for
Office of Personnel Management reemployment assistance of
judicial branch employees only if such =ploys*, are qualified
for competitive service under section 2204(6) of title 5. Pleas
explain how deletion of section 531(j) of title 28 would affect
nagietrates who are not so qualified at the tine of entry into
active duty.

Note: The question that we recaived referred to section 3304(d)
of title 5, but we believe that section 3304(c) was intended.

Under current VRR la y. tl judicial branch eMplOyees are to be

reemployed by that branch (sae 38 U.S.C. S 2023(0)), although rol

enforcement scheme is lacking. A magistrate, under 28 U.S.C.

631(j), has an independent right to reemployment if the

term of office has not expired. If not reemployed, however,

judicial branch employees currently do not enjoy the same right

to reemployment in the executive branch as is afforded to

legislative branch employees. Pee 38 U.S.C. 5 2023(b).

' )
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The Administration proposal and R.R. 1578 fundamentally charge

the nature of the protection for judicial branch employees.

Judicial branch employees, including magistrates, would continue

tc have a right to reemployment with that branch. In certain

circumstances, however, reinstatement to the original position

may not be feasible. Under a liberal construction of the

pposed statutory language, if the judicial branch employer

determined that reinstatement is not feasible and the employee is

eligible for transfer ty the executive branch pursuant to the

terms of 5 U.S.C. Sec. 3304(c), then the employee shall be

offered employment in an alternative position (of like seniority,

status, and pay) in the executive branch.I Hagiatrates, and

other judicial branch employees who may be unable to meet the

requirements of section 3304(c) (2), would not have this

additional protection and would rely on their reemployment rights

for reemployment by the judicial branch.

The Administration proposal and H.R. 1578 would create a new

safety net, similar to that provided to emp1o7ees of the

legislative branch, for certain employees of the judicial branch.

This safety net was created in order to make treatment of those

I Section 3304(c) (2) allows a judicial branch employee who
served for 4 years as a secretary and/or law clerk to a Federal
judge or justice to acquire eligibility for transfar to the
executive branch.

'
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employees consistent with the treatment afforded legislative

branch employees and National Guard technicians. A safety net

was also created for employees of the intelligence community

agencies. Under the Administration proposal provided to you

after S. 1095 was introduced, the employee, of the Intelligence

Community Agency are deemed qualified to be moved within the

executive branch "unless the Director of the Office of Personnel

Management has evidence of the unsuitability" of the employee.

In addition, the provision at issue, 28 U.S.C. S 631(j), deals

with a very narrow class of persons. The task force that drafted

the Administration's proposal was attempting, insofar as

possible, to apply the reemployment statute uniformly to all

employers and all seven uniformed services. Provisions

identified as dealing with narrow groups in an inconsistent

manner, therefore, were designated to be repealed.

2. wroposed new section 4325 of title 32 (as would be added by
section 2 of 1.1092), a provision similar to proposed new section
2034(f) as would be added by section 2 of RA. 15711), would limit
the pension Senefit plan rights of persons epployed by private
employers to employee pension benefit plans desaribed in section
2(2) Of the Ripley** iStirOMSIA IMMDMO Security Act of 1274
(13ISS). Does section 3(2) cover all pension benefit plan being
used by employees with private seployers7 If not, plisses
provide, as a technical service, legislative language to *inur
full coverage.

Yea, the definition of an employee pension benefit plan under

ERISA section 3(2)(A) encompasses all employer arrangements

.41
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cossonly referred to as pension plans. The definition includes

arrangements that provide retirement income ae well as those that

defer compensation until termination of epployeent. However,

=ISA section 3(2) (B) allows the Secretary of Labor to treat

severance pey arrangements and supplemental retirement incom

payments to retirees as welfare plans rather than pension plans.

The Secretary has exercised this authority with respect to

certain of these programs in regulations codified at 29 CFR

2510.3-2 (These regulations also discuss other employer practices

that do not constitute amployee benefit pension plans).

Therefore, while all employee pension benefit plans are covered

under section 3(2)(5) of ERISA, some of thee are treated as

welfare plans under the Department of Labor's regulations.

4. Does proposed new section 4220 (as would be added by section
2 of 5.2005) present any potential conflict with Internal Revenue
Service regulations regarding defined contribution plans? If so,
please provide, as a technical service, legislative language to
clarify the potential confliet.

We defer to the Department of Treasury as to any potential

conflict with the Internal Revenue Code or regulations presented

by this section.

2. The Disabled American Veterans, on page 111 of their May 22,
19,I, written testimony, suggested that report language regarding
proposed new natation 4322 pbs.is. the Department of Labor's
retained authority to d.tzin. an employee's qualifications for
reemployment. Does tbe Departmont have such authority now?

The current reemployment statute, the Administration's bill.
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H.R. 1578 and S. 1095, as currently written, do not give the

DApartment of Labor (VOL) this sort of factfinding authority.

Sudh finding, of fact are made by the Federal District Courts or,

for Federal employee cases, by the Merit Systems Protection Board

(WSPR). Thus, if an employer insists that a retu!ning veteran is

not entitled to reeeployment because he or Ahe is not qualified,

because of a physical disability or for any other reason, the DOL

role would be, at the outset, to investigate whether there is a

valid basis for that claim. If the IDOL were to find the veteran

to be qualified and otherwise eligible for reemployment, the

usual cas handling procedures would follow. Any final

determination would be made by the court or the MSPB, with the

employer having the burden of proof.

The concern expressed by the Disabled American Veterans, as we

understand it, is that an employer should not be able to defeat

a veteran's reemployment rights simply by asserting that the

veteran is not qualified. We believe that concern is adequately

addressed by the Advinistration's bill, H.

4 )5

R. 1578 and S. 1095.
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THE SECRETARY Of VETERANS AFFAIRS

WASHNOTON

i

The Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, Committee on Veterans'
Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

Enclosed please find the Department's responses to the

follow-up questions you submitted following the May 23, 1991,

hearino on education and employment legislation. Thank you for

the ,ortunity to provide this additional information for the

record.

Sincerely yours,

do f
Derwins:iEdwar

Enclosure
EJD/flc
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Questions Submitted by Senator Cranston To The Department Of

Veterans Affairs In Follow-Up To May 23, 1991, Rearing

aitaitiOR: 1. The Enlisted Association of the National Guard, on

page 2 of their May 23, 2992, written testimony expressed concern
that section 2 of B. 868, which would provide coverage to members of
tbe Selected Reserve who bad to discontinue their educational
pursuit as a result of being ordered to serve on active duty in
connection with the Persian Gulf War, would exclude those who had to
discontinue the name pursuit as a result of voluntiering for such

service. Would this be VA's interpretation?

MUM= The language in section 2 of 8. 868 refers to individuals
ordered to active duty under sections 672(a), (d), or (g), or 673b
of title 10, Utited States Code. The above sections, with the
exception of section 672(d), provide authority to order any unit
(and any meoter not assigned to a unit) of a reserve component to
active duty without the consent of those affected. Section 672(d)
provides that a member of a reserve component may be ordered to
active duty or retained on active duty with the mentor's consent.

we defer to tbe Department of Defense's interpretation of whether
the scope of the latter Provision embraces the volunteer mentioned

in your question.

Question: 2. Proposed new section 4322(d)(2) of S. 1095 provides
that certain disabled veterans would have up to two years after the
completion of their active-duty service to report back to their

auployer, The Disabled Anerican Veterans, on pages 7 and 8 of their
Way 23, 2991 written testimony suggested that VA Veterans
Rehabilitation Specialists and Counseling Psychologists should be
assigned case-manager responsibilities and be an intricate component
of the rehabilitation plan. The DAV also suggested that, at the
earliest possible date, VA and a representative of the employer meet
with the disabled veteran to determine whether the job is still
available; the veteran can return to his or her previous job with or
without job modifications or accommodations; the vetevan would need
any retraining or special equipment to facilitate a return to the
job; and if it is otherwise medically infeasible or if another job
of comparable status is offered, any accommodations or special

equipment or training would be needed. Whet are VA's views on these

suggestions?

gesoonso: Vocational rehabilitation specialists and counseling
;sychologists of the Vocational Rehabilitation Service are involved
in helping service-disabled veterans who ire eligible for and

4
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SENATOR CRANSTON

entitled to assistance under chapter 31 make the beat use of

their reemployment rights. Consideration of reemployment

rights is a part of a comprehensive evaluation of the veteran's

situation. It use of reemployment rights emerges as the most
appropriate method of securing suitable employment, then this

course is vigorously pursued. However, our experience also

indicates that there are situations, particularly for young

veterans with little in the way of significant education,
training or employment where a return to prior employment is

not in the veteran's best interest.

The suggestions made by DAV include many of the services which

VA would furnish as a part of a rehabilitation plan under
chapter 31 in which the goal of the program is to enable the
veteran to become reemployed in the occupation which he or she
had held prior to his or her service in the Armed Forces. We

have no objections to the specific suggestions made by DAV to

help secure a veteran's reemployment rights. However, we

believe that our staff should retain the flexibility both to
help a veteran determine whether a return to prior employment

is in his or her best interest and to use the procedures
suggested by DAV on an individual basis as appropriate to the

veteran's situation.
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Honorable Alan Cranston
Chairman, COmeittee on Veterans' Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Xr. Chairman:

I an enclosing my response to your question following the
Committee's Hay 23, 1991, hearing concerning your bill,
S. 1095, te amend the Veterans Reemployment Rights law.

certainly support your efforts to mAke the starutorf
e mployment protections for veterans and reservists clearer.
I look forward to contiuuing to work with you and your svaff
on S. 1095 as well as other issues of interest to veterans.

Sincerely,

0-61441t.A
constance DOKry NOWAR
Director

Enclosure
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QUESTION FOR TRE OFFICE OF PEISONNEL MANAGEMENT
IN FOLLOW-UP TO MAY 23, 1991, HEARING

Q. The Disabled American Veterans, on page 9 of their
May 23, 1991, testimony, asked whether current law
provides that a veteran who is eligible for restoration
to fedel:al employeent is entitled to all rights and
benefits of federal employment, including pay, while a
federal agency and the Office of Personnel Management are
making a determination regarding the feasibility of
reemplJyment or seeking to place him or her in a
comparable job. What is OPM's position on this ques-
tion?

A. Applicable OPM regulations under the Veterans'
Reemployment Rights law provide that an individual
returning from military duty who is entitled to mandatory
restoration "must be restored as soon as possible after
making application but in no event later than 30 days
after the application is received by the agency."
[5 CFR 1353. 301(a).] Thus, the "feasibility" of
restoration is not an issue; the agency is ehliget212 to
restore a returning employee as soon as possible. In
most instances, the employee simply returns to his or her
former position and there is no delay in restoration.
The instances in which restoration is delayed beyond 30
days are very rare and in these cases the employee would
receive back pay plus interest for loss of salary during
periods in excess of 30 days.

Federal employees may appeal an employing agency's
failure to restore, or an improper restoration, to the
Merit Systems Protection Board 15 U.S.C. 1204(a)]. On
determination that an agency has failed or refused to
comply with applicable law or regulation, MSPB may order
corrective action and back pay for any loss of salary the
employee suffered by reason of the agency's noncompli-
ance.

4.it
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THE SECRETARY OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

WASHINGTON

JUL 3 0 1997

The Bonorable Thomas Daschl
Committee on Vete.ans' Affairs
United States Senate.
Washington. D. C. 20510

Dear Senator Daschlet

Enclosed please.find the Department's responses to the

questions which you submitted following the Committee's

May 23, 1991, hearing on Education and Employment Benefits.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this additional

information for the record.

Enclosure
EJD/flo

Sincerely yours,

Edward J. Derwinski

4 .1 1
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Questions Submitted by Senator Deschle
to the Department of Veterans Affairs
Following the May 28, 1991, Bearing

Question: 1. What Is the average time for benefits processing at
the St. Louis Regional Processing Center?

Response: S. Louis completes 77 percent of the initial chapter 30
E1ITE7-17ithin 22 days. They proCess 97 percent of the .eenrollments
within 8 days.

uestion: 2. Is information on the number of recipients of

on-t e-lob training (OJT) and apprentteeship benefits readily
available rtnis St. Louis?

a. If so, bow many veterans are utilizing these benefits
in the region?

h. If not, why is this information not yet available?

Response: Informat.ion is available from St. Louis. The information
shows that at the end of March 1991, the St. Louis Processing Center
awarded chapter 30 benefits to 123 veterans pursuing on-the-job and
apprenticeship training.

Question: 3. Cfrtainly, veterans are informed of their GI Bill
benefits upon sepatation. what efforts are being made by the
Department to inform veterans of OJT benefits that are available to
them under the GI Bi117

Response: PreseparLtion briefings are provided to aervicemembers
who will be separateN in the near future. This effort is part of
the Transition Assistance Program authorized by Pub. L. 101-I'10.

Centrally prepared briefing materials address apprenticeship and

other on-the-job training opportunities as one of the several
options available as part of the GI Bill.

Similarly, apprenticeships and ether on-the-job training is

described in VA publications as one type of education and training
that is available to qualified veterans. The various types of
training opportunities are generally listed without emphasis on any
one particular type: e.g., In discussing noncontributory GI 8111
benefits, VA Pamphlet 27-82-2 (A Summary of Dapartment of Veterans
Affairs Benefits) covers apprenticeship or other on-the-job training
as a subheading: in discussing the Montgomery G/ 8111, this same
pamphlet has all training opportunities listed In one paragraph:

Benefits are payable for attendance st institutions of
higher learning, noncollege degree programs, apprentice-
ship/on-job training and pursuit of correspondence
training. Veterans may pursue refresher, remedial
and deficiency courses, and qualify for tutorial
assistance.
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Senator Oaschle

VA Pamphlet 27-82-2 is mailed to each veteran 6 months after
separation as part of the Veterans Assistance Discharge System
(VADS). However, a special mailing for chapter 30 eligible
individuals has been initiated as part of the VADS program and this
mailing highlights eligibility to the various categories of
education and training,. including OJT and apprenticeship. In

addition. VA Pamphlet 22-79-1, which describes chapter 32

(post-Vietnam Era veteran's educational assistance program), is

mailed to each veteran who may qualify for that benefit program.

A significant number of the more than 10 million public veterans
assistance contacts each year art from new veterans and those
eligible under one of the several education programs. These
contacts result in extensive information dissemination on the
various education programs and specific information on
OJT/apprenticeship as it may appear warranted.

We also send a veteran a summary of education benefits under the
Montgomery GI Bill. VA Pamphlet 22-90-2 (Summary of Education
Benefits Under the Montgomery GI Bill - Active Duty Educational
Assistance Program), after we receive an application for chapter 30
benefits. thereafter, a copy is sent annually to individuals in
receipt of chapter 30 benefits.

Question,: 4. What is the statua of the report by the "Committee to
Assess Veterans' Education,' which was due last August pursuant to
section 320 of Public Law 99-5761

Response: This report is still undergoing interagency review. In
IFFERrace with the Office of Management and Budget's request, we
are preparing current cost estimates for each of the recommendations
made in the report as necessitated by the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1990.

0
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